
 
                  

        

 
 

  
 

 

 

 
   

  

 

  
  

  

 

                  
                       
                      
                

              
 

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cru], CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ ZZZ.santacru]coe.org
Ms. Jane Ro\er Barr ⚈ Ms. Rose Filicetti   ⚈ Ms. Sandra Nichols ⚈ Ms. Sue Roth   ⚈ Mr. Dana Sales

Mr. Abel Sanche]   ⚈ Mr. Bruce Van Allen

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday December 17, 2020

Open Session: 4:00 p.m.
Held b\ Videoconference Onl\

NOTICE:

In order to meet the most recent guidelines from the Santa Cru] Count\ Health Services Agenc\ in regard to 
COVID-19, this meeting Zill be limited to Yirtual participation onl\ and made available online via a live
video-conference at the folloZing Zeb address: 

https://santacru]coe-org.]oom.us/j/87248652015 

Or join b\ phone: 
US: +1(669) 900-6833

Meeting ID: 872 4865 2015#

PUBLIC COMMENT:

An\ person Zishing to make a public comment Zill have the opportunit\ to do so via videoconference during 
the virtual meeting for up to three minutes each for an\ item not listed on the agenda, or for up to tZo minutes 
for an\ item listed on the agenda. To submit a comment about to be read aloud on \our behalf either listed or 
not listed on the meeting agenda, please send a comment no longer than 300 Zords to 
sleibenson@santacru]coe.org no later than 2pm on December 17th. Each individual ma\ onl\ make one 
comment per topic. 

AGENDA

1. Call To Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum

Sue Roth (President), Jane Ro\er Barr, Rose Filicetti, Sandra Nichols, Dana Sales, Abel Sanche],
Bruce Van Allen
Faris Sabbah, Secretar\

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Superintendent Sabbah (Secretar\) Zill lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Agenda deletions and/or changes of sequence Zill be approved or the agenda Zill be approved as
submitted.

1

https://santacruzcoe-org.zoom.us/j/87248652015
mailto:sleibenson@santacruzcoe.org
https://ZZZ.santacru]coe.org


 
 

 

 


 

 
  

  
 

 
  

 

 
 

  
 

  
  

 

 
 

 
  

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 

Agenda, Regular Meeting 

December 17, 2020 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This is an opportunit\ for the public to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda.  The 
Board President Zill recogni]e an\ member of the audience not previousl\ placed on the agenda Zho 
Zishes to speak on a matter directl\ related to school business. Each speaker, on an\ specific topic, 
ma\ speak up three (3) minutes unless otherZise limited or e[tended b\ the President.  The 
President ma\ allot time to those Zishing to speak but no action Zill be taken on matters presented 
(EDC � 35145.5). If appropriate, the President, or an\ Member of the Board, ma\ direct a matter to be 
referred to the Superintendent¶s Office for placement on a future agenda.  Please refer to item, POeaVe 
NRWe, on the last item of this agenda. 

5. Retirement Recognitions 

The Board Zill recogni]e the important contributions of the folloZing Santa Cru] Count\ Office 
of Education emplo\ees Zho are planning to retire in the 2018-2019 school \ear. 

Retirees: Toni Alldredge, Human Resources Anal\st, Human Resources 
Jimm\ Griffin, Custodian, Maintenance & Operations 
Neal Harris, Custodian, Maintenance & Operations 
George Lope], Director, Maintenance & Operations 
Jeanne Milnes, Teacher, Oasis High School 
Blanca Sanche], Instructional Aide, Alternative Education 
Dorrie Stallings, Teacher, Oasis High School 

Presenters: Dr. Faris Sabbah, Count\ Superintendent of Schools 
Br\an Wall, Interim Deput\ Superintendent 

6. Appreciation For Outgoing Trustees 

Trustees Jane Barr and Dana Sales terms¶ have e[pired and Zill not be continuing to serve on the 
Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education an\ longer. The Board Zill recogni]e Trustees Barr and Sales 
for their man\ \ears of dedicated service to the Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education. 

Outgoing Trustees: Jane Barr, Trustee Area 5 
Dana Sales, Area 6 

Presenters: Dr. Faris Sabbah, Count\ Superintendent of Schools 
Br\an Wall, Interim Deput\ Superintendent 
Sue Roth (President) 

7. SZearing-In Ceremon\ 

The Count\ Superintendent of Schools, Dr. Faris Sabbah, and Count\ Elections Clerk, Gail Pellerin, 
Zill sZear in the folloZing neZl\ elected trustees to the Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education: 

Sandra Nichols, Trustee Area 3 
Rose Filicetti, Trustee Area 4 
Al\ssa Wall, Trustee Area 5 
Ed Acosta, Trustee Area 6 

2



 
 

 
 
 

         
 

      
 

     
 

                  
                     

  
 

      
 

          
 

       
 

        
 

      
 

        
 

          
 

     
 

          
 

     
 

         
 

               
 

           
  

 
              

 
       

 
                  

        
 

     
 

    
 

  
 
 

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 

Agenda, Regular Meeting 

December 17, 2020 

7.1 Seating of NeZ Officers of the Board of Trustees 

NeZ officers Zill be seated. 

8. ANNUAL ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 

The Board shall organi]e a meeting held each \ear b\ electing one of their members as president of 
the Board. The meeting shall be on the first meeting on or after the last Frida\ in November (EDC � 
1009). 

8.1 Nominations for President of the Board 

Sue Roth (President) Zill call for nominations for Board President. 

8.2 Election of the Board President 

The Board Zill, b\ motion, elect a president. 

Call for Motion: Sue Roth (President) 

8.3 Nominations for the Vice President of the Board 

The President Zill call for nominations of the Vice President. 

8.4 Election of Board Vice President 

The President Zill, b\ motion, elect a vice president. 

Call for Motion: Board President 

8.5 Appointment of Chairperson, Count\ Committee on School District Organi]ation 

The Board Zill appoint a chairperson to the Count\ Committee on School District Organi]ation. 

8.6 Appointment of Chairperson to the Santa Cru] Count\ School Board Association 
(SCZCSBA) 

The Board Zill appoint a chairperson to the Santa Cru] Count\ School Board Association. 

8.7 Establishment of Regular Meetings of the Board 

The Board Zill discuss, and b\ motion, select the da\ of the month and the time for regular 
meetings of the Count\ Board of Education. 

Call for Motion: Board President 

8.8 Appointments to Standing Committees 

7.8.1 Agenda Committee 

3



 
 

 
 

     
 

   
  

   
     

    
 

   
 

               
                   

             
     

 
           
          
   

 
 

     
 

      
 

                  
       

 
 

 
              

               
 

     
 

          
 

             
              

              
        

 
       

 
       

 
               
               

                 
               

 
        

 

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 

Agenda, Regular Meeting 

December 17, 2020 

8.9 Appointments to Ad Hoc Committees 

8.9.1 Board Budget Committee 
8.9.2 Polic\ Committee 
8.9.3 Charter Schools Committee 
8.9.4 Communit\ Outreach and Legislative Committee 
8.9.5 Other committee(s) as determined 

9. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing on the consent agenda are recommended actions Zhich are considered to be 
routine in nature and Zill be acted upon as one motion. Specific items ma\ be removed for separate 
consideration. Item(s) removed Zill be considered immediatel\ folloZing the consent agenda motion 
as Deferred Consent Items. 

9.0.1 Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of November 19, 2020 
9.0.2 Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of December 10, 2020 
9.0.3 Routine Budget Revisions 
9.0.4 Donations 

Call for Motion: Board President 

9.1 Deferred Consent Items (if required) 

This item is placed on the agenda to address an\ items that might be pulled from Agenda Item 
10.0 for further discussion/consideration if so determined. 

10. CORRESPONDENCE 

Official correspondence received b\ the Board, if an\, is included herein. Copies of correspondence 
received Zithin 72 hours of the meeting Zill be made available at the meeting location. 

11. REPORTS, DISCUSSIONS, AND PRESENTATIONS 

11.1 Pacific Collegiate Charter School (PCS) Annual Report and DiYersit\ Plan 

As the chartering agenc\, the Count\ Board of Education requires that Pacific Collegiate 
Charter School make an annual report on the evaluation of its educational program in 
accordance Zith the charter petition and fulfillment of the charter¶s purpose and goals. Their 
presentation Zill also present the charter¶s Diversit\ Plan. 

Presenter: Maria Reitano, Head of School, PCS 

11.2 COVID-19 And E[pansion of In-Person SerYices Update 

Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education has been Zorking in collaboration Zith the Santa Cru] 
Count\ Health Services agenc\ and school districts to prepare for and respond to the outbreak 
of COVID-19 in our communit\. The Board Zill receive an update on the Za\s in Zhich the 
Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education has been Zorking to respond to the COVID-19 crisis. 

Presenter: Dr. Faris Sabbah, Count\ Superintendent of Schools 

4



 
 

 
 

        
 

       
 

              
          

 
      

      
 

  
   

 
          

 
              

             
                 

             
        

 
        

 
   

    
 

    
 

                
               

               
        

 
   
     
     
    
  
   

 
      

 
  

    
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 

Agenda, Regular Meeting 

December 17, 2020 

12. PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS, AND ACTION ITEMS 

12.1 ApproYal of the 2020-2021 Budget Calendar 

The Board Zill be asked to approve the 2021-2022 Budget Development Process and Single 
Budget Adoption Timelines as submitted and recommended b\ administration. 

Presenter: Liann Re\es, Deput\ Superintendent, Business Services 
Melissa Lope], Director, Fiscal Services 

Motion & 
Vote: Board President 

12.2 Ballot for CSBA Election for Region 9 Delegate Assembl\ 

Nominations are being accepted until Thursda\, Januar\ 7 2021 for election to the California 
School Boards Association¶s Delegate Assembl\. Delegates Zith terms that end in 2021 are 
up for election. Delegates elected in 2021 Zill serve a tZo \ear term beginning April 1, 2021 
through March 31, 2023. The Board Zill consider approving the proposed ballot nominiating 
Rose Filicetti for CSBA Region 9-A Delegate. 

Presenter: Dr. Faris Sabbah, Count\ Superintendent of Schools 

Motion & 
Vote: Board President 

12.3 First Reading: Board Policies 

Modified and neZ policies ma\ be adopted b\ the Count\ Board of Education folloZing a first 
and second reading b\ the Board. The Board ma\ accept the folloZing proposed polic\(ies) as 
submitted and Zaive a second reading and move to take action, order changes, or order 
changes and bring back for a final reading: 

BP 5131.2 Bull\ing 
BP 5131.7 Weapons & Dangerous Instruments 
BP 5144.1 Suspension & E[pulsions 
BP 5145.2 Freedom of Speech/E[pression 
BP 5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
BP 5145.7 Se[ual Harassment 

Presenter: Rose Filicetti, Chair, Polic\ Committee 

Motion & 
Vote: Board President 

5



 
 

 
 

        
 

               
              

                  
                   

                
      

 
                
              

     
 

        
     

 
  

    
 

      
 

              
               

        
 

         
 

 
    

 
   

 
               
    

 
      

 
                 
         

 
       

 
         

 
        

 
      

    
    

  
 
 

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 

Agenda, Regular Meeting 

December 17, 2020 

12.4 Transfer Board TraYel and Conference Reimbursement Funds 

Pursuant to Board Polic\ 9250, the Board shall be reimbursed for an\ actual and necessar\ 
pre approved travel e[penses incurred in the course of their duties upon submission of 
itemi]ed receipts for up to $2,000 each, or $3,000 each for an\ trustee that is elected as a 
delegate to a regional or state organi]ation. If a Board member elects not to use his or her full 
allocation, the Board, as a bod\, ma\ designate the intended or actual unused funds to other 
Board members for travel and conference. 

The Board Zill discuss Zhat has currentl\ been spent for Board travel and conference for the 
fiscal \ear 2020-201 and consider a motion to transfer funds among trustees Zho have 
e[ceeded their spending cap. 

Presenters: Dr. Faris Sabbah, Count\ Superintendent of Schools 
Rose Filicetti, Board President 

Motion & 
Vote: Board President 

12.5 Schedule Special Januar\ Board Meeting 

The Board Zill consider scheduling a special meeting on Januar\ for Thursda\, Januar\ 14, 
2020 at 3:00 p.m. to participate in a training regarding BroZn Act regulations and recent 
changes in laZ hosted b\ legal counsel. 

Presenter: Dr. Faris Sabbah, Count\ Superintendent of Schools 

Motion 
& Vote: Board President 

13. SUPERINTENDENT¶S REPORT 

Count\ Superintendent of Schools, Dr. Faris M. Sabbah, Zill provide an update on activities and 
matters of interest. 

14. TRUSTEE REPORTS (3 minutes each) 

Trustees Zill report on matters, events, and activities as related to Board goals of: Advocating for 
students, maintaining communit\ relations, and promoting student achievement. 

15. AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS (if an\) 

16. ADDITIONS, IF ANY, TO FUTURE BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 

17. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: Januar\ 21, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

6



 
 

 
 
 

      
    
     

  
 

      
    
     

  
 

      
    
     

  
 

      
    
     

  
 

      
    
     

  
 

      
    
     

  
 

      
    
     

  
 

      
    
     

  
 

      
    
     

  
 

      
    
     

  
 

      

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 

Agenda, Regular Meeting 

December 17, 2020 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: Februar\ 18, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: March 18, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: April 15, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: Ma\ 20, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: June 17, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: Jul\ 15, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: August 19, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: September 16, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: October 21, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: November 18, 2021 
4:00 p.m 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 

7



 
 

 
 

    
     

  
 

   
 

        
 
 

  
  

  
  

                 
                     

                     
                     

                 
                

                
                 

  
  

  
                  

                   
              

 
  

  
               

                  
                  

       
  

  
  

                 
                

                    
                

               
               

  
 

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 

Agenda, Regular Meeting 

December 17, 2020 

Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
TeQWaWLYe: December 16, 2021 
4:00 p.m. 

18. ADJOURNMENT 

The Board President Zill adjourn the meeting. 

PLEA6E NO7E: 

Public Participation: 

All persons are encouraged to attend and, Zhen appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cru] 
Count\ Board of Education. If \ou Zish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning 
of the meeting as an\ item, upon motion, ma\ be moved to the beginning of the agenda. Persons Zishing to 
address the Board are asked to state their name for the record. The president of the Board Zill establish a 
time limit of three (3) minutes, unless otherZise stated b\ the president, for comments from the public. 
Consideration of all matters is conducted in open session e[cept those relating to litigation, personnel and 
emplo\ee negotiations, Zhich, b\ laZ, ma\ be considered in closed session. E[pulsion appeal hearings are 
heard in closed session unless a request for hearing in open session is made b\ the appellant. 

Backup Documentation: 

An\ Zritings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majorit\ of the governing board 
regarding an open session item on this agenda Zill be made available for public inspection in the Count\ Office 
of Education, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cru], CA 95060, during normal business hours. 

Translation Requests: 

Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis. Please make advance arrangements Zith 
Sage Leibenson b\ telephone at (831) 466-5900 Traducciones del inglps al espaxol \ del espaxol al inglps 
estin disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva. Por favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Sage 
Leibenson por telpfono al numero (831) 466-5900. 

ADA Compliance: 

In compliance Zith Government Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education Zill, on 
request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons Zith a disabilit\, as required 
b\ Section 202 of the Americans Zith Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec 12132), and the federal rules and 
regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals Zho need this agenda in an alternative format or 
Zho need a disabilit\-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should 
contact Sage Leibenson, Administrative Aide to the Superintendent, 400 Encinal St., Santa Cru], CA 95060, 
(831) 466-5900. 

8



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
      

 
  

 
  

 
  

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUG RI EGXFaWLRQ 

FROM: DU. FaULV SaEEaK, CRXQW\ SXSHULQWHQGHQW RI SFKRROV 

SUBJECT: RHWLUHPHQW RHFRJQLWLRQV 

X IQIRUPaWLRQ 

BACKGROUND 

TKH BRaUG ZLOO UHFRJQL]H WKH LPSRUWaQW FRQWULEXWLRQV RI WKH IROORZLQJ SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ 
OIILFH 
RI EGXFaWLRQ HPSOR\HHV ZKR aUH SOaQQLQJ WR UHWLUH LQ WKH 2018-2019 VFKRRO \HaU. 

RHWLUHHV: TRQL AOOGUHGJH, HXPaQ RHVRXUFHV AQaO\VW, HXPaQ RHVRXUFHV 
JLPP\ GULIILQ, CXVWRGLaQ, MaLQWHQaQFH & OSHUaWLRQV 
NHaO HaUULV, CXVWRGLaQ, MaLQWHQaQFH & OSHUaWLRQV 
GHRUJH LRSH], DLUHFWRU, MaLQWHQaQFH & OSHUaWLRQV 
JHaQQH MLOQHV, THaFKHU, OaVLV HLJK SFKRRO 
BOaQFa SaQFKH], IQVWUXFWLRQaO ALGH, AOWHUQaWLYH EGXFaWLRQ 
DRUULH SWaOOLQJV, THaFKHU, OaVLV HLJK SFKRRO 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

RHFHLYH SUHVHQWaWLRQ. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

NRQH. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHFHPEHU 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #5.0 
9



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

      
 

  
 

  
 

  

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ 

FROM: DU. FaUiV Sabbah, CRXQW\ SXSeUiQWeQdeQW Rf SchRRlV 

SUBJECT: ASSUeciaWiRQ fRU OXWgRiQg TUXVWeeV 

X IQIRUPaWLRQ 

BACKGROUND 

TUXVWeeV JaQe BaUU aQd DaQa SaleV WeUPV¶ haYe e[SiUed aQd Zill QRW be cRQWiQXiQg WR 
VeUYe RQ Whe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ aQ\ lRQgeU. The BRaUd Zill 
UecRgQi]e TUXVWeeV BaUU aQd SaleV fRU WheiU PaQ\ \eaUV Rf dedicaWed VeUYice WR Whe 
SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ Office Rf EdXcaWiRQ. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

ReceiYe SUeVeQWaWiRQ. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

NRQe. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DecePbeU 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #6.0 
10



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

   
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
      

 
  

 
  

 
  

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd RI EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: DU. FaULV SabbaK, CRXQW\ SXSeULQWeQdeQW RI ScKRROV 

SUBJECT: SZeaULQJ-IQ CeUePRQ\ 

BACKGROUND 

DU. FaULV SabbaK, CRXQW\ SXSeULQWeQdeQW RI ScKRROV ZLOO be VZeaULQJ LQ WKe IROORZLQJ 
QeZO\ eOecWed WUXVWeeV WR WKe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd RI EdXcaWLRQ: 

I. SaQdUa NLcKROV, TUXVWee AUea 3 
II. RRVe FLOLceWWL, TUXVWee AUea 4 
III. AO\VVa WaOO, TUXVWee AUea 5 
IV. Ed AcRVWa, TUXVWee AUea 6 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

ReceLYe SUeVeQWaWLRQ. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

NRQe. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DecePbeU 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #7.0 
11



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

   
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

      
 

  
 

  
 

  

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion 

FROM: AdminiVWUaWiYe DeSaUWmenW 

SUBJECT: RegXlaU NoYembeU 19, 2020 MinXWeV 

BACKGROUND 

RegXlaU MinXWeV of Whe NoYembeU 19, 2020 meeWing of Whe SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of 
EdXcaWion. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

ASSUoYe minXWeV. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DecembeU 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #9.0.1 
12



 
 

                    
                    

          
 

  
   

     
    

       
 

 
 

 
         

 
    

 
   
    

  
  

    
  

    
 

    
 

    
   
  
  

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cru], CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ santacru]coe.org 

Ms. Jane Royer Barr ⚈ Ms. Rose Filicetti   ⚈ Ms. Sandra Nichols ⚈ Ms. Sue Roth   ⚈ Mr. Dana Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez   ⚈ Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday November 19, 2020 
Open Session 4:00 p.m. 

VIRTUAL Meeting hosted from the Board Room 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Board Present (Yia Yideoconference) 

Jane Ro\er Barr 
Rose Filicetti (Vice President) 
Sandra Nichols 
Abel Sanche] 
Bruce Van Allen 
Dana Sales 
Sue Roth (President) 

Staff Present (Yia Yideoconference) 

Faris Sabbah (Secretar\) 
Debi Bodenheimer 
Sage Leibenson 
Liann Re\es 

Absent 

None. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Superintendent Sabbah (Secretar\) led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

13

https://santacru]coe.org


      
   

    
 

   
 

                  
    

 
           

 
         
   
   

 
 

   
 

      
 

   
 

               
                   

             
     

 
           
           

    
  

  
 

              
 

        
   
   

 
 
         

 
      
   
    

 
 

      
 

 
 

 
 

                
 

 

 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
NoYember 19, 2020 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

A call for a motion Zas made to make agenda deletions and/or changes of sequence, or approYe the 
agenda as submitted. 

It Zas M.S.C. (Sales/Nichols) to approYe the agenda as submitted. 

A\es: 
Na\s: 
Abstain: 
Absent: 

Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Sales, Roth, Van Allen 
None 
None 
Sanche] 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

No public comments Zere made. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing on the consent agenda are recommended actions Zhich are considered to be 
routine in nature and Zill be acted upon as one motion. Specific items ma\ be remoYed for separate 
consideration. Item(s) remoYed Zill be considered immediatel\ folloZing the consent agenda motion 
as Deferred Consent Items. 

5.0.1 Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of October 15, 2020 
5.0.2 Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of NoYember 5, 2020 
5.0.3 Routine Budget ReYisions 
5.0.4 Donations 
5.0.5 Surplus Items 

It Zas M.S.C. (Filicetti/Van Allen) to approYe items 5.0.1, 5.0.3, 5.0.4, and 5.0.5. 

A\es: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Sales, Roth, Van Allen 
Na\s: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Sanche] 

It Zas M.S.C. (Filicetti/Van Allen) to approYe items 5.0.2. 

A\es: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Sales, Roth 
Na\s: None 
Abstain: Van Allen 
Absent: Sanche] 

5.1 Deferred Consent Items (if required) 

None. 

6. CORRESPONDENCE 

No neZ correspondence Zas receiYed in addition to Zhat Zas included in the Board packet. 

14



      
   

    
 
 

     
 

             
        

 
            

               
             

               
 

         
 

             
                

             
             

            
            

           
 

        
 

            
  

 
           

          
             

                 
             

 
          

 
           

 
                

             
              

              
              

                 
               

 
             

   
 

         
   
   

 
 

 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
NoYember 19, 2020 

7. REPORTS, DISCUSSIONS, AND PRESENTATIONS 

7.1 Annual Report: Williams Legislation, Status of Decile 1-3 Schools - Pajaro Valley Unified 
School District and Santa Cruz City School District 

Education Code � 1240(2)(B) requires, pursuant to the Williams Settlement Legislation, that 
the Count\ Superintendent of Schools report the findings of the Yisits and reYieZs of schools 
Zithin the count\ designated as decile 1-3 schools. COE Williams Coordinator, Tom Tatum 
gaYe a report about Williams Inspections findings and responded to questions from the Board. 

7.2 COVID-19 and School Expansion of In-Person Services Update 

Count\ Superintendent of Schools, Dr. Faris Sabbah, gaYe a presentation to the Board 
regarding the Za\s in Zhich the Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education has been Zorking in 
collaboration Zith the Santa Cru] Count\ Health SerYices agenc\ and school districts to 
prepare for and respond to the outbreak of COVID-19 in our communit\. Superintendent 
Sabbah¶s report included updates on school plans to increase in-person serYices, COVID-19 
SurYeillance Testing, the current trajector\ of COVID-19, and California Department of Public 
Health guidance. The Board asked a number of clarif\ing questions. 

Abel Sanche] joined the meeting at 4:18 p.m. 

7.3 CSBA Nomination for CSBA Regional Delegates and CCBE Board of Directors in 
Region 9 

Superintendent Sabbah proYided the Board Zith information regarding the upcoming CSBA 
Regional Delegate Assembl\ election. Nominations are being accepted until Thursda\, 
Januar\ 7 2021 for election to the California School Boards Association¶s Delegate Assembl\. 
Delegates Zith terms that end in 2021 are up for election. Delegates elected in 2021 Zill serYe 
a tZo \ear term beginning April 1, 2021 through March 31, 2023. 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS, AND ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 Appointment of Diane Munoz to the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) 

It is requested that the Board appoint Diane Muno] as a CAC Yoting member. The Yoting 
members of the Communit\ AdYisor\ Committee shall be appointed b\, and responsible to, 
the GoYerning Board of each participating district or count\ office, or an\ combination thereof, 
participating in the Local Plan. Appointment Zill be in accordance Zith a locall\ determined 
selection procedure. Such procedure shall proYide that terms of appointment are for at least 
tZo \ears and are annuall\ staggered to ensure that no more than one half of the membership 
serYes the first \ear of the term in an\ one \ear (Ed. Code � 56191). 

It Zas M.S.C. (Van Allen/Nichols) to appoint Diane Muno] to the Communit\ AdYisor\ 
Committee (CAC). 

A\es: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Sales, Sanche], Van Allen, Roth 
Na\s: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

15



      
   

    
 

           
 

                
             

              
              

              
                 

               
 

              
  

 
         
   
   

 
 

       
 

                
               

               
        

 
      
    
  
     
     
      
     
    
        
      
    
     
    
      
     
     
        
     
       
       
      
    
        

 
               

  
 

 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
NoYember 19, 2020 

8.2 Appointment of Valerie Szeto to the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) 

It is requested that the Board appoint Valerie S]eto as a CAC Yoting member. The Yoting 
members of the Communit\ AdYisor\ Committee shall be appointed b\, and responsible to, 
the GoYerning Board of each participating district or count\ office, or an\ combination thereof, 
participating in the Local Plan. Appointment Zill be in accordance Zith a locall\ determined 
selection procedure. Such procedure shall proYide that terms of appointment are for at least 
tZo \ears and are annuall\ staggered to ensure that no more than one half of the membership 
serYes the first \ear of the term in an\ one \ear (Ed. Code � 56191). 

It Zas M.S.C. (Barr/Van Allen) to appoint Valerie S]eto to the Communit\ AdYisor\ Committee 
(CAC). 

A\es: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Sales, Sanche], Van Allen, Roth 
Na\s: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

8.3 First Reading: Board Policies (BP) 

Modified and neZ policies ma\ be adopted b\ the Count\ Board of Education folloZing a first 
and second reading b\ the Board. The Board ma\ accept the folloZing proposed polic\(ies) as 
submitted and ZaiYe a second reading and moYe to take action, order changes, or order 
changes and bring back for a final reading: 

BP 5020 Parent Rights and Responsibilities 
BP 5030 Student Wellness 
BP 5111 Admission 
BP 5113 Absences and E[cuses 
BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truanc\ 
BP 5121 Grades/EYaluation of Student AchieYement 
BP 5123 Promotion, Acceleration, and Retention 
BP 5125 Student Records 
BP 5125.1 Release of Director\ Information and E[hibit 
BP 5126 AZards for AchieYement 
BP 5131.2 Bull\ing 
BP 5131.6 Alcohol and Other Drugs 
BP 5131.62 Tobacco 
BP 5131.7 Weapons and Dangerous Instruments 
BP 5132 Dress and Grooming 
BP 5144.4 Required Parental Attendance 
BP 5145.11 Questioning and Apprehension b\ LaZ Enforcement 
BP 5145.12 Search and Sei]ure 
BP 5145.13 Response to Immigration Enforcement 
BP 5145.2 Freedom of Speech and E[pression 
BP 5145.3 Nondiscrimination and Harassment 
BP 5145.7 Se[ual Harassment 
BP 5146 Married, Pregnant, and Parenting Students 

It Zas M.S.C. (Van Allen/Sales) to ZaiYe the second reading and adopt the folloZing policies 
onl\: 

16



      
   

    
 

      
    
  
     
     
      
     
    
      
     
     
        
     
       

 
         
   
   

 
 

        
 

  
 

               
   

 
     

 
           

 
          

 
              

              
          

 
               

 
              

               
              

             
              

                
              

              
              
           
               

         
 

 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
NoYember 19, 2020 

BP 5020 Parent Rights and Responsibilities 
BP 5030 Student Wellness 
BP 5111 Admission 
BP 5113 Absences and E[cuses 
BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truanc\ 
BP 5121 Grades/EYaluation of Student AchieYement 
BP 5123 Promotion, Acceleration, and Retention 
BP 5125 Student Records 
BP 5126 AZards for AchieYement 
BP 5131.6 Alcohol and Other Drugs 
BP 5132 Dress and Grooming 
BP 5145.11 Questioning and Apprehension b\ LaZ Enforcement 
BP 5145.12 Search and Sei]ure 
BP 5145.13 Response to Immigration Enforcement 

A\es: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Sales, Sanche], Van Allen, Roth 
Na\s: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

Trustee Roth left the meeting at 5:25 p.m. 

9. SUPERINTENDENT¶S REPORT 

Count\ Superintendent of Schools, Dr. Faris M. Sabbah, proYided an update on actiYities and matters 
of interest. 

10. TRUSTEE REPORTS (3 minutes each) 

Trustee Barr attended a meeting of the Board Agenda Committee. 

Trustee Sales attended the Digital NEST¶s Yirtual anniYersar\ celebration. 

Trustee Sanche] attended PVUSD¶s State of the District eYent, attended UCSC¶s Election Forum for 
Our Criminal Justice S\stem and the Political Possibilities, PVUSD Facilit\ Tours, and Yolunteered Zith 
Santa Cru] Count\ Elections Department as a poll Zorker. 

Trustee Van Allen spent time Yolunteering on projects relating to the NoYember presidential election. 

Trustee Filicetti attended a Santa Cru] COVID-19 Operational and Wildlife Relief Call, the School 
Reopening ToZn Hall Featuring Dr. Faris Sabbah and local public health authorities, the SVLG Annual 
Forum featuring Dr. Fauci, and the Santa Cru] Count\ School Boards Association Regular bi-monthl\ 
meeting regarding Managing the Dual ImperatiYes of In-person K-12 Education and Public Safet\: 
School Reopening, COVID Screening, and Contact Tracing ± Risks and risk management of in-person 
serYices. Speakers at this meeting included Dr. Faris Sabbah, tZo leading UCSC scientists on hoZ 
adYances in COVID epidemiolog\ and testing appl\ to school communities and KeYin Gordon of 
Capitol AdYisors Zith an update from Sacramento. Trustee Filicetti also attended meetings of the 
Agenda Committee, Special NoYember 5th Board Meeting, and the CSBA Region 9 Delegates Zoom 
meeting Zith CSBA President Xilonin Cru]-Gon]ales before December¶s Delegate Assembl\ to 
discuss budgets as the\ relate to COVID-19, school plans for returning to in-person instruction and 
challenges or opportunities schools haYe had this \ear. 

17



      
   

    
 

 
 

       
 

      
    

    
  

 
      

    
    

  
 

   
 

         
 

  
  

  
  

                 
                     

                     
                     

                 
                

                
                 

 
  

  
                  

                   
              

  
  

  
               

                  
                  

       
  

  
  

                 
                

                    
                

               

 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
NoYember 19, 2020 

11. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Special Meeting (Virtual) 
December 10, 2020 
3:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
December 17, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

The Board President adjourned the meeting at 5:45 p.m. 

PLEASE NOTE: 

Public Participation: 

All persons are encouraged to attend and, Zhen appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cru] 
Count\ Board of Education. If \ou Zish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning 
of the meeting as an\ item, upon motion, ma\ be moYed to the beginning of the agenda. Persons Zishing to 
address the Board are asked to state their name for the record. The president of the Board Zill establish a 
time limit of three (3) minutes, unless otherZise stated b\ the president, for comments from the public. 
Consideration of all matters is conducted in open session e[cept those relating to litigation, personnel and 
emplo\ee negotiations, Zhich, b\ laZ, ma\ be considered in closed session. E[pulsion appeal hearings are 
heard in closed session unless a request for hearing in open session is made b\ the appellant. 

Backup Documentation: 

An\ Zritings or documents that are public records and are proYided to a majorit\ of the goYerning board 
regarding an open session item on this agenda Zill be made aYailable for public inspection in the Count\ Office 
of Education, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cru], CA 95060, during normal business hours. 

Translation Requests: 

Spanish language translation is aYailable on an as-needed basis. Please make adYance arrangements Zith 
Sage Leibenson b\ telephone at (831) 466-5900 Traducciones del inglps al espaxol \ del espaxol al inglps 
estin disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiYa. Por faYor haga arreglos por anticipado con Sage 
Leibenson por telpfono al numero (831) 466-5900. 

ADA Compliance: 

In compliance Zith GoYernment Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education Zill, on 
request, make this agenda aYailable in appropriate alternatiYe formats to persons Zith a disabilit\, as required 
b\ Section 202 of the Americans Zith Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec 12132), and the federal rules and 
regulations adopted in implementation thereof. IndiYiduals Zho need this agenda in an alternatiYe format or 
Zho need a disabilit\-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should 

18



      
   

    
 

               
  

 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
NoYember 19, 2020 

contact Sage Leibenson, AdministratiYe Aide to the Superintendent, 400 Encinal St., Santa Cru], CA 95060, 
(831) 466-5900. 

19



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

   
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

      
 

  
 

  
 

  

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion 

FROM: AdminiVWUaWiYe DepaUWmenW 

SUBJECT: Special DecembeU 10, 2020 MinXWeV 

BACKGROUND 

Special MinXWeV of Whe DecembeU 10, 2020 meeWing of Whe SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of 
EdXcaWion. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

AppUoYe minXWeV. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DecembeU 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #9.0.2 
20



 
 

                    
                    

          
 

  
   

     
    

       
 

 
 

 
         

 
    

 
   
   

  
   

  
    

 
    

 
    
  
  

 
 

 
  

 
    

 
        

 
   

 
                  

    
 
           

 
         
   
   

 
 

 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ santacruzcoe.org 

MV. JDQH RR\HU BDUU ⚈ MV. RRVH FLOLFHWWL   ⚈ MV. SDQGUD NLFKROV ⚈ MV. SXH RRWK   ⚈ MU. DDQD SDOHV 
MU. AEHO SDQFKH]   ⚈ MU. BUXFH 9DQ AOOHQ 

SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ BRDUG RI EGXFDWLRQ 
SSHFLDO BRDUG MHHWLQJ 

7KXUVGD\ DHFHPEHU 10, 2020 
OSHQ SHVVLRQ 3:00 S.P. 

9IR78AL MHHWLQJ KRVWHG IURP WKH BRDUG RRRP 

8NAPPRO9ED MIN87ES 

1. CALL 7O ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ES7ABLISHMEN7 OF Q8OR8M 

Board Present (via videoconference) 

Jane Royer Barr 
Rose Filicetti 
Sandra Nichols 
Sue Roth (President) 
Dana Sales 
Bruce Van Allen 

Staff Present (via videoconference) 

Faris Sabbah (Secretary) 
Liann Reyes 
Sage Leibenson 

Absent 

Abel Sanchez 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Superintendent Sabbah (Secretary) led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. APPRO9AL OF AGENDA 

A call for a motion was made to make agenda deletions and/or changes of sequence, or approve the 
agenda as submitted. 

It was M.S.C. (Barr/Sales) to approve the agenda as submitted. 

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Van Allen 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Sanchez 

21

https://santacruzcoe.org


      
   

   
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

        
 

     
 

              
                

           
             

            
 

             
              

        
 

        
 

            
 

             
             

             
                

             
               

           
 

               
 

 
         
   
   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ BRDUG RI EGXFDWLRQ 
Minutes, Special Meeting 
December 10, 2020 

4. P8BLIC COMMEN7 

None. 

5. CORRESPONDENCE 

None. 

6. REPOR7S, PRESEN7A7IONS, AND INFORMA7IONAL I7EMS 

6.1 FLUVW IQWHULP FLQDQFLDO RHSRUW 

In accordance with Education Code � 1240(L), the Superintendent is required to certify the 
first interim financial report and present it for the Board to review in open session. Deputy 
Superintendent of Business Services Liann Reyes¶s presentation highlighted the Santa Cruz 
COE¶s budget history over the last several years, K-12 apportionment deferrals, deferrals and 
cash flow, strategies to achieve a balanced budget, and zero based budgeting. 

The Board asked a number of clarifying questions and the Superintendent thanked the 
Business Services department for their hard work to organize the Santa Cruz COE¶s budgets 
and provide support to local school districts. 

7.0 P8BLIC HEARINGS, NE: B8SINESS, AND AC7ION I7EMS 

7.1 SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ OIILFH RI EGXFDWLRQ BXGJHW OYHUYLHZ IRU PDUHQWV 

California Education Code (EC) Section 52064.1 requires each school district, county office of 
education (COE), and charter school (LEA) to develop the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF) Budget Overview for Parents. For 2020±21, local governing boards or governing bodies 
are required to adopt and submit the Budget Overview for Parents on or before December 15, 
2020, in conjunction with the LEA¶s first interim budget report. Alternative Education Project 
Director, Jennifer Izant Gonzales, gave a presentation to the Board about the Santa Cruz COE 
Budget Overview for Parents and answered questions from the Board. 

It was M.S.C. (Van Allen/Nichols) to approve the Santa Cruz COE Budget Overview for 
Parents. 

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Van Allen 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Sanchez 

22



      
   

   
 

       
 

             
             

             
                

              
              

           
 
             

    
 
           

 
         
   
   

  
 

       
 

      
    

    
  

 
   

 
          

 

 

SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ BRDUG RI EGXFDWLRQ 
Minutes, Special Meeting 
December 10, 2020 

7.2 CDUHHU AGYDQFHPHQW CKDUWHU BXGJHW OYHUYLHZ IRU PDUHQWV 

California Education Code (EC) Section 52064.1 requires each school district, county office of 
education (COE), and charter school (LEA) to develop the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF) Budget Overview for Parents. For 2020±21, local governing boards or governing bodies 
are required to adopt and submit the Budget Overview for Parents on or before December 15, 
2020, in conjunction with the LEA¶s first interim budget report. Senior Director of Student 
Programs, Denise Sanson, gave a presentation to the Board about the Santa Cruz COE 
Budget Overview for Parents and answered questions from the Board. 

It was M.S.C. (Sales/Barr) to approve the Santa Cruz Career Advancement Charter¶s Budget 
Overview for Parents. 

It was M.S.C. (Sales/Barr) to approve the agenda as submitted. 

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Van Allen 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Sanchez 

8. SCHED8LE OF MEE7INGS AND COMING E9EN7S 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
December 17, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

9. ADJO8RNMEN7 

The Board President adjourned the meeting at 3:49 p.m. 

23



      
   

   
 

 

 

  
  

  
  

                 
                    

                    
                     

                  
                

               
                   

 
  

  
  

                  
                  

               
  

  
  

               
                  
                  

       
  

  
  

                
                

                  
                

               
              

      
 

SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ BRDUG RI EGXFDWLRQ 
Minutes, Special Meeting 
December 10, 2020 

PLEASE NO7E: 

PXEOLF PDUWLFLSDWLRQ: 

All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz 
County Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the 
beginning of the meeting as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda. Persons 
wishing to address the Board are asked to state their name for the record. The president of the Board will 
establish a time limit of three (3) minutes, unless otherwise stated by the president, for comments from the 
public. Consideration of all matters is conducted in open session except those relating to litigation, 
personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in closed session. Expulsion 
appeal hearings are heard in closed session unless a request for hearing in open session is made by the 
appellant. 

BDFNXS DRFXPHQWDWLRQ: 

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board 
regarding an open session item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the County 
Office of Education, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060, during normal business hours. 

7UDQVODWLRQ RHTXHVWV: 

Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis. Please make advance arrangements with 
Sage Leibenson by telephone at (831) 466-5900 Traducciones del inglps al espaxol y del espaxol al inglps 
estin disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva. Por favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Sage 
Leibenson por telpfono al numero (831) 466-5900. 

ADA CRPSOLDQFH: 

In compliance with Government Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa Cruz County Office of Education will, 
on request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as 
required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec 12132), and the 
federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who need this agenda in an 
alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in 
the meeting should contact Sage Leibenson, Administrative Aide to the Superintendent, 400 Encinal St., 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060, (831) 466-5900. 

24



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

   
 
 
 

 
 

  
 

      
 

  
 

  
 

   

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ 

FROM: BXViQeVV DeSaUWmeQW 

SUBJECT: RRXWiQe BXdgeW ReYiViRQV 

BACKGROUND 

AdjXVWV Whe SaQWa CUX] COE 2020-2021 VSeQdiQg SlaQ. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

ASSURYe URXWiQe bXdgeW UeYiViRQV. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

DeWailed heUeiQ. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DecembeU 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #9.0.3 
25



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

          
 

    
     
 

   
   
 

    
 

            
          

   
 

         
          

        
         

           
    

 
 

         
         

         
        

            
 

 
         

           
    

 
   

 
 

  
 

  
    
   
   
   
    
  
    

 
               

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

Dr. Faris Sabbah, Superintendent � 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 � 831-466-5600 � FAX 831-466-5607 � www.santacruzcoe.org 

MEMO 

DATE: December 17, 2020 

TO: Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM: Liann Reyes, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 
Melissa Lopez, Director of Fiscal Services 

RE: November Budget Revisions 

Budget revisions in November reflect a decrease in revenues in the amount of $21,252 and 
decreases in expenditures in the amount of $851,701. The overall result is a net increase to 
fund balance of $830,449. 

Various adjustments were made to revenues and expenditures which were incorporated into 
the 1st Interim reporting. Adjustments made to revenues include district funded Special 
Education programs, Strong Workforce Program, and a Santa Cruz County College 
Commitment (S4C) grant. Adjustments to salary and benefits were the result of 
communication with department managers and Human Resources staff and careful review 
of vacant positions. 

Pacheco Bill Compliance: 
One memorandum of understanding (MOU) has been initiated in excess of $25,000 that 
required a budget revision during the month of November. The MOU with Pajaro Valley 
Unified School District in the amount of $37,037 is in collaboration with S4C for the Math 
Network Improvement Community (MathNIC) project. District teams will continue their 
work with an emphasis on high-quality math instruction and re-engagement in a distance 
learning context. 

Business department staff will continue to communicate and work closely with department 
staff and managers to review revenues, expenditures, and budgets as we begin preparing for 
2nd Interim reporting and 2021-22 budget development. 

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact us. 

LR:ml 
5 attachments 
cc: Rebecca Olker 

26

www.santacruzcoe.org


 
  

 

            

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                    

                                                      
                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                            

  
        

            
          

            
  

                 
                  

              

 

Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
Budget Variance Summary for November, 2020 

December 17, 2020 Board Meeting 

2020-2021 2020-21 NOVEMBER 2020-21 

Description Adopted Budget Board Meeting 11/19/20 Unrestricted Restricted Board Meeting 12/17/2020 

REVENUE   
Local Control Funding Formula 
Federal Revenues 
State Revenues 
Local Revenues 
Contributions 

27,537,112 
5,816,517 
6,211,333 
8,677,516 

28,827,106 
7,221,563 
6,753,995 
8,936,253 

-
-
-
94 

-
-

74,608 
(95,954) 

28,827,106 
7,221,563 
6,828,603 
8,840,393 

-
TOTAL REVENUE 48,242,478 51,738,917 94 (21,346) 51,717,665 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Books and Supplies 
Services, Other Operating Expenses 
Capital Outlay 
Other Outgo 
Interprogram Support 

10,868,103 
12,570,579 
14,381,643 
1,750,573 
7,297,393 

86,200 
(75,056) 

4,974,756 

11,406,580 
12,700,918 
13,958,276 
2,924,136 
8,759,668 

86,200 
(89,553) 

4,975,219 

(87,982) 
(95,280) 

(211,099) 
(50,132) 

9,269 
-

(36,235) 
-

(32,808) 
(29,947) 
(73,777) 
(65,133) 
142,731 

(3,500) 
11,603 

-

11,285,790 
12,575,691 
13,673,400 
2,808,871 
8,911,667 

82,700 
(114,184) 

4,975,219 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 51,854,191 54,721,444 (471,458) (50,831) 54,199,154 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

-
466,051 

-
466,051 (329,412) 

-
-

-
136,639 

TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS 466,051 466,051 (329,412) - 136,639 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning Fund Balance 
Net Increase/(Decrease) 

27,366,002 
(4,077,764) 

28,254,427 
(3,448,579) 

23,023,532 
800,964 

1,782,317 
29,485 

24,805,849 
830,450 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 23,288,238 24,805,848 23,824,497 1,811,802 25,636,299 

Pacheco Bill Compliance: 
There was one memorandum of understanding (MOU) agreement in excess of $25,000 that required a budget revision during the month of November, 2020. 

In 2019 the Community Foundation of Santa Cruz issued S4C a grant in the amount of $250,000. The intention of the Math Network Improvement Community (MathNIC) project was to 
work with teams of educators in high poverty schools to develop effective strategies to improve mathematics achievement for our most vulnerable student populations. This grant 
was originally intended to be a multi-year grant, but many of the COE/District teams were unable to continue with their plans due to the COVID-19 pandemic, leaving a significant 
amount of funding unspent. 

Community Foundation of Santa Cruz determined that in lieu of issuing a new grant award for fiscal year 2020-21, they would allow the unspent funds from 2019-20 to be carried over 
or reallocated for use in 2020-21 for the MathNIC teams wishing to continue their work with an emphasis on high-quality math instruction and re-engagement in a distance learning 
context. Budget revisions corresponding to the new MOUs with participating districts were necessary. The MOU with Pajaro Valley Unified School District will be in the amount of 
$37,037. 

27 1 of 5 



   
 

  
  

               
      

                                               

                                                                                                                                            

                                                 

                                                                                                                                                

                                                
                                   
                                   

                                                                                                                                         

                                                 
                                   

                                      
                              

                                                                                                                                          

  
                               
                               
                              
                            
                               
                              

                                                                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                                  

 

Budget Variance Detail for 
November, 2020 

December 17, 2020 
Board Meeting 

2020-21 2020-21 Variance 2020-21 
Description (Object Code Range) Res Program Adopted Budget Board Meeting 11/19/20 Unrestricted Restricted Board Meeting 12/17/20 
REVENUE 
Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099) 

Total Local Control Funding Formula 

27,537,112 

27,537,112 

28,827,106 

28,827,106 - - 28,827,106 

Federal Revenues (8100-8299) 

Total Federal Revenues 

5,816,517 

5,816,517 

7,221,563 

7,221,563 - - 7,221,563 

State Revenues (8300-8599) 
Strong Workforce Program k-12 Pathway Coordinator Grant 
District funded Special Education programs to match expenditures 

Total State Revenues 

6388 
6500 

Strong Workforce Program 
SE:STATE LOCAL ASSIST GRANT 

6,211,333 

6,211,333 

6,753,995 

6,753,995 -

55,114 
19,494 

74,608 6,828,603 

Local Revenues (8600-8799) 
1st Interim Adjust to Actuals 
New Teacher Project -Culturally Responsive Pedagogy Workshop Fees 
SC Comm Foundation, Remove 20/21 Award, Allocate 19/20 Carryover 

0040 
9010 
9064 

MAINTENANCE 
OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 
S4C 

8,677,516 

8,677,516 

8,936,253 

8,936,253 

94 
825 

(96,779) 

Total Local Revenues 94 (95,954) 8,840,393 

Other Financing Sources (8900-8997) 
Nov Salary Updates, Adjust Allocation 
Nov Salary Updates, Adjust Allocation 
Nov Salary Updates, Indirects to Res 0060, Adjust Allocation 
Nov Salary Updates, Indirects from Res 0050, Adjust Allocation 
Nov Salary Updates, Adjust Allocation 
Nov Salary Updates, Adjust Allocation 

Total Other Financing Sources 

0030 
0040 
0050 
0060 
0086 
0090 

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
MAINTENANCE 
OPERATIONS 
ADMINISTRATION 
TECHNOLOGY ADMIN 
EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 

- -

9,432 
8,611 

82,665 
(297,963) 

(9,763) 
207,018 

- - -

TOTAL REVENUE 48,242,478 51,738,917 94 (21,346) 51,717,665 

28 2 of 5 



   
 

  
  

               

 
                                             

                                 
                                
                                
                                
                                     
                                      
                                

                                                                                                                            
                                             

                                 
                              
                                 
                                 
                                
                                
                                        
                                 
                                    
                                
                                
                                    
                                   
                                     
                                   

                                                                                                                            
                                             

                               
                                 
                              
                                 
                                 
                                
                              
                                
                                   
                                 
                                       
                                 
                                
                                
                                        
                                    
                                
                                    
                                   
                                        
                                      

                                                                                                                          

 

Budget Variance Detail for 
November, 2020 

December 17, 2020 
Board Meeting 

Description (Object Code Range) 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated Salaries (1000-1999) 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 

Res Program 

0090 EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 
JUVENILE COURT SUPP/CONC 
COUNTY COMMUNITY BASE 
Strong Workforce Program 
SE:STATE LOCAL ASSIST GRANT 

2020-21 
Adopted Budget 

10,868,103 

2020-21 
Board Meeting 11/19/20 

11,406,580 

Variance 
Unrestricted 

35,746 
(45,409) 
(78,319) 

Restricted 
2020-21 

Board Meeting 12/17/20 

Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 

Total Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries (2000-2999) 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 

0611 
0620 
6388 
6500 
6510 
9010 

0040 MAINTENANCE 
0060 ADMINISTRATION 
0086 TECHNOLOGY ADMIN 
0090 EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 

COUNTY COMMUNITY BASE 
COUNTY COMMUNITY SUPP/CONC 

SE:EARLY ED INDIV-EXCP NEEDS 
OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 

10,868,103 
12,570,579 

11,406,580 
12,700,918 

(87,982) 

5,217 
(46,645) 

(5,860) 
57,309 

(36,315) 
(68,986) 

42,254 
(671) 
(286) 

(74,105) 

(32,808) 11,285,790 

Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 

Total Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits (3000-3999) 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 

0620 
0621 
3010 TITLE I; PART A 
3310 SE:LOCAL ASSIST ENTITLEMENT 
5630 ESSA:SUBTITLE B OF TITLE VII 
5810 OTHER RESTRICTED FEDERAL 
6500 SE:STATE LOCAL ASSIST GRANT 
8150 ONGOING & MAJOR MAINTENANCE 
9410 WORKFORCE YOUTH SVCS-FED P/T 
9411 MIGRANT HEAD START-FED PASS TH 
9412 YOUTH HOMELESS DEMONSTR PRJ 

0030 EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
0040 MAINTENANCE 
0060 ADMINISTRATION 
0086 TECHNOLOGY ADMIN 
0090 EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 

JUVENILE COURT SUPP/CONC 
COUNTY COMMUNITY BASE 
COUNTY COMMUNITY SUPP/CONC 

12,570,579 
14,381,643 

12,700,918 
13,958,276 

(95,280) 

14,511 
1,528 

(33,183) 
(3,903) 
20,021 

(22,027) 
(133,401) 

(54,645) 

753 
(3,205) 
(1,346) 
(1,909) 

(33,221) 
5,217 

(1,077) 
6,186 

(1,346) 

(29,947) 12,575,691 

(2,335) 
(3,362) 

(935) 
1,909 

Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 

Total Employee Benefits 

0611 
0620 
0621 
3010 TITLE I; PART A 
3310 SE:LOCAL ASSIST ENTITLEMENT 
5630 ESSA:SUBTITLE B OF TITLE VII 
5810 OTHER RESTRICTED FEDERAL 
6388 Strong Workforce Program 
6500 SE:STATE LOCAL ASSIST GRANT 
6510 SE:EARLY ED INDIV-EXCP NEEDS 
8150 ONGOING & MAJOR MAINTENANCE 
9010 OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 
9064 S4C 
9410 WORKFORCE YOUTH SVCS-FED P/T 
9411 MIGRANT HEAD START-FED PASS TH 
9412 YOUTH HOMELESS DEMONSTR PRJ 

14,381,643 13,958,276 (211,099) 

13,109 
(40,922) 

(98) 
1,528 

(41,875) 
835 

(1,529) 
831 

(935) 

(73,777) 13,673,400 

29 3 of 5 



   
 

  
  

               
                                                

                              
                               
                                  
                                         
                                         
                                   
                                      
                                          
                                          

                                  
                                  
                                     
                                    
                                       

                                      
                                   
                                   
                                 

                                
                                    
                                    
                                    

                                                                                                                                 
                                                   

                                  
                                     

                                     
                                    
                                           

                                   
                                    
                                       

                                

                                                                                                                                      
                                                            

                                   

                                                                                                                                                          

 

Budget Variance Detail for 
November, 2020 

December 17, 2020 
Board Meeting 

Description (Object Code Range) 
Books and Supplies (4000-4999) 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update, Balance Indirects 
Nov Salary Update, Balance Indirects 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update & 1st Interim Adjusts 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
1st Interim Adjust to Actuals 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update, New Tales for Chrysalis 2 
Nov Salary Update 
Res 6695/9633 Adjust Indirects to 8.45% 
1st Interim-Allocate to COVID-19 Legal Fees 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
SC Comm Foundation, Remove 20-21 Award, Allocate 19-20 Carryover 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 

Total Books and Supplies 

Res Program 

0050 
0060 
0090 
0610 
0611 
0620 
0621 
3010 
3025 
3220 
3310 
5630 
6500 
6510 
6695 
7420 
8150 
9010 
9064 
9410 
9411 
9412 

OPERATIONS 
ADMINISTRATION 
EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 
JUVENILE COURT BASE 
JUVENILE COURT SUPP/CONC 
COUNTY COMMUNITY BASE 
COUNTY COMMUNITY SUPP/CONC 
TITLE I; PART A 
TITLE I; PART D 
FED CARES CORONA RELIEF 
SE:LOCAL ASSIST ENTITLEMENT 
ESSA:SUBTITLE B OF TITLE VII 
SE:STATE LOCAL ASSIST GRANT 
SE:EARLY ED INDIV-EXCP NEEDS 
Tobacco: Health Disparities 
LEARN LOSS MITIGATION PROP 98 
ONGOING & MAJOR MAINTENANCE 
OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 
S4C 
WORKFORCE YOUTH SVCS-FED P/T 
MIGRANT HEAD START-FED PASS TH 
YOUTH HOMELESS DEMONSTR PRJ 

2020-21 
Adopted Budget 

1,750,573 

1,750,573 

2020-21 
Board Meeting 11/19/20 

2,924,136 

2,924,136 

Unrestricted 

(25,350) 
(81,495) 
49,970 

(2) 
(1) 

1,248 
5,499 

(50,132) 

Variance 
Restricted 

(1) 
(1) 

(21,370) 
6,567 
2,281 

78,315 
384 
101 

(20,000) 
(1,809) 
76,885 

(184,352) 
2,605 

(7,017) 
2,281 

2020-21 
Board Meeting 12/17/20 

2,808,871 (65,133) 

1,960 
7,609 
(300) 

1,582 

Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999) 
1st Interim Adjust to Actuals 
SELF AB218 Liability Funding Plan (20-21, 21-22, 22-23) 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
Nov Salary Update 
1st Interim Adjust to Actuals 
1st Interim-Allocate to COVID-19 Legal Fees 
Nov Salary Update, Distance Learning Leadership Summit 
20-21 Re-allocate District MOU's for MathNIC 

0040 MAINTENANCE 
0050 OPERATIONS 
0620 COUNTY COMMUNITY BASE 
3010 TITLE I; PART A 
3025 TITLE I; PART D 
3220 FED CARES CORONA RELIEF 
7420 LEARN LOSS MITIGATION PROP 98 
9010 OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 
9064 S4C 

7,297,393 8,759,668 

8,759,668 9,269 

1 
21,370 
20,000 

5,498 
94,279 

8,911,667 Total Services, Other Operating Expenses 
Capital Outlay (6000-6999) 
Move to 4300-742 for New Tables for Chrysalis 2 

Total Capital Outlay 

6500 SE:STATE LOCAL ASSIST GRANT 

7,297,393 
86,200 

86,200 

86,200 

86,200 -

142,731 

(3,500) 

(3,500) 82,700 

30 4 of 5 



   
 

  
  

               
                                                  

                                                                                                                                                
                                                          

                           
                            

                                       
                                  

                                     
                                 

                                                                                                                                             
                                                       

                                  

                                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                  

 

Budget Variance Detail for 
November, 2020 

December 17, 2020 
Board Meeting 

2020-21 2020-21 Variance 2020-21 
Description (Object Code Range) Res Program Adopted Budget Board Meeting 11/19/20 Unrestricted Restricted Board Meeting 12/17/20 
Other Outgo (7100-7299, 7400-7499) 

Total Other Outgo 

4,974,756 

4,974,756 

4,975,219 

4,975,219 - - 4,975,219 
Interprogram Support Services (7300-7399) 
Indirects to Res 0060 
1st Interim Balance Indirects 
Strong Workforce Program k-12 Pathway Coordinator Grant 
1st Interim Adjust to Actuals 
Res 6695/9633 Adjust Indirects to 8.45% 
20-21 Re-allocate District MOU's for MathNIC 

Total Interprogram Support 

0050 
0060 
6388 
6500 
6695 
9064 

OPERATIONS 
ADMINISTRATION 
Strong Workforce Program 
SE:STATE LOCAL ASSIST GRANT 
Tobacco: Health Disparities 
S4C 

(75,056) 

(75,056) 

(89,553) 

(89,553) 

100,406 
(136,641) 

(36,235) 

(249) 
19,494 

(101) 
(7,540) 

11,603 (114,184) 
Interfund Transfers Out (7600-7629) 
1st Interim Decrease Contrib to CAC (CAC has Increased LCFF) 

Total Interfund Transfers Out 

0090 EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 
466,051 

466,051 

466,051 

466,051 

(329,412) 

(329,412) - 136,639 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 52,320,242 55,187,495 (800,871) (50,831) 54,335,793 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

27,366,002 

(4,077,764) 

23,288,238 

28,254,427 

(3,448,579) 

24,805,848 

23,023,532 

800,964 

23,824,497 

1,782,317 

29,485 

1,811,802 

24,805,849 

830,449 

25,636,299 

31 5 of 5 



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

   
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: BXVLQeVV DeSaUWPeQW 

SUBJECT: GLfWV aQd DRQaWLRQV 

BACKGROUND 

CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWLRQ PROLc\ 3280 UeTXLUeV WKaW aOO JLfWV aQd dRQaWLRQV UeceLYed b\ 
SURJUaPV cRQdXcWed b\ WKe CRXQW\ SXSeULQWeQdeQW Rf ScKRROV be acceSWed b\ WKe 
CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWLRQ. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

AcceSW JLfWV aQd dRQaWLRQV aV fROORZV: 

PURJUaP: DRQRU: VaOXe: 

SSecLaO EdXcaWLRQ SaQWa CUX] 
SeaVLde CRPSaQ\ 

$650 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

GLfWV/dRQaWLRQV UeceLYed ZLOO be XWLOL]ed b\ WKe SURJUaPV/VWaff WR ZKLcK WKe\ aUe dRQaWed. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: Dec. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #9.0.4 
32



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

   
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
      

 
  

 
 

          

  

         BRaUd MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ 

FROM: MaUia ReiWaQR, Head Rf SchRRO, PCS 

SUBJECT: PCS AQQXaO ReSRUW aQd DiYeUViW\ POaQ 

X IQIRUPaWLRQ 

BACKGROUND 

AV Whe chaUWeUiQg ageQc\, Whe CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ UeTXiUeV WhaW Pacific 
CROOegiaWe ChaUWeU SchRRO (PCS) PakeV aQ aQQXaO UeSRUW RQ Whe eYaOXaWiRQ Rf iWV 
edXcaWiRQaO SURgUaP iQ accRUdaQce ZiWh Whe chaUWeU SeWiWiRQ aQd fXOfiOOPeQW Rf Whe 
chaUWeU¶V SXUSRVe aQd gRaOV. TheiU SUeVeQWaWiRQ ZiOO aOVR SUeVeQW Whe chaUWeU¶V DiYeUViW\ 
POaQ. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

ReceiYe SUeVeQWaWiRQ. 

BRaUd MHHWLQJ DaWH: DecePbeU 17, 2020 AJHQda IWHP: #11.1 
33



 

 

 

 

 

 

       

  
 
  

Pacific Collegiate School 

Annual Report to Santa Cruz County Office of Education 

November 30, 2020 

34



 
 

 

   
          

   

    	
  	

   	
  	

   	
        	

          	
   	

     	
    	

   	
    	
     	

      	
  	

        	
  	

        	
      	
      	
        	
       	
      	

   	
    	

   	
   	

  	
 
  

Pacific Collegiate School 
Annual Report to Santa Cruz County Office of Education: 2020 

Table of Contents 

Mission & Vision ....................................................................................................................................3 

Introduction.............................................................................................................................................3 

Executive Summary.................................................................................................................................3 

COVID-19 Response...............................................................................................................................4 

Student Achievement Data.......................................................................................................................5 

California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP)..............................................5 

Cohort Analysis of CAASPP Scores for Class of 2020 .....................................................................7 

Advanced Placement (AP) ...................................................................................................................9 

Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT)..........................................................................................................11 

American College Testing (ACT) ......................................................................................................12 

College Admissions ...........................................................................................................................13 

Progress Towards Goals: .......................................................................................................................13 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)........................................................................................13 

Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) Accreditation Goals ......................................14 

Strategic Plan.....................................................................................................................................15 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion - Plan and Progress ..............................................................................16 

2020-2025 Diversity Plan Goals.........................................................................................................17 

Goal A: Recruit More Diverse Student Populations........................................................................17 

Goal B: Build Mechanisms of Student Support...............................................................................18 

Goal C: Recruit Diverse School Leadership....................................................................................19 

Goal D: Build an Inclusive and Supportive School Culture.............................................................19 

Goal E: Refine Data Collection and Assessment.............................................................................20 

School Culture and Climate Data .......................................................................................................20 

School Attendance .........................................................................................................................20 

First to College Students ................................................................................................................22 

School Surveys ..............................................................................................................................22 

Financial Oversight ...............................................................................................................................24 

Appendices............................................................................................................................................25 

1 

35



 
 

 
               

              

            

              

            

              

            

              
      

                
     

               
       

              
   

            

            
            

           
   

            
    

        

         

 
          

           

               
     

          

        

 

  

Tables 
Table 1: 2019 English Language Arts and Math CAASPP results - Grades 7, 8, and 11............................5 

Table 2: 2019 English Language Arts CAASPP results - Grade 7 Subgroup Comparison .........................6 

Table 3: 2019 Math CAASPP results - Grade 7 Subgroup Comparison ....................................................6 

Table 4: 2019 English Language Arts CAASPP results - Grade 8 Subgroup Comparison .........................6 

Table 5: 2019 Math CAASPP results - Grade 8 Subgroup Comparison ....................................................7 

Table 6: 2019 English Language Arts CAASPP results - Grade 11 Subgroup Comparison .......................7 

Table 7: 2019 Math CAASPP results - Grade 11 Subgroup Comparison ..................................................7 

Table 8: Grade 7, 8, and 11 English Language Arts CAASPP scores for students who graduated from PCS 
in 2020 - Economic Status Comparison....................................................................................................8 

Table 9: Grade 7, 8, and 11 Math CAASPP scores for students who graduated from PCS in 2020 -
Economic Status Comparison ..................................................................................................................8 

Table 10: Grade 7, 8, and 11 English Language Arts CAASPP scores for students who graduated from 
PCS in 2020 - Race/Ethnicity Comparison...............................................................................................8 

Table 11: Grade 7, 8, and 11 Math CAASPP scores for students who graduated from PCS in 2020 -
Race/Ethnicity Comparison .....................................................................................................................9 

Table 12: AP participation and scores for all PCS students (2016-2020)...................................................9 

Table 13: AP Exam Participation and Scores for Class of 2020 - Overall and Latinx-White Comparison 
*The differences of 4-7% reported in Table are small and not statistically significant.............................11 

Table 14: SAT data for PCS Graduating Classes 2014-2017, with comparison to National Average (2017) 
..............................................................................................................................................................11 

Table 15: SAT data for PCS Graduating Classes 2017 -2020, with comparison to CA and National 
Averages (2020) ....................................................................................................................................12 

Table 18: 2019-2020 PCS School Attendance data.................................................................................21 

Table 19: Attrition Study Data (2014-15 to 2017-18) .............................................................................21 

Figures 
Figure 1. Responses from the Spring 2020 Family/Caregiver Distance Learning Survey. .........................5 

Figure 2. AP Scores for all PCS students 2016-2020..............................................................................10 

Figure 3. Percent of Class of 2020 earning a 3,4, or 5 on AP Exam - Comparison of PCS to Nationwide 
performance by test subject....................................................................................................................10 

Figure 4. Current PCS Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity (2020-2021) .........................................................17 

Figure 5: PCS Total Enrollment (2015-present) .....................................................................................22 

2 

36



 
 

   
          

 
   

            
        

              
      
            

  
         

          
           

           
       

  
 

             
              

          
        

          
            

           
     

 
  

 
         
            

            
            

   
 

           
          

           
             

        
           

        
 

Pacific Collegiate School 
Annual Report to Santa Cruz County Office of Education: 2020 

Mission & Vision 
Pacific Collegiate School is a public charter school whose Mission is to provide exemplary, 
standards-based college preparatory and fine arts education for public middle and high school 
students of Santa Cruz County and bordering areas. Our vision is to offer any student the same 
quality of education offered by the most academically distinguished schools in California. Our 
graduates will be prepared to enter and thrive at the world’s finest colleges and universities. 

In addition to a core college preparatory curriculum, Pacific Collegiate School emphasizes 
international, cross cultural and technological education in order to prepare graduates for life in 
the 21st Century. Pacific Collegiate students are introduced to the rich variety of world cultures 
and become fluent in at least one world language. They will become proficient in information 
technologies essential for digital literacy in the 21st Century. 

Introduction 
Pacific Collegiate School (PCS), operating as a charter school authorized by the Santa Cruz 
County Office of Education (SCCOE) in 1998, first served students in the fall of 1999. Since 
then, PCS and the SCCOE have enjoyed a strong and collaborative partnership in providing an 
alternative school of choice for students seeking an Advanced Placement focused college 
preparatory education. PCS currently operates under a charter renewed in 2020 for a five-year 
term (2020-2025). This report outlines progress towards goals described in the most recent 
charter renewal petition, as well as agreements made in the Memorandum of Understanding 
between PCS and the SCCOE on February 15, 2020. 

Executive Summary 

Pacific Collegiate School continues to maintain a very strong track record of preparing all 
students to enter and thrive in the world’s finest colleges and universities. PCS students 
consistently perform at high levels, as measured by CAASPP, SAT, AP, and ACT scores. Our 
graduates fulfill all CSU/UC a-g requirements and emerge from our school prepared to thrive in 
college and beyond. 

PCS strongly values a student, faculty, staff, and Board population that reflects the diversity of 
Santa Cruz County in all respects, including demography, socioeconomic status, race, ethnicity, 
culture, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, and ability levels. A diverse PCS school 
community is central to our obligation as a public school to provide equal access and support for 
all community members seeking a high-quality, standards-based, college preparatory and fine 
arts education. Further, research underscores the contributions of diverse school communities to 
student learning, including critical thinking, communications, and problem solving. 

3 

37



 
 

              
           

       
            

              
  

 
 

 

             
        

        
        
         
         

             
 

         
            

           
       

          
 

         
          

           
          
   

 
        

      
   

 
           

        
           

      

Looking back over the first two decades of PCS history, we credit much of our school’s success 
to a singular focus on creating a rigorous academic environment, rich in opportunities for 
students to explore complex ideas, engage with challenging curriculum, and express themselves 
through a robust art and music program. Looking forward, we have bold plans to ensure that a 
more diverse student body has the opportunity to thrive within a dynamic and inclusive PCS 
program and community. 

COVID-19 Response 

In response to public health concerns, PCS made the shift to distance learning in March, 2020. 
We surveyed families and distributed Chromebooks and Wi-Fi hotspots to all students who 
needed them to ensure that every student had equitable access to the technology needed to 
engage in distance learning. We held training and completed tech checks with all PCS students to 
confirm each student’s readiness for synchronous online classes. We allowed students to retain 
devices over the summer to complete summer assignments and distributed additional technology 
for new students in preparation for the start of the 2020-2021 school year. 

A multi-stakeholder PCS Reopening Task Force collaborated for months to prepare contingency 
health, safety, and instructional plans in alignment with state and local guidance. As it became 
clear that health conditions in Santa Cruz County would require that PCS begin the school year 
in distance learning mode, PCS engaged students and parents in additional distance learning 
orientations, tech checks, and training to prepare for the 2020-2021 school year. 

Thanks to careful planning and preparation, PCS has been able to provide substantive 
synchronous and asynchronous instruction to all students this school year. Our current bell 
schedule during distance learning provides all PCS students with at least 915 minutes of 
synchronous instruction, 150 minutes of tutorial support, and 125 minutes of asynchronous 
learning per week. 

Student attendance in synchronous classes during the 2020-21 has consistently been over 99%, 
and completion of asynchronous learning assignments has also been high, reflecting significant 
student engagement. 

In Spring 2020, 97.3% of PCS families and caregivers responding to a survey about distance 
learning indicated that their PCS students were consistently participating in distance learning. A 
Fall 2020 distance learning survey is still open for input from students and parents, but currently 
reflects similar levels of engagement. 

4 

38



 
 

 
           

 

           
       

            
          

        
 
    
  

       
        

            
           

     
 

         
           

  
 

      

      

          

                                  

         

             

              

               
              

 

Figure 1. Responses from the Spring 2020 Family/Caregiver Distance Learning Survey. 

PCS administration, faculty and staff, and Board of Directors have recently approved a plan to 
provide targeted support, intervention, and federally mandated assessments for our most 
vulnerable learners (e.g. students with IEPs or 504 plans, English Learners, and other students 
identified by the Student Study Advisory Team as needing additional support) via small on-site 
cohorts. Small cohort targeted support began on November 30, 2020. 

Student Achievement Data 

California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) 
Beginning in the 2014-15 school year, California transitioned to the California Assessment of 
Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP). The CAASPP is taken by students at PCS in 
grades 7, 8, and 11. Pacific Collegiate students performed very well on these assessments, 
including those in all significant subgroups. 

In response to the coronavirus pandemic, the California Department of Education determined 
that CAASPP testing would not take place in 2020; therefore, the following represents 2019 
CAASPP data. 

ELA and Math Results - 2019 

7th 8th 11th Overall 

ELA Math ELA Math ELA Math ELA Math 

% participation 100% 100% 98% 97% 96% 98% 98% 98% 

Exceeded 42% 48% 42% 52% 66% 47% 50% 49% 

Met 48% 25% 39% 23% 30% 36% 39% 28% 

Nearly Met 7% 18% 13% 13% 4% 11% 8% 14% 

Not Met 3% 9% 6% 13% 0% 6% 3% 9% 
Table 1: 2019 English Language Arts and Math CAASPP results - Grades 7, 8, and 11 

5 

39



 
 

      

            
  

  
 

  
  

   

       

       

       

       
            

 
 

      

       
 

     
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

       

       

       

        
         

 
 

      

       
 

     
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

       

       

       

        
            

 
 
 
 
 

7th Grade ELA Subgroups - 2019 

PCS (91) Latinx (10) Two or More 
Races (12) 

White (63) Not Econ. 
Dis. (81) 

Econ. Dis. (10) 

Exceeded 42% 40% 83% 35% 44% 20% 

Met 48% 40% 17% 54% 46% 70% 

Nearly Met 7% 10% 0% 8% 6% 10% 

No Met 3% 10% 0% 3% 4% 0% 
Table 2: 2019 English Language Arts CAASPP results - Grade 7 Subgroup Comparison 

7th Grade Math Subgroups - 2019 

PCS 
(91) 

Latinx (10) Two or More 
Races (12) 

White (63) Not Econ. 
Dis. (81) 

Econ. Dis. 
(10) 

Exceeded 48% 58% 60% 44% 53% 10% 

Met 25% 25% 25% 23% 40% 55% 

Nearly Met 13% 12% 10% 13% 14% 9% 

Did Not Meet 6% 12% 0% 6% 5% 9% 
Table 3: 2019 Math CAASPP results - Grade 7 Subgroup Comparison 

8th Grade ELA Subgroups - 2019 

PCS 
(89) 

Latinx (17) Two or More 
Races (10) 

White (53) Not Econ. 
Dis. (78) 

Econ. Dis. 
(11) 

Exceeded 42% 35% 60% 40% 44% 27% 

Met 39% 41% 30% 42% 37% 55% 

Nearly Met 13% 12% 10% 13% 14% 9% 

Did Not Meet 6% 12% 0% 6% 5% 9% 
Table 4: 2019 English Language Arts CAASPP results - Grade 8 Subgroup Comparison 

6 

40



 
 

      

       
 

     
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

       

       

       

        
         

 

      

           
  

    
  

  
 

       

       

       

        

           
 
 

      

        
 

  
 

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
 

       

       

       

        
         

 
         

                
              

            
           

       
 

8th Grade Math Subgroups - 2019 

PCS 
(89) 

Latinx (17) Two or More 
Races (10) 

White (53) Not Econ. 
Dis. (78) 

Econ. Dis. 
(11) 

Exceeded 52% 29% 70% 58% 56% 27% 

Met 23% 24% 30% 21% 23% 18% 

Nearly Met 13% 12% 0% 12% 14% 55% 

Did Not Meet 13% 35% 0% 10% 6% 0% 
Table 5: 2019 Math CAASPP results - Grade 8 Subgroup Comparison 

11th Grade ELA Subgroups - 2019 

PCS (82) Latinx (13) Two or More 
Races (14) 

White (51) Not Econ. 
Dis. (70) 

Econ. Dis. 
(12) 

Exceeded 66% 54% 64% 73% 69% 50% 

Met 30% 46% 36% 36% 27% 50% 

Nearly Met 4% 0% 0% 4% 4% 0% 

Did Not Meet 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Table 6: 2019 English Language Arts CAASPP results - Grade 11 Subgroup Comparison 

11th Grade Math Subgroups - 2019 

PCS (82) Latinx (13) Two or More 
Races (14) 

White (51) Not Econ. 
Dis. (70) 

Econ. Dis. 
(12) 

Exceeded 47% 23% 60% 49% 62% 17% 

Met 36% 54% 27% 37% 34% 50% 

Nearly Met 11% 15% 7& 12% 8% 25% 

Did Not Meet 6% 8% 7% 2% 6% 8% 

Table 7: 2019 Math CAASPP results - Grade 11 Subgroup Comparison 

Cohort Analysis of CAASPP Scores for Class of 2020 
An analysis of CAASPP scores of the Class of 2020 (the first class at PCS to have completed the 
CAASPP in grades 7, 8 and 11) reveals significant growth in student mastery of standards over time. 
In fact, cohort study shows that the number of students who meet or exceed standards increases 
significantly for each testing year during the span of students’ study at PCS. This growth trend is 
true for all subgroups of students. 

7 

41



 
 

         

            

        
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

       

       

       

        

                  
   

 

         

            

        
 

   
 

   
  

   
 

   
 

   
 

       

       

       

        

                 
 

 

       

       

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

          

          

          

           

                  
  

 

Cohort Analysis for Class of 2020 ELA - Economic Status* 

2015 - 7th Grade 2016 - 8th Grade 2019 - 11th Grade 

Econ. Dis. 
(11) 

Not Econ. Dis. 
(71) 

Econ Dis. 
(12) 

Not Econ Dis 
(69) 

Econ. Dis 
(11) 

Not Econ Dis 
(71) 

Exceeded 18% 30% 25% 49% 55% 69% 

Met 64% 49% 58% 38% 45% 27% 

Nearly Met 18% 20% 17% 12% 0% 4% 

Did Not Meet 0% 1% 0% 1% 0% 0% 

Table 8: Grade 7, 8, and 11 English Language Arts CAASPP scores for students who graduated from PCS in 2020 -
Economic Status Comparison 

Graduating Cohort 2020 Math Scores Over Time - Economic Status 

2015 - 7th Grade 2016 - 8th Grade 2019 - 11th Grade 

Econ. Dis. 
(11) 

Not Econ. Dis. 
(71) 

Econ Dis. 
(12) 

Not Econ Dis 
(69) 

Econ. Dis 
(11) 

Not Econ Dis 
(71) 

Exceeded 27% 39% 8% 42% 18% 52% 

Met 36% 37% 67% 29% 55% 34% 

Nearly Met 27% 18% 17% 22% 18% 8% 

Did Not Meet 9% 6% 8% 7% 9% 6% 

Table 9: Grade 7, 8, and 11 Math CAASPP scores for students who graduated from PCS in 2020 - Economic Status 
Comparison 

Graduating Cohort 2020 ELA Scores Over Time (Ethnicity)* 

2015 - 7th Grade 2016 - 8th grade 2019 - 11th Grade 

Performance 
Level 

Latinx (15) 2 or 
more 
races 
(14) 

White 
(52) 

Latinx 
(13) 

2 or 
more 
races 
(13) 

White 
(46) 

Latinx 
(13) 

2 or 
more 
races 
(14) 

White 
(50) 

Exceeded 27 29 29 38 54 43 54 64 74 

Met 47 57 52 36 31 46 46 36 22 

Nearly Met 20 14 19 23 15 11 0 0 4 

Not Met 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 10: Grade 7, 8, and 11 English Language Arts CAASPP scores for students who graduated from PCS in 2020 -
Race/Ethnicity Comparison 

8 

42



 
 

       

          

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

          

          

          

           

                 
 

 
   

                
              

            
 

              
            
                
              

           
 

           

       
 

 
 
       

            

            

            

            

            
          

 

Graduating Cohort 2020 Math Scores Over Time (Ethnicity)* 

2015- 7th Grade 2016- 8th grade 2019- 11th Grade 

Performanc 
e Level 

Latinx 
(15) 

2 or 
more 
races 
(14) 

White 
(52) 

Latinx (14) 2 or 
more 
races 
(14) 

White 
(52) 

Latinx (13) 2 or 
more 
races 
(15) 

White 
(50) 

Exceeded 47 50 33 21 57 37 23 60 50 

Met 20 29 44 50 29 33 54 27 38 

Nearly Met 27 21 17 7 14 27 15 7 10 

Not Met 7 0 6 21 0 4 8 7 2 

Table 11: Grade 7, 8, and 11 Math CAASPP scores for students who graduated from PCS in 2020 - Race/Ethnicity 
Comparison 

Advanced Placement (AP) 
AP courses are intended to be college level courses for high school students. Scores are given on a 
scale of 1-5, with scores of 3, 4, and 5 typically considered to be worthy of college credit. Students 
who take AP courses are not required to take AP exams, but are strongly encouraged to do so. 

The 2020 scores demonstrate that PCS students continue to excel on AP exams. Despite the pandemic, 
PCS students took more AP exams and performed even better than in 2019 (49% of scores ranged 
from 4 to 5 in 2020 compared to 45% in 2019). Similarly to the previous years, the majority (close to 
80%) of scores ranged from 3 to 5, showing that these students were qualified to receive college credit 
for a variety of subjects, including History, Biology, English, Math, Physics, and World Languages. 

AP scores of all students who took an AP exam (2016-2020) 

Test year 5 4 3 2 1 
Total 
tests 

Ave. 
Score % 3,4,5 % 4,5 % tested 

Overall 2016 21% 35% 26% 13% 4% 402 3.57 83% 56% 73% 

Overall 2017 18% 35% 28% 14% 4% 408 3.49 81% 53% 73% 

Overall 2018 19% 36% 29% 14% 2% 404 3.56 84% 55% 69% 

Overall 2019 19% 26% 32% 20% 3% 433 3.4 77% 45% 74% 

Overall 2020 20% 29% 27% 18% 5% 615 3.4 77% 49% 88% 
Table 12: AP participation and scores for all PCS students (2016-2020) 

9 

43



 
 

 
         

 
             

           
                

             
         

           
           

 

 
               

    
 

              
         

           

. 
Figure 2. AP Scores for all PCS students 2016-2020 

Given that all PCS students have been required to take AP World History, AP United States 
History, AP English Language or AP English Literature, and AP Biology, these results place 
PCS as one of the top performing schools in the nation (see the results for the Class of 2020 in 
Figure 3 below). The majority of the most recent cohort of seniors (between 63% and 81%, 
depending on the subject) took an AP exam after completing the required course at PCS, and 
also the majority (75-85%) demonstrated a college level of knowledge and skills, scoring 3-5. 
These results are indicative of the success of the PCS curriculum. 

Figure 3. Percent of Class of 2020 earning a 3,4, or 5 on AP Exam - Comparison of PCS to Nationwide 
performance by test subject 

An important aspect of the PCS mission is to ensure access for all students to rigorous college 
preparatory coursework. One way we demonstrate this is through equity in access to Advanced 
Placement classes. As Table below shows, the majority of Latinx students and White, non-

10 

44



 
 

          
            

 
         

   
 

  
 

            

          

            

         
 

   

               
             

 
    

            
                

              
             

                 
                

      
 

       

     

     

     

      

  
 

    

              
  

Latinx students participated in AP exams, taking 6 AP exams on average. Their success rates 
(receiving a score of 3-5) were also comparable across all subjects and in STEM subjects.* 

Class of 2020 students’ participation and achievement on AP exams 

Overall 
(n=89) 

Latinx (n=16) White, non-
Latinx (n=73) 

% seniors who took at least one AP exam 81% 75% 82% 

Average N of AP exams taken since 9th grade 6 6 6 

At least one AP exam with a 3-5 score 72% 75% 71% 

At least one AP exam in STEM subjects with a 
3-5 score 

61% 56% 62% 

Table 13: AP Exam Participation and Scores for Class of 2020 - Overall and Latinx-White Comparison 
*The differences of 4-7% reported in Table are small and not statistically significant. 

Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT) 
The Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT) is commonly used by colleges and universities as one of the 
metrics for admissions. Students typically take the test for the first time in the second half of 
their junior year, and can retake the test multiple times to earn a higher score. Scores are 
reported as the average of the best score earned by students on each section of the test, or by the 
best total score. Each section is scored on a scale of 200 to 800, with a total possible score of 
2400. The format of the exam changed in 2017, so we have included results from the old format 
as well as the new one. 

Class of Critical Reading Math Writing Total 

2014 647 633 643 1922 

2015 649 644 643 1936 

2016 639 627 646 1912 

2017 (old exam) 655 627 641 1923 

National Average 
(2017) 

494 508 482 1484 

Table 14: SAT data for PCS Graduating Classes 2014-2017, with comparison to National Average (2017) 

11 

45



 
 

 

   
 

 
  

     

    

    

    

 
    

  
     

               
 

    
                 

              
                

                   
   

   

        

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

  
 

     

             

PCS Class of 
Evidence Based 

Reading and 
Writing 

Mathematics Total 

2017 (new exam) 650 622 1272 

2018 679 683 1362 

2019 642 629 1272 

2020 627 613 1240 

California Average 
(2020) 527 522 1049 

National Average 
(2020) 531 528 1059 

Table 15: SAT data for PCS Graduating Classes 2017 -2020, with comparison to CA and National Average (2020) 

American College Testing (ACT) 
The ACT is another test commonly used by universities for admissions. Typically, the test is not taken as 
often by students in California as it is not necessary for admissions to CSU and UC schools. Many 
private and out of state universities prefer or require students to report scores for the ACT. Each section 
of the test is scored on a scale of 1 to 36, with a composite score acting as an average of the sections 
rather than a total. 

PCS Class of: English Math Reading Science Composite 

2014 28.1 27.5 28.4 26.9 27.9 

2015 29.5 28.7 30.0 27.7 29.1 

2016 29.9 28.5 29.0 27.5 28.9 

2017 31.0 28.8 29.4 28.6 29.6 

2018 30.7 28.6 30.6 29. 29.6 

2019 29.5 26.9 29.8 27.9 28.5 

2020 27.1 25.1 28.8 27 27.2 

National Average 
(2020) 19.9 20.2 21.2 20.6 20.6 

Table 16: ACT data for PCS Graduating Classes 2014 -2020, with comparison to National Average (2020) 

12 

46



 
 

 
          
               

            
             

                
   

 
          

             
       

 
  

                
          

 

      

           

            

            

           

            

            
        

 
   

  
     
          

              
        

     
        

    
              
           

 

Overall, students at Pacific Collegiate School continue to excel on all standardized tests. We 
attribute this in large part to the success of the excellent college preparatory curriculum in which 
all PCS students are engaged. This is also supported by PSAT, SAT, and ACT test preparation 
classes offered free of charge to all PCS students. While standardized tests do not paint the 
entire picture of PCS, these exams are clearly an external metric that validates the strength of the 
school program and curriculum. 

It is worth noting that all standardized test administrations (SAT/ACT/PSAT) were cancelled in 
Santa Cruz County from March-October 2020. As a result, students in Class of 2020 and 2021 
had more limited access to these exams than in previous years. 

College Admissions 
The table below shows where PCS students matriculated to over the past four years. The proportion of 
students attending 2-year vs. 4-year schools has stayed relatively steady over this time period. 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

# % # % # % # % # % 

2-year college 15 22% 17 23% 14 20% 13 14.6% 24 28% 

4-year college 48 70% 53 72% 51 73% 74 83.1% 56 66% 

Military - - 2 3% 1 1% - - - -

Non-US college 4 6% 2 3% 1 1% - - - -

Gap/Year off 2 3% 1 1% 4 6% 1 1.1% 4 4.7% 
Table 17: College Admissions Data for PCS Graduating Classes (2016-2020) 

Progress Towards Goals: 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Pacific Collegiate School’s annual update in the LCAP plan for 2018-19 showed the school’s 
progress toward goals (see Appendix). PCS met or exceeded all goals as outlined in the LCAP. 
In particular, the 2018-19 LCAP highlighted a variety of ways PCS provided access to high 
quality college preparatory resources to all students: 
● Focused on success of First to College students through increased academic counseling, 

outreach to parents, and targeted academic support. 
● Provided free test preparation classes for the PSAT, SAT, and ACT for all PCS students. 
● Increased the opportunities for students to engage in college level research during high 

school. 

13 

47



 
 

       
            
        

         
         

  
      
    
      
           
       

 
          

       
          
         

           
 

         

            
      

            
         

     
 

           
          

               
   

  
              

 
             

   
  

           
                

   
                 

          
     

● Provided access to technology and technology literacy learning for all students - all 
students take our Study Skills and Technology course in 7th grade, and digital devices are 
available for student use in all classes and study areas. 

● Focused on equity, access, and opportunities for families with fewer financial resources, 
including providing free lunch, test preparation, AP exams, tutoring, and participation in 
curricular activities. 

● Ensured parent participation through Board and school committee membership. 
● Maintained high student engagement and attendance. 
● Maintained a highly qualified and effective faculty and staff. 
● Maintained a school facility that is safe and supportive of the PCS learning environment. 
● Provided access for all students to Advanced Placement classes. 

In response to the pandemic, the state of California asked Local Educational Agencies to 
complete the COVID-19 Written Report and Learning Continuity and Attendance Plans (see 
Appendix). These documents provided significant details about our school response to the 
coronavirus crisis, and the many ways in which PCS continues to provide exemplary learning 
opportunities for all students in the midst of the pandemic. 

Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) Accreditation Goals 
2019-2020 was the fifth year of a six-year WASC accreditation. PCS was scheduled to complete 
a WASC Self-Study during the 2020-2021 school year, with an accreditation visit in Spring 
2021. Due to the pandemic, all WASC visits have been postponed, and our Self-Study and 
WASC site visit have been rescheduled to the 20201-2022 school year. Pacific Collegiate 
School’s WASC Accreditation has been extended accordingly. 

The previous WASC Action Plan, revised with comments from the visiting committee, is 
included in the Appendix of this report. The goals included in this self-study influenced the goals 
of the school LCAP, the previous Strategic Plan, and our most recent charter renewal. The plan 
identified two critical learner needs: 

1. Develop the new PCS school facility in a manner that is consistent with the school’s 
Charter. 

2. Support all entering students to graduate from PCS prepared to enter and succeed at their 
chosen college or university. 

PCS has made significant progress on the goals outlined in the WASC plan, including: 
● Taking full advantage of our new facility, including increased classroom space for 

computer-based classes and science labs. 
● Ensuring availability of dedicated rehearsal space for performing arts, our new outdoor 

amphitheater space, as well as outside facility agreements to accommodate performances 
for Music, Drama, and Choir. 

14 

48



 
 

                 
  

                 
                 

       
               

 
                

  
                

     
  

  
           

         
         

        
             

 
  

                 
                  

          
                 

    
                  

          
   

                
          

    
                   

 
 
         

        
   

  
  

● Continued partnership with the Santa Cruz Land Trust for stewardship of the Antonelli 
Pond riparian area. 

● Increased use of the outdoor space around Antonelli Pond for instructional purposes. 
● Additional academic services and support for all students, with particular focus on 

support for traditionally underrepresented students and their families. 
● Increased number of graduates who complete college level research via Capstone 

project. 
● Comprehensive curriculum review in all academic departments, in alignment with 

CCSS and NGSS. 
● Ongoing annual cycle of stakeholder engagement, including alumni surveys and 

tracking of alumni college persistence rates. 

Strategic Plan 
The PCS Board approved a three-year Strategic Plan that provides direction for the school 
through 2018 (see Appendix). This plan was developed through a year-long process that 
incorporated input from all community stakeholders, including Board, staff, students, parents, 
and community members. The plan was also developed to align with school goals outlined in 
the WASC self-study as well as the LCAP. To date, progress has been made in the following 
areas: 

● The faculty continued comprehensive curriculum review in all academic departments. 
● The school saw another increase in the number of students engaged in independent 

project learning, under the umbrella of its Senior Capstone course. 
● The Communications group of the Development Committee developed a new website 

aimed at modernizing and streamlining communication. 
● The school adopted Canvas as a new learning management system that was 

implemented in the 2017-18 school year. Teachers use Canvas as an effective tool for 
asynchronous learning and communications. 

● The school budget was developed to provide salary increases to all employees, 
building on the significant increases of the prior year. PCS established a Collective 
Bargaining Agreement with the newly formed certificated faculty union, United PCS. 

● The school secured short term facility leases to support music, theater, and choir 
performances. 

PCS is engaging stakeholders in a strategic planning process during the 2020-2021 school year. 
We look forward to developing a new schoolwide plan in alignment with our recently approved 
Charter and Diversity Plan. 

15 

49



 
 

        
  

             
          

    
 

           
       

        
    

 
        

      
           

         
           

         
           
    

 
           

             
                 

         
 

 
          
         

             
           

         
             

             
      

          
             

         
            

      
  

              
          

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion - Plan and Progress 

A diverse school community is central to PCS values and our mission to provide equal access 
and support for all students seeking a high-quality, standards-based, college preparatory and fine 
arts education. 

Past PCS Diversity Plans led to the creation of a part-time Outreach Coordinator position, the 
development of a community outreach program, a first-to-college lottery preference, enhanced 
student support and school culture building activities, and an emphasis on diversity, equity, and 
inclusion (DEI) in leadership development and hiring practices. 

The 2020-2025 Diversity Plan outlines bold priorities and actions, including: (1) enhanced 
outreach and expanded lottery preferences for traditionally underrepresented students; (2) a 
multi-tiered system of robust supports to ensure all students can succeed at PCS, including AVID 
and other targeted intervention and support programs; (3) continued efforts to recruit diverse 
leadership, faculty, and staff; (4) a variety of strategic initiatives to engage all stakeholders in 
building an inclusive, equitable, and anti-racist school community; and (5) refined data collection 
and usage to uncover and respond to any achievement gaps, particularly in support of the most 
vulnerable students and subgroups. 

The PCS Board of Directors is firmly committed to these values, having prioritized DEI in both 
Board recruitment and in the hiring of our current Head of School. As a result, school leadership 
is the most diverse in PCS history, with a female head of school and a Board of Directors that is 
currently 80% women and 50% people of color, including 33% Latinx and 10% African 
American membership. 

Further reflecting PCS’s commitment to diversity efforts is the recent decision by the Head of 
School and Board of Directors to expand the part-time Outreach Coordinator role to a full-time 
Director of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion position. PCS has hired Dr. Héctor Rico to fill this 
position, who brings decades of DEI leadership experience to this new role. Dr. Rico has served 
as an equity and innovation focused Principal, Director, and Superintendent in a variety of 
California public schools, as well as providing leadership and support to public schools at the 
state level. Dr. Rico brings rich experience to PCS to enhance our work in attracting, supporting, 
and preparing students who are socio-economically-, culturally-, linguistically-, and ability-
diverse toward for success in college and beyond. The creation of the DEI Director position and 
the hiring of Dr. Rico speaks to our commitment to advance our goals around diversity, equity, 
and inclusion. We are also steadfast in our desire to build our collective capacity and efficacy 
around these important issues and ensure that all members of the school community are active 
participants in these efforts and contribute to our success. 

Under the direction of PCS Director of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion, Dr. Rico, the PCS 
Diversity Committee will continue to operate as an advisory committee designed to support the 

16 

50



 
 

          
        

          
          
         

          
      

 
  

 
       

         
    

             
        

           
             
    

 
        

 
       

           
           

 

Head of School and Director of DEI in implementing the PCS Diversity Plan. This work will 
continue to include developing and sustaining a positive and inclusive school culture, increasing 
our collective capacity to meet the diverse needs of all students, building community 
partnerships, and engaging parents and other members of the school community in opportunities 
to contribute to the discussion on race, social justice, and educational equity. The Diversity 
Committee includes members of the PCS community including past and current Board members, 
the Head of School, parents, and students. 

2020-2025 Diversity Plan Goals 

Goal A: Recruit More Diverse Student Populations 
In alignment with these goals of the 2020-2025 PCS Diversity Plan, the recently renewed PCS 
Charter outlined expanded lottery preferences for traditionally underrepresented students, 
including a 30% preference for those students who will be First to College and/or who are 
eligible for free/reduced price meals. These expanded preferences are already yielding 
promising results, as PCS welcomed the most diverse 7th grade class in recent school history: 
28.3% Latinx, 9.6% Asian, 1.1% African American, 13.8% two or more races, and 54.3% White 
(45.7% students of color). 

Figure 4. Current PCS Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity (2020-2021) 

PCS is encouraged by this diversity growth, and is committed to ongoing outreach and 
recruitment of students in all Santa Cruz communities, as well as strengthening support 
structures to facilitate the success of students from underrepresented populations, once enrolled. 

17 

51



 
 

       
        

              
        

 
           

           
       

         
          

         
 

              
     
      

     
         

       
   

         
       

     
           
       

        
 

          
          

    
 

           
       

    
            

     
        

        
       

        
      

      

Goal B: Build Mechanisms of Student Support 
The 2020-2025 PCS Diversity Plan and Charter outline a commitment to building multi-tiered 
systems of support to ensure that all students are supported to be successful at PCS, with a 
particular interest in ensuring the success of traditionally underrepresented students. 

Although the coronavirus crisis has interrupted and complicated the work of schools in the past 
year, PCS recognizes that the pandemic has created additional burdens and challenges 
disproportionately affecting traditionally underrepresented students. For this reason, PCS 
distance learning, reopening, and small cohort targeted support plans have been created with 
measures in place to ensure educational equity. We have continued efforts to enhance and 
expand student support services even in the midst of these challenging times. 

Since last year’s update, even in the midst of the pandemic, PCS has made progress toward this 
Goal B in the following ways: 
● Expanded services to English Learners, including additional instruction and tutoring 

supports before, during, and after school 
● Refined SST process, including implementation of a new system for tracking and 

reporting student attendance, engagement, progress and concerns to a weekly Student 
Support Advisory Team 

● Enhanced tutoring and academic support via new employee and partnership with UCSC 
● Enhanced social-emotional support and counseling services, available during distance 

learning via online PCS Support Hub 
● Summer Institute training for PCS AVID Team (2 administrators and 4 teachers) 
● Cooperation with AVID regional team on initial phase of implementation during 2020-

2021, and plans to expand supports for First-to-College students in future 

Recent Faculty and Staff professional development has included a focus on Diversity, Equity, 
and Culturally Responsive Pedagogy. PCS teachers and administrators have participated in a 
variety of professional learning opportunities, including: 

● Equity and Access in Distance Learning: In August 2020, PCS teachers have 
participated in a full day of training focused on engaging students in equitable learning 
opportunities via distance learning. 

● AVID Training: In July 2020, the Head of School, Faculty Dean, and the 7th grade team 
participated in Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) training in 
anticipation of the initial phase of implementation during the 2020-2021 school year. 
This team is also participating in ongoing learning and planning for further 
implementation and expansion of the program. Additional team members are scheduled 
to be trained prior to the 2021-2022 school year. 

● Equity and Anti-Racist Education: Equity-focused training is planned for January 2021 
and June 2021 in-service days, which will include workshops focused on supporting 

18 

52



 
 

    
   

           
      

   
        

       
         

          
        

 
       

     
          
      

          
       

         
      

 

      
           

           
          

           
     

 
           

           
           
            

            
  

 
            

            
  

 
         

          
        

 
      

English Learners, differentiating instruction, and embedding anti-racist education across 
the curriculum 

● Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Universal Design for Learning: PCS teachers 
participated in several learning opportunities focused on DEI and UDL during the 2019-
2020 school year. 

● Supporting Diverse Learners via Distance Learning: During the 2020-2021 school 
year, PCS teachers have engaged in one-time and ongoing, job-embedded professional 
learning focused on supporting the needs of all students via distance learning. 

● Culturally Responsive Teaching: In 2017-2019, teachers, staff, and Board members 
learned from Nicole Anderson, educational equity consultant, during several full and half 
day workshops. 

● Equity Professional Learning Communities: Faculty and Staff met monthly 
throughout the 2018-2019 in professional learning communities (PLCs) focused on 
studying the culture of PCS in regards to equity issues related to gender, race, political 
and religious difference, and LGBTQIA+ people. 

● ACSA Equity Institute: Former Principal Simon Fletcher and Assistant Principal Todd 
Harrison participated in the SCCOE hosted Equity Institute throughout the 2017-18 
school year. During 2018-2019, PCS added two additional participants for the second 
year of the institute. 

Goal C: Recruit Diverse School Leadership 
PCS recognizes that representation matters in our efforts to create a welcoming and inclusive 
school community. For this reason, the 2020-2025 PCS Diversity Plan charges the Head of 
School with the task of identifying and implementing strategies to recruit a more diverse teacher 
and staff population, and the Board to continue recruiting diverse members, both with a view to 
better reflect our community’s demographics. 

PCS has enhanced our recruitment strategies to include a variety of platforms for posting and 
advertising available positions, as well as participation in regional recruitment fairs at the Santa 
Cruz County Office of Education, UCSC, and CSUMB, and virtual teacher of color recruitment 
fairs. We are expanding partnerships with UCSC and CSUMB for student teacher and intern 
placement at PCS with an eye toward developing talent pipelines in support of our recruitment 
goals. 

School leadership is currently the most diverse in PCS history, with a female Head of School and 
a Board of Directors that is currently 80% women and 50% people of color, including 33% 
Latinx and 10% African American membership. 

Goal D: Build an Inclusive and Supportive School Culture 
An essential aspect of the 2020-2025 PCS Diversity Plan is intentional focus on actions 
necessary to build and maintain inclusive and equitable school culture and climate to support the 
academic 
success, and social and emotional well-being of every student. 

19 

53



 
 

 
           

         
             

           
      

           
            

          
        
      

 
              
         

     
          

    
        

       
 

           
      

 
       

 
       

            
       

            
        

 
             

       
          

 
             

         
 

     
 

   
            

         

Research has shown that an equitable and inclusive school culture is critical to the recruitment 
and retention of diverse and highly-qualified teachers, as well as the recruitment, retention and 
success of students of diverse backgrounds. To ensure all members of the PCS community 
experience an inclusive rather than an assimilationist environment, PCS will continue to provide 
learning opportunities for leadership, staff, faculty and students to engage in discussion and 
training about equity, explicit and implicit bias, structural inequalities, and other issues related to 
diversity, equity, inclusion, and social justice. Under the direction of the Director of Diversity, 
Equity, and Inclusion and the Head of School, PCS has committed to engaging the Board, 
teachers, staff, parents and students in a multi-year learning process focused on building our 
collective capacity and efficacy around these important issues. 

Since last year’s update, PCS has made progress toward this Goal D in the following ways: 
● Developing processes and procedures to ensure the equitable access and engagement of 

all students during distance learning. 
● Expanding dedicated staffing to include Director of DEI, EL Coordinator, and additional 

academic support staff. 
● Engaging teachers in all academic departments in equity-focused review of curriculum 

and instruction, and goals related to identifying, addressing, and reducing opportunity 
gaps 

● Shift to platforms for school newsletter and other communications that supports 
translation into other languages; commitment to bilingual parent communication 
(English/Spanish) 

● Live Spanish translation provided for parent orientations and meetings 

Goal E: Refine Data Collection and Assessment 
Supported by the work of data specialists on our Board of Directors, PCS is refining data 
collection and analysis that will enhance our ability to identify and respond to achievement or 
opportunity gaps at Pacific Collegiate School. This work is essential to ensure that resources are 
allocated in particular support of our most vulnerable students. 

Progress in this goal area includes the adoption of the SCOIR system for storing and reporting on 
college preparatory and application data, and ongoing work to align and report data efficiently 
from our learning management systems (Infinite Campus and Canvas). 

PCS will be expanding the data we collect to understand school climate and culture to include 
multi-stakeholder climate and culture surveys and focus groups in both English and Spanish. 

School Culture and Climate Data 

School Attendance 
PCS student attendance and enrollment have been consistently strong, as shown in the table below. The 
administration actively communicates with students and parents about the importance of school 

20 

54



 
 

         
       

            
          

  
 

       

     

      

      
 

            
             
            

          
           

 

      

     

     

     

  
 

    

      

     

     

 
    

 
 

    

         
 

          
               

         
       

 

attendance, both in regards to academic success and school funding. As discussed previously, worked 
hard to close the “digital divide” by providing Chromebooks, hotspots, and technology training to 
students and families to ensure access during the pandemic. PCS attendance rates have increased during 
distance learning, remaining above 99% during distance learning in the 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 school 
years. 

Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 Total School 

Enrollment (CBEDS) 183 357 540 

Attendance rate (annual) 97.9% 97.2% 97.4% 

Table 18: 2019-2020 PCS School Attendance data 

The table below represents high school enrollment and attrition data over the four-year period of the 
2014-15 school year through the 2017-18 school year. Thanks to Dr. Faris Sabbah, County 
Superintendent, for compiling this data. This analysis shows the relative proportionality for racial and 
socioeconomic subgroups. In general, all groups are represented consistently in enrollment, graduation, 
and attrition (early exit). Grade point averages for all groups were also consistent. 

Student Group Enrollment Early Exit Graduated GPA 

African American 0.9% 2.2% 0.7% 3.17 

Asian 11.0% 4.9% 11.0% 3.27 

Latinx 13.5% 12.0% 12.5% 3.10 

Two or More 
Races 

2.7% 2.2% 4.7% 3.38 

Native American 2.1% 2.7% 1.3% 3.29 

White 68.9% 71.7% 69.4% 3.24 

Free/Reduced 
Lunch 

9% 5.4% 6.9% 3.24 

Non-Free/ 
Reduced Lunch 

91% 94.6% 93.1% 3.23 

Table 19: Attrition Study Data: 2014-15 to 2017-18 (courtesy of Dr. Sabbah’s 2018-2019 study. 

Additionally, overall enrollment trends, shown in the chart below, demonstrate that student 
attrition is reduced across all grade levels. This is in large part due to a schoolwide initiative to 
increase student engagement and retention, including a focus on individualized student support, 
attention to mental wellness and social emotional learning, and work towards cultural 
proficiency. 

21 

55



 
 

 

      
 

    
                

              
              

       
  

  
  

 

 

 

  
 
 

  

 

 
 

 

  
 

       
       
           
       
       
       
       
       
       
       

              
 

  
             

             
             

           

Figure 5: PCS Total Enrollment (2015-present) 

First to College Students 
The following table shows the enrollment and attrition of First to College students since the initial class of 
2017 cohort. The class of 2018 saw significant attrition through student transfers to other schools. In 
subsequent cohorts this attrition is much lower - we believe in large part due to the increased focus on 
support for both students and their families. 

Class of 
#FTC -
siblings 

#FTC-
lottery 

preference 

#FTC -
general 
lottery 

#FTC -
transferred 

out 

Total 
#FTC-

currently 
enrolled 

FTC -
graduated 

2017 0 6 3 4 - 5 
2018 0 6 5 9 - 1 
2019 2 6 4 4 - 9 
2020 0 6 2 2 - 5 
2021 1 6 1 2 5 -
2022 1 7 0 4 5 -
2023 1 6 0 3 6 -
2024 2 7 1 3 7 -
2025 3 11 2 1 15 

2026 3 15 3 2 16 -
Table 20: First to College Student Enrollment by Graduating Class (Class of 2017 to Class of 2026) 

School Surveys 
Pacific Collegiate administers a regular cycle of stakeholder surveys. Students take surveys in 
each class twice a year. Students and parents are also surveyed about their overall perspective on 
the school once each year. Aggregated results of the surveys are discussed amongst the faculty, 
staff, and Board and also shared with the entire PCS community. Information from the surveys 

22 

56



 
 

         
  

 
        

     
          
          

         
           

 
          
       

    
           

  
 
          

            
                 

       
           

             
           

            
       

      
            

  
      

  
         
        

 
         

           
   

 
            
          

         
         
            

 
  

is used to inform teaching and curricular decisions and also funding priorities as outlined in the 
school LCAP. 

In 2019-20, stakeholder surveys, focused on our general and distance learning programs pointed 
to the following areas for school improvement: 
● Enhancing support for students’ academic, social-emotional, and physical wellbeing; 
● Fostering and maintaining a diverse, inclusive, supportive, and anti-racist school culture, 

in which all students, staff, and families feel a sense of belonging; 
● Expanded opportunities for students and families to engage as part of the PCS 

community; 
● Improved communication that is accessible to all PCS families and the community 
● Increased focus on innovative teaching and learning, particularly as related to student 

engagement via distance learning; 
● Additional opportunities and resources for families and caregivers to support students 

during distance learning. 

In the 2018-2019 school year, the PCS Board of Directors hired a consulting firm, Edgility, to 
help in the search for a new Head of School. Part of the search process involved conducting a 
needs assessment analysis for the school. In order to develop this needs assessment, the PCS 
Board in consultation with the consulting firm conducted an extensive stakeholder engagement 
process, which included: (1) individual interviews and focus groups with faculty, (2) interviews 
and focus groups with staff and members of the leadership team; (3) focus groups with students; 
(4) phone interviews with Spanish-speaking parents; (5) a “town hall” style meeting with 
parents; and (6) surveys with all stakeholder groups. Stakeholder groups honed in on the 
following areas as focus for school improvement: 

● Recruiting and maintaining qualified and diverse teachers and staff; 
● Building and maintaining a culture where all people feel a sense of belonging and 

inclusion; 
● Incorporating innovative teaching practices while maintaining a rigorous, college-

prep focus; 
● Enrolling and supporting a diverse student body and 
● Creating and maintaining strong lines of communication amongst all stakeholders. 

The PCS Board, administration, and staff used areas identified through stakeholder engagement 
in the drafting of the 2020-2025 PCS Diversity Plan, and the development of Head of School and 
school goals. 

In addition, during the 2019-2020 school year, the Head of School began a new round of 
stakeholder engagement activities to support our strategic planning process. Although that was 
interrupted by the coronavirus crisis, Strategic Planning will be completed during the 2020-2021 
school year to inform upcoming LCAP and WASC plans. This comprehensive school planning 
process will include a variety of multi-stakeholder surveys, focus groups, town hall meetings, 
and planning groups. 

23 

57



 
 

  
 

            
           

            
         

           
 

            
         

             
         

          
      

 
           

          
            

            
      

        
              

       
 

             
            

          
 
   

Financial Oversight 

Pacific Collegiate School continues to exercise effective fiscal oversight of PCS finances, and 
maintains a high level of transparency and accountability in all of its financial dealings. The 
Head of School, the Business Office Staff and the Board Treasurer work closely with the Finance 
Committee to streamline and standardize all finance-related processes and to build a budget that 
realistically reflects the needs of the students and teachers at the school. 

Pacific Collegiate School continues to monitor issues related to the state budget and its impact on 
school funding. While state funding constantly changes, PCS continues to budget conservatively 
to ensure the long-term financial stability of the school. The Head of School and her staff 
regularly seek new ways to reduce costs, while upgrading resources and programs when prudent. 
PCS will continue to budget conservatively, ensuring that the school remains fiscally solvent and 
is able to support its strong academic programs. 

The PCS Board adopted a new Financial Reserve Policy in October 2017 after completing a 
detailed reserve study. The revised policy increased the school's overall reserves by more than 
$500k to more than $1.5M. PCS currently holds $2M in reserves. These reserves allow the 
school to set an annual budget that focuses on the core mission of preparing students for college 
while strategically preparing for both expected and unexpected budgetary events. Additionally, 
the increased reserves and the rigor behind its framework and preparation provide the Board 
greater confidence that the school's needs will continue to be met even if requirements for one-time 
expenditure of excess funds are found to be compelling. 

PCS maintains a long track record of financial audits and prudent financial management with no major 
audit findings or qualified opinions. In addition, the COE’s review of the 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 
affirms that PCS has demonstrated an ability to maintain a strong financial position. 

24 

58



 
  

Appendices 
● 2019����� Local Control and Accountability Plan – Annual Update 
● 2020 COVID-19 Operations Written Report 
● 2020 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
● 2020-2025 Diversity Status Report and Action Plan 
● 2020 Annual Plan for Special Needs, Section 504, and EL Students 
● 2015 WASC Action Plan 

25 

59



       
 

                

 
         

  
  

   
  

       

        

         

         
             

       

 
  

            

    

             
 

   

            
    

 
 

   
  

           

            
               
                

                
              

      
 

                
              

               
     

 
                

          
 

              
              

                  
 

             
               

            
        

 
              

              

Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template

LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 

2019-20 

Local Control Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements. 

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations Accountability Plan 
Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 

California School Dashboard: Essential data to support completion of and Annual Update this LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template. (LCAP) Template 

LEA Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Pacific Collegiate Charter School Simon Fletcher 
Principal 

simon.fletcher@pcsed.org 
(831) 479-7785 Ext. 3102 

2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 

Pacific Collegiate School – www.pacificcollegiate.com – is an independent public charter school 
open to any student in 7th through 12th grade seeking a rigorous college preparatory education. 
PCS has earned high honors for its outstanding program and has consistently ranked among the top 
public schools in California and the nation. Founded in 1999 by parents and educators seeking an 
alternative in public school education, currently serves 535 students at its new campus, 3004 
Mission Street, on Santa Cruz’s Westside. 

The course of study at Pacific Collegiate School focuses on the traditional core curriculum areas of 
mathematics, English, science and history as well as additional emphasis on visual and performing 
arts and foreign languages. The entire program is specifically designed to prepare students to enter 
competitive colleges and universities worldwide. 

In addition to its college preparatory focus, PCS’ Charter calls for students to study visual and 
performing arts, develop global perspectives and hone technological proficiencies to 

prepare them for success in the 21st century. Consequently, Pacific Collegiate School provides an 
exceptional education in the visual and performing arts, requires students to study more languages 
than English, and constantly strives to use of technology as a tool for learning and a life skill. 

PCS’s social environment is inclusive, respectful and diverse; students are encouraged to follow 
their interests and passions and to respect the viewpoints and passions of others. This close-knit 
culture fosters camaraderie and mutual respect among students, between students and teachers, 
and ensures a supportive collaboration between faculty members. 

PCS believes that students of all backgrounds can thrive academically and socially. PCS provides 
an extensive school-wide support network and a community of teachers, students, and families all 

60
Page 1 of 83 

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/reports/44104474430252/2018
www.pacificcollegiate.com


              
              

 
         

 

  
           

             
               

                 
             

                
             

             
          

 

   
                 

             
                    
                

                
  

 
  

             
                

                
              

            
 

               
                 

                   
              

                  
 

 
  

                
            

             
      

 
                

                 
        

 

committed to this vision of student success. PCS makes academics a priority, fostering an 
environment in which every student is oriented toward the goal of succeeding in college. 

LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

Pacific Collegiate School’s Local Control Accountability Plan is focused on directing resources to 
providing access to a college preparatory education for all students. The plan describes some of 
the strategies the school is using to minimize some of the typical barriers that exist for traditionally 
under served students, including access to high level courses and college admissions test 
preparation for all students. The plan also supports a continued focus on preparing all students for 
success in college through developing research and analysis skills, promoting effective use of 
technology, and ensuring that well trained teachers are delivering a high quality Advanced 
Placement curriculum. 

Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
California School Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or 
other information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build 
upon that success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements 
in services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 

Greatest Progress 
PCS students of all subgroups performed exceptionally well on CAASPP assessments. On both 
Math and ELA assessments, all subgroups performed in the ‘high’ or ‘very high’ level. PCS AP 
results were also very strong, with high levels of participation paired with high pass rates for 
students of all subgroups, including First to College students. Student attendance and retention were 
also very strong, as with the prior year, far exceeding previous years. 

Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for 
which overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a 
“Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has 
determined need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local 
indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for 
improvement? 

Greatest Needs 
While all subgroups performed at a high or very high level, the subgroups of Hispanic and 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged were slightly lower than the overall school scores on CAASPP 
assessments. Additionally, based on local measures, support of First to College students continues 
to be an area of need. 

Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 

Page 2 of 83 
61



  
                

 

    
                 

         
 

  
            

 

 
    

                
             

        

 

 
    

                 
     

 

 

Performance Gaps 
There were no performance gaps that were two or more levels below the "all students" group. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every 
Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts. 

Schools Identified 
Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 

Support for Identified Schools 
Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level 
needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be 
addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to 
support student and school improvement. 

62
Page 3 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 1 
Increase academic success of First to College students 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Local Priorities: 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
                 

 
        

                
    

 
   

  

 
                

 
             

        

 
            

         

             
       

 
                

 
               

 
               

             

  

 
             

 

  

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator
Academic support meetings for all First to College students 

18-19 
Meet at least once with all FTC students, with more meetings scheduled as 
needed. 

Baseline 
In 2016-17, Student Support Team members met with all FTC students at 
least once. 

Academic counselors met with all FTC students and their families at least 
once, and in most cases multiple times. 

Metric/Indicator
Advanced Placement Exam pass rate of graduating FTC students. 

18-19 
AP pass rate comparable to general student population. 

Baseline 
For the class of 2017, FTC seniors had an AP pass rate of 88%, compared 
to 85% from the general population. 

Metric/Indicator
CAASPP scores of FTC graduating students. 

18-19 
63

Page 4 of 83 



  

              

 
       

 
       

 
       

 
        

 
   

                       
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

       
     
     
    

 
    

    
   

    
       

    
   

  
 

     
   

 
       

      
 

 

        
     
     
    

 
    

    
   

   
      

    
   

  
 

    
     

      
 

 

    
     

    
    

    
   

     
  

    
    

     
   

    
   

     
  

Expected Actual 

CAASPP scores comparable to general student population. 

Baseline 
For the class of 2017 FTC seniors: 

Math 50% meet/exceed vs. 68% general population. 

ELA 83% meet/exceed vs. 68% general population. 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

startcollapse 

Action 1 
Planned Actual Budgeted Estimated Actual 

Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
Meet at least once each year with 
each individual student and his/her 
family to review progress towards 
goals in academic plan. 

FTC support team: Academic 
Support Specialist (7/8th), Vice 
Principal/Dean of Students 
(9/10th), College Counselor (11th 
12th) will meet twice a month to 
review overall process and 
individual student progress 
towards goals. 

Parent Education events to discuss 
college application process. 

Form a peer to peer network for 
both the FTC students and their 
parents. 

Met at least once each year with 
each individual student and his/her 
family to review progress towards 
goals in academic plan. 

FTC support team: Academic 
Support Specialist (7/8th), Vice 
Principal/Dean of Students 
(9/10th), College Counselor 
(11th/12th) met twice a month to 
review overall process and 
individual student progress 
towards goals. 

Academic and College Counselors 
hosted parent meetings for parents 
of FTC students at each grade 
level. 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF $3,411 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF $3,231 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $878 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $832 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $2,088 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $2,088 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $575 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $575 

64
Page 5 of 83 



 
 

       
      

    
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
                          

              
 

            
                       

  
         
 

                 
                   

                      
                    

         
 

          
         

 
                         

                  

                   

 

Began the formation of a peer to 
peer network for both the FTC 
students and their parents. 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The Student Support Team staff met will at First To College students over the course of the school year, as described in the 
actions/services section. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Student Support Team staff report that the individual meetings with students, sometimes also including parents, have continued to be 
an effective strategy to develop a success plan for each First To College child. The addition of parent meetings specifically designed 
for parents of FTC students has also been effective to supplement the general meetings that all parents are invited to. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes will be made to this goal at this time. 

65
Page 6 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 2 
Provide access to college entrance test preparation by offering this service free of charge to all students. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Local Priorities: 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
                          

 
        

                
    

 
   

  

 
            

 
                

 
             
        

             
 

 
 

 
   

                       
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

    
      

 

    
     

  

    
     

    
    

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

startcollapse 

Action 1 

Metric/Indicator
Participation rate by graduating class. 

18-19 
Maintain a high participation rate for the graduating class. 

Baseline 
Among the class of 2017, 90% of students participated in a test preparation 
course. 

Among the class of 2019, 86.8%% of students participated in a test 
preparation 
course. 

Offer SAT/ACT/PSAT prep classes 
to help prepare students for tests. 

Offered SAT/ACT/PSAT prep 
classes to help prepare students 
for tests. 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF $20,000 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF $8,980 

Planned Actual Budgeted Estimated Actual 
Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 

66
Page 7 of 83 



    
   

     
  

     
   

      
  

           
   

 
 

 
                          

              
 

            
                   

           
         
 

                 
                       

 
         
 

          
                           

 
                         

                  

                  

 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $5,146 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $2,310 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $3,200 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $2,153 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$6,080 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Test preparation courses are offered on a variety of schedules including after school and weekends to accommodate various conflicts. 
Classes are timed to coincide with common testing dates for SAT/PSAT/ACT. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The program has been very effective, as indicated by a high level of participation and very positive feedback about the quality of the 
instruction. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
We anticipated all classes to be taught by current employees. A portion was taught by an independent contractor. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes are planned for this goal in future years. 

67
Page 8 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 3 
Students will be engaged in college preparatory research. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Local Priorities: 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
                 

 
        

                
    

 
   

  

 
          

        

 
                

 
                    

               
 

 
   

                       
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

     
     

      
     

    
     

    
   

 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

startcollapse 

Action 1 

Metric/Indicator
Graduating class participation in one or more research based elective 
classes. 

18-19 
Maintain a high participation rate for the graduating class. 

Baseline 
In the class of 2017, 66% of students took a research based elective class. 

In the class of 2019, 68% (n=91) of students took a research based elective 
class. 

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Actual 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

Maintain a class to provide Maintained a class to provide 1000-1999: Certificated 1000-1999: Certificated 
students the opportunity to hone students the opportunity to hone Personnel Salaries LCFF $12,072 Personnel Salaries LCFF 

$12,457 
68

Page 9 of 83 



     
 

 
     

   
 
 
 

     
 

 
     

   
 

    
   

     
  

     
   

  

      
   

 

 

 
                          

              
 

            
                        

 
                 

                         

 
          

           

 
                         

                  

               

 

their research skills with supported 
curriculum. 

their research skills with supported 
curriculum. 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

LCFF $3,106 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $3,435 

Maintain a variety of research 
based elective offerings. 

Maintained a variety of research 
based elective offerings. 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$2,500 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$2,500 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
In 2018-19, the school was able to accommodate the increased enrollment in research based elective classes. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The variety and quality of research based elective offerings have allowed many students to access these courses. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
No material difference. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes are planned to this goal. 

69
Page 10 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 4 
Offer technological literacy access and curriculum to all students. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning) 

Local Priorities: 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
                  

 
        

                
               

    
 

   

  

 
               

 
              

 
               

         

 
              

 
                

 
            

              

             
       

 
   

                       
 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator
Students enrolled in Study Skills and Technology course. 

18-19 
All 7th grade students enrolled in SSTech. 

Baseline 
100% of 7th grade students enrolled in SSTech. 

All 7th grade students were enrolled in SSTech. 

Metric/Indicator
Student access to tech devices in school. 

18-19 
Maintain a similar number of devices for student use. 

Baseline 
In the 2016-17 school year, PCS maintained about 500 devices for student 
use, or about .95 devices per student. 

In the 2018-19 school year, PCS maintained about 580 devices for student 
use, or about 1.1 devices per student. 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Page 11 of 83 
70



 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

    
     

      
     

    
    

     
     

   
  

 

     
     

     
    

     
    
    
      
   

   

    
     

    
   

 

    
   

     
  

     
   

      
  

     
   

      
  

   
   

    

    
   

   
 

 
                          

              
 

            
                  

                    
          

 
                 

                    
                     

          
 

          
             

startcollapse 

Action 1 
Planned Actual Budgeted Estimated Actual 

Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
Maintain Study Skills and 
Technology as a required course 
for all 7th grade students. Continue 
to offer multiple sections of 
Computer Science as determined 
by student interest. Maintain 
student access to computers at 
school – continue to incorporate 
technology based instruction 
where appropriate. 

Maintained Study Skills and 
Technology as a required course 
for all 7th grade students. 
Continued to offer multiple 
sections of Computer Science as 
determined by student interest. 
Maintained student access to 
computers at school – continued to 
incorporate technology based 
instruction where appropriate. 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF $74,827 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
$74,827 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $19,252 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $19,252 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $1,000 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $488 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $20,000 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $13,198 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $22,248 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $22,248 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Pacific Collegiate School established sufficient staffing, classroom space, and technology to provide Study Skills and Technology to all 
7th graders and Computer Science to all interested students. In addition, the school maintained a sufficient number of devices for 
student use. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The Study Skills and Technology course continues to be effectively integrated with the core curriculum and academic support of the 
7th grade. The use of shared devices for student use has been closely monitored, and the supply was increased when demand 
outpaced supply. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Ordered fewer computers than anticipated. 

71
Page 12 of 83 



 
                         

                  

                

 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes will be made to this goal. 

72
Page 13 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 5 
Provide support services for low income students and families. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 

Local Priorities: 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
                  

 
        

               
             

    
 

   

  

 
              

 
                 

 
                   

             
     

 
               

 
           

            

 
             
        

              
        

 
              

 

              
             

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator
Participation in lunch program by FRL students. 

18-19 
Maintain a high level of free school lunch program utilization. 

Baseline 
In 2016-17, 91% of FRL students utilized the free school lunch program. 

During the 2018-19 school year, 90% of students eligible for free lunch 
utilized the school lunch program. 

Metric/Indicator
Participation in test preparation program by FRL students. 

18-19 
Participation in test preparation classes by low income students that is 
comparable to the general population. 

Baseline 
66% of 11th and 12th grade students (n=6) participated in a test preparation 
class. 

In 2017-18, 75% (n=12) of students that qualify for free and reduced lunch 
enrolled in AP courses took the AP exam. 

Metric/Indicator
Participation in AP exams by FRL students. 

18-19 

In the 2018-19 school year, 86% (n=36) of students enrolled in AP courses 
and eligible for free and reduced lunch registered to take the AP exam. 

73
Page 14 of 83 



  

                  

 
             

        
 

   
                       

 
 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

      
        
  

 
      

   
 

     
    

  
 
 
 

       
     

       
 

 
      

       
   

 
    

      
     

  
 

     
    

     
    

  

    
   

     
   

  

     
   

     

     
   

      
  

     
   

  

      
   

 
 

Expected Actual 

Maintain a high level of AP exam participation by FRL students. 

Baseline 
In 2016-17, 100% of FRL students enrolled in AP courses took the AP 
exam. 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

startcollapse 

Action 1 
Planned Actual Budgeted Estimated Actual 

Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
Require all families to fill out Required all families to fill out 
application for FRL as a part of the application for free and reduced 
registration process. lunch as a part of the registration 

process. 
Provide AP exam fee waivers for 
all FRL students. Provided AP exam fee waivers for 

all students who qualify for free 
Actively recruit FRL students for and reduced lunch. 
participation in free test 
preparation classes. Actively recruited students who 

qualify for free and reduce lunch 
for participation in free test 
preparation classes. 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $1,399 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $1,455 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $385 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $400 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $253 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $15,000 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $22,000 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$4,000 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$4,000 

74
Page 15 of 83 



 
                          

              
 

            
                   

                     
         

         
 

                 
                   

                      
                

         
 

          
               

 
                         

                  

                

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The application for Free and Reduced Lunch was incorporated as a required form in the registration process. The administration 
proactively provided fee waivers for AP exams to all students who qualified for Free and Reduced Lunch. All students were actively 
encourage to enroll in the free test preparation courses. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
With the Free and Reduced Lunch application included in the registration process, nearly 100% of families completed the form. 
Possibly due to this higher level of applications, the number of students qualifying for Free and Reduced Lunch increased in the 2018-
19 school year. The number of students being served by the free lunch program also increased. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Had more free lunches used than anticipated 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes will be planned for this goal. 

75
Page 16 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 6 
Ensure parent participation in school Board and Committees. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) 
Local Priorities: 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator
Parental representation on Board and school committees. 

In 2018-19, the Board and all school committees had at least one parent 
member. 

18-19 
The Board and school committees will have at least one parent member. 

Baseline 
In 2016-17, the school Board and all committees had at least one parent 
member. 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

startcollapse 

Action 1 
Planned Actual Budgeted Estimated Actual 

Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
Recruit committee membership 
through school communications 
annually and as needed. 

Recruited committee membership 
through school communications 
annually and as needed. 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
                 

 
        

               
    

 
   

  

 
              

 
                   

 
             

        

              
 

 
 

 
   

                       
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

   
   
    

    
   
    

     
    

     
   

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $1,210 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $1,260 

76
Page 17 of 83 



 
   
  

 
 
 

 
   

  
 

    
   

     
  

 

 
                          

              
 

            
                         

 
                 

                   
  

         
 

          
           

 
                         

                  

               

 

Maintain regular committee 
meeting schedules. 

Maintained regular committee 
meeting schedules. 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $333 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $347 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
All school committees actively recruited membership from the parent community as well as from the outside community. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The outreach was very effective - all committees have highly qualified parent volunteers serving alongside Staff, Board members, and 
community members. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
No material difference. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes are planned for this goal. 

77
Page 18 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 7 
Maintain student average daily attendance. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
Local Priorities: 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator
P-2 Average Daily Attendance 

In 2018-19, the school ADA for P-2 was 96.6%. 

18-19 
Maintain a P-2 ADA of at least 95% 

Baseline 
In 2016-17, the school ADA for P-2 was 96.7%. 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

startcollapse 

Action 1 
Planned Actual Budgeted Estimated Actual 

Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
Increase monitoring and 
communication with parents of 
chronically absent students to 
decrease truancy. 

Increased monitoring and 
communication with parents of 
chronically absent students to 
decrease truancy. 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
              

 
        

               
    

 
   

  

 
           

 
               

 
                

          
 
 

 
   

                       
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

   
    

    
  

    
    

    
  

     
    

     
   

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $18,057 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $18,058 

78
Page 19 of 83 



 
    

     
  

 
 
 

 
    

      
  

 

    
   

     
  

   
     

    
   

 

    
   

     
  

 

 
                          

              
 

            
              

                 
         
 

                 
                    

 
          

           

 
                         

                  

                

 

Administrative support for the 
monitoring and follow up of 
absent/truant students. 

Provided administrative support for 
the monitoring and follow up of 
absent/truant students. 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $4,975 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $4,975 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF $14,833 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
$14,833 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $3,816 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $3,816 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Implementation included regular monitoring of student absences and administrative intervention for chronic absenteeism. Additionally 
there was regular communication from administration to all families about the importance of regular attendance in school. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Attendance rates rebounded after a slight dip in the prior school year. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
No material differences. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes will be made to this goal. 

79
Page 20 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 8 
Teachers will be credentialed or in progress of finishing and clearing their credential 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) 
Local Priorities: 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
                      

 
        

                
    

 
   

  

 
                

 
               

 
             

          

             
 

 

 
   

                       
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

    
    

 

    
   

   

      
   

  

      
   

 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

startcollapse 

Action 1 

Metric/Indicator
Percent of teachers credentialed or in progress towards credential. 

18-19 
100% of teachers will be credentialed or in progress of earning a credential. 

Baseline 
In 2016-17, 97% (all but one) of teachers were credentialed or in progress 
towards a credential. 

In 2018-19, 100% of teachers were credentialed or in progress towards a 
credential. 

Planned 
Actions/Services 

Actual 
Actions/Services 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures 

Teachers will receive professional Eligible teachers received 5000-5999: Services And Other 5000-5999: Services And Other 
development through the BTSA professional development through Operating Expenditures LCFF Operating Expenditures LCFF 
program. the BTSA program. $17,000 $17,540 

80
Page 21 of 83 



 
    

   
 

       
   

 
 
 
 

 
   

   
 

       
   

 
 

     
   

  

      
   

 

   
     

    
   

 

    
   

     
  

 

 
                          

              
 

            
                    
           

 
                 

                  

 
          
               

 
                         

                  

               

 

Teachers will attend AP 
conferences as appropriate. 

Teachers attended AP 
conferences as appropriate. 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$10,000 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$1,911 

School budgets for 8 paid days of 
professional development for 
teachers. 

School budgets for 8 paid days of 
professional development for 
teachers. 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF $87,512 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
$91,961 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $22,516 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $23,661 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The school administration worked closely with the credential department at the County Office of Education to ensure that all teachers 
were properly credentialed. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The close oversight resulted in all teachers being properly credentialed. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Fewer teachers attended AP conferences than anticipated. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes are planned for this goal. 

81
Page 22 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 9 
Maintain school facilities in good repair to ensure the safety of all students 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) 
Local Priorities: 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator
School facility inspection rating on the FIT test. 

In 2018-19, the facility inspection rated over 90%. 

18-19 
Maintain a facility inspection rating of over 90%. 

Baseline 
In 2016-17, the facility inspection rated over 90%. 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

startcollapse 

Action 1 
Planned Actual Budgeted Estimated Actual 

Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
Monthly campus work days. 

Monthly and annual review of 
various facility requirements (e.g. 

The school coordinated with the 
Parent Volunteer Association to 
conduct monthly campus work 
days. 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
                      

 
        

                
    

 
   

  

 
               

 
               

 
               

         

 
   

                       
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

    
 

     
    

      
    
    

 

     
    

     
   

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $1,679 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $1,746 

82
Page 23 of 83 



   
   

 
    

     
 
 
 

 
     

     
   
   

  
 

     
     
    

 

    
   

     
  

    
    

     
   

    
   

     
  

    
    

     
   

    
   

     
  

 

 
                          

              
 

            
                     

                 
           

         
 

                 
                            

 
          

           

 
                         

                  

               

fire extinguishers, earthquake 
items bolted down). The school conducted monthly and 

annual review of various facility 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $463 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $481 

Perform fire, earthquake, and 
lockdown drills twice a year. 

requirements (e.g. fire 
extinguishers, earthquake items 
bolted down). 

The students and staff performed 
fire, earthquake, and lock down 
drills twice a year. 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $4,198 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $4,365 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $1,156 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $1,203 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $1,192 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF $1,241 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $328 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $342 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The school building manager and janitorial service maintain a clean and orderly facility as well as addressing repairs in a timely 
manner. Ongoing maintenance and repairs are also handled during monthly parent volunteer campus beautification days. The school 
maintains contracts with vendors to ensure regular maintenance of building systems. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
With the monitoring and work schedule in place the building is maintained in a very clean, safe, and orderly state. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
No material differences. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes are planned for this goal. 

83
Page 24 of 83 



 

84
Page 25 of 83 



Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 10 
Offer sufficient AP sections to provide access to all students. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) 
Local Priorities: 

  
 

     
 

                       
 

  
                   

 
        

                
    

 
   

  

 
              

 
              

 
                 

           

 
   

                       
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

   
 

     
    

 

      
    

    
   

  

    
   

 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator
Students having access to Advanced Placement courses. 

In 2018-19, 100% of students had access to AP courses. 

18-19 
Maintain 100% open enrollment in AP courses. 

Baseline 
In 2016-17, 100% of students had access to AP courses. 

Actions / Services
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

startcollapse 

Action 1 
Planned Actual Budgeted Estimated Actual 

Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
Continue to provide all students 
access to AP classes 

Continued to provide all students 
access to AP classes. 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
$418,108 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
$445,438 

85
Page 26 of 83 



   
   

  

     
  

     
   

  

      
   

 
 

 
                          

              
 

            
                    

               

 
                 

                          

 
          

         

 
                         

                  

               

 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
$107,575 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF $114,607 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$1,400 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
$1,400 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
PCS continues to provide access to AP courses for all students. Whenever possible, the school schedules enough sections of elective 
AP courses to accommodate all student requests. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
In 2018-19, the school was able to create enough sections to accommodate all student requests for AP courses. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes are planned for this goal. 

86
Page 27 of 83 



  
 

 

   
 

 

       
 

                     

                      
                   
                   

                     
    

 
             

 
                   

         
 

                       
           

 
              

         
               
                    

         

                     
   

                  
 

               

Stakeholder Engagement 

LCAP Year: 2019-20 

Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 

Pacific Collegiate School uses a variety of avenues to inform and engage its stakeholders on how the school is performing and best 
serving students. With the Local Control Funding Formula requesting feedback from its stakeholders in order to develop the Local 
Control Accountability Plan, PCS tailored many of its questions and discussions around the eight state priorities. PCS has always 
welcomed stakeholder feedback. Many of the feedback mechanisms are practices PCS has done in the past and will continue to do 
on an annual basis. 

The following list represents PCS’ outreach efforts to solicit stakeholder engagement and feedback. 

1. Board Meetings: Results of student, parent, staff, and alumni surveys were shared during open public meetings. LCAP discussions 
were tied to the budget discussion and adoption process. 

2. Website: LCFF and LCAP information was posted on PCS’s website to inform our public of the state’s new funding model, what it 
entails, the timeline for implementation and the need for their input. 

3. Parents: Feedback was solicited in a variety of ways from our parent community: 
• Parent Education events: held on a regular basis. 
• PVA meetings: Parent Volunteer Association meetings held bi-monthly, generally in conjunction with Board meetings. 
• Parent Survey: PCS annually surveys parents on a variety of topics. This survey provides quantitative data on what is 

working or not working for their children and the 

areas PCS needs to improve upon. Input was solicited from the PCS community with families self-identifying which if any, subgroup 
they belong to. 

� Diversity Committee: The Diversity Committee reviewed the LCAP goals and provided feedback on how to improve future 
goals. 

4. PCS Employees: PCS employees are kept informed and provided input in the following forums: 

87
Page 28 of 83 



                
       

                  
  

                 

   
                 
             

              
 

                
 

         
 

      
 

           

                 
                 

 
   

          
             
                    

     
             

             
              
         
              

            
           
      

� Leadership Meetings: PCS holds bi-weekly meetings with department chairs and the school’s management team. Discussion 
centers on how best to serve students. 

� Staff Meetings: Held twice each month, these meetings gather all employees together with discussion centered on school 
wide improvement. 

� Staff surveys: PCS surveys all employees regularly to solicit feedback on PCS’s program and staffing needs. 

5. PCS Students: 
� Students Surveys: Students are surveyed bi-annually and asked a number of questions about their school experience. 
� Students Government: Meets weekly on issues of the student life at PCS. 

May 8, 2019: Pacific Collegiate School held a public hearing of the 2019-20 LCAP. 

June 5, 2019: Pacific Collegiate School adopted the 2019-20 LCAP, prior to adopting the 2019-20 budget. 

Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 

After engaging the many stakeholders on our community, Pacific Collegiate School has identified some common recurring themes. 
Some of these themes are reflected in the goals and actions of our Local Control Accountability Plan. 

Common themes include: 
� Better communication between all stakeholder groups in the community. 
� Support for students as they transition into the upper high school grades. 
� Students overall welfare as it relates to stress levels, balance, classwork and homework levels, and social issues such as 

drugs, bullying, depression and anxiety. 
� More support for new teachers and the hiring of more experienced teachers. 

On the program side, the following were the top three areas of priority. 
� Offer more electives and flexibility in ways students can meet the graduation requirements. 
� Work on the alignment of our school curriculum. 
� Continue to develop the new facility to support the Visual and Performing Arts. 

On the staffing side, the following were the top areas of priority. 
� Continue to seek the most highly qualified teachers and staff. 
� Increase employee salaries and benefits. 

88
Page 29 of 83 



             

                
         

              
      
        
                 

 
             
         
          
                

         
 

� Increase outreach for hard to fill teaching areas, particularly in the sciences. 

Pacific Collegiate School took into consideration our community’s feedback when planning its budget. The following represents 
PCS’s priorities while budgeting for the 2018-19 school year: 

� Support the recruitment and retention of excellent teachers and staff through increased compensation. 
� Support for our first-to-college students. 
� Provide test preparation support for all students. 
� Professional Development for all teachers especially in the areas of Common Core, Advanced Placement, and Educational 

Equity. 
� Provide curricular opportunities for students to focus on areas of individual interest. 
� Additional class sections to meet students requested courses. 
� Increase student attendance and retention to maximize state funding. 
� Maintain and further develop our new facility to support the mission, vision, and strategic plan. 

89
Page 30 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal 

Goal 1 
Increase academic success of First to College students 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Local Priorities: 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
                

 
        

                
    

 
  

       
 

    
     

  
     

         

    
   

    
    

      
    

  
   

      
    

  
   

      
    

  
   

  
    

  
        

      
     
    

    
   

    
   

  

    
   

  

    
   

  

    
         

      
  

 

   
   

  

   
   

  

   
   

  

Identified Need: 
Continued support of First to College students 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Academic support 
meetings for all First to 
College students 

In 2016-17, Student 
Support Team members 
met with all FTC 
students at least once. 

Meet at least once with 
all FTC students, with 
more meetings 
scheduled as needed. 

Meet at least once with 
all FTC students, with 
more meetings 
scheduled as needed. 

Meet at least once with 
all FTC students, with 
more meetings 
scheduled as needed. 

Advanced Placement 
Exam pass rate of 
graduating FTC 
students. 

For the class of 2017, 
FTC seniors had an AP 
pass rate of 88%, 
compared to 85% from 
the general population. 

AP pass rate 
comparable to general 
student population. 

AP pass rate 
comparable to general 
student population. 

AP pass rate 
comparable to general 
student population. 

CAASPP scores of FTC 
graduating students. 

For the class of 2017 
FTC seniors: 

CAASPP scores 
comparable to general 
student population. 

CAASPP scores 
comparable to general 
student population. 

CAASPP scores 
comparable to general 
student population. 

90
Page 31 of 83 



Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Math 50% meet/exceed 
vs. 68% general 
population. 

ELA 83% meet/exceed 
vs. 68% general 
population. 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

Specific Student Groups: First to College 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

[Add Scope of Services selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Location(s) selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2019-20 

XUnchanged Action XModified Action XUnchanged Action 

     

   
   

 
 

   
   

 
 
 

 

    
                     

 

 
  

              
    

          
  

          
                

 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                      
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      

startcollapse

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

Page 32 of 83 
91



        
      

     
  

 
     

     
    

        
     
     

     
  

 
        

         
      

     
  

 
     

     
    

        
     
    

 
     
   

 
         

     
 
 

         
      

     
  

 
     

     
    

        
     
    

 
     
   

 
         

     
 
 

 
  

      
             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

Meet at least once each year with each 
individual student and his/her family to 
review progress towards goals in 
academic plan. 

FTC support team: Academic Support 
Specialist (7/8th), Vice Principal/Dean of 
Students (9/10th), College Counselor 
(11th 12th) will meet twice a month to 
review overall process and individual 
student progress towards goals. Parent 
Education events to discuss college 
application process. 

Meet at least once each year with each 
individual student and his/her family to 
review progress towards goals in 
academic plan. 

FTC support team: Academic Support 
Specialist (7/8th), Vice Principal/Dean of 
Students (9/10th), College Counselor 
(11th 12th) will meet twice a month to 
review overall process and individual 
student progress towards goals. 

Parent Education events to discuss 
college application process. 

Form a peer to peer network for both the 
FTC students and their parents. 

Meet at least once each year with each 
individual student and his/her family to 
review progress towards goals in 
academic plan. 

FTC support team: Academic Support 
Specialist (7/8th), Vice Principal/Dean of 
Students (9/10th), College Counselor 
(11th 12th) will meet twice a month to 
review overall process and individual 
student progress towards goals. 

Parent Education events to discuss 
college application process. 

Form a peer to peer network for both the 
FTC students and their parents. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

$5,551 $3,411 $3,708 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

$968 $878 $1,023 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Budget 
Reference 

92
Page 33 of 83 



             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$1,969 $2,088 $1,840 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

$482 $575 $587 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

93
Page 34 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal 

Goal 2 
Provide access to college entrance test preparation by offering this service free of charge to all students. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Local Priorities: 

Identified Need: 
Provide equal access to college preparatory resources. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Participation rate by 
graduating class. 

Among the class of 
2017, 90% of students 
participated in a test 
preparation course. 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
                         

 
        

                
    

 
  

       
 

    
     

   
         

     
    

    
  

    
    

  

    
    

  

    
    

  

 

    
                     

 

 
  

              
    

          
  

          

startcollapse

Maintain a high 
participation rate for the 
graduating class. 

Maintain a high 
participation rate for the 
graduating class. 

Maintain a high 
participation rate for the 
graduating class. 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

Page 35 of 83 
94



XAll 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

[Add Scope of Services selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Location(s) selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2019-20 

XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

Offer SAT/ACT/PSAT prep classes to help 
prepare students for tests. 

Offer SAT/ACT/PSAT prep classes to help 
prepare students for tests. 

Offer SAT/ACT/PSAT prep classes to help 
prepare students for tests. 

           
 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                      
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      
      

           
       

    
       

    
 

  
      

             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

$19,300 $20,000 $9,160 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

$3,364 $5,146 $2,526 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Budget 
Reference 

95
Page 36 of 83 



             

             

 
       

    
 

     
 

     
 

             

             

 
       

 
 

  
 

     
  

 
 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$3,200 $3,200 $3,200 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 

$6,202 

LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

96
Page 37 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal 

Goal 3 
Students will be engaged in college preparatory research. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
Local Priorities: 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
                

 
        

                
    

 
  

      
 

    
     

  
    

   
         

      
     

   
 

    
    

  

    
    

  

    
    

  

 

    
                     

 

 
  

              
    

          
  

          

startcollapse

Identified Need: 
Improve student research and writing skills. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 

Graduating class 
participation in one or 
more research based 
elective classes. 

In the class of 2017, 
66% of students took a 
research based elective 
class. 

Maintain a high 
participation rate for the 
graduating class. 

Maintain a high 
participation rate for the 
graduating class. 

Maintain a high 
participation rate for the 
graduating class. 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

Page 38 of 83 
97



XAll 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

[Add Scope of Services selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Location(s) selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2019-20 

XModified Action XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action 

           
 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                      
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      
       

      
   

 
      

  
 
        

        
      

   
 

      
  

 
 

        
      

   
 

      
  

 
 

 
  

      
             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

Maintain a class to provide students the Maintain a class to provide students the Maintain a class to provide students the 
opportunity to hone their research skills opportunity to hone their research skills opportunity to hone their research skills 
with supported curriculum. with supported curriculum. with supported curriculum. 

Maintain a variety of research based Maintain a variety of research based Maintain a variety of research based 
elective offerings. elective offerings. elective offerings. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$61,219 $12,072 $12,457 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

98
Page 39 of 83 



             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

             

             

 
       

    
  

 

     
  

 

     
  

 
 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$10,670 $3,106 $3,436 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

$2,500 $2,500 $2,500 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

99
Page 40 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
New Goal 

Goal 4 
Offer technological literacy access and curriculum to all students. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 

X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning) 
Local Priorities: 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
                 

 
        

                
               

    
 

  
           

 
    

     

   
   

         

     
   
 

     
   

     
   

     
   

    
          

     
   
    

    
    

    
    
  

    
    
  

    
    
  

 

Identified Need: 
Ensure students have sufficient technological literacy for college and future employment. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Students enrolled in 
Study Skills and 
Technology course. 

100% of 7th grade 
students enrolled in 
SSTech. 

All 7th grade students 
enrolled in SSTech. 

All 7th grade students 
enrolled in SSTech. 

All 7th grade students 
enrolled in SSTech. 

Student access to tech 
devices in school. 

In the 2016-17 school 
year, PCS maintained 
about 500 devices for 
student use, or about 
.95 devices per student. 

Maintain a similar 
number of devices for 
student use. 

Maintain a similar 
number of devices for 
student use. 

Maintain a similar 
number of devices for 
student use. 

100
Page 41 of 83 



Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

XAll 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

[Add Scope of Services selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Location(s) selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2019-20 

XModified Action XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action 

    
                     

 

 
  

              
    

          
  

          
           

 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                      
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      
       
       
      
     

     
       

    
         

        
       
      
     

     
       

    
  

        
       
      
     

     
       

    
  

 
  

startcollapse

2017-18 Actions/Services 

Maintain Study Skills and Technology as a 
required course for all 7th grade students. 
Continue to offer multiple sections of 
Computer Science as determined by 
student interest. Maintain student access 
to computers at school – continue to 
incorporate technology based instruction 
where appropriate. 

Budgeted Expenditures 

2018-19 Actions/Services 

Maintain Study Skills and Technology as a 
required course for all 7th grade students. 
Continue to offer multiple sections of 
Computer Science as determined by 
student interest. Maintain student access 
to computers at school – continue to 
incorporate technology based instruction 
where appropriate. 

2019-20 Actions/Services 

Maintain Study Skills and Technology as a 
required course for all 7th grade students. 
Continue to offer multiple sections of 
Computer Science as determined by 
student interest. Maintain student access 
to computers at school – continue to 
incorporate technology based instruction 
where appropriate. 

101
Page 42 of 83 



      
             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

             

             

 
       

    
 

     
 

     
 

             

             

 
       

    
 

     
 

     
 

             

             

 
       

  
   

 
 

   
   

 
 

   
   

 
 

 

Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$86,276 $74,827 $77,142 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

$15,038 $19,252 $21,275 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

$1,000 $1,000 $1,000 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 

$20,000 $20,000 $20,000 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 

$23,750 $22,248 $22,248 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

102
Page 43 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X New Goal 

Goal 5 
Provide support services for low income students and families. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 

X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
Local Priorities: 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
                 

 
        

               
             

    
 

  
          

 
    

     

   
   
        

      
    

   

      
   

  

      
   

  

      
   

  
   

   
         

      
   

    
  

    
   

   
     

  

    
   

   
     

  

    
   

   
     

  
   

      
     

    
     

 

      
   
   

      
   
   

      
   
   

Identified Need: 
Provide access to school programs regardless of student socioeconomic status. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Participation in lunch 
program by FRL 
students. 

In 2016-17, 91% of FRL 
students utilized the free 
school lunch program. 

Maintain a high level of 
free school lunch 
program utilization. 

Maintain a high level of 
free school lunch 
program utilization. 

Maintain a high level of 
free school lunch 
program utilization. 

Participation in test 
preparation program by 
FRL students. 

66% of 11th and 12th 
grade students (n=6) 
participated in a test 
preparation class. 

Participation in test 
preparation classes by 
low income students 
that is comparable to the 
general population. 

Participation in test 
preparation classes by 
low income students 
that is comparable to the 
general population. 

Participation in test 
preparation classes by 
low income students 
that is comparable to the 
general population. 

Participation in AP 
exams by FRL students. 

In 2016-17, 100% of 
FRL students enrolled in 
AP courses took the AP 
exam. 

Maintain a high level of 
AP exam participation 
by FRL students. 

Maintain a high level of 
AP exam participation 
by FRL students. 

Maintain a high level of 
AP exam participation 
by FRL students. 

103
Page 44 of 83 



Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] [Add Location(s) selection here] 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Scope of Services: Location(s): 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, (Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
and/or Low Income) Unduplicated Student Group(s)) Specific Grade Spans) 

XLow Income XSchoolwide 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 for 2018-19 for 2019-20 
XNew Action XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action 

 

    
                     

 

 
  

              
    

          
  

          
              

 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                    
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      
        

        
 

        
 

 
     

     
 

 
        

         
        

 
        

 
 

     
     

 
 
 

         
        

 
        

 
 

     
     

 
 
 

startcollapse

2017-18 Actions/Services 

Require all families to fill out application for 
FRL as a part of the registration process. 

Provide AP exam fee waivers for all FRL 
students. 

Actively recruit FRL students for 
participation in free test preparation 
classes. 

2018-19 Actions/Services 

Require all families to fill out application for 
FRL as a part of the registration process. 

Provide AP exam fee waivers for all FRL 
students. 

Actively recruit FRL students for 
participation in free test preparation 
classes. 

2019-20 Actions/Services 

Require all families to fill out application for 
FRL as a part of the registration process. 

Provide AP exam fee waivers for all FRL 
students. 

Actively recruit FRL students for 
participation in free test preparation 
classes. 

104
Page 45 of 83 



 
  

      
             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

             

             

 
       

    
 

     
 

     
 

             

             

 
       

    
 

     
 

     
 

             

             

 
       

    
  

 

     
  

 

     
  

 
 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$1,526 $1,399 $1,515 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

$266 $385 $458 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

$253 $253 $253 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 

$10,000 $15,000 $15,000 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 

$4,000 $4,000 $4,000 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

105
Page 46 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal 

Goal 6 
Ensure parent participation in school Board and Committees. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) 
Local Priorities: 

Identified Need: 
Improve communication about decision making process among all stakeholders. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Parental representation 
on Board and school 
committees. 

In 2016-17, the school 
Board and all 
committees had at least 
one parent member. 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
                

 
        

               
    

 
  

         
 

    
     

  
    

        

     
   

    
   

     
    

   
 

     
    

   
 

     
    

   
 

 

    
                     

 

 
  

              
    

          
  

          

startcollapse

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 

The Board and school 
committees will have at 
least one parent 
member. 

The Board and school 
committees will have at 
least one parent 
member. 

The Board and school 
committees will have at 
least one parent 
member. 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

Page 47 of 83 
106



XAll 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

[Add Scope of Services selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Location(s) selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2019-20 

XNew Action XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action 

           
 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                      
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      
    
     

 
 

    
 

 
        

     
     

 
 

    
 

 
 

     
     

 
 

    
 

 
 

 
  

      
             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

Recruit committee membership through Recruit committee membership through Recruit committee membership through 
school communications annually and as school communications annually and as school communications annually and as 
needed. needed. needed. 

Maintain regular committee meeting Maintain regular committee meeting Maintain regular committee meeting 
schedules. schedules. schedules. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$1,025 $1,210 $1,313 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

107
Page 48 of 83 



             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$251 

LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

$333 

LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

$397 

LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

108
Page 49 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal 

Goal 7 
Maintain student average daily attendance. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
Local Priorities: 

Identified Need: 
Maximize student engagement in school and ADA funding. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

P-2 Average Daily In 2016-17, the school Maintain a P-2 ADA of Maintain a P-2 ADA of Maintain a P-2 ADA of 
Attendance ADA for P-2 was 96.7%. at least 95% at least 95% at least 95% 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

XAll 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
             

 
        

               
    

 
  

        
 

    
     

   
        

     
     

      
   

      
   

      
   

 

    
                     

 

 
  

              
    

          
  

          
           

 

startcollapse

109
Page 50 of 83 



OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

[Add Scope of Services selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Location(s) selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2019-20 

XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                      
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      
    

      
   

 
     

      
 
        

     
      

   
 

     
      

 
 

     
      

   
 

     
      

 
 

 
  

      
             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

Increase monitoring and communication Increase monitoring and communication Increase monitoring and communication 
with parents of chronically absent students with parents of chronically absent students with parents of chronically absent students 
to decrease truancy. to decrease truancy. to decrease truancy. 

Administrative support for the monitoring Administrative support for the monitoring Administrative support for the monitoring 
and follow up of absent/truant students. and follow up of absent/truant students. and follow up of absent/truant students. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$16,694 $18,057 $18,238 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

110
Page 51 of 83 



             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$4,158 $4,975 $5,516 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

$14,535 $14,833 $15,127 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

$2,533 $3,816 $4,171 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

111
Page 52 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal 

Goal 8 
Teachers will be credentialed or in progress of finishing and clearing their credential 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) 
Local Priorities: 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
                     

 
        

                
    

 
  

      
 

    
     

   
   

  
        

      
    

   
   

 

      
   

    
 

      
   

    
 

      
   

    
 

 

    
                     

 

 
  

              

startcollapse

Identified Need: 
Maintain a fully credentialed teaching staff 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 

Percent of teachers 
credentialed or in 
progress towards 
credential. 

In 2016-17, 97% (all but 100% of teachers will be 100% of teachers will be 100% of teachers will be 
one) of teachers were credentialed or in credentialed or in credentialed or in 
credentialed or in progress of earning a progress of earning a progress of earning a 
progress towards a credential. credential. credential. 
credential. 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

112
Page 53 of 83 



Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

XAll 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

[Add Scope of Services selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Location(s) selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2019-20 

XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action 

    
          

  
          

           
 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                      
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      
    

     
 

      
 

 
       

    
 
        

     
     

 
      

 
 

       
    

 
 

     
     

 
      

 
 

       
    

 
 

 
  

2017-18 Actions/Services 

Teachers will receive professional 
development through the BTSA program. 

Teachers will attend AP conferences as 
appropriate. 

School budgets for 8 paid days of 
professional development for teachers. 

Budgeted Expenditures 

2018-19 Actions/Services 

Teachers will receive professional 
development through the BTSA program. 

Teachers will attend AP conferences as 
appropriate. 

School budgets for 8 paid days of 
professional development for teachers. 

2019-20 Actions/Services 

Teachers will receive professional 
development through the BTSA program. 

Teachers will attend AP conferences as 
appropriate. 

School budgets for 8 paid days of 
professional development for teachers. 

113
Page 54 of 83 



      
             

             

 
       

    
  

 

     
  

 

     
  

 
             

             

 
       

    
  

 

     
  

 

     
  

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

 

Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$17,540 $17,000 $17,000 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

$10,000 $10,000 $10,000 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

$85,674 $87,512 $94978 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

$14,876 $22,516 $26,056 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

114
Page 55 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal 

Goal 9 
Maintain school facilities in good repair to ensure the safety of all students 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) 
Local Priorities: 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
                     

 
        

                
    

 
  

        
 

    
     

   
           

     
   

 

    
    

 

    
    

 

    
    

 
 

    
                     

 

 
  

              
    

          
  

          

startcollapse

Identified Need: 
Ensure ongoing maintenance and repair of school facility. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

School facility inspection 
rating on the FIT test. 

In 2016-17, the facility 
inspection rated over 
90%. 

Maintain a facility 
inspection rating of over 
90%. 

Maintain a facility 
inspection rating of over 
90%. 

Maintain a facility 
inspection rating of over 
90%. 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

Page 56 of 83 
115



XAll 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

[Add Scope of Services selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Location(s) selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2019-20 

XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action 

           
 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                      
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      
    

 
      

    
    

 
 

     
    

 
        

     
 

      
    

    
 

 
     

    
 
 

     
 

      
    

    
 

 
     

    
 
 

 
  

      
             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

Monthly campus work days. Monthly campus work days. Monthly campus work days. 

Monthly and annual review of various Monthly and annual review of various Monthly and annual review of various 
facility requirements (e.g. fire facility requirements (e.g. fire facility requirements (e.g. fire 
extinguishers, earthquake items bolted extinguishers, earthquake items bolted extinguishers, earthquake items bolted 
down). down). down). 

Perform fire, earthquake, and lockdown Perform fire, earthquake, and lockdown Perform fire, earthquake, and lockdown 
drills twice a year. drills twice a year. drills twice a year. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount $1,670 $1,679 $1,818 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

116
Page 57 of 83 



             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

    
 

    
 

 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$410 $463 $550 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

$4,177 $4,198 $4,525 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

$1,024 $1,156 $1,369 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

$1,186 $1,192 $1,293 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 

$291 $328 $391 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

117
Page 58 of 83 



Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal 

Goal 10 
Offer sufficient AP sections to provide access to all students. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) 
Local Priorities: 

    
     
                  

 
         

          
 

  
                  

 
        

                
    

 
  

             
 

    
     

   
   

        

     
    

  

    
   

 

    
   

 

    
   

 
 

    
                     

 

 
  

              
    

          
  

          

startcollapse

Identified Need: 
Ensure open enrollment for all AP courses based on student interest and preparation. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Students having access 
to Advanced Placement 
courses. 

In 2016-17, 100% of 
students had access to 
AP courses. 

Maintain 100% open 
enrollment in AP 
courses. 

Maintain 100% open 
enrollment in AP 
courses. 

Maintain 100% open 
enrollment in AP 
courses. 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: Location(s): 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

Page 59 of 83 
118



XAll 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

[Add Students to be Served selection here] 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Scope of Services:
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

[Add Scope of Services selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Location(s):
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

[Add Location(s) selection here] 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2019-20 

XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action XUnchanged Action 

           
 

 
 

             

    
      
   

    
       

   

  
       
   

                      
 

 
      

  
      

  
       

  
                                

 

      
       

         
        

  
        

  
 

  
      

             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 
             

             

 
       

   
 

 

    
 

 

    
 

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

Continue to provide all students access to Continue to provide all students access to Continue to provide all students access to 
AP classes AP classes AP classes 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

Amount 

Source 

$407,007 $418,108 $458,890 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

$70,941 $107,575 $126,557 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 

Budget 
Reference 

119
Page 60 of 83 



             

             

 
       

    
  

 

     
  

 

     
  

 
 

Amount 

Source 

Budget 
Reference 

$1,400 $1,400 $1,400 

LCFF LCFF LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 

120
Page 61 of 83 



         
 

   
 

             

   
 

                   
                

 
                 

          
 

                    
                  

                    
                     

                 
              

 
 
 

 
   

 

             

   
 

                   
                

-------
-------

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
LCAP Year: 2019-20 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$102,905 2.24% 

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 

Many of the school goals are designed to serve all students, including English Language Learners and Low Income students (PCS 
does not currently serve any foster youth). The estimated supplemental grant funding will be principally directed to support 
unduplicated students by providing free lunch to those who qualify and to provide free standardized test preparation for all students. 
Because PCS does not track students based on ability or student background, programs that serve all students also specifically aim to 
serve unduplicated services. Additionally, PCS has identified First Generation college attenders as a key student population to 
support, and many of these services are also principally directed to support these children. 

LCAP Year: 2018-19 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$91,739 2.02% 

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

121
Page 62 of 83 



 
                 

          
 

                    
                  

                    
                     

                 
              

 
 
 

 
   

 

             

   
 

                   
                

 
                 

          
 

-------
-------

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 

Many of the school goals are designed to serve all students, including English Language Learners and Low Income students (PCS 
does not currently serve any foster youth). The estimated supplemental grant funding will be principally directed to support 
unduplicated students by providing free lunch to those who qualify and to provide free standardized test preparation for all students. 
Because PCS does not track students based on ability or student background, programs that serve all students also specifically aim to 
serve unduplicated services. Additionally, PCS has identified First Generation college attenders as a key student population to 
support, and many of these services are also principally directed to support these children. 

LCAP Year: 2017-18 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$47,457 1.13% 

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 

122
Page 63 of 83 



                    
                  

                    
                     

                 
              

 
 
 

 

-------
-------

Many of the school goals are designed to serve all students, including English Language Learners and Low Income students (PCS 
does not currently serve any foster youth). The estimated supplemental grant funding will be principally directed to support 
unduplicated students by providing free lunch to those who qualify and to provide free standardized test preparation for all students. 
Because PCS does not track students based on ability or student background, programs that serve all students also specifically aim to 
serve unduplicated services. Additionally, PCS has identified First Generation college attenders as a key student population to 
support, and many of these services are also principally directed to support these children. 

123
Page 64 of 83 



 
             

           
               

                 
               

           

                 
                 

          
                

    

              
                

              
                

              
               

           
  

                 
                  

              
                

           

                
               

                   
              

                   
             

               
               
      

Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county 
superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 

Page 65 of 83 
124



             

     
  

  

  

    

  

         
 

              
                

       

  
                
                
               
                   

             
                 

             
              
             
  

                  
         

             
            

 

    
              

            

                

              
          

             
     

             
             

 

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 

Annual Update 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Goals, Actions, and Services 

Planned Actions/Services 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year. 
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits. LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the California School Dashboard data reports) if desired 
and/or include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and 
actual expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to California School Dashboard means the California School Dashboard adopted by 
the State Board of Education under EC Section 52064.5. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

� Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 

� Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in 
developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based 
interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the 
implementation of the CSI plan. 

� Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate 
the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school 
improvement. 

Page 66 of 83 
125

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 

  
            

               
             

                  
               

                  
     

   
               

              
  

 
           
           

              
             

           

 
            

            
      

            
            

   

             
     

          
           

 

              
                 

             
    

  
           

                 
             

            
               

Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP. 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal. 

Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided. 

Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the California School 
Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

� Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process. 

� Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

� Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 

� Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 
in the California School Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 

Page 67 of 83 
126



            
                

             
 

               
             
              

               
    

           
                

             
                  
             

             
 

             
           

            
               

   
           

            
             
             

             

    
                 

                   
               
                  

    
               

        
                 

               
               

   
              

             
              

               

charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 

The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals. 

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 

Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required. 
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 

Page 68 of 83 
127



 
                  

               
               

     
                

                 
            

  
                 

              
           

    
                

            
               
                  

                
              

            
                 

              
    

                
                 

              
            

 

  
             

            
            

             

           
 

    
                

               
              

           
             

 

Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve? 

Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 

Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal. The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the California School Dashboard, as applicable. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA. For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 

Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 

Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 
Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 

Page 69 of 83 
128



 
               

                 
               

               
           

            
            

            
             
             

         

          
 

    
              

             
           

            

   
           

            
              

              
      

              
          

              
             

          
            

              
                

            
              

     

 
               

                 
               

               
           

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 

Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served. 

Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 

� If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter "LEA-wide." 

� If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”. 

� If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. 

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Page 70 of 83 
129



            
            

            
             
             

         

 
                

               
                 

 
 

  

                 
        

              
              

             
               

   
            

             
          

        
         

                 
                

           
                

              
                  
                 

       

  
             

             
             

              
     

                
              

    

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal. Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together. LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 

New/Modified/Unchanged: 

� Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 
the LCAP to meet the articulated goal. 

� Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 

� Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description. 

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template. If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5. 
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 

Page 71 of 83 
130



               
               

            
 

       
  

                   
             
                 

                  

      
                 

            
             

      
             

                
      

              
               

                  
                

             
          

             
 

              
             

       
         

                
             

                 

                
               

                 
               

         
  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned. 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5). 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 
If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows. 
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 

� For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

� For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 

Page 72 of 83 
131



                
               
  

               
                

     

                 
             

                 
              

For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 

� For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 

� For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 

Page 73 of 83 
132



  
         

                  
    

               
        

       
              

    
              
      
     
    
     
   
     
      

     
     
    

                 
            

     
                   

    
                
               

 
             

   
     
               

               
         

               
        

      
                  

  
               

          
             

    
    
     
      
     

State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are: 
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and 
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 

(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 

E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 

Page 74 of 83 
133



             
    
     
                 

  
                 

                
 

           
            

               
      

              
         

              
           

               
                

               
    

                 
          

                
    

   
     
        

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 

A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable. 
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including: 

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement 
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 

Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 

Page 75 of 83 
134



       
  

                 
            

         
                 

    
      
              
              
    

        
           
        
          
     

            
                  

                 
               

     
       
     

          
       

                 
       

         
     

          
                

   
      
      
     
             

       
          
     

        
                 

          
              

        
     

        
                 

          
              

        

APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of K-8 students who were absent 10 percent or more of the school days 

excluding students who were: 
(A) enrolled less than 31 days 
(B) enrolled at least 31 days but did not attend at least one day 
(C) flagged as exempt in the district attendance submission. K-8 students are considered to 
be exempt if they: 

(i) are enrolled in a Non-Public School 
(ii) receive instruction through a home or hospital instructional setting 
(iii) are attending a community college full-time. 

(2) The number of students who meet the enrollment requirements. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(b) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 

“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(c) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) For a 4-Year Cohort Graduation Rate: 

(A) The number of students in the cohort who earned a regular high school diploma by the 
end of year 4 in the cohort. 

(B) The total number of students in the cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(2) For a Dashboard Alternative Schools Status (DASS) Graduation Rate: 
(A) The number of students who either graduated as grade 11 students or who earned any 

of the following: 
(i) a regular high school diploma 
(ii) a High School Equivalency Certificate 
(iii) an adult education diploma 
(iv) a Certificate of Completion and was eligible for the California Alternative 

Assessment if under the age of 20. 
(B) The number of students in the DASS graduation cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(d) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(e) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
135

Page 76 of 83 



     
 

            
           

              
     

(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314. 

136
Page 77 of 83 

https://42238.07
https://42238.03
https://42238.02
https://42238.01
https://42238.07


 

    
      

                
       

              
             

               
  

              
           

            
       

             
              

                
                

            
        

 

    
             

            
            

           
         

          
     

                 
       

            
                 

       
                   

              
 

             
             

            
                

  

APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes? 

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 

pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 

4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 

137
Page 78 of 83 

https://42238.01
https://42238.01


              
           

     
 

      
                

             
  

               
            

                
   

               
           

   
            
               

              
            

      
                

                 
              

        
           

         
         
            
               

               
          

              
               

          
 
 

         
 

7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported? How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 

Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)? 

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 

development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)? 

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10)What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11)What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 

to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 

12)How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13)What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified? 

Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 

Prepared by the California Department of Education, January 2019 

138
Page 79 of 83 

https://42238.01


 

   
 

     

  
 

  
 

 
  

 
   

 
 
 

 
         

       
          

 
            

  

LCAP Expenditure Summary 
Total Expenditures by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through
2019-20 

Total 
All Funding Sources 927,691.00 951,694.00 926,724.00 927,691.00 999,119.00 2,853,534.00 
LCFF 927,691.00 949,839.00 926,724.00 927,691.00 999,119.00 2,853,534.00 
LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 0.00 1,855.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 

139
Page 80 of 83 



     

  
 

  
 

 
  

 
   

 
 
 

 
         

          
          
         
          
     

 
      

    
  

      

 
            

  

Total Expenditures by Object Type 

Object Type 
2018-19 

Annual Update
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types 927,691.00 951,694.00 926,724.00 927,691.00 999,119.00 2,853,534.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 738,338.00 651,727.00 752,029.00 738,338.00 798,019.00 2,288,386.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 29,823.00 30,213.00 26,721.00 29,823.00 30,542.00 87,086.00 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 62,929.00 176,236.00 54,331.00 62,929.00 67,755.00 185,015.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 39,453.00 37,839.00 34,453.00 39,453.00 39,453.00 113,359.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

34,900.00 33,431.00 35,440.00 34,900.00 41,102.00 111,442.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 

22,248.00 22,248.00 23,750.00 22,248.00 22,248.00 68,246.00 

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 

140
Page 81 of 83 



        

    
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 

 
            

  
  

       

  
  

       

  
  

   
 

      

  
 

       

  
 

   
 

      

   
 

       

   
   

       

  
   

 

       

 
            

  

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2018-19 
Annual 
Update

Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual 
Update
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 927,691.00 951,694.00 926,724.00 927,691.00 999,119.00 2,853,534.00 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

LCFF 738,338.00 651,727.00 752,029.00 738,338.00 798,019.00 2,288,386.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

LCFF 29,823.00 28,758.00 26,721.00 29,823.00 30,542.00 87,086.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration 

0.00 1,455.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits 

LCFF 62,929.00 175,836.00 54,331.00 62,929.00 67,755.00 185,015.00 

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits 

LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration 

0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

LCFF 39,453.00 37,839.00 34,453.00 39,453.00 39,453.00 113,359.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

LCFF 34,900.00 33,431.00 35,440.00 34,900.00 41,102.00 111,442.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

LCFF 22,248.00 22,248.00 23,750.00 22,248.00 22,248.00 68,246.00 

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 

141
Page 82 of 83 



    

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
   

 
 
 

 
        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        
 
           

Total Expenditures by Goal 

Goal 
2018-19 

Annual Update
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through
2019-20 

Total 
Goal 1 6,952.00 6,726.00 8,970.00 6,952.00 7,158.00 23,080.00 

Goal 2 28,346.00 19,523.00 25,864.00 28,346.00 21,088.00 75,298.00 

Goal 3 17,678.00 18,392.00 74,389.00 17,678.00 18,393.00 110,460.00 

Goal 4 137,327.00 130,013.00 146,064.00 137,327.00 141,665.00 425,056.00 

Goal 5 21,037.00 27,855.00 16,045.00 21,037.00 21,226.00 58,308.00 

Goal 6 1,543.00 1,607.00 1,276.00 1,543.00 1,710.00 4,529.00 

Goal 7 41,681.00 41,682.00 37,920.00 41,681.00 43,052.00 122,653.00 

Goal 8 137,028.00 135,073.00 128,090.00 137,028.00 148,034.00 413,152.00 

Goal 9 9,016.00 9,378.00 8,758.00 9,016.00 9,946.00 27,720.00 

Goal 10 527,083.00 561,445.00 479,348.00 527,083.00 586,847.00 1,593,278.00 

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 

142
Page 83 of 83 



  

 

        
 

    
           

                           
   

           
    

           

 
                 

                    
    

                      
             

 

                 
                       
                      

           
                     

                      
                    

                  
                       

                      
      

 
                  

                 
                       
                    

                   
                   

          
 

                        
                

                        
                    

                     

Changes to Program Offerings

COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Pacific Collegiate School 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) 
Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone Date of Adoption 

Pacific Collegiate School Maria C. Reitano 
Head of School 

maria.reitano@pcsed.org 
(831) 479-7785 Ext. 3102 

June 3, 2020 

Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of the 
changes your LEA has put in place. LEAs are strongly encouraged to provide descriptions that do not exceed 300 words. 

Provide an overview explaining the changes to program offerings that the LEA has made in response to school closures to address the 
COVID-19 emergency and the major impacts of the closures on students and families. 

In compliance with Santa Cruz County public health recommendations and shelter-in-place orders, Pacific Collegiate School closed for on-
site classes on March 13, 2020, with PCS students were dismissed from classes during the week of March 16-21, 2020. PCS faculty and 
staff used that week to prepare for implementation of a comprehensive distance learning program, and to ensure that every PCS student had 
the technology and internet connectivity needed to access classroom learning remotely. 
Between March 13-March 22, PCS checked out Chromebooks, iMacs, iPads, and WIFI hotspots to over 70 students and 5 staff members. 
Tech training and equipment testing sessions were held to ensure 100% of PCS students and staff were equipped and ready to access 
distance learning before our remote program launched on March 23, 2020. PCS administration and staff followed up with any student 
experiencing technology issues, delivering equipment and WIFI hot spots, and providing 1:1 support to resolve problems and ensure 
equitable access to learning for all. When it became clear that program and security needs would be best served by switching from Google 
Meet to Zoom platform, PCS provided another round of training and technology support for students and staff to ensure a smooth transition 
between platforms on April 3, 2020. 

PCS Distance Learning included several key components: (1) a daily schedule of video-conferenced classes to provide synchronous learning 
aligned to PCS curriculum and learning goals, (2) asynchronous assignments and assessments available via Canvas learning management 
system, (3) optional weekly tutorial blocks for each class for students to access extra help from each teacher, (4) virtual support services for 
students and parents, including 1:1 academic and social-emotional support, student and parent support groups, and links to a variety of 
critical mental-health resources, (5) 1:1 technology support for students, parents, and teachers, (6) critical supports for special populations of 
students, including English Learners, Students with Disabilities (IEPs) and those with Health Conditions (504 Plans), and (7) ongoing food 
services and basic needs support for PCS students and families. 

Once it became clear that it would be unsafe to open school before the end of the 2019-2020 school year, PCS administration, faculty, and 
staff carefully considered equitable grading practices and conditions for learning, and recommended a Distance Learning Expectations 
policy, that was approved by the PCS Board of Directors on April 23, 2020. To help the PCS community understand the implications of the 
Pass/No Credit grading policy, as well as the specific components of PCS’ implementation of that policy, the administration created and 
shared two FAQ documents, and a recorded webinar for students and parents. Teachers created grading sheets for each of their classes, 

143
2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Pacific Collegiate School Page 1 of 4 



  

                   
 

 
                     
                

               
                       

                    
                            

                 
                  

                     
  

 
                     

                      
                   
                   

 
         

 
          

                    
 

                    
                   

                  
                     

                      
                

 
 

                     
                     

                
         

 
     

Meeting Needs of English Learner, Foster Youth and Low-Income Students

Delivering High-Quality Distance Learning Opportunities

which outlined several pathways to demonstrating proficiency, as well as optional opportunities for students to earn recognition for exemplary 
scholarship. 

Finally, school closure and ongoing public safety restrictions forced PCS to reconsider typical end of the year celebrations and culmination of 
learning events. Students, faculty, staff, and parents worked alongside administration to reconfigure these into remote webinars, pre-
recordings, or alternative socially-distant events, while maintaining the importance, dignity, personalization, and community-focused nature of 
each event. PCS hosted a virtual Art Show and gallery opening, a Capstone Symposium, and a talent show to showcase student work. We 
shared spotlight stories and websites with our community to highlight the innovative work continuing via Distance Learning, an emerging from 
our students' learning in a time of crisis. We delivered yard signs to the homes of each member of the Class of 2020 to remind them of how 
proud we are of their accomplishment and resiliency throughout a particularly challenging senior year. We celebrated student 
accomplishments at online Drama Awards and a Senior Recognition Night with embedded videos, slideshows, and remembrances, and we 
hosted meaningful webinars and drive-through parades to acknowledge and cheer for our 8th graders promoted to high school and Class of 
2020 graduates. 

We are thankful for the countywide leadership of Santa Cruz COE Superintendent Dr. Sabbah for his leadership during this crisis. Through 
weekly updates and opportunities to collaborate with other district and charter leaders, the Santa Cruz COE has kept PCS informed of public 
health updates and developments, and provided valuable opportunities to collaborate with local district and charter leaders. PCS has also 
worked closely with North Santa Cruz County SELPA leadership to discuss the progress and support of special education students. 

Provide a description of how the LEA is meeting the needs of its English learners, foster youth and low-income students. 

PCS continued to provide with ELD instruction and support to students who are English learners. EL Instructional Assistant provided critical 
academic support and tutoring to students via 1:1 videoconference daily, working closely with each student’s classroom teachers. In addition, 
she provided weekly communication and translation services for families whose home language is Spanish. Our Student Support Team 
launched PCS Virtual Support, providing a hub for a suite of student support services including academic, mental health, technology, and 
basic services for all students. This team also met weekly to monitor progress and offer appropriate support for all students, with particular 
focus on those most vulnerable during this crisis, including homeless/foster youth, English Learners, and socioeconomically disadvantaged 
students. 

PCS provided school meals throughout school closure, as well as providing information to students and families about school lunch and food 
bank programs throughout Santa Cruz County. On April 13, we switched to weekly food distribution system that included curbside-pick up of 
a week’s worth of school lunches and groceries provided through partnership with Second Harvest Food Bank. 

144
2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Pacific Collegiate School Page 2 of 4 



  

                    
 

                       
                

                      
                     
                    

                       
                     
                   

 
                   

                 
               

                
                     

                  
                  

                   
                   

                 
 
         

 
      

                      
 

                     
                      

               
 

                      
                 

                    
                      

         
 

       

Providing School Meals/Maintaining Social Distancing Practices

Supervision of Students During Ordinary School Hours

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to continue delivering high-quality distance learning opportunities. 

PCS is extremely proud of our dedicated educators, who were thrust into distance learning with little time to plan and adjust. Our team 
participated in extensive professional learning through webinars, group professional learning, and individual coaching to transition their 
curriculum and instruction practices to an online format. PCS recognizes that distance learning is a unique and nuanced type of work, far 
different than the in-person teaching and learning of most teachers’ preparation and experience, and that that educators and students with 
differing comfort levels with regard to technology were thrust into this format with little warning. Nevertheless, our dedicated staff distributed 
technology quickly to ensure that all students who needed a computer were loaned the devices they needed to fully engage in their courses 
without the need to share with others in the household. While local internet service providers offered temporary free internet service to 
families who qualify, PCS distributed hot spots with WIFI service to any/all families who needed them, regardless of income. 

Our teachers and support staff went to great lengths to personalize each student’s educational experience. Teachers provided hours of 
synchronous instruction and weekly office hours/tutorial for each of their courses; created and adapted resources, assignments, and 
assessments to provide appropriate asynchronous learning opportunities; and provided students with roadmaps to demonstrating proficiency 
and exemplary scholarship. Students were supported via virtual tutoring sessions with teachers, paraprofessionals, and other instructional 
support staff. Grade level teams and our Student Support Team met frequently to monitor progress and focus on supporting the academic, 
social-emotional, and personal growth of students. Students worked virtually with our academic advisors and College Counselor to select 
courses, manage their academic workload amid the crisis, and determine post-secondary plans. Our Special Education director, teacher, and 
paraprofessionals connected with each student with an IEP to support them through their work and connected with teachers and 
administration to monitor the progress of students with disabilities. IEP and 504 meetings continued virtually to ensure students were 
supported with the modifications, accommodations, and support needed to ensure success in distance learning and IEP goals. 

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to provide school meals while maintaining social distancing practices. 

PCS provided school lunches throughout our school closure. Our Food Service Coordinator is trained in how to safely provide school lunches 
and was provided with protective gear. We notified all families of PCS meal distribution as well as other food service sites available 
throughout Santa Cruz County, by sharing the SCCOE interactive food map frequently in our communications. 

Our food service program was initially Monday-Friday, but shifted to weekly meal and grocery distribution in response to the feedback of our 
families. Food service and Student Support Team members communicated frequently with our community about food distribution options, 
with additional, personal outreach to those families in our community eligible to receive free and reduced-price meals. Our partnership with 
SCCOE and Second Harvest Food Bank allowed us to expand our support and ensure that all families had access to food services. 

145
2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Pacific Collegiate School Page 3 of 4 



  

                       
 

                        
                    

                    
                      

                   
     

 
                     

                   
                        

                     
 

                      
                     

                   
        

         

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to arrange for supervision of students during ordinary school hours. 

PCS teachers, and support staff have created a network of support to even more closely monitor and surround all of our students with the 
support that they need for both academic success and personal well-being. During distance learning, this has included daily connection with 
every student. PCS continued to monitor student attendance in each synchronous class, and followed up to check-in and offer academic, 
mental health, and technology assistance, as needed. PCS also continues to use a digital Student of Concern form; which teachers use to 
report potential issues. This allows our Student Support Team to immediately leverage any internal supports and interventions, and referrals 
to outside agencies as needed. 

PCS has worked hard to promote student support services as well as available childcare services. PCS Virtual Support has provided parent 
support groups during school closures. In addition, PCS has promoted the availability of childcare offerings for essential workers supported 
by the Santa Cruz COE. PCS has been grateful for the SCCOE leadership in creating a network of support for childcare providers during this 
time and ensuring that local districts and charter schools had information to share with our communities regarding the availability of childcare. 

PCS has worked closely with the SCCOE and Santa Cruz County Health Service Agency to provide the most current information to all 
employees and families in our school community. This has included sending and posting to the PCS website frequent COVID-19 updates, as 
well as sharing SCCOE communications and providing links to SCCOE and Santa Cruz County Health Services Agency COVID-19 web 
pages, which have been continuously updated with resources. 

146
2020-21 LCAP COVID-19 Operations Written Report for Pacific Collegiate School Page 4 of 4 



  

 

       
 

 
             

 
 
 

            
                           

   
           

    
 

  
 

                
 

                 
                       

                      
          

 
                     

                      
                    

                  
                       

                      
       

 
                  

                 
                       
                    

                   
                   

           
 

                        
                

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21) 
The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Pacific Collegiate School Maria C. Reitano 

Head of School 
maria.reitano@pcsed.org 
(831) 479-7785 Ext. 3102 

General Information 
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.] 

In compliance with Santa Cruz County public health recommendations and shelter-in-place orders, Pacific Collegiate School closed for on-
site classes on March 13, 2020, with PCS students dismissed from classes during the week of March 16-21, 2020. PCS faculty and staff 
used that week to prepare for implementation of a comprehensive distance learning program, and to ensure that every PCS student had the 
technology and internet connectivity needed to access classroom learning remotely. 

Between March 13-March 22, PCS checked out Chromebooks, iMacs, iPads, and WIFI hotspots to over 70 students and 5 staff members. 
Tech training and equipment testing sessions were held to ensure 100% of PCS students and staff were equipped and ready to access 
distance learning before our remote program launched on March 23, 2020. PCS administration and staff followed up with any student 
experiencing technology issues, delivering equipment and WIFI hot spots, and providing 1:1 support to resolve problems and ensure 
equitable access to learning for all. When it became clear that program and security needs would be best served by switching from Google 
Meet to Zoom platform, PCS provided another round of training and technology support for students and staff to ensure a smooth transition 
between platforms on April 3, 2020. 

PCS Distance Learning included several key components: (1) a daily schedule of video-conferenced classes to provide synchronous learning 
aligned to PCS curriculum and learning goals, (2) asynchronous assignments and assessments available via Canvas learning management 
system, (3) optional weekly tutorial blocks for each class for students to access extra help from each teacher, (4) virtual support services for 
students and parents, including 1:1 academic and social-emotional support, student and parent support groups, and links to a variety of 
critical mental-health resources, (5) 1:1 technology support for students, parents, and teachers, (6) critical supports for special populations of 
students, including English Learners, Students with Disabilities (IEPs) and those with Health Conditions (504 Plans), and (7) ongoing food 
services and basic needs support for PCS students and families. 

Once it became clear that it would be unsafe to open school before the end of the 2019-2020 school year, PCS administration, faculty, and 
staff carefully considered equitable grading practices and conditions for learning, and recommended a Distance Learning Expectations 

147
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 1 of 12 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23generalinformation


  

                        
                    

                     
                   

  
 

                     
                

               
                       

                    
                            

                 
                  

                     
   

 
                     

                      
             

             
 

                     
                      

                   
                    

 

 

 
 

  
 

          
 

                      
                    

            
       

policy, that was approved by the PCS Board of Directors on April 23, 2020. To help the PCS community understand the implications of the 
Pass/No Credit grading policy, as well as the specific components of PCS’ implementation of that policy, the administration created and 
shared two FAQ documents, and a recorded webinar for students and parents. Teachers created grading sheets for each of their classes, 
which outlined several pathways to demonstrating proficiency, as well as optional opportunities for students to earn recognition for exemplary 
scholarship. 

Finally, school closure and ongoing public safety restrictions forced PCS to reconsider typical end of the year celebrations and culmination of 
learning events. Students, faculty, staff, and parents worked alongside administration to reconfigure these into remote webinars, pre-
recordings, or alternative socially-distant events, while maintaining the importance, dignity, personalization, and community-focused nature of 
each event. PCS hosted a virtual Art Show and gallery opening, a Capstone Symposium, and a talent show to showcase student work. We 
shared spotlight stories and websites with our community to highlight the innovative work continuing via Distance Learning, an emerging from 
our students' learning in a time of crisis. We delivered yard signs to the homes of each member of the Class of 2020 to remind them of how 
proud we are of their accomplishment and resiliency throughout a particularly challenging senior year. We celebrated student 
accomplishments at online Drama Awards and a Senior Recognition Night with embedded videos, slideshows, and remembrances, and we 
hosted meaningful webinars and drive-through parades to acknowledge and cheer for our 8th graders promoted to high school and Class of 
2020 graduates. 

PCS formed a multi-stakeholder Reopening Task Force, which worked from May - August to develop a series of contingency plans that 
would allow our school to appropriately provide instruction in the midst of a variety of COVID-19 risk scenarios within our community. In 
keeping with state and local public health guidance and the PCS Reopening Plan (https://4.files.edl.io/e7b0/07/17/20/211651-c7b6e7cf-8b86-
42ed-b03b-b2e4e2a290ea.pdf), we started the 2020-2021 school year in distance learning only mode. 

We are thankful for the countywide leadership of Santa Cruz COE Superintendent, Dr. Sabbah, for his leadership during this crisis. Through 
weekly updates and opportunities to collaborate with other district and charter leaders, the Santa Cruz COE has kept PCS informed of public 
health updates and developments, and provided valuable opportunities to collaborate with local district and charter leaders. PCS has also 
worked closely with North Santa Cruz County SELPA leadership to discuss the progress and support of special education students. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.] 

An an effort to ensure that all stakeholders were engaged in discussion about PCS' response to the COVID-19 crisis, our Reopening Task 
Force included students, faculty and staff, parents, and Board members. In addition, PCS gathered feedback from and share plans about 
distance learning with stakeholders through a variety of Zoom meetings and surveys: 

• Distance Learning Check-in (Students: March, 2020) 
148

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 2 of 12 

https://4.files.edl.io/e7b0/07/17/20/211651-c7b6e7cf-8b86-42ed-b03b-b2e4e2a290ea.pdf
https://4.files.edl.io/e7b0/07/17/20/211651-c7b6e7cf-8b86-42ed-b03b-b2e4e2a290ea.pdf
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23stakeholderengagement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23stakeholderengagement


  

        
           
       
        
           
             
        
           
         
          
          
          
          

 
               

 

                    
                    

                      
                   

          
 

          
 

                     
                     

                   
                  

                       
                 

          
 

                   
 

                 
                     

            
 

• Schoolwide Distance Learning Check-in (Students/Parents: April, 2020) 
• Graduation/12th Grade Parents Meeting (Parents: Weekly April 27-May 18, 2020) 
• Distance Learning Survey (Students/Parents: June, 2020) 
• Faculty/Staff Distance Learning Survey (Faculty/Staff: June 2020) 
• Reopening Task Force Meetings (ALL: Weekly: June 1-August 3, 2020) 
• Board of Directors Meetings (ALL: June 3, July 15, August 11, 2020) 
• Reopening Input Meeting (ALL: June 25, 2020) 
• DRAFT PCS Reopening & Contingency Plan Feedback Survey (July, 2020) 
• Distance Learning FAQ Meeting (ALL: July 29, 2020) 
• Phone Outreach to Spanish Speaking Families (Parents: July-August, 2020) 
• Distance Learning Orientation – Spanish (Parents: August 6, 2020) 
• Distance Learning Orientation – English (Parents: August 12-13, 2020) 
• Distance Learning Orientations (Students: August 3-4 and 12, 2020) 

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.] 

All public meetings and hearings were conducted via Zoom with Brown Act compliant notification sent out in advance. We provided 
information about our meetings on our website and in weekly communications, which are sent via Constant Contact, an email notification 
system. PCS currently has fewer than the 15% threshold of Spanish Speaking families that would require translation, but in order to ensure 
access, the school sent meeting notifications out bilingually (English/Spanish) and had translators available for those who might have needed 
that service. 

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.] 

The majority of parents surveyed indicated that students, parents, and staff would prefer that students have the opportunity to participate in 
in-person instruction in the fall; however, parents and staff members also indicated an overwhelming interest in health and safety as the 
primary deciding factor in decisions about mode of instruction. When in-person instruction is not recommended by health guidelines, parents, 
students, and staff indicated a preference for synchronous instruction. Many stakeholders expressed concern about the amount of screen 
time required by a virtual class format. A majority of students and parents indicated that students experienced stress and a sense of being 
overwhelmed by synchronous and asynchronous learning requirements when PCS made the emergency switch to distance learning in 
March, 2020. 

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.] 

County public health guidelines prohibit in-person instruction at this time. The PCS distance learning plan reflects multi-stakeholder 
preference for synchronous instruction, which is further detailed in the section on Continuity of Instruction. All students have a daily schedule 
that includes at least 210 minutes of synchronous instruction with their teachers. 

149
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 3 of 12 



  

                    
                    

                          
                   

                  
                   

        
         

 

 

 
 

   
 

   
 

                    
                       

     
 

                     
                        

                  
               

 

               
    

            
 

 
 

       

           
 
 

        

          
  

 
 

        

X

X

X

As outlined in the PCS Reopening and Contingency Plan, PCS' two week rotation model for distance learning responds directly to 
student/parent input requesting a more manageable workload via distance learning. This model engages students in 50% of their classes at 
a time, allowing them to focus deeply on fewer subjects. In addition, this plan allows the school to shift to a variety of public health conditions 
and instructional models with minimum disruption to the educational program. PCS added a "stick around" tutorial period following all 
synchronous class periods, to allow ample opportunity for immediate intervention and teacher support, as needed to respond to 
misconceptions or other learning needs. PCS has also added robust procedures for tracking student participation and engagment, and swift 
interventions and supports for those who need it. 

Continuity of Learning 
In-Person Instructional Offerings 
[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have 
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019–2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss 
due to future school closures.] 
At this time, schools in Santa Cruz County may only offer distance learning. The PCS Reopening Plan provides detailed information about 
how our school will support student and staff health and safety and how we will provide continuity of learning. Our learning plan includes the 
instructional schedule, a plan for assessing and addressing learning loss, delivering high quality instruction and attending to the social-
emotional well-being of our students and staff. 

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 
Description Total Funds Contributing 
Expand role of English Language Coordinator/ELD Teacher to support needs of English 
Learners 

15,311.00 Yes 

Personal Protective Equipment for students and staff (e.g. masks, face shields) 6,000.00 No 

Facilities adjustments necessary for in-person instruction (e.g. protective barriers in 
offices/classrooms, signage) 

4,500.00 No 

150
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 4 of 12 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning2


  

    
          

  
 
 

        

           
  

 
 

        

         
 
 

        

 

 

 
 
 

   
 

   
 

                         
                    

                
 

                      
                 

                      
                 

               
                 
                      

              
 

     
 

                    
 

                     
                     

                     

X

X

X

Description Total Funds Contributing 
Health screening and maintenence supplies (e.g. digital forehead thermometers, hand 
sanitizing stations) 

1,000.00 No 

Cleaning and sanitation supplies and equipment (e.g. electrostatic sprayer, cleaning and 
sanitizing solutions) 

2,100.00 No 

Professional Development of staff regarding new protocols and procedures 2634.00 No 

Distance Learning Program 
Continuity of Instruction 
[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of 
substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will 
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.] 
Distance learning at PCS will be standards-aligned and designed to meet the needs of all students, including those who qualify for special 
education, language learners, students in foster care, those experiencing homelessness, students with exceptional needs, and tose requiring 
mental health support. We will continue the work we started last spring to provide connectivity and devices to all students participating in 
distance learning. Teacehrs will connect with students daily through remote classroom instruction (via Zoom). Additional interaction with 
English Learners will ensure English Language Assesment, proficiency, and reclassification through designated and integrated English 
Language Development. Although PCS has added some instructional resources to enhance distance learning (e.g. EdPuzzle, Prodigy) the 
curriculum guiding instruction in remote classrooms is the same rigorous PCS curriculum as will be used in a hybrid or in-person instructional 
model, when public health guidelines allow. 

Access to Devices and Connectivity 
[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.] 
PCS has surveyed all PCS families to determine technology needs (in English and Spanish). In response to these surveys, PCS has 
provided Chromebooks and wifi hotspots to all students who needed them. In addition, PCS held grade-level "Tech Checks" to ensure that 
every student had a working device and sufficient internet bandwidth to fully participate in distance learning. Any student who did not 

151
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 5 of 12 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram2


  

                  
                     
                    
            

 
                       

             
         

 

    
 

                      
           

 

                  
 

                    
                   

                  
                

                    
 

 
                    
                     

                 
           

         
 

    
 

                     
  

 

                    
                  
                     
                       
                      

           
 

participate in their grade-level tech check was contacted by our Educational Technology Specialist for an individual technology assessment. 
Additional devices and technology were distributed to any student whose Tech Check indicated a need for improved access. PCS has 
prioritized low-income students as a key focus in outreach to ensure that as student/family circumstances change, PCS continues to provide 
technology to those who need it to fully participate in distance learning. 

In addition, PCS has provided all staff with the technology and wifi hotspots they need to work and facilitate distance learning remotely. Staff 
are also permitted to work at PCS, following public health and safety guidelines. 

Pupil Participation and Progress 
[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how 
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.] 
PCS student participation and progress will be closely monitored through our learning management systems, Infinite Campus and Canvas. 

Synchronous learning will occur via daily virtual class meetings with teachers. Attendance will be recorded for each class meeting. Students 
who do not participate in synchronous classroom instruction will be marked absent for that period/day, triggering parent notification by 
attendance personnel. Participation in asynchronous learning will be documented via assignment records in Canvas for each class. Students 
will participate in sufficient asynchronous learning to meet or exceed state guidelines. Synchronous attendance and aynchronous 
participation data will be tracked over time, with appropriate intervention and tiered supports to encourage active learning by all PCS 
students. 

Instructional time shall be based on participation in synchronous learning, as well as the time value of asynchronous assignments as 
determined, and certified to, by a certificated PCS employee. Standards-aligned distance learning will be provided that meets the needs of all 
PCS students, including students who qualify for special education. language learners, sutdents in foster care, those experiencing 
homelessness, students with exceptional needs, and those requiring mental health support. 

Distance Learning Professional Development 
[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including 
technological support.] 
PCS is committed to supporting the professional learning needs of all teachers and staff. Recognizing that individual teachers have differing 
needs and areas of interest, PCS allocates $1000/teacher each year for professional learning opportunities aligned to individual development 
goals. Many PCS teachers are using or will use these funds for professional development related to distance learning. In addition, PCS 
worked closely with the Santa Cruz County Office of Education to ensure teachers would benefit from a full day of "Distance Learning Boot 
Camp" on August 7, 2020. This provided opportunities for teachers to participate in workshops on a variety of technology tools and strategies 
for engaging distance learning, effective assessment strategies, ways to support students, 

152
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 6 of 12 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram3
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram4


  

                      
                 

         
 

    
 

                
 

                      
                   

                   
                    
                     
                   
                

 

      
 

                     
                     

 
 

                      
                     

                     
                 

  
 

                     
                    

                   
                   

                
                  
                  

         
 

                
    

      
 
 

        X

In addition, the current PCS' schedule provides 90 minutes each day for teachers and staff to continue their own development and to 
collaborate on ways to build, plan, and teach most effectively in a distance or hybrid learning format. 

Staff Roles and Responsibilities 
[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.] 
With a shift to distance learning, PCS staff working directly with students (and operations support staff) have taken on additional or adjusted 
roles and responsibilities. Academic advisors have taken leadership of weekly wellness and student support teams to identify and provide 
support for students and their families who need social/emotional support. Our attendance specialist will be working with our educational 
technology team to identify technology needs and distribute devices or hotspots. Our Library/Study Hall monitor is now in charge of 
distribution of textbooks and learning materials. Some of our classfied staff are working with our Food Services coordinator to support on-site 
distribution of meals/food. The role and hours of our Educational Technology Specialist have been expanded to respond to ongoing 
technology needs and student/staff support during distance learning. 

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs 
[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English 
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing 
homelessness.] 
English Learners will need addtional support to rebalance and refocus on the task of learning and being productive in the school community. 
The goal remains for English Learners to achive the same rigorous grade-level academic standards that are expected for all students, within 
a reasonable period of time. To support this goal, all English Learners will receive a comprehensive program of designated and integrated 
English Language Development (ELD) instruction targeted at their proficiency level, and appropriate academic instruction in a language 
acquisition program. 

During Spring 2020 distance learning, PCS will continue to follow state and federal guidance with regard to adapting services from in-person 
instruction to a distance learning format. This will include direct support via remote instruction formats (i.e. Zoom), and ongoing collaboration 
with general education staff to ensure that accommodations have been provided to students with disabilities in alignment with their 
individualized needs. Services to students with disabilities will align with PCS’ overall structure to ensure personal safety and maximum 
student engagement while supporting educational goals and providing accommodations as outlined in individual plans. Special Education 
staff will continue regular participation in general education grade level, department, and staff meetings and maintain ongoing communication 
with individual families to maximize opportunities to respond swiftly to academic challenges and student needs as they arise. 

Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 
Description Total Funds Contributing 
Expanded hours/role for Educational Technology Specialist 22,756.86 No 

153
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 7 of 12 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram5
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram6
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram7


  

    
           

  
 
 

        

    
 
 

        

      
 
 

       

         
 
 

        

          
 
 

        

 

 

 
 
 

   
 

                      
                     

   
 

                    
                    

                  
 

    
 

                       
                    

  
 

                    
                       

X

X

X

X

X

Description Total Funds Contributing 
Technology purchased to support distance learning (e.g. Chromebooks, wifi hotspots, staff 
laptops, monitors) 

3,500.00 No 

Wifi Hotspot subscription services 8,000.00 No 

Expanded hours of ELD Coordinator/ELD Teacher 24,375.00 Yes 

Educational software and program subscriptions to support distance learning 6,000.00 No 

Professional development for all teachers on effective distance learning strategies 12,458.00 No 

Pupil Learning Loss 
[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019–2020 and 2020–21 school years, 
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language 
development, and mathematics.] 
We will continue to use formative assessments and performance indicators in each content area to monitor student learning, guage student 
progress, and identify any learning loss/gaps. PCS will apply particular scrutiny to data reflecting student progress in English Language Arts, 
English Language Development, and Mathematics in the distance learning environment. 

Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 
[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed, 
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils 
experiencing homelessness.] 
PCS will continue to focus on providing high quality, standards-aligned, rigorous academic content for all students, adjusting the pace and 
content to a distance learning platform. WIth the guidance and support of the Head of School and Faculty Dean, teachers will work together 

154
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 8 of 12 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss1


  

                     
                       
         

 
                   

                    
         

 

       
 

                   
 

                   
                  

                       
                  

                    
 

               
    

    
 
 

        

 

 

 
 
 

       
 

                        
                      

     
 

                     
                      

                     
                  
                       

     

X

to prioritize content and learning goals, and to adapt curriculum and instruction to the unique learning needs and circumstances of each 
learner during this time of crisis. PCS will continue to focus on diversity, equity, and inclusion in ongoing efforts to identify and address 
learning gaps, and support the success of every student. 

During distance learning, PCS will offer multiple opportunities for student support during and after school, including "Stick Around" Tutorials, 
Get It Done (homework and study skills seminar), EL Study Support, Directed Studies for students with IEPs, and homework clubs. 

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 
[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.] 
Teachers will continue to administer periodic formative assessments in each class, and will bring resulting student performance data to 
weekly discussions with colleagues in grade-level and department meetings. Collaborative teams will use this data to identify needed 
interventions and support and to make referral to the Student Success Team. An ongoing focus of these discussions will be the progress of 
individual students, as well as English Learners, Foster Youth, and Low-Income students. Weekly collaboration will support the ongoing 
assessment of the impact of interventions and supports in accelerating student learning. 

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 
Description Total Funds Contributing 
Additional/adjusted academic support services 5,000.00 No 

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school 
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of 
COVID-19 on the school community.] 
Teachers will monitor students for signs of stress and report any perceived issues to academic advisors and Student Success Team via 
ongoing "Student of Concern" form. This reporting system will also be used by grade level teams during weekly meetings. In addition, PCS 
will engage in frequent outreach to students and families to ensure participation and academic success in distance learning. In addition, PCS 
will engage students in social-emotional learning and wellness through in-class instruction and a variety of schoolwide wellness initiatives 
and activities. Guided by the Head of School and Faculty Dean, staff will use daily collaboration time to review resources and address any 
concerns about student social-emotional well-being. 

155
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 9 of 12 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional


  

 
                      

                  
            

 
                    
                     

                        
   

 
                     

                      
      

 
                   

                
         

 

 

 
 
 

      
 

                    
                      

                        
   

 

                      
                   

                     
                       
                      

                 
                    

 

 

 
 

PCS created a "Virtual Support Hub" that provides a central resource bank and variety of mental health and wellness supports for PCS 
students and families. These include individual and group counseling, suicide prevention and mental health crisis supports, parent education 
opportunities, academic advisor contacts, community resources, and contact information for technology assistance. 

PCS students and staff also benefitted from significant mental health resources available through the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 
which have been shared with students and parents through weekly updates and newsletters, and with staff during staff meetings, via email, 
and on the PCS Staff Hub, an internal website used for resource sharing. Our Virtual Support Hub includes resources for staff and families as 
well as students. 

Many PCS staff participated in daily mindfulness moments and check in meetings before each school day during Spring 2020, and all 
members of the PCS community are encouraged to join us for an ongoing opportunity for Yoga and Mindfulness each Tuesday morning of 
the 2020-2021 school year via Zoom. 

Finally, professional development in the areas of social and emotional learning (SEL) and trauma-informed instruction are planned for the 
2020-2021 school year to enhance teachers' ability to support students in these areas during distance learning. 

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from 
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English, 
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk 
of learning loss.] 
Connecting and engaging every PCS student in distance learning is foundational to our work. We will support a tiered response rooted in 
frequent contacts, surveys, and ongoing assessments of student well-being. Weekly collaboration and review of student progress will help to 
identify students in need of additional support. The Student Success Team will meet weekly to determine appropriate Tier II supports and 
interventions to support the success of each student. A Tier II response will be initiated for any student who has not participated in 
synchronous learning for three or more days or for any student who has not been completing asynchronous work. Tier II response may 
include parent/family contact or meeting, connection to community resources, and/or specific interventions and school supports. PCS will 
provide outreach and support to families whose home language is not English. 

156
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 10 of 12 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilEngagementandOutreach


  

 

  
 

                       
               

 

                     
                    

                    
                      

                      
 

 

 
 

 

          
       

     

     
     

     
       

   

           
         

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

          
  

School Nutrition 
[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or 
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.] 
PCS partners with Santa Cruz County Office of Education and nearby school districts to ensure County-wide access to student meals, while 
maintaining processes in alignment with public health guidelines. Families in need of meal service may pick up meals and groceries 
(provided in partnership with Second Harvest Food Bank) at Pacific Collegiate School weekly, or may access safe school food distribution 
centers through the generosity of COE and local districts. Families are advised of pick-up locations, dates, and times throughout the County -
and assured that all meals are free of charge, with no family turned away. 

Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows
and actions may be added as necessary] 
Section Description Total Funds Contributing 

[The section of the Learning 
Continuity Plan related to the 
action described; may put N/A 
if the action does not apply to 
one specific section] 

[A description of what the action is; may include a description 
of how the action contributes to increasing or improving 
services] 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students 

157
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 11 of 12 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23IncreasedorImprovedServices


  

 

                   
   

          
 

  
 

                        
                       

      
 

             
 

                   
                     

                    
                       
    

         
 

                     
 

 

                   
                  
                  

         
 

 

 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services Increased Apportionment based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students 

2.36% 112,500.00 

Required Descriptions 
[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the needs of these students.] 

Actions Related to Technology Access for Low Income, Foster Youth, or Homeless Students 

Actions related to increased technology access contribute to the increased and improved service requirement because it is evident that 
students from low income families needed additional supports to access instruction via distance learning at the end of the 2019-2020 school 
year. We have prioritized these students in distribution of digital learning and internet connectivity devices, as well as technology support 
services, as we believe this will be effective in mitigating learning loss, allow for daily live interaction with teachers, and keep these students 
engaged in distance learning. 

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required.] 

These student groups have experienced significant challenges in our transition to distance learning. We have prioritized the need for 
additional technology, mental health, and academic supports, and believe by providing these supports in addition to our high-quality 
curriculum and certified instructors will accelerate the learning of those students who have experienced additional challenges and learning 
loss. 

158
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Pacific Collegiate School Page 12 of 12 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23RequiredDescriptions


 

          
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 

PacLILc CROOeJLaWe ScKRRO DLYeUVLW\ SWaWXV ReSRUW aQd AcWLRQ POaQ (2020-2025) 

I. InWUodXcWion and ViVion SWaWemenW 
II. OYeUYieZ of PUogUeVV Wo DaWe (2006-2019) 
III. DeWailed ReYieZ of PUogUeVV on 2016-2020 DiYeUViW\ AcWion Plan 
IV. OYeUYieZ of 2020-2025 DiYeUViW\ AcWion Plan 
V. 2021-2025 DiYeUViW\ AcWion Plan 
VI. ASSendi[ A - ReleYanW DaWa 
VII. ASSendi[ B - DeWailed ReYieZ of PaVW DiYeUViW\ PlanV 

1 

159



 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

       
               

       
  

 

 

PacLILc CROOeJLaWe ScKRRO DLYeUVLW\ SWaWXV ReSRUW aQd AcWLRQ POaQ (2020-2025) 

II. IQWURdXcWLRQ aQd VLVLRQ SWaWePeQW 

Pacific CollegiaWe School (PCS) VWUongl\ YalXeV a VWXdenW, facXlW\, VWaff, and boaUd 
SoSXlaWion WhaW UeflecWV Whe diYeUViW\ of SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ in all UeVSecWV, inclXding demogUaSh\, 
Vocioeconomic VWaWXV, Uace, eWhniciW\, cXlWXUe, Ueligion, gendeU idenWiW\, Ve[Xal oUienWaWion, and 
diVabiliWieV.  A diYeUVe PCS Vchool commXniW\ iV cenWUal Wo oXU obligaWion aV a SXblic Vchool Wo 
SUoYide eTXal acceVV and VXSSoUW foU all commXniW\ membeUV Veeking a high-TXaliW\, 
VWandaUdV-baVed, college SUeSaUaWoU\ and fine aUWV edXcaWion. FXUWheU, UecenW UeVeaUch XndeUVcoUeV 
Whe conWUibXWionV of diYeUVe Vchool commXniWieV Wo VWXdenW leaUning, inclXding cUiWical Whinking, 
commXnicaWion and SUoblem VolYing.1 

PCS iniWiall\ adoSWed a fiYe-\eaU DiYeUViW\ Plan in 2006 aV a ³liYing docXmenW´ WhaW 
SUoYided a conceSWXal backgUoXnd foU iVVXeV UelaWing Wo Vchool diYeUViW\, idenWified a YaUieW\ of 
VWeSV inWended Wo diYeUVif\ Whe Vchool, and SUoYided an iWemi]ed agenda Wo gXide Whe acWionV of 
Whe Vchool oYeU Whe folloZing fiYe \eaUV.  The Plan haV been XSdaWed eYeU\ fiYe \eaUV Wo inclXde 
an aVVeVVmenW of Whe SUogUeVV PCS haV made aV Zell aV Wo idenWif\ neZ ideaV and goalV aimed aW 
fXUWheU foVWeUing diYeUViW\ aW Whe Vchool.  ThiV docXmenW fiUVW UeSoUWV on SaVW SUogUeVV, inclXding 
dXUing Whe WeUm of Whe moVW UecenW 2016-2020 DiYeUViW\ Plan. IW When highlighWV Whe coUe diYeUViW\ 
goalV foU Whe XScoming 2020-2025 SeUiod, befoUe deWailing Whe VWeSV Ze SUoSoVe Wo Wake Wo 
accomSliVh WhoVe goalV aV SaUW of WhiV DiYeUViW\ Plan foU Whe 2020-2025 SeUiod. ReleYanW daWa aV 
Zell aV oXU UeSoUWV on SaVW DiYeUViW\ PlanV aUe inclXded in Whe ASSendiceV. 

II. SXPPaU\ RI PURJUeVV WR DaWe (2006-2019) 

● IQYeVWed LQ OXWUeacK CRRUdLQaWRU.  In JanXaU\ of 2007, PCS cUeaWed and fXnded a 50% 
VWaff SoViWion foU an OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU, ZhoVe UeVSonVibiliWieV inclXde mainWaining 
and enhancing Whe Vchool¶V cXUUenW diYeUViW\ and Ueaching commXniWieV cXUUenWl\ 
UegaUded aV XndeUUeSUeVenWed. ThaW VWaff SoViWion haV Uemained a ke\ SaUW of Whe Vchool¶V 
SUogUam. 

● DeYeORSPeQW RI CRPPXQLW\ OXWUeacK PURJUaP.  The OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU 
deYeloSed a CommXniW\ OXWUeach PUogUam, Zhich inclXdeV SUogUamV foU diVVeminaWing 

1A\VcXe, JennifeU EUica FUankenbeUg, and GeneYieYe Siegel-HaZle\ 
(2017)The comSlemenWaU\ benefiWV of Uacial and Vocioeconomic diYeUViW\ in VchoolV. ReVeaUch BUief #10. The 

NaWional CoaliWion on School DiYeUViW\. AYailable aW: 
hWWSV://Vchool-diYeUViW\.oUg/Sdf/DiYeUViW\ReVeaUchBUiefNo10.Sdf 

2 

160



 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

          
             

             
 

 
            

             
             
                

 

 

infoUmaWion aboXW PCS, UaiVing aZaUeneVV of PCS and Whe SUocedXUeV foU admiVVion, and 
Whe deYeloSmenW of commXniW\ SaUWneUVhiSV Wo faciliWaWe SoViWiYe inWeUacWionV beWZeen 
PCS VWXdenWV and VWaff and SanWa CUX] commXniW\ membeUV, inclXding WXWoUing, 
menWoUing, and oWheU commXniW\ VeUYice SUojecWV. 

● DeYeORSPeQW RI ³FLUVW TR CROOeJe´ (FTC) LRWWeU\ PURJUaP.  Since 2011, Whe PCS 
admiVVion loWWeU\ haV incUeaVed Whe SeUcenWage of VeaWV VeW aVide  foU 7Wh gUade aSSlicanWV 
Zho ZoXld be Whe fiUVW in WheiU famil\ Wo aWWend college, fUom 10% in 2011 Wo 15% in 
2019. ThiV haV incUeaVed Whe admiVVion and UeWenWion of HiVSanic/LaWino VWXdenWV in moVW 
\eaUV, and b\ deVign haV conViVWenWl\ enhanced Whe Vocioeconomic and Uacial diYeUViW\ of 
Whe SXSil SoSXlaWion. 

● PURJUaPV IRU SWXdeQW SXSSRUW.  AV SaUW of effoUWV Wo VXVWain a diYeUVe VWXdenW 
SoSXlaWion, PCS eVWabliVhed and enhanced nXmeUoXV leYelV of VWXdenW VXSSoUW, inclXding 
WeacheU gUade leYel WeamV, a fXll Wime 7Wh and 8Wh gUade Academic SXSSoUW VSecialiVW, a 
SWXd\ SkillV and Technolog\ claVV foU all 7Wh gUade VWXdenWV, and a UeYiVed bell VchedXle 
Wo inclXde block SeUiodV and in-Vchool WXWoUial. The focXV on WhiV miVVion and Whe cUeaWion 
of VXch SUogUamV haV likel\ conWUibXWed Wo Whe facW WhaW in Whe laVW fiYe \eaUV WheUe iV no 
longeU a VWUong coUUelaWion beWZeen VWXdenWV Zho WUanVfeU oXW befoUe gUadXaWion and Uace 
oU Vocioeconomic facWoUV. 

● PURPRWLRQ RI DLYeUVLW\ LQ ScKRRO CXOWXUe aQd MeQWRULQJ.  In oUdeU Wo VXSSoUW VWXdenWV 
of all academic backgUoXndV, PCS haV SXW a YaUieW\ of VXSSoUW VWUXcWXUeV in Slace.  TheVe 
inclXde a VXmmeU academic and Vocial VXSSoUW SUogUam foU all incoming 7Wh gUade 
VWXdenWV called BaVe CamS, a VimilaU oUienWaWion foU neZl\ admiWWed VWXdenWV, and an AP 
BaVe CamS foU 10Wh gUade VWXdenWV SUioU Wo WheiU iniWial AdYanced PlacemenW coXUVe. In 
addiWion, PCS engageV all 7Wh gUade VWXdenWV in a SWXd\ SkillV and Technolog\ coXUVe and 
haV a SeeU menWoUing SUogUam foU fiUVW-Wo-college VWXdenWV. 

● PXUVXLW RI OSSRUWXQLWLeV IRU CXOWXUaO EQULcKPeQW.  PCS haV inWegUaWed cXlWXUal 
enUichmenW inWo Whe cXUUicXlXm WhUoXgh e[change SUogUamV ZiWh ViVWeU ciWieV, incUeaVed 
focXV on cXlWXUe in WoUld LangXage claVVeV, and conWinXed focXV on a global SeUVSecWiYe 
ZiWhin Whe HiVWoU\ coXUVeV. 

● IPSURYe OXWUeacK EIIRUWV. The OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU conWinXed Wo deYeloS Whe 
oXWUeach Slan, conWinXed Wo deYeloS commXniW\ SaUWneUVhiSV, and ZoUked Wo VhifW SXblic 
SeUceSWion of diYeUViW\ aW PCS. Among oWheU WhingV, WhiV led Wo a commXniW\-focXVed 
coding camS locaWed aW PCS in Whe VXmmeU of 2019. 

● SWUeQJWKeQ aQ IQcOXVLYe aQd SXSSRUWLYe ScKRRO CXOWXUe. The PCS BoaUd led an 
iniWiaWiYe foU daWa collecWion focXVed on aVVeVVing Whe needV of FTC VWXdenWV and 
familieV. ThiV daWa ZaV XVed Wo VXSSoUW VeYeUal iniWiaWiYeV, inclXding enhanced VXSSoUW 
VeUYiceV and a VeUieV of WUainingV in 2017-18 and 2018-19 foU VWaff and boaUd membeUV on 

3 

161



 

 
 

           
              

              
               

              
  

 
            

               
            

  
 
 

   
 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

 
 

 

cXlWXUall\ UeVSonViYe Sedagog\ and bUoadeU DEI iVVXeV UeVSecWiYel\. 

● RecUXLW MRUe DLYeUVe ScKRRO LeadeUVKLS. PCS haV made VignificanW imSUoYemenWV in 
WhiV aUea Vince 2016. CenWUall\, Whe BoaUd of DiUecWoUV UecUXiWed and UeWained Whe fiUVW 
non-WemSoUaU\ female head of Vchool in oXU Vchool¶V 20 \eaU hiVWoU\. In addiWion, Whe 
BoaUd haV incUeaVed iWV oZn diYeUViW\, and iV noZ b\ VeYeUal meWUicV Whe moVW diYeUVe 
conVWiWXenc\ in Whe Vchool acUoVV gendeU and eWhniciW\, ZiWh foU e[amSle, foXU of iWV 
cXUUenW eleYen membeUV, leadeUV of coloU. 

● E[SaQd DaWa CROOecWLRQ aQd AVVeVVPeQW. PCS conWinXed Wo imSUoYe XSon meWhodV and 
VWandaUdV of gaWheUing daWa foU Whe SXUSoVe of aVVeVVing Whe needV of iWV eWhnicall\ diYeUVe 
and fiUVW-Wo-college SoSXlaWion in oUdeU Wo SUoYide conciVe and effecWiYe VXSSoUW, and 
made VignificanW VWUideV in WhiV aUea dXUing Whe SUeYioXV Slan SeUiodV. 

III. DeWaLOed ReYLeZ RI PURJUeVV RQ 2016-2020 DLYeUVLW\ AcWLRQ POaQ 

The 2016-2020 DiYeUViW\ Plan idenWified foXU SaUWicXlaU meaVXUeV PCS ZoXld eYalXaWe and 
SXUVXe dXUing Whe Wime in TXeVWion. ThoVe meaVXUeV ZeUe aV folloZV (1) conWinXed imSUoYemenW 
of oXWUeach effoUWV; (2) conWinXe Wo bXild an inclXViYe and VXSSoUWiYe Vchool cXlWXUe; (3) boaUd, 
facXlW\/VWaff, and commiWWee diYeUViW\ UecUXiWmenW; and (4) imSUoYed daWa collecWion and 
aVVeVVmenW.  We VXmmaUi]e SUogUeVV on each goal and VXb-goal aV oUiginall\ idenWified in Whe 
2016-2020 DiYeUViW\ Plan beloZ. 

Goal 1: ConWinXed ImSUoYemenW of OXWUeach EffoUWV 

SXb-goal 1.1: Refine  PCS OXWUeach Plan. The OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU Uefined Whe PCS OXWUeach 
Slan Wo addUeVV:  (a) aVVeVVmenW of oXWUeach effoUWV Wo daWe; (b) VWUengWhening of e[iVWing 
SaUWneUVhiSV ZiWh commXniW\ oUgani]aWionV and deYeloSing neZ commXniW\ SaUWneUVhiSV (e.g., 
ZiWh DigiWal NeVW); and (c) imSlemenWaWion of cUeaWiYe neZ VWUaWegieV foU oXWUeach. 

SWaWXV:  The School imSlemenWed WhiV goal b\ aVVeVVing oXWUeach and UeTXiUing UegXlaU UeSoUWing 
Wo Whe BoaUd of DiUecWoUV on oXWUeach effoUWV aV SaUW of monWhl\ BoaUd MeeWingV.  In 
addiWion, Ze hoVWed loWWeU\ infoUmaWion VeVVionV aW commXniW\ locaWionV in WaWVonYille 
and Beach FlaWV in boWh SSaniVh and EngliVh. 

SXb-goal 1.2: ConWinXe, ImSUoYe, and E[Sand CommXniW\ SeUYice/PaUWneUVhiSV.  PCS commiWWed 
Wo conWinXing Wo foVWeU commXniW\ SaUWneUVhiSV, ZiWh effoUWV Wo focXV Whe SUogUam on Whe 3Ud 
WhUoXgh 6Wh gUade age gUoXS.. 

SWaWXV:  TheVe UelaWionVhiSV conWinXe Wo be deYeloSed. FoU e[amSle, in SaUWneUVhiS ZiWh LookeU 
Ze led an EngliVh/SSaniVh bilingXal coding camS aW PCS in Whe VXmmeU of 2019. 

4 

162



 

  
  

 
 

  
  

    
 

  
  

 

  
   

   
   

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
  

  
  
 

 
  

  
 

  
   

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
  

  
  

 

 

SXb-goal 1.3: ShifW PXblic PeUceSWion.  The  School VoXghW Wo VhifW SXblic SeUceSWion of diYeUViW\ 
aW PCS b\: (a) UaiVing Whe YiVibiliW\ of Whe FTC loWWeU\; (b) highlighWing and celebUaWing Whe 
diYeUViW\ of Whe PCS VWXdenW bod\ Yia a  UeYamSed ZebViWe; and (c) e[amining all maUkeWing 
maWeUialV Wo enVXUe Whe SUomoWion of diYeUVe VWXdenW UecUXiWmenW. 

SWaWXV: Each of WheVe goalV ZaV addUeVVed. FoU e[amSle, Ze addUeVVed Whe miVSeUceSWion WhaW 
PCS haV WXiWion oU ³UeTXiUed´ donaWionV and SaUenW YolXnWeeU hoXUV on oXU ZebViWe, and 
SUodXced bilingXal maUkeWing maWeUialV foU Whe loWWeU\ infoUmaWion VeVVionV. 

Goal 2:  BXild an InclXViYe and SXSSoUWiYe School CXlWXUe 

SXb-goal 2.1: FiUVW Wo College FamilieV¶ NeedV AVVeVVmenWV.  The School commiWWed Wo addUeVV 
hoZ beVW Wo VXSSoUW diYeUVe and FTC VWXdenWV and familieV in Whe Vchool commXniW\ ZiWh Whe 
goal of enVXUing and imSUoYing FTC VWXdenW UeWenWion.  TheVe maWeUialV Zill be in EngliVh, 
SSaniVh, and an\ oWheU needed langXageV. 

SWaWXV:  FTC SaUenW VXUYe\V ZeUe condXcWed Wo idenWif\ iVVXeV affecWing Whe abiliW\ of familieV Wo 
VXSSoUW WheiU VWXdenWV¶ academic achieYemenWV and goalV. The UeVXlWV conWUibXWed Wo Whe 
deYeloSmenW of Whe 2015-2018 PCS SWUaWegic Plan. In addiWion, dXUing Whe 2018-2019 
VeaUch SUoceVV foU a neZ Head of School, Whe PCS BoaUd hoVWed a dedicaWed VWakeholdeU 
engagemenW eYenW Wo VoliciW FTC famil\ inSXW. The PCS BoaUd alVo Ueached oXW 
indiYidXall\ Wo SSaniVh VSeaking familieV Wo  VoliciW WheiU inSXW on needV and SUioUiWieV. 

SXb-goal 2.2: DeYeloSmenW of EngliVh LangXage LeaUneU (ELL) InVWUXcWional AVViVWanW PoViWion. 
The Vchool Slanned Wo eVWabliVh an ELL VXSSoUW SoViWion Wo VeUYe Whe needV of VWXdenWV foU Zhom 
EngliVh iV a Vecond langXage. 

SWaWXV:  PCS began emSlo\ing a SaUW-Wime ELL InVWUXcWional AVViVWanW in 2018. ThiV SoViWion 
conWinXeV Wo VXSSoUW Whe needV of EngliVh LangXage LeaUneUV aW PCS. 

SXb-goal 2.3: FoVWeU SWXdenW InYolYemenW in DiYeUViW\ EffoUWV.  The School Slanned Wo inYiWe one 
oU WZo VWXdenWV annXall\ Wo VeUYe on Whe DiYeUViW\ CommiWWee and VXSSoUW UelaWed acWiYiWieV 
inclXding oXWUeach, Vchool acWiYiWieV, and ZebViWe deYeloSmenW. 

SWaWXV: The OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU cUeaWed a VWXdenW diYeUViW\ clXb,  and inYiWed one VWXdenW 
UeSUeVenWaWiYe fUom Whe clXb Wo SaUWiciSaWe in Whe DiYeUViW\ CommiWWee and aWWend BoaUd 
meeWingV. PCS WeacheUV haYe alVo engaged VWXdenWV in DEI aZaUeneVV in Whe claVVUoom. 
FoU e[amSle, WeacheUV and deSaUWmenWV haYe e[Sanded Ueading liVWV Wo inclXde aXWhoUV 
fUom diYeUVe backgUoXndV. 

SXb-goal 2.4: SWXd\ BenefiWV and ImSacWV of a PoVVible Si[Wh GUade.  PCS commiWWed Wo e[SloUe 

5 

163



 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 
  
  

   
  

  
 

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 

 

ZheWheU Whe addiWion of a 6Wh gUade cohoUW ZoXld helS in Whe UecUXiWmenW and UeWenWion of VWXdenWV 
of diYeUVe backgUoXndV.  The UeVXlWV of WhiV VWXd\ ZoXld VeUYe aV a UecommendaWion foU Whe ne[W 
chaUWeU UeneZal.  AV backgUoXnd, Zhen PCS ZaV foXnded, iW ZaV aligned ZiWh Whe When-e[iVWing 
gUade-\eaU diYiVion beWZeen elemenWaU\ and middle VchoolV in Whe local Vchool diVWUicW, in Zhich 
middle Vchool began in 7Wh gUade. AV man\ of Whe local Vchool diVWUicWV changed man\ \eaUV ago 
Wo begin middle Vchool inVWUXcWion in 6Wh gUade, PCS ZaV no longeU aligned ZiWh Whe gUade-\eaU 
diYiVion in WhoVe VchoolV. AlWhoXgh Vome (mainl\ VmalleU, indeSendenW, and/oU SUiYaWe) local 
elemenWaU\ VchoolV do go WhUoXgh 6Wh gUade, Whe VeUieV of PCS diYeUViW\ SlanV haYe conWemSlaWed 
WhaW adding a 6Wh gUade Wo PCS coXld helS ZiWh diYeUViW\ effoUWV in WhaW iW, among oWheU 
conVideUaWionV, mighW UedXce baUUieUV foU VWXdenWV Zho ZoXld be challenged b\ mXlWiSle Vchool 
WUanViWionV (i.e., aWWending diffeUenW VchoolV foU 5Wh, 6Wh, and 7Wh gUadeV). 

AV SaUW of Whe 5-\eaU chaUWeU UeneZal c\cle foU PCS, in 2014 all UefeUenceV Wo Whe hiVWoUic 7-12 
gUade alignmenW of Whe School ZeUe UemoYed and VXbVWiWXWed ZiWh UefeUenceV Wo ³middle and high 
Vchool´ aV long UeflecWed in Whe School¶V miVVion VWaWemenW, Vo aV Wo accommodaWe VXch UefoUm. 
The MemoUandXm of UndeUVWanding ZiWh Whe School¶V chaUWeU aXWhoUi]eU (Whe SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ 
BoaUd of EdXcaWion), UeTXiUed aSSUoYal foU Whe VeUYice of an\ neZ gUade leYelV, Zhich haV noW 
been VoXghW dXUing Whe laVW 5 \eaUV. 

The PCS BoaUd haV idenWified WhiV change aV an imSoUWanW aUea foU making VignificanW WUanViWion 
in Whe Uacial and Vocioeconomic diYeUViW\ of Whe School.  AccoUdingl\, aV SaUW of Whe 2020 ChaUWeU 
UeneZal SUoceVV, Whe School inWendV Wo Veek Wo UemoYe WhiV baUUieU Wo acceVV. 

Goal 3: BoaUd and FacXlW\/SWaff DiYeUViW\ RecUXiWmenW 

SXb-goal 3.1: BoaUd.  The PCS BoaUd VoXghW Wo addUeVV Whe folloZing in iWV membeU UecUXiWmenW: 
(a) UeYieZ and UeYiVe iWV UecUXiWmenW maWeUialV and VWUaWegieV ZiWh Whe goal of imSUoYing 
diYeUViW\; (b) e[Sand oXWUeach boWh geogUaShicall\ and in WeUmV of adYeUWiVing meWhodV; (c) 
leYeUage connecWionV ZiWh local oUgani]aWionV WhaW VeUYe XndeUUeSUeVenWed conVWiWXencieV;  (d) 
conVideU engaging a VeaUch fiUm Wo enhance diYeUViW\; and (e) SUoYide iWV membeUV acceVV Wo 
diYeUViW\ and biaV WUaining. 

SWaWXV:  The School ZoUked WoZaUdV WheVe goalV. FoU e[amSle, Ze held annXal infoUmaWion 
VeVVionV WailoUed Wo SUoYide infoUmaWion aboXW BoaUd VeUYice Wo a diYeUVe gUoXS WhaW mighW 
noW haYe infoUmaWion and backgUoXnd aboXW Whe BoaUd.  AffiUmaWiYe effoUWV ZeUe made Wo 
encoXUage commXniW\ membeUV Wo aWWend WheVe annXal VeVVionV and Whe\ haYe been 
VXcceVVfXl and Zell aWWended. We alVo UeYiVed Whe aSSlicaWion and BoaUd e[SecWaWion 
maWeUialV Wo Zelcome aSSlicanWV fUom a moUe diYeUVe backgUoXndV, and Whe BoaUd 
SaUWiciSaWed in diYeUViW\ WUaining. 

SXb-goal 3.2: FacXlW\/SWaff.  PCS Zill UeYieZ and UeYiVe iWV facXlW\ and VWaff UecUXiWmenW 

6 

164



 

  
  

  
 

 
 

  
  
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 
 

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

                 
 

 

 

maWeUialV aV Zell aV iWV UecUXiWmenW VWUaWegieV ZiWh Whe goal of imSUoYing diYeUViW\. 

SWaWXV:  The School haV folloZed XS on WhiV goal, and haV had Vome noWeZoUWh\ UecUXiWing 
VXcceVVeV, SaUWicXlaUl\ in Whe aUea of hiUing Zomen Wo Weach adYanced Vcience coXUVeV in 
Whe cXUUicXlXm, aV Zell aV hiUing oXU fiUVW female Head of School afWeU a naWion-Zide 
UigoUoXV VeaUch SUoceVV. 

Goal 4: E[Sand DaWa CollecWion and AVVeVVmenW 

SXb-goal 4.1: DaWa CollecWion/AVVeVVmenW SXbcommiWWee.  The DiYeUViW\ CommiWWee VoXghW Wo 
cUeaWe a VXbcommiWWee focXVed on daWa collecWion and aVVeVVmenW.  The VXbcommiWWee ZoXld: (a) 
dUafW and ciUcXlaWe anon\moXV and YolXnWaU\ VXUYe\V Wo helS gaWheU UeleYanW daWa and needV 
aVVeVVmenWV, inclXding daWa aboXW PCS boaUd, facXlW\, VWaff, and VWXdenWV; (b) VSeaUhead Whe 
collecWion of daWa fUom VWXdenWV Zho ZeUe SaUW of oXWUeach SUogUamV deVcUibed aboYe and fUom 
gUadXaWing FTC VWXdenWV, VXch aV SAT VcoUeV, college acceSWance UaWeV, and kindV of collegeV 
(i.e., WZo-\eaU, foXU-\eaU), inclXding infoUmaWion aboXW Zh\ FTC VWXdenWV and familieV decided 
Wo aSSl\ Wo and aWWend SaUWicXlaU collegeV, and (c) gaWheU daWa WhaW alloZV a comSaUiVon of 
³VXcceVV´ daWa beWZeen PCS VWXdenWV and VWXdenWV aW oWheU VchoolV and SUogUamV and coXUVe 
offeUingV, VXch aV Whe SanWa CUX] High School MaWh Academ\ and AP coXUVeV. 

SWaWXV:  GiYen Whe imSoUWance of WheVe iVVXeV, and Whe VenViWiYiW\ of Vome of Whe infoUmaWion, 
ZoUking cloVel\ ZiWh Whe Head of School, Whe PCS BoaUd haV aVVXmed cenWUal 
UeVSonVibiliW\ foU daWa collecWion and aVVeVVmenW, and WhiV Zill be a cenWUal focXV foU Whe 
ne[W Slan SeUiod. FoU e[amSle, in 2018-2019 Ze collaboUaWed ZiWh DU. Sabbah Wo collecW 
and anal\]e daWa on aWWUiWion, Zhich led XV Wo conclXde WhaW WheUe iV noW a coUUelaWion aW 
PCS beWZeen Uace and/oU FTC VWaWXV and VWXdenWV Zho leaYe PCS SUioU Wo gUadXaWion. 

Goal 4.2: EYalXaWe FeaVibiliW\ and PoWenWial EffecWiYeneVV of FXUWheU LoWWeU\ RefinemenWV. 
BaVed on daWa collecWion and aVVeVVmenW, PCS  aimed Wo conVideU ZheWheU diYeUViW\ imSUoYemenW 
can be achieYed b\ addiWional loWWeU\ meaVXUeV, VXch aV a 9Wh gUade enWU\ FTC loWWeU\ UeVeUYe oU a 
loWWeU\ UeVeUYe foU aSSlicanWV eligible foU fUee and UedXced lXnch. 

SWaWXV:  PCS conWinXeV Wo eYalXaWe hoZ Wo hold a loWWeU\ WhaW iV comSlianW ZiWh SWaWe laZ and alVo 
VeUYeV PCS diYeUViW\ goalV. The Head of School condXcWed an anal\ViV looking foU an\ 
coUUelaWion beWZeen Uace and eiWheU FTC and/oU fUee and UedXced meal eligibiliW\.  BaVed 
on WhiV anal\ViV, coXSled ZiWh a UecenW VWXd\ of baUUieUV Wo acceVV in DiYeUVe b\ DeVign

2VchoolV condXcWed b\ Whe CenWXU\ FoXndaWion , PCS  haV conclXded WhaW Whe moVW 
effecWiYe aSSUoach iV Wo diUecW iWV effoUWV Wo Whe 6Wh GUade and Whe e[SanVion of Whe FiUVW Wo 

2 PoWWeU, H. and QXick, K. (2018). DLYeUVe-b\-DeVLJQ CKaUWeU ScKRROV. TKe CeQWXU\ FRXQdaWLRQ. AcceVVed aW 
hWWSV://Wcf.oUg/conWenW/UeSoUW/diYeUVe-deVign-chaUWeU-VchoolV/?agUeed=1 

7 

165

https://tcf.org/content/report/diverse-design-charter-schools/?agreed=1


 

  
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

 
  

  
 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 
  

 

 

College SUefeUence in WhaW loWWeU\ aV diVcXVVed in PaUW IV beloZ. 

IV. OYeUYLeZ RI WKe 2020-2025 DLYeUVLW\ AcWLRQ POaQ 

The 2020-2025 DiYeUViW\ AcWion Plan haV fiYe oYeUaUching goalV (A-E), Zhich aUe VXmmaUi]ed 
heUe and deWailed in SecWion V beloZ. 

A. RecUXLW MRUe DLYeUVe SWXdeQW PRSXOaWLRQ.  The BoaUd and Head of School Zill joinWl\ 
inYeVWigaWe Whe SoVVible benefiWV and imSacWV of cUeaWing a 6Wh gUade ZiWh a 50% loWWeU\ 
SUefeUence foU FiUVW Wo College (FTC) VWXdenWV (oU baVed on anoWheU diYeUViW\-WaUgeWed 
meWUic), in oUdeU Wo eaVe Whe WUanViWion beWZeen elemenWaU\, middle, and high Vchool foU 
FTC VWXdenWV and WheUeb\ incUeaVe Whe likelihood of WheiU aSSl\ing Wo PCS, and Wo SUoYide 
an addiWional oSSoUWXniW\ foU VWXdenW VXSSoUW VeSaUaWe fUom Whe e[iVWing SUogUam and 
coXUVe VeTXence. AV SaUW of WhiV iniWiaWiYe, PCS ma\ cUeaWe 1-2 SiloW VecWion(V) Wo 
deWeUmine feaVibiliW\ befoUe laXnching a fXll 6Wh gUade SUogUam. 

B. BXLOd MecKaQLVPV IRU SWXdeQW SXSSRUW. The Head of School Zill lead effoUWV aUoXnd 
WeacheU deYeloSmenW and VXSSoUW SUogUamV foU VWXdenWV Wo enVXUe all VWXdenWV aUe 
VXSSoUWed Wo be VXcceVVfXl aW PCS, ZiWh a SaUWicXlaU focXV on enVXUing Whe VXcceVV of 
diYeUVe SoSXlaWionV, and ZiWh a YieZ WoZaUdV e[Sanding VXSSoUW foU inclXde gUadeV 9-12. 

C. RecUXLW DLYeUVe ScKRRO LeadeUVKLS. The Head of School Zill idenWif\ and imSlemenW 
VWUaWegieV Wo UecUXiW a moUe diYeUVe WeacheU and VWaff SoSXlaWion, and Whe BoaUd Zill 
conWinXe Wo UecUXiW diYeUVe membeUV, boWh ZiWh a YieZ Wo beWWeU UeflecW oXU commXniW\¶V 
demogUaShicV. 

D. BXLOd aQ IQcOXVLYe aQd SXSSRUWLYe ScKRRO CXOWXUe. The Head of School Zill lead 
effoUWV Wo bXild an inclXViYe and eTXiWable Vchool cXlWXUe and climaWe Wo VXSSoUW Whe 
academic VXcceVV, and Vocial and emoWional Zell-being of eYeU\ VWXdenW. ThiV iniWiaWiYe 
Zill boWh inYolYe inYeVWing in a VWaff membeU Wo VXSSoUW diYeUViW\, eTXiW\ and inclXVion 
effoUWV in addiWion Wo engaging e[SeUWiVe on eTXiW\ Wo VXSSoUW mXlWi-VWakeholdeU leaUning. 

E. ReILQe DaWa CROOecWLRQ aQd EYaOXaWLRQ. PCS SlanV Wo Uefine cXUUenW meWhodV and 
VWandaUdV of gaWheUing daWa foU Whe SXUSoVe of XncoYeUing an\ gaSV in achieYemenW ZiWhin 
Whe VWXdenW SoSXlaWion and in SaUWicXlaU foU Whe moVW YXlneUable VWXdenWV. SXch meWUicV 
Zill be XVed  Wo inWenWionall\ deSlo\ UeVoXUceV Wo VXSSoUW Whe VWXdenWV WhaW aUe moVW 
heaYil\ imSacWed. 

8 

166



 

 
  

 
            

                
            

              
               

  
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
               
                   

                 
                
                

              
            

             
              

                
              

           
             

                
  

 
                 

 

 

V. 2020-2025 DLYeUVLW\ AcWLRQ POaQ 

Plan ElemenWV and ReSoUWing Timeline: The 2020-2025 DiYeUViW\ Plan haV fiYe mXWXall\ 
VXSSoUWing goalV, Zhich aim Wo bXild on and e[Sand SaVW effoUWV: (A) UecUXiW a moUe diYeUVe 
VWXdenW SoSXlaWion; (B) bXild mechaniVmV of VWXdenW VXSSoUW; (C) UecUXiW diYeUVe Vchool 
leadeUVhiS; (D) bXild a VXSSoUWiYe and inclXViYe Vchool cXlWXUe; and (E) e[Sand daWa collecWion 
and aVVeVVmenW. The Head of School Zill oYeUVee Whe SUeSaUaWion of a VWaWXV UeSoUW addUeVVing 
SUogUeVV in WheVe aUeaV, Wo be VXbmiWWed Wo Whe BoaUd of DiUecWoUV each DecembeU and Ma\. 

GRaO A: RecUXLW MRUe DLYeUVe SWXdeQW PRSXOaWLRQ. The BoaUd and Head of School Zill joinWl\ 
inYeVWigaWe Whe SoVVible benefiWV and imSacWV of cUeaWing a 6Wh gUade ZiWh a 50% loWWeU\ 
SUefeUence foU FiUVW Wo College (FTC) VWXdenWV (oU baVed on anoWheU diYeUViW\-WaUgeWed meWUic), in 
oUdeU Wo eaVe Whe WUanViWion beWZeen elemenWaU\, middle, and high Vchool foU FTC VWXdenWV and 
WheUeb\ incUeaVe Whe likelihood of WheiU aSSl\ing Wo PCS. AV SaUW of WhiV iniWiaWiYe, PCS ma\ 
cUeaWe 1-2 SiloW VecWion(V) Wo deWeUmine feaVibiliW\ befoUe laXnching a fXll 6Wh gUade SUogUam. 

When PCS ZaV foXnded, iW ZaV aligned ZiWh Whe When-e[iVWing gUade-\eaU diYiVion beWZeen 
elemenWaU\ and middle VchoolV in Whe local Vchool diVWUicW, in Zhich middle Vchool began in 7Wh 
gUade. AV man\ of Whe local Vchool diVWUicWV haYe noZ changed Wo begin middle Vchool inVWUXcWion 
in 6Wh gUade, PCS iV no longeU aligned ZiWh Whe gUade-\eaU diYiVion in WhoVe VchoolV. Adding a 
6Wh gUade Wo PCS coXld helS ZiWh diYeUViW\ effoUWV, in WhaW iW ZoXld UedXce baUUieUV foU VWXdenWV 
Zho ZoXld be challenged b\ mXlWiSle Vchool WUanViWionV (i.e., aWWending diffeUenW VchoolV foU 5Wh, 
6Wh, and 7Wh gUadeV). 

PCS UXnV a fiUVW-Wo-college admiVVionV loWWeU\ WhaW allocaWeV 15% of 7Wh gUade VeaWV foU VWXdenWV 
Zho Zill be Whe fiUVW in WheiU famil\ Wo aWWend college. ThiV loWWeU\ occXUV SUioU Wo Whe main loWWeU\; 
an\one noW choVen in Whe fiUVW-Wo-college loWWeU\ iV When enWeUed in Whe main loWWeU\ aV Zell. AV 
SaUW of oXU effoUWV Wo anal\]e PCS¶V VWaWed commiWmenW Wo enUolling a diYeUVe VWXdenW bod\, Ze 
haYe looked aW Whe fiUVW-Wo-college admiVVionV loWWeU\ daWa Wo meaVXUe Whe leYel of diYeUViW\ in Whe 
Vchool¶V acWXal enUollmenW. While Ze Uecogni]e WhaW a UobXVW definiWion of diYeUViW\ in Vchool 
enUollmenW UeTXiUeV conVideUing a YaUieW\ of facWoUV, oXU anal\ViV VhoZed, XnVXUSUiVingl\, WhaW 
fiUVW-Wo-college admiVVionV aW PCS coUUelaWeV ZiWh Uacial and Vocioeconomic diYeUViW\. In Whe laVW 
feZ \eaUV, hoZeYeU, Whe nXmbeU of aSSlicanWV Wo Whe fiUVW-Wo-college admiVVionV loWWeU\ haV noW 
incUeaVed and UemainV cloVe Wo Whe 15% of Whe alloWWed 7Wh gUade VeaWV. While a naUUoZ 
achieYemenW gaS SeUViVWV foU WheVe VWXdenWV accoUding Wo VWaWe adminiVWeUed WeVW UeVXlWV, WhaW gaS 
iV decidedl\ VmalleU Whan Whe VWaWeZide economic achieYemenW gaSV. FXndamenWall\, Whe 
conVideUaWion of fiUVW-Wo-college in VelecWion SUoceVV haV been a cUiWical comSonenW foU achieYing 
Whe cXUUenW leYel of diYeUViW\ aW PCS, \eW moYing foUZaUd Ze mXVW fXUWheU eYalXaWe Za\V Wo 
aWWUacW an eYen higheU enUollmenW of diYeUVe VWXdenWV inWo Whe Vchool. 

AW Whe cXUUenW leYel of diYeUViW\, UeVeaUch haV VhoZn WhaW iW iV VWill difficXlW foU minoUiW\ VWXdenWV 

9 

167



 

               
             

                 
                 

  
 

                 
              

               
                 
             
              
                

              
              

             
               

               
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Wo achieYe a VenVe of belonging and iW iV challenging Wo UeaVVXUe WoleUance and cUoVV-Uacial 
fUiendVhiSV among all VWXdenWV. A moUe VXbVWanWial inWeUYenWion, Ze belieYe, iV needed. One 
aYenXe Ze ZoXld like Wo e[SloUe iV Wo incUeaVe Whe nXmbeU of VWXdenWV Zho gain admiVVion Yia 
VelecWiYe enUollmenW aW Whe Vi[Wh gUade leYel. AV VWaWed, VimilaU effoUWV haYe been SXW in Slace in 
oWheU chaUWeU neWZoUkV VXcceVVfXll\ SXUVXing Vocioeconomic inWegUaWion. 

We aUe SaUWicXlaUl\ dUaZn Wo a SiloW SUogUam foU Vi[Wh-gUadeUV iV becaXVe iW Zill alloZ PCS Wo 
aWWUacW and enUoll moUe diYeUVe cohoUWV of VWXdenWV, feeding moUe eTXiWabl\ fUom all local 
elemenWaU\ VchoolV, UaWheU Whan Whe VelecW feZ WhaW cXUUenWl\ inclXde a 6Wh gUade. ThiV aSSUoach 
Zill alVo eaVe Whe WUanViWion Wo middle and high Vchool, aV VWXdenWV Zill WUanVfeU Wo PCS diUecWl\ 
fUom elemenWaU\ Vchool, UaWheU Whan haYing Wo WUanViWion WZice beWZeen elemenWaU\, middle and 
high Vchool. ThiV oSSoUWXniW\ ZoXld be SaUWicXlaUl\ imSacWfXl foU FTC VWXdenWV Zho aUe leVV 
likel\ Wo be WUanViWioning Wo PCS fUom SUiYaWe VchoolV, Zhich ofWen offeU a 6Wh gUade. DeYeloSing 
a 6Wh gUade SiloW SUogUam Zill UeTXiUe conVideUable SUeSaUaWion. TheVe effoUWV Zill inclXde an 
inWenWional WXUn WoZaUd a nXUWXUing leaUning and Vocial aWmoVSheUe deVigned Wo meeW Whe needV 
and ciUcXmVWanceV of \oXngeU VWXdenWV. MoYing foUZaUd, Ze need moUe UeVeaUch Wo effecWiYel\ 
VhaSe oXU SiloW SUogUam inWo one WhaW encoXUageV WUXe eTXiW\, UaWheU Whan one WhaW VimSl\ 
SUomoWeV acceVV aV a Vingle VWeS of SUogUeVV. The folloZing VSecific acWiYiWieV Zill helS PCS 
Ueach WhiV goal: 

1. Engage VWakeholdeUV in a diVcXVVion of Whe SoVVible benefiWV, imSacWV, and hXUdleV in 
laXnching a SiloW 6Wh gUade. 

2. RedoXbling effoUWV ZiWh commXniW\ SaUWneUVhiSV WhaW Zill \ield a gUeaWeU nXmbeU of 
diYeUVe aSSlicanWV. 

3. EYalXaWe if addiWional VelecWion meWUicV, in addiWion Wo FTC and FRPM eligibiliW\, ma\ 
helS Wo fXUWheU diYeUViW\ effoUWV.. 

GRaO B: BXLOd MecKaQLVPV RI SWXdeQW SXSSRUW. The Head of School Zill lead effoUWV aUoXnd 
WeacheU deYeloSmenW and VXSSoUW SUogUamV foU VWXdenWV Wo enVXUe all VWXdenWV aUe VXSSoUWed Wo be 
VXcceVVfXl aW PCS, ZiWh a SaUWicXlaU focXV on enVXUing Whe VXcceVV of diYeUVe SoSXlaWionV, and 
ZiWh a YieZ WoZaUdV e[Sanding VXSSoUW foU inclXde gUadeV 9-12. 

AW Whe cenWeU of PCS¶V YiVion and miVVion iV SUoYiding an e[emSlaU\ college SUeSaUaWoU\ 
SUogUam, Uich in academic, aUWiVWic, and mXlWicXlWXUal oSSoUWXniWieV. OXU YalXeV VWaWemenW 
XndeUVcoUeV oXU eVVenWial belief WhaW all VWXdenWV aUe caSable of VXcceVV ZiWhin WhiV UigoUoXV 
academic enYiUonmenW, giYen Whe UighW VXSSoUWV. AV PCS VWUiYeV Wo become a moUe diYeUVe 
leaUning commXniW\, Ze moYe foUZaUd ZiWh SaUWicXlaU inWeUeVW in SUoYiding a comSUehenViYe 
V\VWem of VWXdenW VXSSoUW Wo enVXUe Whe VXcceVV of all VWXdenWV, ZiWh SaUWicXlaU inWeUeVW in 
UedXcing eTXiW\/oSSoUWXniW\ gaSV. 

To WhaW end, PCS Zill enhance VeUYiceV Wo SUoYide MXlWi-TieUed S\VWemV of SXSSoUW (MTSS). AV 
defined b\ Whe CalifoUnia DeSaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, ³MTSS iV an inWegUaWed, comSUehenViYe 
fUameZoUk WhaW focXVeV on coUe inVWUXcWion, diffeUenWiaWed leaUning, VWXdenW-cenWeUed leaUning, 

10 

168



 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

     
 

 
 

 

indiYidXali]ed VWXdenW needV, and Whe alignmenW of V\VWemV neceVVaU\ foU all VWXdenWV¶ academic, 
behaYioUal, and Vocial VXcceVV.´3 B\ eVWabliVhing an MTSS V\VWem, PCS Zill cUeaWe gUeaWeU 
oSSoUWXniW\ Wo idenWif\ and inWenWionall\ UeVSond Wo VWXdenWV¶ indiYidXal leaUning needV ZiWh 
neceVVaU\ VeUYiceV and VXSSoUWV. 

PCS Zill conWinXe Wo bXild Whe caSaciW\ of facXlW\ and VWaff Wo meeW Whe needV of diYeUVe leaUneUV 
b\ engaging in SUofeVVional leaUning focXVed on cXlWXUall\ UeVSonViYe Sedagog\, UniYeUVal 
DeVign foU LeaUning, Social and EmoWional LeaUning, and inVWUXcWional VWUaWegieV aSSUoSUiaWe foU 
YaUiable leaUning needV. 

To VSecificall\ VXSSoUW Whe needV of oXU fiUVW-Wo-college VWXdenWV and WheiU familieV, PCS Zill 
SaUWneU ZiWh AdYancemenW Via IndiYidXal DeWeUminaWion (AVID), a non-SUofiW oUgani]aWion ZiWh 
oYeU 30 \eaUV¶ e[SeUience in UedXcing achieYemenW gaSV and aWWaining VXcceVV foU loZ-income, 
fiUVW-Wo-college VWXdenWV.  AVID WUaining, UeVoXUceV, and conVXlWanc\ Zill aVViVW PCS in 
embedding academic VXSSoUWV and VeUYiceV Wo meeW Whe needV of Whe diYeUVe VWXdenWV Ze Veek Wo 
aWWUacW and UeWain. 

The folloZing VSecific acWiYiWieV Zill helS PCS Ueach Whe aboYe goal: 

1. Enhance MXlWi-TieUed S\VWemV of SXSSoUW (MTSS), inclXding: 
a. GUade LeYel Team meeWingV 
b. SWXdenW SXcceVV Team (SST) SUoceVV 
c. Academic VXSSoUW foU VWXdenWV in all gUadeV 
d. Social-emoWional/menWal healWh leaUning and VXSSoUW foU VWXdenWV in all gUadeV 

2. PUofeVVional DeYeloSmenW focXVed on cXlWXUall\ UeVSonViYe Sedagog\, UniYeUVal DeVign 
foU LeaUning, and inVWUXcWional VWUaWegieV Wo VXSSoUW Whe VXcceVV of diYeUVe leaUneUV 

3. AVID PaUWneUVhiS 
a. PUofeVVional deYeloSmenW foU PCS facXlW\ and VWaff on VchoolZide VWUXcWXUeV and 

VWUaWegieV WhaW acceleUaWe VWXdenW leaUning and cloVe achieYemenW gaSV 
b. AcceVV Wo UeVoXUceV, maWeUialV, and conVXlWaWion VeUYiceV SUoYen Wo VXSSoUW Whe 

VXcceVV of fiUVW-Wo-college VWXdenWV 
c. PaUenW edXcaWion maWeUialV and VWUaWegieV, WaUgeWed Wo VXSSoUW foU fiUVW-Wo-college 

VWXdenWV and WheiU familieV 
d. NeWZoUk of VXSSoUW ZiWh oWheU Uegional AVID SUogUamV, inclXding WhoVe acWiYe in 

SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ middle and high VchoolV 
e. InYeVWmenW in dedicaWed WXWoUV Wo VXSSoUW fiUVW-Wo-college VWXdenWV 

GRaO C: RecUXLW DLYeUVe ScKRRO LeadeUVKLS. The Head of School Zill idenWif\ and imSlemenW 
VWUaWegieV Wo UecUXiW a moUe diYeUVe WeacheU and VWaff SoSXlaWion, and Whe BoaUd Zill conWinXe Wo 

11 

169

3 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

UecUXiW diYeUVe membeUV, boWh ZiWh a YieZ Wo beWWeU UeflecW oXU commXniW\¶V demogUaShicV. 

AV PCS VeekV Wo incUeaVe VWXdenW diYeUViW\, Ze Uecogni]e Whe benefiWV of UecUXiWing and UeWaining 
a moUe diYeUVe facXlW\ and VWaff. AccoUding Wo 2018 VWXd\, ³incUeaVing WeacheU diYeUViW\ iV a YeU\ 
imSoUWanW VWUaWeg\ foU imSUoYing leaUning foU VWXdenWV of coloU and foU cloVing achieYemenW 
gaSV.´4 While PCS Uecogni]eV WhaW all VWXdenWV benefiW fUom leaUning in a moUe diYeUVe Vchool 
enYiUonmenW, UeVeaUch VXggeVWV ³Whe imSacW iV eVSeciall\ VignificanW foU VWXdenWV of coloU, Zho 
haYe higheU WeVW VcoUeV, aUe moUe likel\ Wo gUadXaWe high Vchool, and moUe likel\ Wo VXcceed in 
college Zhen Whe\ haYe had WeacheUV of coloU Zho VeUYe aV Uole modelV and VXSSoUW WheiU 
aWWachmenW Wo Vchool and leaUning. SWXdenWV ZiWh Uaciall\ diYeUVe WeacheUV alVo haYe feZeU 
Xne[cXVed abVenceV and aUe leVV likel\ Wo be chUonicall\ abVenW.´5 

PCS haV WUadiWionall\ UecUXiWed WeacheUV and VWaff SUimaUil\ b\ SoVWing oSeningV on EdJoin and 
Whe EmSlo\menW SoUWion of Whe Vchool ZebViWe. A VignificanW deSaUWXUe fUom WhiV noUm ZaV Whe 
UecenW Head of School VeaUch SUoceVV, foU Zhich PCS BoaUd of DiUecWoUV engaged an E[ecXWiYe 
SeaUch ConVXlWing fiUm, in oUdeU Wo deliYeU a diYeUVe VlaWe of highl\-TXalified candidaWeV. WiWh 
VimilaU inWenW, PCS Zill XVe a YaUieW\ of oXWUeach and UecUXiWmenW VWUaWegieV Wo find diYeUVe 
candidaWeV TXalified foU fXWXUe SoViWionV. 

The folloZing VSecific acWiYiWieV Zill helS PCS Ueach Whe aboYe goal: 
1. OXWUeach and commXnicaWion ZiWh local WeacheU SUeSaUaWion/cUedenWial SUogUamV 
2. PaUWiciSaWion in Uegional WeacheU UecUXiWmenW faiUV 
3. PCS UeSUeVenWaWion in foUXmV and neWZoUkV focXVed on diYeUViW\ in edXcaWion 

GRaO  D: BXLOd aQ IQcOXVLYe aQd SXSSRUWLYe ScKRRO CXOWXUe.  The Head of School Zill lead 
effoUWV Wo bXild an inclXViYe and eTXiWable Vchool cXlWXUe and climaWe Wo VXSSoUW Whe academic 
VXcceVV, and Vocial and emoWional Zell-being of eYeU\ VWXdenW. ThiV iniWiaWiYe ma\ e[Sand 
claVVified VWaff hoXUV Wo VXSSoUW diYeUViW\, eTXiW\ and inclXVion effoUWV in addiWion Wo engaging 
e[SeUWiVe on eTXiW\ Wo VXSSoUW mXlWi-VWakeholdeU deYeloSmenW. 

AddiWional delibeUaWe acWion Zill be needed Wo bXild a moUe diYeUVe, eTXiWable, and inclXViYe 
Vchool commXniW\.  ReVeaUch haV VhoZn WhaW an eTXiWable and inclXViYe Vchool cXlWXUe iV cUiWical 
Wo Whe UecUXiWmenW and UeWenWion of diYeUVe and highl\-TXalified WeacheUV, aV Zell aV Whe 
UecUXiWmenW, UeWenWion and VXcceVV of  VWXdenWV of diYeUVe backgUoXndV. 

To enVXUe all membeUV of Whe PCS commXniW\ e[SeUience an inclXViYe UaWheU Whan an 
aVVimilaWioniVW enYiUonmenW, PCS Zill conWinXe Wo SUoYide leaUning oSSoUWXniWieV foU leadeUVhiS, 
VWaff, facXlW\ and VWXdenWV Wo engage in diVcXVVion and WUaining aboXW eTXiW\, e[SliciW and imSliciW 
biaV, VWUXcWXUal ineTXaliWieV, and oWheU iVVXeV UelaWed Wo DEI. To do WhiV, PCS Zill conWinXe Wo 
engage oXWVide e[SeUWiVe and conVXlWaWion Wo VXSSoUW and e[Sand a mXlWi-\eaU leaUning SUoceVV 

4 

5 

12 

170



 

  
 

 
 

    
 

 
  

 
   

 
 

 
   

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 

 

foU Whe BoaUd, WeacheUV, VWaff, SaUenWV and VWXdenWV. 

The folloZing VSecific acWiYiWieV Zill helS PCS Ueach Whe aboYe goal: 

1.DiYeUViW\, ETXiW\ & InclXVion ConVXlWanc\. PCS Zill SUoYide a VeUieV of leaUning 
oSSoUWXniWieV foU VWaff and VWakeholdeU gUoXSV UegaUding DEI. ThiV Zill Wake a YaUieW\ of foUmV 
inclXding WaUgeWed VXSSoUW fUom oXWVide e[SeUWiVe Wo gXide XV, SUofeVVional leaUning foU Whe 
BoaUd, and facXlW\ and VWaff, aV Zell aV VWXdenW and SaUenW engagemenW. 

2. DedicaWed SWaffing. We ma\ aXgmenW SUioU claVVified VWaffing Wo e[Wend oXWUeach and 
UecUXiWmenW effoUWV, and Wo inclXde VWXdenW and famil\ engagemenW Wo fXUWheU VXSSoUW and UeWain 
diYeUVe VWXdenWV and familieV. 

3. SWXdenW LeadeUVhiS & EngagemenW. PCS Zill idenWif\ an annXal cohoUW of VWXdenW 
leadeUV Zho Zill UeceiYe WaUgeWed DEI WUaining Wo VeUYe aV menWoUV and leadeUV foU SoViWiYe Vchool 
cXlWXUe bXilding aW PCS (e.g. SV FaceV CamS EYeU\WoZn oU VimilaU), SWXdenW VoiceV (Head of 
School adYiVoU\ and acWion commiWWee). 

4. InWegUaWion of DEI in CXUUicXlXm and InVWUXcWion. BXilding on Whe inWenWional ZoUk 
PCS WeacheUV haYe done Wo infXVe DEI aZaUeneVV and VWUaWegieV in cXUUicXla and leaUning 
VWUaWegieV, academic deSaUWmenWV and WeacheUV Zill conWinXe Wo enhance inVWUXcWion b\ idenWif\ing 
UeVoXUceV, maWeUialV, and leaUning oSSoUWXniWieV WhaW Zill inWenWionall\ UeflecW PCS¶V YalXe foU 
diYeUViW\ and inclXVion. 

GRaO E: ReILQe DaWa CROOecWLRQ aQd AVVeVVPeQW. PCS SlanV Wo Uefine cXUUenW meWhodV and 
VWandaUdV of gaWheUing daWa foU Whe SXUSoVe of XncoYeUing an\ gaSV in achieYemenW ZiWhin Whe 
VWXdenW SoSXlaWion and in SaUWicXlaU foU Whe moVW YXlneUable VWXdenWV. SXch meWUicV Zill be XVed 
Wo inWenWionall\ deSlo\ UeVoXUceV Wo VXSSoUW VWXdenWV ZiWh demonVWUaWed achieYemenW gaSV. 

In UecenW \eaUV, cloVing Whe achieYemenW gaSV beWZeen diffeUenW gUoXSV of VWXdenWV haV become 
Whe focXV of VWaWe Solic\. PCS Zill conWinXe Wo bXild on WhiV UeVeaUch b\ e[Sanding and Uefining 
oXU oZn UeVeaUch aboXW claVVUoom-leYel SUacWiceV aVVociaWed ZiWh incUeaVed VWXdenW SeUfoUmance, 
ZiWh an aim Wo cloVe an\ idenWified  achieYemenW gaSV aW PCS. We Slan Wo VXUYe\ cXUUenW SolicieV 
and SUacWiceV in oUdeU Wo SUoYide beWWeU WeacheU VXSSoUW foU XVe of claVVUoom daWa. 

The folloZing VSecific acWiYiWieV Zill helS PCS Ueach Whe aboYe goal: 

1. PUofeVVional DeYeloSmenW foU TeacheUV. We Slan Wo XVe daWa aVVeVVmenW Wo helS WeacheUV 
XndeUVWand Vkill gaSV of loZ-achieYing VWXdenWV and UeceiYe SUofeVVional deYeloSmenW on 
linking loZ-SeUfoUming VWXdenW daWa Wo inVWUXcWional VWUaWegieV. 

2. CUeaWe a RoadmaS Wo CloVe AchieYemenW GaSV. We Zill can eVWabliVh UeaVonable 
UoadmaSV Wo achieYe oXU YiVion, VeWWing meaVXUable goalV foU each Uacial oU 

13 

171



 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 

Vocioeconomic VXbgUoXS Wo cloVe Whe achieYemenW gaSV. 

While Whe Vchool collecWiYel\ VWUiYeV WoZaUd imSUoYing mXlWiSle meaVXUeV of VWXdenW 
SeUfoUmance, Ze Zill alVo incoUSoUaWe SUogUeVV WaUgeWV diUecWl\ inWo deSaUWmenW and indiYidXal 
WeacheUV¶ SUofeVVional  goalV. WiWh meaVXUable  goalV, Whe ShUaVe ³cloVing Whe gaSV´ becomeV leVV 
aVSiUaWional and Zill giYe deSaUWmenWV and WeacheUV concUeWe oSSoUWXniWieV and accoXnWabiliW\ 
mechaniVmV. We Zill  SUoYide UeVoXUceV and VXSSoUW Wo acceleUaWe Whe leaUning of loZ-achieYing 
VWXdenWV Zhile conWinXing Wo imSUoYe achieYemenW foU all. We Zill SUoYide  WeacheUV ZiWh  acceVV 
Wo fUeTXenW, diagnoVWic aVVeVVmenWV and high-TXaliW\ SUofeVVional deYeloSmenW, inclXding 
coaching and collaboUaWion Wime ZiWh colleagXeV. ThiV Zill alloZ WeacheUV Wo XVe daWa Wo make 
VignificanW imSUoYemenWV Wo cXUUicXlXm and inVWUXcWion in oUdeU Wo cloVe achieYemenW gaSV. 

14 

172



 

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
  

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

 

 

VIII.ASSeQdL[ A ± ReOeYaQW DaWa 

A.MeaVXUePeQWV Rf DiYeUViW\ 

EYidence VXggeVWV WhaW Whe demogUaShicV of PCS aSSlicanWV aUe VimilaU Wo Whe SXSil 
SoSXlaWion  of SeeUV aWWending SanWa CUX] CiW\ SchoolV High SchoolV WhaW SXUVXe a college 
SUeSaUaWoU\ cXUUicXlXm, aV demonVWUaWed b\ enUollmenW in AP claVVeV.  PCS Zill conWinXe Veeking 
Wo moniWoU WhiV imSoUWanW baViV of comSaUiVon. In UecogniWion WhaW a diYeUVe VWXdenW bod\ iV 
cUiWical Wo an e[cellenW edXcaWion, PCS Zill conWinXe iWV effoUWV Wo achieYe diYeUViW\ in all aUeaV, 
inclXding Uace, eWhniciW\, Vocioeconomic VWaWXV, Ve[Xal oUienWaWion, and gendeU 
idenWiW\/e[SUeVVion.  

B.DiYeUViW\ IQde[ DaWa/TabOeV 

The WableV beloZ VhoZ mXlWi-\eaU WUendV in PCS VWXdenW Uacial demogUaShicV aV Zell aV 
VWXdenW Vocioeconomic VWaWXV.  PCS iV encoXUaged b\ conWinXed gUoZWh in Whe diYeUViW\ of Whe 
VWXdenW SoSXlaWion aV meaVXUed b\ WheVe WZo indicaWoUV.  PCS Zill conWinXe Wo focXV on oXWUeach 
and UecUXiWmenW of VWXdenWV in all SanWa CUX] commXniWieV, aV Zell aV VWUengWhening VXSSoUW 
VWUXcWXUeV Wo faciliWaWe WheiU VXcceVV once enUolled.     

1.PeUcenWage of PCS SWXdenWV ReSoUWed aV HiVSanic/LaWino 

School 
Year 

Grade 
7 

Grade 
8 

Grade 
9 

Grade 
10 

Grade 
11 

Grade 
12 

Total 
Santa Cruz 

High School 
(SCHS) 
District 

2010-11 5.0 10.2 6.7 12.6 12.3 5.5 9.0 32.6% 

2011-12 17.0 13.6 11.4 4.7 10.7 10.4 11.4 34.5% 

2012-13 21.6 16.1 11.4 13.1 5.9 11.0 13.2 35.9 % 

2013-14 13.5 20.5 17.0 11.8 14.7 6.1 14.0 37.1 % 

2014-15 15.41 13.5 16.1 16.3 12.3 15.5 14.9 37.6 % 

15 

173



 

                 

                 

                 

                 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
  

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

  
 

                 

 

 

2015-16 16.3 14.3 13.3 16.0 16.0 12.7 14.8 

2016-17 7.6 18.3 18.7 14.1 18.3 14.7 15.3 

2017-18 17.6 5.4 17.4 16.5 15.1 16.7 15.5 

2018-19 10 18.3 5.4 15.2 17 16.7 13.8 

2.PeUcenWage of PCS SWXdenWV ReSoUWed aV WhiWe 

School 
Year 

Grade 
7 

Grade 
8 

Grade 
9 

Grade 
10 

Grade 
11 

Grade 
12 

Total SCHS 
District 

2010-11 86.3 73.9 69.7 74.7 75.3 81.8 76.5 58.4 % 

2011-12 65.9 71.6 72.7 67.1 72.6 72.7 70.4 56.0 % 

2012-13 65.9 65.5 72.3 72.6 70.6 76.8 70.6 54.1 % 

2013-14 64 64.8 63.6 69.4 66.6 72 66.6 52.6 % 

2014-15 71.4 67.4 69.0 70.0 75.5 66.2 69.9 52.9 % 

2015-16 75.0 73.6 72.2 68.0 68.0 73.2 71.8 

2016-17 78.3 76.3 65.9 70.1 64.6 67.6 70.8 

2017-18 61.5 79.3 75 64.8 65.6 70.5 68.3 

2018-19 73.3 64.5 79.3 78.3 62.5 72.2 70.6 

3.PeUcenWage of PCS SWXdenWV ReSoUWed aV Eligible foU FUee and RedXced LXnch 

School Grade Grade Grade Grade Grade Grade Total SCHS 

16 

174



 

                

                  

                  

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

 
  

 
 

 
 

    

   
     

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

             
 
 

 
   

                   

                   

 

 

Year 7 8 9 10 11 12 District 

2010-11 1.2 0 3.4 3.5 3.8 27.3 5.2 35.5 % 

2011-12 1.1 3.4 5.8 7.1 6.0 13.2 5.9 32.5 % 

2012-13 2.3 10.3 4.5 8.4 7.0 9.8 7.0 32.5 % 

2013-14 5.7 1.1 0 0 0 2.5 1.6 36.5 % 

2014-15 8.8 5.6 2.3 3.8 1.4 2.8 4.3 40.3 % 

2015-16 4.4 11 5.6 2.5 4 4.2 5.4 TBD 

2016-17 8.7 7.8 13.2 11.8 5.8 2.7 8.5 TBD 

2017-18 11.7 

2018-2019 

4.FiUVW Wo College (FTC) SWXdenWV 

Academic SeUfoUmance daWa of Whe FTC VWXdenWV iV comSiled in Whe Wable beloZ.  The 
nXmbeUV aUe faiUl\ Vmall, making iW difficXlW Wo idenWif\ WUendV.  HoZeYeU, Whe high VXcceVV UaWe 
on AdYanced PlacemenW e[amV in oXU fiUVW gUadXaWing claVV iV noWable.  

PCS First To College Academic Data (through 201) 

GPA 
% who Met or Exceeded the Standard on 

CAASPP % of AP 
Exams with 3, 
4, or 5 Class 

Junior 
High 

High 
School 

7th 
ELA 

7th 
Math 

8th 
ELA 

8th 
Math 

11th 
ELA 

11th 
Math 

2017 2.62 2.758 
83% 
(n=6) 

50% 
(n=6) 88% (n=16) 

2018 2.45 2.74 67% (n=3) 

2019 3.057 3.331 60% 50% 

17 

175



 

   

     
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

     
 
 

 
           

                   

                   
 
  

 
 

 
 

      

               
               

                        
                        
                        
                        

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

      

        

        

       

       

       

      

 

 

(n=10) (n=10) 

75% 50% 75% 38% 
2020 2.494 (n=8) (n=8) (n=8) (n=8) 

29% 29% 
2021 2.401 (n=7) (n=7) 

2022 

2023 

5.PCS SWXdenW DiYeUViW\ ReVXlWV 
Ke\ VWXdenW diYeUViW\ caWegoUieV aUe combined foU comSaUiVon. 

Total Enrollment* FTC Students** Hispanic Students 

545 75  13.8% 
537 83  15.5% 

2016-2017 522 54  10.3% 80  15.3% 
2015-2016 518 55  10.6% 74  14.3% 
2014-2015 508 63  12.4% 82  16.1% 
2013-2014 504 61  12.1% 70  13.9% 

FTC (FiUVW Wo College) and HiVSanic VWXdenW daWa aUe Velf-UeSoUWed; HiVSanic VWXdenWV UeSoUWed aV 
HiVSanic/LaWino. 
*  SWaUWing enUollmenW aV of Whe fiUVW WedneVda\ of each OcWobeU. 
** FTC VWXdenWV admiWWed WhUoXgh Vibling SUefeUence, FTC loWWeU\, geneUal loWWeU\, and afWeU 7Wh 

gUade combined. 

6.2017-2018 EWhnic DiYeUViW\ Inde[ - SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ SchoolV 

School Ethnic Diversity Index Enrollment 

San Lorenzo Valley High 23 726 

San Lorenzo Valley Middle 26 538 

Scotts Valley High 32 802 

Scotts Valley Middle 30 562 

PacLfLc CROOeJLaWe ScKRRO 34 537 

Aptos High 40 1,478 

18 

176



 

       

       

      

      

      

     
                  

   

 
  

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 

Mission Hill Middle 44 615 

Santa Cruz High 40 1,062 

Branciforte Middle 42 482 

Soquel High 42 1,155 

Harbor High 40 926 

All Santa Cruz County public schools 39 40,393 

2017-2018 VcoUeV fUom Whe CalifoUnia DeSaUWmenW of EdXcaWion¶V (CDE) VWaWe-Zide EWhnic 
DiYeUViW\ Inde[ (EDI) Zeb ViWe (hWWS://ZZZ.ed-daWa.oUg/) foU VelecWed SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ 
middle and high VchoolV. The CDE Uecogni]eV VeYen Uacial  caWegoUieV. EDI YalXeV cloVe Wo 
100 indicaWe a Vchool haV a faiUl\ eYen diVWUibXWion of VWXdenWV among Whe VeYen caWegoUieV. 
NXmbeUV cloVeU Wo 0 indicaWe WhaW VWXdenWV aUe SUedominanWl\ fUom a Vingle Uacial gUoXS. 

FoU Whe MaUch 2011 admiVVionV SUoceVV, PCS UeceiYed 24 aSSlicaWionV foU Whe PiloW FTC 
LoWWeU\.  WiWh 56 VeaWV aYailable in 7Wh gUade in 2011, Whe PUinciSal diUecWed Vchool VWaff Wo VeW 
aVide Vi[ VeaWV foU PiloW FTC LoWWeU\ aSSlicanWV, leaYing 18 on Whe PiloW FTC LoWWeU\ ZaiW-liVW.
 FoXU of Whe 24 PiloW LoWWeU\ aSSlicanWV ZeUe of HiVSanic oUigin.  One of Whe ZaiW-liVWed PiloW FTC 
LoWWeU\ aSSlicanWV ZaV admiWWed Wo Whe 7Wh GUade Yia Whe laUgeU geneUal loWWeU\ and WZo moUe of 
Whe PiloW FTC LoWWeU\ aSSlicanWV ZeUe VXbVeTXenWl\ admiWWed Wo 7Wh gUade fUom Whe UegXlaU 
ZaiW-liVW in Whe monWhV folloZing Whe loWWeU\.  The oXWcome ZaV WhaW nine of Whe 24 VWXdenWV Zho 
VoXghW admiVVion Wo PCS Yia Whe PiloW FTC LoWWeU\ SUogUam eaUned VeaWV in 7Wh gUade foU Whe 
2011-2012 Vchool \eaU; one moUe enWeUed SoVW-loWWeU\ foU a WoWal of 10 FTC VWXdenWV.  DeVSiWe 
WhaW oXWcome, Whe UeVXlW of Whe loWWeU\ ZaV WhaW none of Whe HiVSanic aSSlicanWV ZeUe offeUed 
admiVVion WhUoXgh Whe combined loWWeU\ SUoceVV. 

RegaUding FTC VWXdenW UeWenWion foU WhiV iniWial FTC loWWeU\ cohoUW, Vi[ of Whe iniWial 10 
VWXdenWV haYe conWinXed on Wo become cXUUenW VenioUV (in Whe cXUUenW 2016-2017 Vchool \eaU), a 
60 SeUcenW UeWenWion Zhich iV idenWical Wo Whe UeWenWion foU WhiV VenioU claVV aV a Zhole VWaUWing 
fUom 7Wh gUade.  HoZeYeU, iW VhoXld be Uecogni]ed WhaW one oU a feZ VWXdenWV in VXch a Vmall 
gUoXS haV a laUge effecW on Whe SeUcenWage calcXlaWionV and WhaW \eaU-Wo-\eaU WUendV aUe moUe 
VignificanW Whan an\ one \eaU SeUcenWage.  IW VhoXld alVo be Uecogni]ed WhaW VWXdenWV leaYe VchoolV 
foU a YaUieW\ of UeaVonV, Vome be\ond WheiU conWUol oU academic SeUfoUmance. 

The oXWcome of Whe MaUch 2012 FTC LoWWeU\ ZaV TXiWe diffeUenW.  PCS UeceiYed 21 

19 

177

http://www.ed-data.org/)
http://www.ed-data.org/)


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
     

 

  
   
  
   

 
  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

   
  

  
 

  
  
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

   
   

  
  

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

aSSlicaWionV foU Whe Vecond FTC LoWWeU\, 10 of Zhich came fUom aSSlicanWV of HiVSanic oUigin. 
WiWh 50 VeaWV aYailable in 7Wh gUade in 2012, Whe PUinciSal diUecWed Vchool VWaff Wo VeW aVide fiYe 
VeaWV foU FTC LoWWeU\ aSSlicanWV, leaYing 16 on Whe FTC LoWWeU\ ZaiWliVW.  Of Whe fiYe FTC 
LoWWeU\ aSSlicanWV admiWWed, WhUee ZeUe HiVSanic.  FiYe of Whe VWXdenWV Zho ZeUe ZaiWliVWed foU 
Whe FTC LoWWeU\ ZeUe VXbVeTXenWl\ admiWWed WhUoXgh Whe geneUal loWWeU\.  ThXV, 10 of Whe 21 
aSSlicanWV Wo PCS Yia Whe FTC LoWWeU\ SUogUam (eighW of Zhom Velf-idenWified aV HiVSanic) 
eaUned VeaWV in Whe 2012-2013 incoming 7Wh gUade claVV.  ThaW UeSUeVenWV a VWaWiVWicall\ diVWincW 
UeVXlW, aV comSaUed Wo Whe incoming 7Wh gUade claVV geneUall\, and VXggeVWV WhaW Whe FTC LoWWeU\ 
SUojecW (Zhich Zill affecW Whe cXlWXUal and Vocio-economic diYeUViW\ of Whe Vchool b\ admiWWing on 
a SUefeUenWial baViV a cohoUW of VWXdenWV WhaW ZoXld be Whe fiUVW in WheiU famil\ Wo aWWend college) 
alVo iV haYing an imSacW on Uacial and eWhnic diYeUViW\ aW PCS.  ReWenWion daWa foU WhiV cohoUW, 
and fXWXUe cohoUWV, Zill be inclXded in fXWXUe UeSoUWV. 

D.WASC POaQ DiYeUViW\ GRaOV 

AcWion IWem 2: IncUeaVe academic VXSSoUW Wo FiUVW Wo College (FTC) VWXdenWV 

TaVNV ReVSRQVLbOeb 
PaUWLeV 

PURJUeVVb 
AVVeVVPeQWV 

TLPeOLQ 
e 

PURJUeVV ReSRUWV 

Establish baseline 
metrics for FTC 
student academic 
tracking to be 
collected, 
compiled and 
evaluated 
annually 

Administration 
Outreach 
Coordinator 
Diversity 
Committee 
Faculty 

Creation of a 
template for 
data 
collection 

2015 to 
2016 
ongoing 

Annual report to 
the Governing 
Board created by 
the 
Administration 

Survey parents of 
FTC students 
annually to 
determine 
effectiveness of 
systems and 
support 

Administration 
Outreach 
Coordinator 
Diversity 
Committee 

Create survey 
Compile data 

2015 to 
2016 
ongoin 
g 

Annual report to 
the Governing 
Board created by 
the 
Administration 

Analyze metrics and Administration FTC support 2015 to Annual report to 
survey results and Outreach plan 2016 the Governing 
make adjustments Coordinator ongoin Board created by 
to provide Diversity g the 
appropriate Committee Administration 

20 

178



 

   
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

 

support for FTC 
Students 

Faculty 

E.2015-2018 SWUaWegic POaQ DiYeUViW\ GRaOV 

2. FRVWeU a SRVLWLYe VcKRRO cXOWXUe WR eQKaQce VWXdeQW eQJaJePeQW. 
2-B. CRQWLQXe WR LQcUeaVe dLYeUVLW\ aW eYeU\ OeYeO ZLWKLQ WKe VcKRRO cRPPXQLW\. 

21 

179



 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

VII. ASSeQdL[ B ± DeWaLOed ReYLeZ RI PaVW DLYeUVLW\ POaQV 

ReYieZ Rf 2006-2011 DiYeUViW\ POaQ aQd PURgUeVV 

The oUiginal 2006-2011 DiYeUViW\ Plan inclXded Vi[ elemenWV.  ThoVe elemenWV, and Whe 
SUogUeVV made on  WhoVe ideaV Vince WhaW Wime, aUe aV folloZV: 

1.ReWenWion of OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU.  In JanXaU\ of 2007, PCS cUeaWed and fXnded a Said 
VWaff SoViWion foU an OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU. The oUiginal PCS OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU VeUYed in WhaW 
caSaciW\ XnWil Whe end of Whe 2015-2016 Vchool \eaU.  The DiYeUViW\ CommiWWee e[Sended 
VignificanW effoUWV on UecUXiWmenW foU WhiV SoViWion in Whe fall of 2016, Zhich UeVXlWed in Whe hiUing 
of a neZ OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU in DecembeU 2016. 

2.CUeaWion of DiYeUViW\ OYeUVighW CommiWWee.  In 2006, a DiYeUViW\ OYeUVighW CommiWWee 
ZaV cUeaWed and emSaneled aV an adYiVoU\ commiWWee UeSoUWing Wo Whe PCS BoaUd of DiUecWoUV.
 The DiYeUViW\ OYeUVighW CommiWWee UeSlaced Whe DiYeUViW\ TaVk FoUce, Zhich had been foUmed 
in 2005, Zhich ZaV SUeceded b\ Whe DiYeUViW\ EdXcaWion and OXWUeach CommiWWee, eVWabliVhed in 
2004.  The DiYeUViW\ OYeUVighW CommiWWee conWinXeV Wo meeW monWhl\ and inclXdeV Whe OXWUeach 
CooUdinaWoU and Vchool SUinciSal. 

3.DeYeloSmenW of PCS CommXniW\ OXWUeach PUogUam.  The PCS CommXniW\ OXWUeach 
SUogUam VWaUWed immediaWel\ and haV inclXded diVVeminaWion of infoUmaWion aboXW PCS and 
XScoming eYenWV WhUoXgh Whe Vchool ZebViWe and local neZVSaSeUV and oWheU meanV.  The 
OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU haV VXSeUYiVed Whe diVVeminaWion of infoUmaWion Wo aUea VchoolV, 
commXniW\ cenWeUV, libUaUieV, afWeU-Vchool SUogUamV, healWh clinicV, UeligioXV inVWiWXWionV, local 
bXVineVVeV, and oWheU SlaceV ZheUe VWXdenW familieV of diYeUVe backgUoXndV mighW be Ueached.6

 The OXWUeach CooUdinaWoU haV aWWended a Zide YaUieW\ of commXniW\ eYenWV Wo UaiVe aZaUeneVV 
of PCS and Whe SUocedXUeV foU admiVVion.  PCS haV deYeloSed commXniW\ SaUWneUVhiSV Wo 
faciliWaWe SoViWiYe inWeUacWionV beWZeen PCS VWXdenWV and VWaff and SanWa CUX] commXniW\ 
membeUV, inclXding WXWoUing, menWoUing, and oWheU commXniW\ VeUYice SUojecWV.7  PUioU Wo Whe 
annXal admiVVionV loWWeU\, Zhich iV W\Sicall\ held in MaUch, PCS condXcWV aW leaVW WhUee 
infoUmaWion meeWingV foU VWXdenWV and WheiU familieV. TheVe meeWingV aUe Zidel\ adYeUWiVed in 
EngliVh aV Zell aV SSaniVh, and SSaniVh langXage inWeUSUeWaWion iV aYailable aW each meeWing.  All 
liWeUaWXUe, handoXWV and PoZeUPoinW SUeVenWaWionV aUe WUanVlaWed inWo SSaniVh. The PCS ZebViWe 
haV a WUanVlaWion feaWXUe Vo WhaW Whe ZebViWe maWeUial can be inVWanWl\ conYeUWed Wo SSaniVh.  PCS 
alVo haV VWaff membeUV Zho aUe flXenW SSaniVh VSeakeUV Zho can VXSSoUW SUoVSecWiYe familieV 
and VWXdenWV ZiWh Whe aSSlicaWion SUoceVV. The online admiVVion aSSlicaWion iV aYailable in boWh 
SSaniVh and EngliVh and haUd coSieV of boWh aSSlicaWionV aUe aYailable on camSXV foU WhoVe noW 
able Wo acceVV infoUmaWion Yia Whe InWeUneW. 

6 

7 

22 

180



 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

 

4.DeYeloSmenW of PiloW ³FiUVW Wo College¶¶(FTC) PUogUam AffecWing PCS LoWWeU\. The 
combinaWion of oSen SXblic acceVV and high academic VWandaUdV haV UeVXlWed in VignificanWl\ 
moUe demand foU PCS admiVVion Whan WheUe aUe VSaceV aYailable foU VWXdenWV.  PXUVXanW Wo 
CalifoUnia SWaWe chaUWeU Vchool laZ, PCS holdV an annXal SXblic loWWeU\ foU admiVVionV.  The 
loWWeU\ iV Zidel\ SXblici]ed, oSen Wo all - WheUe aUe no WeVWV and no aSSlicaWion feeV - and iV 
comSleWel\ WUanVSaUenW.8 

In Whe VSUing of 2009, Whe PCS BoaUd of DiUecWoUV aSSUoYed a SUoSoVal foU a SiloW loWWeU\ 
SUogUam Wo addUeVV VWXdenW diYeUViW\.  The PCS PiloW FTC LoWWeU\ SWXd\ began ZiWh Whe 
admiVVion loWWeU\ foU Whe 2011-2012 Vchool \eaU.  The SUogUam VeW aVide eiWheU 10% of aYailable 
VloWV oU fiYe VeaWV, ZhicheYeU nXmbeU ZaV gUeaWeU, foU aSSlicanWV Wo 7Wh gUade Zho ZoXld be Whe 
fiUVW in WheiU famil\ Wo aWWend college.  (FoU SXUSoVeV of WhiV SUogUam, a µfiUVW-geneUaWion 
college-boXnd¶ aSSlicanW iV defined aV one ZhoVe SaUenWV¶ oU chief gXaUdianV¶ higheVW leYel of 
edXcaWion iV leVV Whan an AVVociaWe¶V DegUee.)  AlVo, VWXdenWV aSSl\ing WhUoXgh Whe FTC loWWeU\ 
Zho ZeUe noW admiWWed ZeUe When added Wo Whe geneUal loWWeU\, effecWiYel\ giYing Whem WZo 
chanceV aW admiVVion.  FoU Whe 2011-2012 \eaU, Whe FTC LoWWeU\ UeceiYed VWUong inWeUeVW bXW Whe 
oXWcome of Whe loWWeU\ did noW diUecWl\ UeVXlW in an incUeaVe of HiVSanic VWXdenW admiVVionV.
 HoZeYeU, Whe folloZing \eaU, Whe FTC LoWWeU\ did incUeaVe Whe admiVVion of HiVSanic VWXdenWV.
 (See VecWion VII.C.) 

5.PUogUamV foU SWXdenW SXSSoUW.  Since aSSUo[imaWel\ 2004, PCS VWaff haYe been 
meeWing monWhl\ Wo idenWif\ aW-UiVk VWXdenWV and SUoYide Whem ZiWh Whe aSSUoSUiaWe 
UeVoXUceV/VXSSoUW.  AW WheVe meeWingV, WeacheUV VhaUe obVeUYaWionV aboXW VWXdenWV and deYeloS 
acWion SlanV foU VXSSoUW.  In Vome caVeV, VWXdenWV aUe UefeUUed Wo Whe SWXdenW SXSSoUW Team foU 
addiWional VXSSoUW.9  SWXd\ hall iV aYailable foU VWXdenWV befoUe and afWeU Vchool and WhUoXghoXW 
Whe da\, ZiWh comSXWeUV aYailable.  PeeU WXWoUV, VXSeUYiVed b\ a membeU of Whe facXlW\, aUe 
aYailable in afWeUnoon VWXd\ hall Monda\-ThXUVda\ XnWil 4:30 S.m.  

In 2011, PCS Uefined iWV ³7Wh/8Wh Academic SXSSoUW´ SoViWion, a job WhaW focXVeV 
e[clXViYel\ on ZoUking ZiWh 7Wh and 8Wh gUade VWXdenWV Zho need addiWional helS oXWVide of Whe 
claVVUoom.  The SoViWion had oUiginall\ been coXSled ZiWh claVVUoom Weaching.  AlVo in 2011, 
PCS imSlemenWed an adYiVoU\ V\VWem VWUXcWXUed aUoXnd 35-minXWe SeUiodV eYeU\ FUida\ and 
eYeU\ oWheU TXeVda\.  AdYiVoU\ SeUiodV SUoYided VWXdenWV ZiWh a Vafe, inYiWing Slace Wo bXild a 
UelaWionVhiS ZiWh SeeUV and an adXlW aW Whe Vchool (eiWheU a WeacheU oU adminiVWUaWoU) Zho ZaV 
WheUe Wo Walk aboXW VXbjecWV oXWVide of Whe UegXlaU cXUUicXlXm.  The fXncWion of adYiVoU\ ZaV, 
among oWheU WhingV, Wo enVXUe WhaW no VWXdenW ³VliSV WhUoXgh Whe cUackV.´ AdYiVoUV ZeUe UeTXiUed 
Wo do UegXlaU, one-on-one check-inV ZiWh VWXdenWV SeUWaining Wo boWh academic and Vocial iVVXeV.
 AV diVcXVVed beloZ, in Whe 2015-2016 Vchool \eaU, Whe AdYiVoU\ SUogUam ZaV changed Wo a 
SeminaU SUogUam. 

8 

9 

23 

181



 

 
 

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 

In Whe 2010-2011 Vchool \eaU, Whe MaWh DeSaUWmenW began offeUing dUoS-in afWeU-Vchool 
WXWoUial SUogUamV VWaffed b\ YolXnWeeU facXlW\, and Whe SUogUam cXUUenWl\ oSeUaWeV on Monda\V 
and TXeVda\V afWeU Vchool.  Man\ VWXdenWV aUe officiall\ UefeUUed Wo Whe SUogUam, bXW VWXdenWV 
haYe alVo oSWed Wo aWWend. The SUogUam¶V oUgani]eUV WUack Whe aWWendance of VWXdenWV, and iW iV 
VSecificall\ aimed aW imSUoYing achieYemenW in maWh. 

6.School CXlWXUe and MenWoUing.  A laWe VXmmeU SUogUam called Academic BaVe CamS 
ZaV inVWiWXWed in Whe VXmmeU of 2005 and conWinXeV Wo be offeUed Wo inWUodXce VWXdenWV Wo Whe 
PCS enYiUonmenW and SUeSaUe VWXdenWV foU Whe UigoUoXV cXUUicXlXm in 7Wh gUade.  T\Sicall\ 
VWaUWing aboXW WhUee ZeekV befoUe Whe fiUVW da\ of claVVeV, BaVe CamS WaUgeWV aSSUo[imaWel\ 50 
incoming 7Wh gUade VWXdenWV Zho, baVed on aVVeVVmenWV in MaWh and EngliVh adminiVWeUed 
dXUing Whe SUeYioXV VSUing, haYe been idenWified aV SoWenWiall\ needing VXSSoUW in one oU boWh of 
WheVe cUiWical academic aUeaV.  SWXdenWV meeW in WZo EngliVh claVVeV and WZo MaWh claVVeV, 
UeYieZing VkillV and VWUaWegieV ZiWh foXU membeUV of Whe PCS facXlW\.  MoVW BaVe CamS 
SaUWiciSanWV deVcUibe Whe e[SeUience aV imSoUWanW Wo haYing a VXcceVVfXl laXnch aW PCS.  DeVSiWe 
Whe loVV of VWaWe fXnding foU Whe SUogUam, PCS conWinXeV Wo bXdgeW foU Whe BaVe CamS e[SeUience. 
AV diVcXVVed beloZ, BaVe CamS ZaV e[Sanded in 2015 Wo VXSSoUW high Vchool VWXdenWV enUolled 
in AP claVVeV. 

Beginning in Whe 2012-2013 Vchool \eaU, PCS offeUed incoming 7Wh gUade VWXdenWV an 
elecWiYe coXUVe called SWXd\ SkillV & Technolog\ (SST).  The coXUVe focXVed on Whe inWUodXcWion 
and SUacWice of Whe W\SeV of academic WaVkV VWXdenWV can, and VhoXld, e[SecW Wo encoXnWeU dXUing 
WheiU Wime aW PCS.  Finding WhaW iW ZaV an imSoUWanW SaUW of a VXcceVVfXl adjXVWmenW Wo Whe PCS 
SUogUam, Whe SST coXUVe became mandaWoU\ foU incoming 7Wh gUadeUV in Whe ne[W Vchool \eaU.  

PCS SaUWiciSaWeV in Whe naWionZide WEB (³WheUe EYeU\one BelongV´) PUogUam, an 
oUgani]aWion ZhoVe SXUSoVe iV Wo helS VWXdenWV feel moUe comfoUWable aV Zell aV helS Whem 
achieYe VXcceVV in WheiU fiUVW \eaU of PCS.  The WEB 7Wh gUade oUienWaWion and WUanViWion 
SUogUam iV deVigned Wo boWh Zelcome and VXSSoUW 7Wh gUadeUV b\ aVVigning Whem a high Vchool 
WEB LeadeU aV a menWoU dXUing WhiV fiUVW \eaU.  ThiV WEB LeadeU iV a UeVSonVible oldeU VWXdenW 
Zho ZaV hand VelecWed fUom a laUge Sool of aSSlicanWV and haV meW Whe TXalificaWionV of being a 
good Uole model and a SoViWiYe leadeU on oXU camSXV. 

2011-2015 DiYeUViW\ POaQ aQd PURgUeVV 

The 2011-2015 DiYeUViW\ Plan idenWified  fiYe meaVXUeV PCS ZoXld eYalXaWe and SXUVXe. 
10  ThoVe meaVXUeV, and Whe SUogUeVV made on each, iV aV folloZV: 

1.ConWinXed ImSUoYemenW of OXWUeach EffoUWV.  The PCS CommXniW\ OXWUeach SUogUam 
haV conWinXed Wo find neZ Za\V Wo Ueach diYeUVe commXniWieV.  In 2014, PCS eVWabliVhed a 

10 

24 

182



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

WXWoUing SUogUam ZiWh BaUUioV UnidoV.  ChildUen in gUadeV kindeUgaUWen Wo 12Wh gUade Zho 
SaUWiciSaWe in BaUUioV UnidoV aUe WUanVSoUWed Wo PCS WZo da\V a Zeek, ZheUe VWXdenWV SUoYide 
WXWoUing and PCS VWaff SUoYide academic aVVeVVmenWV.  DXUing Whe 2014-2015 Vchool \eaU, 
aSSUo[imaWel\ 20 VWXdenWV fUom Whe Beach FlaWV commXniW\ SaUWiciSaWed.  DXUing Whe 2015-2016 
\eaU, aboXW 20 VWXdenWV fUom Beach FlaWV and an addiWional 20 VWXdenWV fUom Whe LiYe Oak 
commXniW\ SaUWiciSaWed and WheUe ZaV a ZaiWliVW of aboXW Whe Vame nXmbeUV fUom each 
commXniW\ Wo join Whe SUogUam, Whe WoWal nXmbeU SaUWiciSaWing being limiWed dXe Wo WUanVSoUWaWion 
iVVXeV.  The SUogUam haV been a WUemendoXV VXcceVV, alWhoXgh BaUUioV UnidoV haV foXnd iW 
challenging Wo conWinXe WUanVSoUWaWion fXnding.11  In conjXncWion ZiWh Whe WXWoUing SUogUam, PCS 
haV been inYolYed in SoWlXck commXniW\ eYenWV ZiWh BaUUioV UnidoV SaUenWV.  The eYenWV haYe 
been aW boWh PCS and in Whe Beach FlaWV CommXniW\ CenWeU.12  ThUoXgh boWh Whe WXWoUing 
SUogUam and Whe commXniW\ eYenWV, familieV Zho mighW noW haYe eYen been aZaUe of PCS haYe 
noZ been inWUodXced Wo PCS in a SoViWiYe and Zelcoming manneU, and Vome of WhoVe familieV 
haYe aSSlied foU Whe PCS loWWeU\.13 

2.ImSUoYemenW and RefinemenW of MenWoUing and SXSSoUW of SWXdenWV and FamilieV.  The 
PCS TXWoUial SUogUam ZaV inVWiWXWed in 2014 and haV been Zidel\ XWili]ed b\ VWXdenWV foU 
academic VXSSoUW.  DXUing TXWoUial SeUiodV, Zhich aUe on WedneVda\V and ThXUVda\V, VWXdenWV 
ma\ dUoS in and conVXlW ZiWh an\ WeacheU foU helS in making XS miVVed ZoUk and foU e[WUa 
aVViVWance in aUeaV ZheUe Whe VWXdenW ma\ be VWUXggling.  In 2015, PCS inWUodXced Whe SeminaU 
SUogUam (UeSlacing Whe AdYiVoU\ SUogUam) in Zhich PCS facXlW\ and VWaff Weach once-a-Zeek 
³coXUVeV´ on WoSicV of inWeUeVW Wo Whem and VWXdenWV.  The coXUVeV haYe been e[WUemel\ diYeUVe, 
inclXding \oga, Yegan baking, boaUd gameV, cUeaWiYe ZUiWing, ShiloVoSh\, a caSella, docXmenWaU\ 
anal\ViV, joXUnaliVm, and kniWWing.  SWXdenWV VelecW WheiU SeminaU each VemeVWeU and geW Whe 
oSSoUWXniW\ Wo knoZ a facXlW\ oU VWaff membeU on a moUe SeUVonal leYel.  ThiV SUogUam haV been 
SoSXlaU ZiWh VWXdenWV and conWinXeV Whe VSiUiW of Whe AdYiVoU\ SUogUam in WhaW iW foVWeUV 
UelaWionVhiSV beWZeen VWXdenWV and facXlW\ membeUV. 

In 2015, PCS began a SUogUam called Whe AP BaVe CamS Wo helS incoming 10Wh WhUoXgh 
12Wh gUade VWXdenWV SUeSaUe foU Whe AdYanced PlacemenW (AP) coXUVeV and e[amV VSecificall\ 
and Whe incUeaVed academic e[SecWaWionV of Whe XSSeU gUadeV in geneUal.  The AP BaVe CamS iV 
an 8-da\ SUogUam held oYeU Whe VXmmeU foU WZo hoXUV SeU da\.  The SUogUam focXVeV on Whe 
VkillV of Ueading a We[Wbook, oXWlining, and SUeSaUing foU TXi]]eV/aVVeVVmenWV.  US Wo 50 VWXdenWV 
ma\ enUoll, and SUefeUence iV giYen Wo neZ VWXdenWV aV Zell aV WhoVe Uecommended b\ WeacheUV. 

College TeVW PUeS UeVoXUceV ZeUe offeUed foU Whe SAT and ACT WeVWV beginning in Whe 
2014-2015 Vchool \eaU, and in 2015 WheVe UeVoXUceV became fUee Wo all VWXdenWV.  The PCS 
college coXnVeloU SUoYideV financial aid ZoUkVhoSV foU SaUenWV and helSV familieV SUeSaUe Whe 
FUee ASSlicaWion foU FedeUal SWXdenW Aid (FAFSA). 

11 

12 

13 

25 

183

https://loWWeU\.13
https://CenWeU.12
https://fXnding.11


 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

3.EYalXaWion and RefinemenW of LoWWeU\.  In 2014, Whe PCS BoaUd of DiUecWoUV 
SeUmanenWl\ adoSWed Whe FTC LoWWeU\, baVed on Whe UeVXlWV of Whe PCS FTC PiloW LoWWeU\ SWXd\, 
ZiWh amendmenWV adoSWed folloZing diVcXVVionV dXUing Whe COE BoaUd of EdXcaWion TUXVWeeV¶ 
ChaUWeU School CommiWWee meeWing on OcWobeU 7, 2014.  PXUVXanW Wo Whe OcWobeU 2014 
amendmenWV, Whe admiVVion UeVeUYe foU FTC VWXdenWV Zill incUeaVe fUom 10 SeUcenW Wo 15 SeUcenW 
in incUemenWV of one SeUcenW SeU \eaU foU fiYe \eaUV VWaUWing in Whe 2015-2016 Vchool \eaU.  ThiV 
Zill UeVXlW in Whe folloZing admiVVionV UeVeUYeV: 11 SeUcenW foU Whe 2015-2016 Vchool \eaU, 12 
SeUcenW foU Whe 2016-2017 Vchool \eaU, 13 SeUcenW foU Whe 2017-2018 Vchool \eaU, 14 SeUcenW foU 
Whe 2018-2019 Vchool \eaU, and 15 SeUcenW foU Whe 2019-2020 Vchool \eaU, afWeU Zhich iW Zill 
Uemain aW 15 SeUcenW. 

4.EYalXaWion of PoVVible SXmmeU Academic CamS.  DXUing Whe 2012-2013 Vchool \eaU, 
PCS eYalXaWed Whe feaVibiliW\ of offeUing a neZ academic VXmmeU camS dXUing Whe VXmmeU 
monWhV, foU VWXdenWV Zho had comSleWed 5Wh gUade.  The SUoSoVed camS ZoXld focXV on 
deYeloSing baVic VWXd\ VkillV neceVVaU\ foU long WeUm academic VXcceVV, ZiWh an emShaViV on 
VkillV aSSUoSUiaWe Wo Whe 6Wh gUade, and iW ZoXld SUoYide a Uoad maS Wo Whe PCS academic 
SUogUam and Vchool cXlWXUe.  HoZeYeU, ZiWh Whe faciliW\ moYe, Whe logiVWical SUeSaUaWion ZaV SXW 
on hold.  ThiV SUogUam iV VWill being conVideUed. 

5.PXUVXiW of OSSoUWXniWieV foU CXlWXUal EnUichmenW.  The 2011-2015 Slan Uecogni]ed WhaW 
Whe PCS e[SeUience haV been enUiched b\ academic and e[WUacXUUicXlaU SUogUamV focXVed on Whe 
aSSUeciaWion of diYeUVe cXlWXUeV and SeoSleV, b\ VWXdenWV fUom oWheU coXnWUieV Zho aWWend PCS, 
and b\ Whe e[SeUienceV of PCS VWXdenWV Zho SaUWiciSaWe in SUogUamV foU WUaYel and VWXd\ abUoad.
 The Slan enYiVioned Whe eYalXaWion of SoWenWial "ViVWeU VchoolV" and oWheU oSSoUWXniWieV foU 
leaUning acUoVV inWeUnaWional boUdeUV.  DXUing WhaW Wime SeUiod, PCS began hoVWing moUe foUeign 
e[change VWXdenWV and offeUing a foUmal VWXdenW e[change ZiWh a Vchool in DenmaUk and a 
Vchool in Chile.  PCS alVo began offeUing foXU ZoUld langXageV, ZiWh an incUeaVing focXV on 
cXlWXUe, aV SeU Whe changing AP cXUUicXlXm. 

26 

184



 

 

  
   

 
 
 
 

 

 
   

 

 
          

      
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

       
       

 
    

 

̛ 

PacĢfĢc CŋķķeėĢaŶe ScĞŋŋķ̛ 
A Public Charter School̛ 

September 20, 2020 

AQQXal PlaQ fRU SSecial NeedV, SecWiRQ 504, aQd EL SWXdeQWV 

I. SWXdeQWV WiWh SSecial NeedV 

A. PURgUaP DeVcUiSWiRQ 
In addressing program effectiveness and educational benefit for students with special needs 
receiving special education services at Pacific Collegiate School (PCS), educators ascribe to 
fundamental measurement practices of student outcome, as outlined b\ the California 
Department of Education. 

As students progress through the referral to assessment processes, as outlined within the PCS 
charter document, and are determined to meet Special Education eligibilit\ criteria due to 
identified unique needs, measurable goals are developed through the Individual Education Plan 
(IEP) process. These goals are designed specificall\ to address the unique learning needs of the 
student as expressed through the assessment results and are paired with the appropriate 
supportive services.  Services are then planned to support progress in all goals developed and 
in the general curriculum.  In addition, such services are designed so that students are able to 
participate in extracurricular/non-academic activities and be educated with peers both with and 
without disabilities.  With each review period (i.e., grading periods, Annual and Triennial IEP 
reviews), the special needs student¶s progress is assessed relative to overall academic progress 
and needed accommodations, and program adjustments are made accordingl\. 

In determining educational benefit, PCS also operates under the l982 RRZle\ decision. 
Through special education instruction, PCS guarantees no specific outcome for an individual 
student, but the instruction must approximate grade level standards and provide educational 
benefit for that student under the provision of µFree Appropriate Public Education¶ (FAPE). 

In reasonabl\ calculating the educational benefit for the identified student once the defined 
special education service(s) are implemented, assessment of benefit is made through a range 
of practices/measures. Consideration is given to the student: 

3004 MiVViRn SWUeeW, SanWa CUX], CA 95060 
P:(831) 479-7785 F:(831) 427-5254 ZZZ.SacificcRllegiaWe.cRm 

Page 1 of 7 

185



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

   
          
         

       
     

         
        

 
          
            

      
         

           
            

             
  

        
         
      

            
       

            
    

           
  

            
 

 
    

 

∙ Achieving passing grades (C- or above), 
∙ Advancing from grade to grade, 
∙ Meeting goals defined within the IEP, 
∙ Improving scores on district and statewide assessments, 
∙ Graduating with a diploma. 

Confounding factors also taken into consideration include the student¶s individual needs, 
abilit\ level, and overall potential.  For each student, however, the IEP Team must consider 
educational benefits on a case-b\-case basis. Through practice and procedures, adjustments 
are made accordingl\ for each student.  In various instances, alternative steps taken b\ the 
IEP Team in assisting the student to achieve educational benefit have included: 

∙ Re̢addʓeʔʔiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ gʐalʔ̡ 
∙ Pʓʐʗidiʏg ʕeacheʓʔ ʘiʕh ʖʑdaʕed Sʕʖdeʏʕ Pʓʐfile Sheeʕʔ̡ ʘhich defiʏeʔ ʕhe 

ʔʕʖdeʏʕʪʔ caʔe maʏageʓ̡ Sʑ̣ Eḍ Pʓʐʗideʓ̝ʔ̡̞ ʔeʓʗice̝ʔ̡̞ diʔabiliʕʚ̡ maʏifeʔʕaʕiʐʏ 
ʐf ʕhe diʔabiliʕʚ̡ ʓecʐmmeʏded accʐmmʐdaʕiʐʏʔ̡ diʔʕʓicʕ̤ʔʕaʕe ʕeʔʕiʏg 
accʐmmʐdaʕiʐʏʔ̡ ʑʓʐjecʕed IEP meeʕiʏg daʕe̡ 

∙ Pʓʐʗidiʏg ʐʏ̢gʐiʏg cʐllabʐʓaʕiʐʏ beʕʘeeʏ ʕhe ʔʑecial edʖcaʕʐʓ aʏd geʏeʓal 
edʖcaʕʐʓ iʏ mʐʏiʕʐʓiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʑʓʐgʓeʔʔ aʏd imʑlemeʏʕiʏg defiʏed 
accʐmmʐdaʕiʐʏʔ̡ 

∙ Haʗiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ aʕʕeʏd ʔʖbjecʕ leʗel ʔʖʑʑʐʓʕ ʔeʔʔiʐʏʔ afʕeʓ ʔchʐʐl̡ 
∙ Haʗiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ meeʕ ʘiʕh ʕhe cʐʓe ʕeacheʓ̝ʔ̞ dʖʓiʏg Tʖʕʐʓial Peʓiʐdʔ aʏd ʐffice 

hʐʖʓʔ fʐʓ iʏdiʗidʖal ʔʖʑʑʐʓʕ aʏd ʕʖʕʐʓiʏg̡ 
∙ Imʑlemeʏʕiʏg ʗaʓiʐʖʔ accʐmmʐdaʕiʐʏʔ ʘiʕhiʏ ʕhe geʏeʓal claʔʔ eʏʗiʓʐʏmeʏʕ̡ ʔʖch 

aʔ̡ bʖʕ ʏʐʕ limiʕed ʕʐ̡ ʑʓefeʓeʏʕial ʔeʕʕiʏg̡ ʖʔiʏg cʐmʑʖʕeʓiʛed ʕechʏʐlʐgʚ aʏd 
ʔʖʑʑlemeʏʕal maʕeʓialʔ̡ YʐʖTʖbe aʔ ʘell aʔ CDʔ aʏd DVDʔ ʕʐ ʔʖʑʑlemeʏʕ cʐʓe 
ʕeʙʕ̡ eʙʕeʏded ʕime ʐʏ ʕeʔʕʔ aʏd ʑʓʐjecʕʔ̡ ʕeʔʕ ʓeʕakeʔ̡ ʐʓal ʕeʔʕiʏg fleʙible ʕeʔʕiʏg 
eʏʗiʓʐʏmeʏʕʔ̡ eʕc̡̣ 

∙ Haʗiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ cʐmʑleʕe ʔʕʖdʚ ʑackeʕʔ fʐʓ cʐʓe ʔʖbjecʕʔ̡ 
∙ Haʗiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʖʔe diffeʓeʏʕiaʕed leaʓʏiʏg ʕeʙʕʔ̡ ʘʐʓkbʐʐkʔ̡ aʏd ʕeʔʕʔ̡ 
∙ Haʗiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʓeʕake a failed claʔʔ̡ 
∙ Allʐʘiʏg ʕhe ʐʑʑʐʓʕʖʏiʕʚ fʐʓ ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʕʐ ʓeʕake a failed claʔʔ ʕhʓʐʖgh aʏʐʕheʓ 

iʏʔʕiʕʖʕiʐʏ ʐʓ ʐʏ̢liʏe ʑʓʐgʓam̡ ʑeʓ ʑaʓeʏʕ chʐice̡ 
∙ Giʗiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕʔ ʕhe ʐʑʕiʐʏ ʐf ʕakiʏg Ameʓicaʏ Sigʏ Laʏgʖage iʏ meeʕiʏg ʕhe 

̨̢ʚeaʓ Fʐʓeigʏ Laʏgʖage ʓeʒʖiʓemeʏʕ̡ 
∙ Pʓʐʗidiʏg iʏʔʕʓʖcʕiʐʏ iʏ aʏd allʐʘiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʕʐ ʖʕiliʛe cʐmʑʖʕeʓ ʕechʏʐlʐgʚ aʏd 

ʔʐfʕʘaʓe ʑʓʐgʓamʔ̡ 
∙ Placiʏg ʕhe ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʐʏ aʏ Academic Cʐʏʕʓacʕ fʐʓ eʙʕeʏded leaʓʏiʏg dʖʓiʏg ʔʖmmeʓ 

mʐʏʕhʔ̡ 

Page 2 of 7 

186



           
           

            
        

        
           

  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

             
               

        
 

             
             

             
              

 
    

 

∙ Cʐʏʔideʓiʏg a ʏʐʏ̢AP cʐʖʓʔe deʔigʏaʕiʐʏ fʐʓ ʕhe ʔʕʖdeʏʕ bʖʕ cʐʏʕiʏʖiʏg ʕhe 
eʙʑʐʔʖʓe ʕʐ ʕhe ʔame cʐʖʓʔe cʐʏʕeʏʕ ʘiʕh aʏ adjʖʔʕed gʓadiʏg cʓiʕeʓia̡ 

∙ Cʐʖʏʔeliʏg ʘiʕh ʔʕʖdeʏʕʔ aʏd ʑaʓeʏʕʔ iʏ ʓeʗieʘiʏg ʕhe cʐʖʓʔe ʐf ʔʕʖdʚ aʏd 
fʐllʐʘiʏg ʕʓaʏʔiʕiʐʏ ʑʓacʕiceʔ̡ if ʔʖch diʓecʕiʐʏ iʔ ʕakeʏ̡ 

∙ Iʏcʓeaʔiʏg Sʑecial Edʖcaʕiʐʏ ʔeʓʗice ʕime fʐʓ ʕhe ʔʕʖdeʏʕ̡ 
∙ Reaʔʔeʔʔiʏg ʏeedʔ ʐf ʕhe ʔʕʖdeʏʕ̡ aʏd if ʒʖalifʚiʏg̡ cʐʏʔideʓiʏg addiʕiʐʏal Sʑecial 

Edʖcaʕiʐʏ ʔeʓʗiceʔ̣ 

B. CXUUeQW SWaWXV 
As is somewhat common at the beginning of a new school \ear, there was some movement of 
students, who were deemed eligible for services through various Special Education Programs: 
Resource Specialist, Workabilit\ (Secondar\ Transition), Speech and Language, and 
Deaf/Hard of Hearing.  Three students with IEP graduated from PCS in 2020.  One is attending 
a four \ear universit\ and two are attending a local communit\ college with plans to transfer to 
Universit\ in the future.  One student disenrolled to attend a private militar\ academ\ and one 
disenrolled to attend a less rigorous charter in our count\.  We welcomed  five new students 
with IEPs this \ear in 7th, 9th and 11th grade. 

Our SPED team is working diligentl\ to ³catch up´ with meetings and evaluations dela\ed due 
to distance learning restrictions.  We were able to complete two initial evaluations of students 
who were enrolled in our Directed Studies program.  We are completing one additional initial 
evaluation per parent request at this time as the student has recent standardi]ed test scores from 
an outside source which is appropriate to consider at this time.  Our evaluation team will 
consider these test scores and add our evaluative measures as are appropriate in this unique 
case. 

PCS currentl\ has 25 students with IEPs for the 2020-21 school \ear.  Additionall\ we have 
one pending initial evaluation in progress, and another evaluation we hope to initiate as soon as 
restrictions are lifted, though that student is currentl\ receiving extensive support from our 
ELD Coordinator. 

Ɣ Aʔ a meaʏʔ ʐf ʑʓʐʕecʕiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʑʓiʗacʚ ʔiʏce ʕhe ʕʐʕal ʔʑecial edʖcaʕiʐʏ ʔʕʖdeʏʕ 
ʑʐʑʖlaʕiʐʏ iʔ ʔmall̡ daʕa iʔ ʔhaʓed ʘiʕh ʕhe IEP ʕeam fʐʓ each iʏdiʗidʖal ʔʕʖdeʏʕ̡ ʏʐʕ 
bʚ gʓʐʖʑ daʕa calcʖlaʕed bʚ gʓade ʐʓ agẹ 

Ɣ Aʔ a meaʏʔ ʐf ʑʓʐʕecʕiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʑʓiʗacʚ ʔiʏce ʕhe ʕʐʕal ʔʑecial edʖcaʕiʐʏ ʔʕʖdeʏʕ 
ʑʐʑʖlaʕiʐʏ iʔ ʔmall̡ PCS dʐeʔ ʏʐʕ ʓeceiʗe meaʏ ʔcale ʔcʐʓeʔ ʏʐʓ ʕhe ʑeʓceʏʕage 
ʔcʐʓiʏg ʩSʕaʏdaʓd Meʕʪ aʏd abʐʗe ʐʏ CAASPP Teʔʕ ʓeʔʖlʕʔ fʓʐm CDẸ Hʐʘeʗeʓ̡ 
ʕhʓʐʖgh ʕhe IEP ʑʓʐceʔʔ̡ ʔʖch ʔʕʖdeʏʕ daʕa iʔ mʐʏiʕʐʓed aʏd ʓeʑʐʓʕed iʏ ʕhe ʔʕʖdeʏʕʪʔ 

Page 3 of 7 

187



             
    

 
          

 
             

             
          

               

    
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

      
     
        

       
    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

 

Aʏʏʖal aʏd Tʓieʏʏial IEPʔ ʘiʕh ʕhe ʔʕʖdeʏʕʪʔ iʏdiʗidʖal ʏeedʔ̡ abiliʕʚ leʗel̡ aʏd ʐʗeʓall 
ʑʐʕeʏʕial ʕakeʏ iʏʕʐ cʐʏʔideʓaʕiʐʏ̣ 

Ɣ Cʖʓʓeʏʕlʚ̡ all ʔeʏiʐʓʔ aʓe ʐʏ ʕʓack ʕʐ eaʓʏ a diʑlʐmạ 

Ɣ Tʐ daʕe̡ all bʖʕ ʐʏe ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʘhʐ haʗe ʓeceiʗed Sʑecial Edʖcaʕiʐʏ ʔeʓʗiceʔ ʕhʓʐʖgh 
PCS haʗe gʓadʖaʕed ʘiʕh a diʑlʐmạ All ʔʕʖdeʏʕʔ̡ hʐʘeʗeʓ̡ haʗe eʏʕeʓed a 
ʑʐʔʕ̢ʔecʐʏdaʓʚ iʏʔʕiʕʖʕiʐʏ ʐf leaʓʏiʏg̣ Thʓʐʖgh Wʐʓkabiliʕʚ Seʓʗiceʔ̡ PCS ʕʓackʔ 
ʔʖch daʕa fʐʓ all gʓadʖaʕeʔ fʐʓ ʕhe fiʓʔʕ ʚeaʓ afʕeʓ gʓadʖaʕiʐʏ fʓʐm high ʔchʐʐḷ 

II. SecWiRQ 504 SWXdeQWV 

A. PURgUaP DeVcUiSWiRQ 
When a student demonstrates an objectivel\ identified ph\sical or mental impairment, which 
substantiall\ limits one or more major life activities, has a record of such impairment or is 
regarded as having such an impairment, PCS adheres to the provisions within Section 504 of 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 in addressing learning needs. The Section 504 Team assesses 
the educational impact and actions needed such that the student has meaningful access to 
learning within the general curriculum.  This group of persons, each of whom is knowledgeable 
about the student and has an understanding of the evaluation data and placement options, meets 
and creates an accommodation plan. T\pical education accommodations are addressed with 
responsibilities outlined for the student, parent and educational staff, alike.  All Section 504 
Team participants and current-\ear teachers receive a cop\ of the student¶s Section 504 Plan. 

As with other special needs populations, reasonable calculation of the educational benefit is 
determined/ reviewed annuall\ once accommodations have been implemented, and there is 
an assurance of the deliver\ of a Free Appropriate Public Education. Measures applied in 
assessing educational benefit for the student include: 

∙ Achieʗed ʑaʔʔiʏg gʓadeʔ ̝C̢ ʐʓ abʐʗe̡̞ 
∙ Adʗaʏced fʓʐm gʓade ʕʐ gʓade̡ 
∙ Beʏefiʕʕed fʓʐm accʐmmʐdaʕiʐʏʔ defiʏed ʘiʕhiʏ ʕhe ̪̥̩ Plaʏ̡ 
∙ Imʑʓʐʗed ʔcʐʓeʔ ʐʏ diʔʕʓicʕ aʏd ʔʕaʕeʘide aʔʔeʔʔmeʏʕʔ̡ 
∙ Gʓadʖaʕed ʘiʕh a diʑlʐmạ 

The individuali]ed Section 504 Plan is reviewed annuall\ b\ the 504 Team and is continued 
until it is determined that the student can progress without the needed accommodations or 
the student transfers to another institution or graduates. 

B. CXUUeQW SWaWXV 

PCS is currentl\ serving a total of 28 students with Section 504 Plans. Of these 28 students, 
21 are returning students, 5 entered PCS with active Section 504 Plans, and 1 PCS student 

Page 4 of 7 

188



 
 

 
 

 
 

              
               
          

 
             

             
             

           
          

      
 

                

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

    
   

 
 

 
    

 

was assessed and found eligible for Section 504 Plan accommodations. One student was made 
eligible for Special Education services so ended their 504 plan and began an IEP at the 
beginning of this school \ear.  In making reasonable calculations toward educational benefit 
for the identified students, collective statements can be made relative to the group of 28 PCS 
students with 504 Plans this fall: 

Ɣ Aʔ a meaʏʔ ʐf ʑʓʐʕecʕiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʑʓiʗacʚ̡ aʏd ʔiʏce ʕhe ʕʐʕal ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʑʐʑʖlaʕiʐʏ ʘiʕh 
Secʕiʐʏ ̪̥̩ ʑlaʏʔ iʔ ʔmall̡ daʕa iʔ ʔhaʓed ʘiʕh ʕhe ̪̥̩ Team fʐʓ each iʏdiʗidʖal 
ʔʕʖdeʏʕ̡ ʏʐʕ bʚ gʓʐʖʑ daʕa calcʖlaʕed fʐʓ gʓade ʐʓ agẹ 

Ɣ Aʔ a meaʏʔ ʐf ʑʓʐʕecʕiʏg ʔʕʖdeʏʕ ʑʓiʗacʚ ʔiʏce ʕhe ʕʐʕal Secʕiʐʏ ̪̥̩ ʔʕʖdeʏʕ 
ʑʐʑʖlaʕiʐʏ iʔ ʓelaʕiʗelʚ ʔmall̡ PCS dʐeʔ ʏʐʕ ʓeceiʗe meaʏ ʔcale ʔcʐʓeʔ ʏʐʓ ʕhe 
ʑeʓceʏʕage ʔcʐʓiʏg ʩSʕaʏdaʓd Meʕʪ aʏd abʐʗe ʐʏ CAASPP Teʔʕ ʓeʔʖlʕʔ fʓʐm CDẸ 
Hʐʘeʗeʓ̡ ʕhʓʐʖgh ʕhe ̪̥̩ Team ʑʓʐceʔʔ̡ iʏdiʗidʖal ʔʕʖdeʏʕ daʕa iʔ mʐʏiʕʐʓed 
ʓegʖlaʓlʚ aʏd ʓeʗieʘed aʏʏʖallʚ̡ ʕakiʏg iʏʕʐ cʐʏʔideʓaʕiʐʏ ʕhe ʔʕʖdeʏʕʪʔ iʏdiʗidʖal 
ʏeedʔ̡ abiliʕʚ leʗel̡ aʏd ʐʗeʓall ʑʐʕeʏʕiaḷ 

Ɣ Cʖʓʓeʏʕlʚ̡ all ʔʕʖdeʏʕʔ ʘiʕh a Secʕiʐʏ ̪̥̩ Plaʏ aʓe ʐʏ ʕʓack ʕʐ eaʓʏ a PCS diʑlʐmạ 

III. EQgliVh LeaUQeUV 

A. PURgUaP DeVcUiSWiRQ 
In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, students who are English Learners 
are given appropriate support, effective resources, and academic-based evaluation to ensure 
success. Potential English Learners are administered the English Language Proficienc\ 
Assessments for California (ELPAC) Initial Assessment within 30 da\s of initial enrollment. 
Students who have been previousl\ identified as English Language Learners are administered 
the ELPAC Summative Assessment annuall\ in the spring until the\ are reclassified as fluent 
English proficient (RFEP). RFEP students are monitored at ever\ six-week grading period for 
four \ears following their classification date and given academic support on an as-needed basis. 
EL students receive English Language Development (ELD) instruction and academic support 
services until the\ are reclassified according to PCS¶s reclassification polic\. 

The PCS Reclassification Polic\ aligns with the California Department of Education¶s 
Reclassification Guidance for 2019-20; it includes one state criterion (an Overall Score of 4 on 
the ELPAC), and three local criteria. The local criteria are: (1) English/Language Arts 
Proficienc\ comparable to that of their English-speaking peers, as demonstrated b\ the 
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) RU a score of at least 3 
on an English or Histor\ Advanced Placement Exam RU demonstrate proficienc\ on a calibrated 
grade-level writing sample (Histor\ Dept. DBQ; English Dept. Writing Assessment); (2) 
Teacher Evaluation, including, but not limited to a semester grade of a C or better in English, 

Page 5 of 7 

189



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

      
 

 
 

 
    

 

Histor\, and Science; (3) Parent Opinion and Consultation. Onl\ students who meet all four 
criteria are reclassified. 

A student who qualifies for EL services is provided direct and integrated instruction/support 
b\ (an) English-language authori]ed staff member(s) within the general education 
environment and in designated settings. For all EL students, the Designated ELD instruction 
provided is to students in a small group, aligned with the California English Language 
Development Standards, and guided b\ formal and informal assessment findings. During 
2020-21 EL students have been placed into classes co-taught b\ ELA and ELD teachers.  In 
addition, EL students will receive a minimum of 60 minutes per week of additional 
s\nchronous Designated ELD instruction via distance learning. The EL Coordinator also 
provides individuali]ed tutoring to support the success of ELs in their content area classes. 
Content-area teachers utili]e integrated ELD strategies to help ELs access course 
content.When appropriate to support the work of Emerging English Learners, students are 
provided with texts and materials in their primar\ language. Students who qualif\ for Special 
Education, and who are also designated as EL, receive speciali]ed academic instruction 
through the Special Education Department while participating in the general education 
curriculum course for core academic studies, in the general education environment and in 
designated settings. These dual-diagnosed students have linguistic goals defined within their 
IEPs, in addition to the goals that address other identified special needs. Instructional 
programs and materials for EL students include Vocabular\ Workshop series, abridged novels, 
differentiated core curriculum, and Writers¶ Workshop. 

Instructional focus for ELs in Designated ELD  is aligned with and based on English Language 
Development Standards: Interacting in Meaningful Wa\s, How English Works, and Using 
Foundational Literar\ Skills. As EL students move through the ELD Level Proficienc\ 
Continuum (Emerging, Expanding, Bridging), supports are adjusted accordingl\. 

B. CXUUeQW SWaWXV 
For the 2020-21 school \ear, PCS has five English Learners and four Reclassified English 
Fluent Proficient (RFEP) students who are still within the four-\ear monitoring window. Three 
ELs are eighth graders; two are seventh graders. There are two eighth grade and two seventh 
grade RFEP students within the monitoring window. Two RFEPs exited the monitoring 
program in September 2020 because the\ reached the end of their monitoring period and 
demonstrated academic proficienc\ in all content areas with no additional support. . The EL 
students receive standards-based Designated ELD instruction (as described above) for sixt\ 
minutes a week.  The\ also receive at least sixt\ minutes of academic tutoring and homework 
help per week. Both the academic tutoring and after-school homework support is available to 
RFEP students who demonstrate a need in an\ core subject area. 

IV. COVID-19 ReVSRQVe aQd SWXdeQW SXSSRUWV 

In response to public health concerns, PCS has been providing educational services via 
distance learning during the 2020-2021 school \ear. PCS is currentl\ working with our 

Page 6 of 7 

190



 
 

 
  

 
    

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

 

Board of Directors and legal counsel to outline a plan for providing targeted support, 
intervention, and federall\ mandated evaluation to our most vulnerable learners (e.g. 
students with IEPs or 504 plans, English Learners, and other students identified b\ 
Student Stud\ Team as needing additional isupport) via small on-site cohorts. 
Since the beginning of the 2020-2021 school \ear, PCS has provided substantive 
s\nchronous and as\nchronous instruction to all students (see bell schedule and rotation 
schedule). This schedule provides all PCS students with at least 915 minutes of 
s\nchronous instruction, 150 minutes of tutorial support, and 125 minutes of 
as\nchronous learning per week. 

In addition, PCS is providing the following targeted instruction and support: 
Ɣ English Learners 

ż 90 minutes of s\nchronous, direct English Language Development. 
instruction per week (two 45 minute classes via Zoom) with certificated 
ELD Teacher. 

ż ELD support in English Language Arts classes, co-taught b\ certificated 
ELD and ELA teachers (three 70 minute and two 45 minute classes via 
Zoom per week). 

ż Integrated ELD in all subject areas, supported b\ EL Coordinator 
ż After school support for as\nchronous work. 

Ɣ Students with IEPs 
ż 360 minutes of s\nchronous support and instruction in Directed Studies 

class (ever\ other week, see rotation schedule). 
ż A minimum of 40 minutes of s\nchronous after-school support per week 

during ³off rotation´ (when Directed Studies class is not in student¶s class 
rotation), provided b\ Special Education teachers and paraprofessionals 
(via Zoom). 

ż Additional s\nchronous support, available to all students with IEPs before 
and after school and provided b\ Special Education teachers and 
paraprofessionals (via Zoom). 

PCS continues to provide necessar\ accommodation and support for students with IEPs 
and 504 plans, and to carefull\ monitor student progress toward learning goals. 

PCS VWaff aVVRciaWed ZiWh Whe cRmSilaWiRQ Rf daWa aQd ZUiWiQg Rf WhiV dRcXmeQW: 
● MaUia ReiWaQR, Head Rf SchRRl 
● CaUUie MR\eU, DiUecWRU Rf SSecial EdXcaWiRQ aQd SchRRl PV\chRlRgiVW 
● TRdd HaUUiVRQ, Vice PUiQciSal/DeaQ Rf SWXdeQWV aQd SecWiRQ 504 CRRUdiQaWRU 
● LaXUeQ FUieQd, FacXlW\ DeaQ 
● CaiWliQ SSRhUeU, EL CRRUdiQaWRU aQd ELD TeacheU 
● LiQda DeQQiV, SSecial EdXcaWiRQ TeacheU 
● DaYid RamRV-BebaQ, SSecial EdXcaWiRQ TeacheU 

Page 7 of 7 

191

https://www.pacificcollegiate.com/apps/bell_schedules/
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1jYmeYvLEuSf7VGyFvTz8swhypXrF8impFqTFaGpEq4k/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1jYmeYvLEuSf7VGyFvTz8swhypXrF8impFqTFaGpEq4k/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1jYmeYvLEuSf7VGyFvTz8swhypXrF8impFqTFaGpEq4k/edit


 
                

 

          

                           
         
 

                             
                                 

                               
                                 
                           
                               

        
                               

                               
                             
                               

                             
                       

                      
                               

                       

       

       
                   

       
                         

 
   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

ChapWer V: SchoolZide AcWion Plan 

CriWical Learner Need 1: DeYelop PCS¶ neZ Vchool ViWe in a manner WhaW iV 
conViVWenW ZiWh Whe Vchool¶V CharWer. 
RaWionale 

AfWeU VL[WeeQ \eaUV Rf OeaVLQg WePSRUaU\ VSace LQcOXdLQg WeQ \eaUV aW Whe cXUUeQW VLWe, PacLfLc 
CROOegLaWe SchRRO¶V PRYe WR a QeZ bXLOdLQg VLWe LV a PaMRU eYeQW LQ Whe VchRRO¶V hLVWRU\. The 
PRYe SUeVeQWV PaQ\ gUeaW RSSRUWXQLWLeV. ThLV ZLOO be Whe fLUVW WLPe Whe VchRRO haV RccXSLed a 
VSace ZLWh a VeQVe Rf SeUPaQeQce aQd RZQeUVhLS. IQ cRQWUaVW WR Whe fLUVW WZR ORcaWLRQV, Whe QeZ 
bXLOdLQg haV beeQ VSecLfLcaOO\ deVLgQed WR fLW PCS¶ edXcaWLRQaO SURgUaP. AddLWLRQaOO\, aV a PaMRU 
UePRdeO, Ze haYe Whe RSSRUWXQLW\ WR PRYe LQWR a VSace WhaW LV PRdeUQL]ed bRWh fRU WechQRORg\ 
aQd cRPfRUW aQd VafeW\. 
TheUe aUe PaQ\ chaOOeQgeV aVVRcLaWed ZLWh Whe QeZ ORcaWLRQ, aVLde fURP Whe ORgLVWLcV Rf PRYLQg a 
500 VWXdeQW VchRRO aQd aOO Rf Whe aVVRcLaWed LQfUaVWUXcWXUe. AV Ze ORRN cORVeO\ aW Whe cRUe 
VWaWePeQWV Rf RXU ChaUWeU, LW ZLOO be LPSRUWaQW WR eQVXUe WhaW RXU facLOLW\ SURYLdeV Whe 
RSSRUWXQLWLeV WR cRQWLQXe aQd eQhaQce Whe WhLQgV WhaW PaNe PCS XQLTXe. IQ SaUWLcXOaU, Ze Qeed WR 
deYeORS a SOaQ WR haYe Whe facLOLWLeV WR VXSSRUW Whe VLVXaO aQd PeUfRUPLQg AUWV, SURYLde 
RSSRUWXQLWLeV fRU VWXdeQWV WR eQgage WhURXgh cXUUeQW WechQRORg\, SURYLde RSSRUWXQLWLeV WR eQgage 
LQ adYaQced aQd VRPeWLPeV QRQcOaVVURRPbaVed edXcaWLRQaO e[SeULeQceV, aQd haYe RSeQ VSaceV 
fRU VWXdeQWV WR be acWLYe aQd VRcLaOL]e. IQ PaQ\ Za\V Whe QeZ bXLOdLQg UeSUeVeQWV a VLgQLfLcaQW 
XSgUade, aQd LQ RWheUV WheUe aUe gaSV WhaW Qeed WR be addUeVVed. 

SchoolZide Learner OXWcomeV AddreVVed 

SchoolZide Learner OXWcome 2 

PCS GUadXaWeV aUe ZeOOedXcaWed LQ Whe YLVXaO aQd SeUfRUPLQg aUWV. 
SchoolZide Learner OXWcome 3 

PCS GUadXaWeV aUe WechQRORgLcaOO\ OLWeUaWe aQd SUeSaUed fRU OLfe LQ Whe 21VW CeQWXU\ 

159 

192



 
                

 

                       
                         
               

   
     

 
   

 
   
 

   

 
 

   
     

 

   
   
   

       
   

 
 

 
   

   

 
 

   
 

       
       
 

 
 

 
 

     
   
     
 

 
 

   
     

     
       

 
 

 
 

     
   

 
 

 
   
   
   
 

 
 
   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

AcWion IWem 1: CompleWe renoYaWionV and relocaWion Wo alloZ PCS VWXdenWV Wo 
begin XVing Whe neZ bXilding b\ Whe end of Whe 2016 academic \ear. 
Tasks Responsible Parties Progress Assessments Timeline Progress Reports 

CRPSOeWe UeQRYaWLRQV 
Rf Whe bXLOdLQg 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

GRYeUQLQg BRaUd 

DeadOLQeV 
eVWabOLVhed ZLWh 
cRQWUacWRUV 
CLW\ LQSVecWLRQV 

AXgXVW 
2015 

CLW\ aSSURYaO 
WR RccXS\ Whe 
bXLOdLQg 

MRYe fXUQLWXUe, 
eTXLSPeQW aQd 
UeVRXUceV fURP 
e[LVWLQg ORcaWLRQ WR Whe 
QeZ VLWe 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

FacXOW\/SWaff 
CRQWUacW 
eVWabOLVhed ZLWh 
PRYLQg YeQdRU 

AXgXVW 
2015 

BegLQQLQg Rf 
RccXSaQc\ 

UQSacN aQd VeWXS QeZ 
bXLOdLQg fRU XVe b\ 
VWXdeQWV 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

FacXOW\/SWaff 
SWXdeQWV 
FaPLOLeV 

DaWeV VeW fRU 
adeTXaWe WLPe 
beWZeeQ PRYe aQd 
RccXSaQc\ 

AXgXVW 
2015 

FacLOLW\ Uead\ 
fRU VWXdeQW XVe 

BegLQ cOaVVeV aQd 
XWLOL]e Whe QeZ facLOLW\ 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

FacXOW\/SWaff 
SWXdeQWV 
FaPLOLeV 

COaVVeV begLQ aW 
QeZ VLWe 

AXgXVW 
2015 

SWXdeQWV 
RccXS\ aQd 
XWLOL]e QeZ 
facLOLW\ fRU 
cOaVVeV 

160 

193



 
                

 

                         
                           
 

               
   
     

   
 

 

 
   

   
 

   
   
 
     
 

   
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

   
     
 

 
   

   
 

   
   
 
     
 

   
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

   
 

   

 
   

   
 

   
   
 
     
 

   
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

   
   

   

 
   

   
 

   
   
 
     
 

     
 

   
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

AcWion IWem 2: DeYelop neZ faciliW\ WhaW VXpporWV and adYance Whe MiVVion and 
WradiWion of a VWrong, rich and Yaried YiVXal and performing arWV program for PCS 
VWXdenWV. 
Tasks Responsible Parties Progress Assessments Timeline Progress Reports 

EVWabOLVh dedLcaWed AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ DRcXPeQW SURgUaP 2015 WR ReSRUW WR 
WUadLWLRQaO aQd dLgLWaO 
YLVXaO aUWV 
VWXdLRV/cOaVVURRP 
VSaceV 

VLVXaO aQd 
PeUfRUPLQg AUWV 
DeSaUWPeQW 

aQd cXUULcXOXP 
QeedV 
SecXUe fXQdLQg aQd 
UeVRXUceV 

2016 GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 
ASSURYaO 
SWXdeQWV 
XWLOL]e 
facLOLWLeV 

EVWabOLVh dedLcaWed AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ DRcXPeQW SURgUaP 2015 WR ReSRUW WR 
YLVXaO aUWV e[hLbLWLRQ 
VSaceV 

VLVXaO aQd 
PeUfRUPLQg AUWV 

aQd cXUULcXOXP 
QeedV 

2016 GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

DeSaUWPeQW SecXUe fXQdLQg aQd GRYeUQLQg 
UeVRXUceV BRaUd 

ASSURYaO 
SWXdeQWV 
XWLOL]e 
facLOLWLeV 

EVWabOLVh dedLcaWed AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ DRcXPeQW SURgUaP 2015 WR ReSRUW WR 
SeUfRUPaQce 
cOaVVURRP VSaceV 

VLVXaO aQd 
PeUfRUPLQg AUWV 

aQd cXUULcXOXP 
QeedV 

2016 GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

DeSaUWPeQW SecXUe fXQdLQg aQd GRYeUQLQg 
UeVRXUceV BRaUd 

ASSURYaO 
SWXdeQWV 
XWLOL]e 
facLOLWLeV 

EVWabOLVh dedLcaWed AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ DRcXPeQW SURgUaP 2016 WR ReSRUW WR 
UeheaUVaO aQd 
SeUfRUPaQce VSaceV 

VLVXaO aQd 
PeUfRUPLQg AUWV 

aQd cXUULcXOXP 
QeedV 

2017 GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

DeSaUWPeQW IdeQWLf\ aQd ORcaWe GRYeUQLQg 
facLOLWLeV BRaUd 

SecXUe fXQdLQg aQd ASSURYaO 
UeVRXUceV SWXdeQWV 

XWLOL]e 
facLOLWLeV 

161 

194



 
                

 

                         
           

               
   
     
   

 
 

 

 
   
   

   
   

   
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

   
     
   

 

 
 

 

 
   
   

   
   

   
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

     
     
 

 
 

 

 
   
   

   
   

   
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

AcWion IWem 3: CreaWe neceVVar\ compXWer and Vcience labV Wo fXll\ inWegraWe 21VW 
cenWXr\ Wechnolog\ inWo Whe Vchool¶V cXrricXlXm. 
Tasks Responsible Parties Progress Assessments Timeline Progress Reports 

EVWabOLVh dedLcaWed AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ DRcXPeQW 2015 WR ReSRUW WR 
cOaVVURRP VSace fRU 
eQgLQeeULQg cOaVVeV 

MaWh 
DeSaUWPeQW 

SURgUaP aQd 
cXUULcXOXP QeedV 

2016 GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

SecXUe fXQdLQg GRYeUQLQg 
aQd UeVRXUceV BRaUd 

ASSURYaO 
SWXdeQWV 
XWLOL]e 
facLOLWLeV 

EVWabOLVh dedLcaWed AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ DRcXPeQW 2015 WR ReSRUW WR 
cOaVVURRP VSace fRU 
cRPSXWeU VcLeQce 
cOaVVeV 

MaWh 
DeSaUWPeQW 

SURgUaP aQd 
cXUULcXOXP QeedV 
SecXUe fXQdLQg 
aQd UeVRXUceV 

2016 GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 
ASSURYaO 
SWXdeQWV 
XWLOL]e 
facLOLWLeV 

EVWabOLVh dedLcaWed Oab AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ DRcXPeQW 2015 WR ReSRUW WR 
VSace fRU VcLeQce 
cOaVVeV. 

ScLeQce 
DeSaUWPeQW 

SURgUaP aQd 
cXUULcXOXP QeedV 

2016 GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

SecXUe fXQdLQg GRYeUQLQg 
aQd UeVRXUceV BRaUd 

ASSURYaO 
SWXdeQWV 
XWLOL]e 
facLOLWLeV 

162 

195



 
                

 

                         
               
               
   

   
   

       
     

       

 
 

 
   

       
     
 

 
   
   
   

   
 

 

 
   

 
   
   
 
 

   
   

   
     

       
     

 
 

 
   

       
   

   
     
       

 
   
   

     

   
 

 

 
 

   
     

 
 

   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

AcWion IWem 4: DeYelop opporWXniWieV for VWXdenWV Wo inWeracW ZiWh and learn from 
Whe naWXral reVoXrceV of Whe Vchool¶V neZ locaWion. 
Tasks Responsible Parties Progress Assessments Timeline Progress Reports 

PURYLde UeVRXUceV, AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ IQYeVWLgaWe 2015 WR DeYeORS 
VSace, aQd 
RSSRUWXQLWLeV fRU 

FacXOW\/SWaff RSSRUWXQLWLeV fRU 
VWXdeQWV WR XVe Whe 

2016 
RQgRLQg 

cXUULcXOaU aQd 
cRcXUULcXOaU 

VWXdeQWV WR geW e[eUcLVe Whe QeZ ORcaWLRQ¶V SURgUaPV fRU 
aQd Sh\VLcaO acWLYLW\ aQd e[eUcLVe aQd 
dXULQg Whe VchRRO da\ QeLghbRUhRRd¶V 

UeVRXUceV fRU 
e[eUcLVe aQd 
Sh\VLcaO acWLYLW\ 

Sh\VLcaO 
acWLYLW\ 

PURYLde UeVRXUceV, AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ IQYeVWLgaWe 2015 WR DeYeORS 
VSace, aQd 
RSSRUWXQLWLeV fRU 

FacXOW\/SWaff RSSRUWXQLWLeV fRU 
VWXdeQWV WR XVe Whe 

2016 
RQgRLQg 

cXUULcXOXP 
WhaW LQcOXdeV 

VWXdeQWV WR eQgage UeVRXUceV Rf XVe Rf ORcaO 
ZLWh, VWXd\ aQd OeaUQ NaWXUaO BULdgeV QaWXUaO 
fURP Whe eQYLURQPeQW SWaWe PaUN dXULQg 

cOaVVeV VXch aV AP 
EQYLURQPeQWaO 
ScLeQce, AP 
BLRORg\, VLVXaO 
AUWV aQd RWheUV 

UeVRXUceV 

163 

196



 
                

 

                      
                       

 
                                   
                                   

                           
                           
                                   
                             
                             

                               
                               

                               
                                 
                       

 

       

       
                             

 
   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

CriWical Learner Need 2: SXpporW all enWering VWXdenWV in gradXaWing from 
PCS prepared Wo enWer and VXcceed aW Wheir choVen college or XniYerViW\. 
RaWionale 

A TXeVWLRQ WhaW cRQWLQXeV WR VXUface aW PCS aPRQg FacXOW\ aQd SWaff LV, ³HRZ dR Ze NQRZ WhaW 
Ze aUe dRLQg ZhaW Ze Va\ Ze aUe dRLQg?´ The QaWLRQaO UaQNLQgV Ze haYe eQMR\ed aQd Whe daWa 
SUeVeQWed LQ ChaSWeU 1 dePRQVWUaWe VXcceVV aQd achLeYePeQW, bXW Ze cRQWLQXe WR aVN RXUVeOYeV 
ZheWheU WheVe PeaVXUeV WUXO\ dePRQVWUaWe VXcceVV aW fXOfLOOLQg RXU MLVVLRQ. A SURceVV OLNe Whe 
WASC VeOfVWXd\ LV RQe Rf Whe RSSRUWXQLWLeV WhaW Ze haYe WR WU\ WR XQdeUVWaQd hRZ Ze defLQe aQd 
PeaVXUe RXU VXcceVV. The fRXUWh gRaO Rf RXU SUeYLRXV VeOfVWXd\ ZaV WR ³SXSSRUW aOO eQWeULQg 
VWXdeQWV LQ gUadXaWLQg fURP PCS SUeSaUed WR eQWeU aQd VXcceed aW WheLU chRVeQ cROOege RU 
XQLYeUVLW\.´ WhLOe Ze aUe cRQfLdeQW WhaW Ze aUe VXcceedLQg aW WhLV gRaO, aQd RXU VWXdeQWV aUe 
LQdeed gUadXaWLQg SUeSaUed fRU cROOege aQd VXcceedLQg RQce Whe\ geW WR cROOege, Ze ZRXOd OLNe WR 
be beWWeU abOe WR PeaVXUe WhLV VXcceVV. TheUefRUe, Ze haYe UeWaLQed WhLV gRaO aV RXU VecRQd 
CULWLcaO LeaUQeU Need aQd haYe XSdaWed Whe acWLRQ LWePV ZLWhLQ Whe gRaO WR beWWeU aOORZ XV WR 
PeaVXUe VWXdeQW SURgUeVV WRZaUd cROOege acceSWaQce, UeadLQeVV, aQd VXcceVV RQce Whe\ haYe 
PaWULcXOaWed. 

SchoolZide Learner OXWcomeV AddreVVed 

SchoolZide Learner OXWcome 1 

PCS GUadXaWeV aUe SUeSaUed WR eQWeU aQd WhULYe aW Whe ZRUOd¶V fLQeVW cROOegeV aQd XQLYeUVLWLeV 

164 

197



 
                

 

                         
   

               
     

 
     

         
   

         
        

  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

     
     

 
 
 

 

   
 

   
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

       
       

     
     

       

  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

     
   

     
 
   

     
 
 

   
 

   
 

 
     
 

 

   
     

     
       

     
   

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
 
 

   
 

 

   
   

 
   
 

     
     
     
     
     
       

     

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

   
   
 

   
   

   
 

 

 
 

   
 
 
   
   

 
 

 
 
   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

AcWion IWem 1: ProYide a conViVWenW leYel of academic VXpporW Wo VWXdenWV in 
all gradeV 
Tasks Responsible Parties Progress Assessments Timeline Progress Reports 

AOLgQ VXSSRUW aQd 
acadePLc/cROOege 
cRXQVeOLQg fRU VWXdeQWV 
fURP gUadeV 7 WR 12, 
SaUWLcXOaUO\ addUeVVLQg 
Whe gaS LQ VXSSRUW fRU 
gUadeV 9 WR 11. 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

LeadeUVhLS 
TeaP 

CROOege 
CRXQVeORU 
AcadePLc 
SXSSRUW 
SSecLaOLVW 

DeYeORS a ZULWWeQ 
SOaQ defLQLQg Whe 
VchRRO¶V 
cRXQVeOLQg 
cRQWLQXXP 

2015 WR 
2016 

ReSRUW WR 
GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

USdaWe SWXdeQW 
HaQdbRRN 

USdaWe 
CXUULcXOXP 
GXLde 

EYaOXaWe Whe Qeed aQd 
feaVLbLOLW\ Rf cUeaWLQg a 
QeZ SRVLWLRQ Rf 
acadePLc cRXQVeORU fRU 
gUadeV 9 WR 11. 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

LeadeUVhLS 
TeaP 

CROOege 
CRXQVeORU 
AcadePLc 
SXSSRUW 
SSecLaOLVW 

CUeaWe a UeSRUW 
aVVeVVLQg Whe 
Qeed, UROe, aQd 
ecRQRPLc 
feaVLbLOLW\ Rf 
cUeaWLQg a QeZ 
cRXQVeORU 
SRVLWLRQ. 

2016 WR 
2017 

ReSRUW WR 
GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

ASSURYaO Rf Whe 
GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

ReVeaUch aQd 
LPSOePeQW Za\V LQ 
ZhLch VWXdeQW VXSSRUW 
caQ be PRUe effecWLYeO\ 
LQcRUSRUaWed LQWR Whe 
AdYLVRU\ PURgUaP 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

ChaOOeQge 
SXcceVV 
CRPPLWWee 
AdYLVRU\ LeadV 
FacXOW\ 

DeYeORS XSdaWed 
AdYLVRU\ 
CXUULcXOXP 

2015 WR 
2016 
RQgRLQg 

IQWURdXce QeZ 
cXUULcXOXP WR 
FacXOW\ 

IPSOePeQW QeZ 
cXUULcXOXP 

CRQWLQXe effRUWV WR 
UefLQe PeVVage WR 
cXUUeQW aQd SURVSecWLYe 
VWXdeQWV abRXW Whe 
VchRRO¶V e[SecWaWLRQ Rf 
VWXdeQWV ZLWh UeOaWLRQ WR 
Whe PCS MLVVLRQ 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ, 
SWUaWegLc 
POaQQLQg 
CRPPLWWee 
ChaOOeQge 
SXcceVV 
CRPPLWWee 
FacXOW\ 

USdaWe PCS 
IQfRUPaWLRQ Da\ 
SUeVeQWaWLRQV 
USdaWe PCS 
ZebVLWe cRQWeQW 

2015 WR 
2016 
RQgRLQg 

IQfRUPaWLRQaO 
SUeVeQWaWLRQV 
fRU SURVSecWLYe 
faPLOLeV 
WebVLWe 
cRQWeQW fRU 
cXUUeQW aQd 
SURVSecWLYe 
VWXdeQWV 

165 

198



 
                

 

                   
               

   
       
       
     
   

 

 
 

 
 

 

     
     
 

   
 

 

   
   

 
   

   
 

       
     
   

       

 

 
 

 
 

   

   

   
 

 

   
   

 
   

   
 

     
       

     
     

   

 

 
 

 
 

 

         
 

 

   
   

 
   

   
 

 
 
   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

AcWion IWem 2: IncreaVe academic VXpporW Wo FirVWWoCollege (FTC) VWXdenWV 
Tasks Responsible Parties Progress Assessments Timeline Progress Reports 

EVWabOLVh baVeOLQe 
PeWULcV fRU FTC VWXdeQW 
acadePLc WUacNLQg WR be 
cROOecWed, cRPSLOed aQd 
eYaOXaWed aQQXaOO\ 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

OXWUeach 
CRRUdLQaWRU 

DLYeUVLW\ 
CRPPLWWee 

FacXOW\ 

CUeaWLRQ Rf a 
WePSOaWe fRU daWa 
cROOecWLRQ 

2015 WR 
2016 
RQgRLQg 

AQQXaO UeSRUW 
WR Whe 
GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd cUeaWed 
b\ Whe 
AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

SXUYe\ SaUeQWV Rf FTC 
VWXdeQWV aQQXaOO\ WR 
deWeUPLQe effecWLYeQeVV 
Rf V\VWePV aQd VXSSRUW 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

OXWUeach 
CRRUdLQaWRU 

DLYeUVLW\ 
CRPPLWWee 

CUeaWe VXUYe\ 

CRPSLOe daWa 

2015 WR 
2016 
RQgRLQg 

AQQXaO UeSRUW 
WR Whe 
GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd cUeaWed 
b\ Whe 
AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

AQaO\]e PeWULcV aQd 
VXUYe\ UeVXOWV aQd PaNe 
adMXVWPeQWV WR SURYLde 
aSSURSULaWe VXSSRUW fRU 
FTC SWXdeQWV 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

OXWUeach 
CRRUdLQaWRU 

DLYeUVLW\ 
CRPPLWWee 

FacXOW\ 

FTC VXSSRUW SOaQ 2015 WR 
2016 
RQgRLQg 

AQQXaO UeSRUW 
WR Whe 
GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd cUeaWed 
b\ Whe 
AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

166 

199



 
                

 

                     
                   

       
 

     

   
   

   
     

   
     

   
     
    

         
      

       
       

   
     

  
         

      
       

       
     
       
       

     
       
   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 
 

   
   
 

     
         
     

       
     

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
   

 
 

     
       
    

         
      
     

       

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 

 
   

 
 

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

AcWion IWem 3: DeYelop a proceVV for cXrricXlar reYieZ WhaW VXpporWV 
preparing VWXdenWV Wo enWer and VXcceed aW Wheir choVen XniYerViWieV. 
Tasks Responsible Parties Progress 

Assessments 
Timeline Progress Reports 

EVWabOLVh cXUULcXOaU 
UeYLeZ SURceVV/WLPeWabOe 
WhaW LQcRUSRUaWeV 
feedbacN fURP aOO 
VWaNehROdeUV aQd 
cRUUeVSRQdV ZLWh chaUWeU 
UeQeZaO, VchRROZLde 
VWUaWegLc SOaQQLQg aQd 
WASC UeYLeZ. 
*AV SeU WASC Area of 
GroZth #1, e[SORUe 
Za\V bURadeQ Whe chRLceV 
Rf Whe fLYe UeTXLUed 
AdYaQced POacePeQW 
cOaVVeV UeTXLUed fRU 
gUadXaWLRQ. 
*AV SeU WASC Area of 
GroZth #2, E[aPLQe 
PaNLQg Whe VeQLRU SURMecW 
a UeTXLUed caSVWRQe fRU 
aOO VWXdeQWV gUadXaWLQg 
fURP PCS; VWXd\, aVVeVV, 
aQd eYaOXaWe hRZ Whe 
caSVWRQe cRXOd aXgPeQW 
Whe cXUUeQW YLVLRQ Rf 
PCS. 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

FacXOW\ 

BRaUd 

PaUeQWV 
SWXdeQWV 

AOLgQPeQW 
dRcXPeQW 

2015 WR 
2020 

ChaUWeU 
UeQeZaO 
dRcXPeQW, 
VWUaWegLc SOaQ 
aQd WASC 
UeSRUW 

TaVN cXUULcXOaU UeYLeZ 
SURceVV ZLWh Whe gRaO Rf 
cUeaWLQg cRQVLVWeQW OeYeOV 
Rf chaOOeQge fURP gUadeV 
7 WR 12 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

LeadeUVhLS 
TeaP 

DeSaUWPeQWV 

AOLgQPeQW 
dRcXPeQW 

2015 WR 
2016 

DeSaUWPeQWV 
UeSRUW WR 
LeadeUVhLS 
TeaP 

AOLgQ cXUULcXOXP WR AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ AOLgQPeQW 2015 WR DeSaUWPeQWV 
CRPPRQ CRUe aQd Ne[W 
GeQeUaWLRQ VWaQdaUdV. 
*AV SeU WASC Area of 
GroZth #4, IQWegUaWe 

LeadeUVhLS 
TeaP 

DeSaUWPeQWV 

dRcXPeQWV 2016 
RQgRLQg 

UeSRUW WR 
LeadeUVhLS 
TeaP 

CRPPRQ CRUe SWaQdaUdV 
LQWR Whe cXUULcXOXP aV 

167 

200



 
                

 

       
   

       
   

 
  

         
      
       

       
     
       
       

     
       
   

 
 
 
 

   
     

 
 

   
 

 

 
   
 

 
 
   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

Whe\ becRPe aYaLOabOe. 

IQYeVWLgaWe RSSRUWXQLWLeV 
fRU VWXdeQWV WR e[SaQd 
QRQcOaVVURRP baVed 
edXcaWLRQaO 
RSSRUWXQLWLeV. 
*AV SeU WASC Area of 
GroZth #2, E[aPLQe 
PaNLQg Whe VeQLRU SURMecW 
a UeTXLUed caSVWRQe fRU 
aOO VWXdeQWV gUadXaWLQg 
fURP PCS; VWXd\, aVVeVV, 
aQd eYaOXaWe hRZ Whe 
caSVWRQe cRXOd aXgPeQW 
Whe cXUUeQW YLVLRQ Rf 
PCS. 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

SWUaWegLc 
POaQQLQg 
CRPPLWWee 

DeYeORS XSdaWeV 
WR cXUULcXOXP RU 
cRcXUULcXOaU 
acWLYLWLeV 

2015 WR 
2016 
RQgRLQg 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 
UeSRUWV WR 
FacXOW\ 

168 

201



 
                

 

                         
               
   

               
   
     
       

 
 

 
 

     
   

 

   
 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

   
     

 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

     
   

       
         
       

   

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

     
   

   
   

 
 

 

   
   

   
 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

   
   
     
     

       
       

       
     
       

 
 

 
 

 
   

 

   
 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

AcWion IWem 4: DeYelop a V\VWem Wo Wrack and gaWher comprehenViYe daWa WhaW 
more effecWiYel\ meaVXreV gradXaWeV¶ progreVV dXring poVWPCS academic 
careerV 
Tasks Responsible Parties Progress Assessments Timeline Progress Reports 

MaLQWaLQ aOXPQL AOXPQL AQQXaO XSdaWeV WR 2015 WR AOXPQL 
daWabaVe aQd cRQQecWLRQV CRRUdLQaWRU Whe aOXPQL 2016 CRRUdLQaWRU 
beWZeeQ aOXPQL aQd PCS AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

FacXOW\ 

daWabaVe RQgRLQg gLYeV aQQXaO 
UeSRUW 
GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

IQVWLWXWLRQaOL]e aQd AOXPQL EYaOXaWe bLaQQXaO 2015 WR AOXPQL 
LPSURYe Whe aOXPQL CRRUdLQaWRU SaUWLcLSaWLRQ UaWeV 2016 CRRUdLQaWRU 
VXUYe\ AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

FacXOW\ 

RQgRLQg gLYeV 
bLaQQXaO 
UeSRUW 
GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

AQaO\]e UeVXOWV Rf AOXPQL EYaOXaWe bLaQQXaO 2015 WR AOXPQL 
aOXPQL VXUYe\ CRRUdLQaWRU VXUYe\ UeVSRQVeV 2016 CRRUdLQaWRU 
bLaQQXaOO\ aQd XVe daWa 
WR deYeORS aQ acWLRQ SOaQ 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ RQgRLQg gLYeV 
bLaQQXaO 

fRU cXUULcXOaU UeYLeZ aQd FacXOW\ UeSRUW 
VWUaWegLc SOaQQLQg GRYeUQLQg 

BRaUd 

CRPSLOe daWa abRXW AOXPQL EYaOXaWe aQQXaO 2015 WR AOXPQL 
aOXPQL cROOege CRRUdLQaWRU VXUYe\ daWa 2016 CRRUdLQaWRU 
aWWeQdaQce, SeUVLVWeQce, 
aQd cRPSOeWLRQ 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ RQgRLQg gLYeV aQQXaO 
UeSRUW 
GRYeUQLQg 
BRaUd 

LeYeUage VchRRO¶V AOXPQL EYaOXaWe 2015 WR AOXPQL 
LQYeVWPeQW aOXPQL CRRUdLQaWRU SaUWLcLSaWLRQ aQd 2016 CRRUdLQaWRU 
cRRUdLQaWRU WR eQhaQce 
RSSRUWXQLWLeV (RQOLQe aQd 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ feedbacN RQgRLQg gLYeV aQQXaO 
UeSRUW 

LQSeUVRQ) fRU aOXPQL WR FacXOW\/SWaff GRYeUQLQg 
UegXOaUO\ UeWXUQ WR PCS BRaUd 
WR heOS cXUUeQW VWXdeQWV 
PaNe LQfRUPed decLVLRQV 
abRXW cROOege aQd caUeeU. 

169 

202



 
                

 

     
                               

                       
                     
                     
         

                                 
     

                     
                     

                                  
                         

                              
                           

         
                       

                       
                 

                                 
         

                     
                     

                                  
                         

                              
                            
                     

                              
                           

              
         

 
   

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

AreaV of GroZWh 

AW Whe cRQcOXVLRQ Rf Whe ASULO 2015 YLVLW, Whe WASC VLVLWLQg CRPPLWWee LdeQWLfLed fRXU AUeaV Rf 
GURZWh fRU PCS. The\ haYe beeQ added WR Whe PCS AcWLRQ POaQ. 
Area of GroZWh #1: AcknoZledging Whe boXndarieV of Whe charWer, e[plore 
Za\V Wo broaden Whe choiceV of Whe fiYe reqXired AdYanced PlacemenW 
claVVeV reqXired for gradXaWion. 
ThLV AUea Rf GURZWh haV beeQ added WR Whe PCS AcWLRQ POaQ XQdeU CLN TZR, AcWLRQ IWeP 
ThUee, FLUVW TaVN. 
FLUVW TaVN: EVWabOLVh cXUULcXOaU UeYLeZ SURceVV/WLPeWabOe WhaW LQcRUSRUaWeV feedbacN fURP aOO 
VWaNehROdeUV aQd cRUUeVSRQdV ZLWh chaUWeU UeQeZaO, VchRROZLde VWUaWegLc SOaQQLQg aQd WASC 
UeYLeZ. AV SeU WASC Area of GroZth #1, e[SORUe Za\V WR bURadeQ Whe chRLceV Rf Whe fLYe 
UeTXLUed AdYaQced POacePeQW cOaVVeV UeTXLUed fRU gUadXaWLRQ. AV SeU WASC Area of GroZth 
#2, E[aPLQe PaNLQg Whe VeQLRU SURMecW a UeTXLUed caSVWRQe fRU aOO VWXdeQWV gUadXaWLQg fURP PCS; 
VWXd\, aVVeVV, aQd eYaOXaWe hRZ Whe caSVWRQe cRXOd aXgPeQW Whe cXUUeQW YLVLRQ Rf PCS. 
See SageV 167 WR 168 

Area of GroZWh #2: E[amine making Whe Venior projecW a reqXired capVWone 
for all VWXdenWV gradXaWing from PCS; VWXd\, aVVeVV, and eYalXaWe hoZ Whe 
capVWone coXld aXgmenW Whe cXrrenW YiVion of PCS. 
ThLV AUea Rf GURZWh haV beeQ added WR Whe PCS AcWLRQ POaQ XQdeU CLN TZR, AcWLRQ IWeP 
ThUee, FLUVW aQd FRXUWh TaVNV. 
FLUVW TaVN: EVWabOLVh cXUULcXOaU UeYLeZ SURceVV/WLPeWabOe WhaW LQcRUSRUaWeV feedbacN fURP aOO 
VWaNehROdeUV aQd cRUUeVSRQdV ZLWh chaUWeU UeQeZaO, VchRROZLde VWUaWegLc SOaQQLQg aQd WASC 
UeYLeZ. AV SeU WASC Area of GroZth #1, e[SORUe Za\V WR bURadeQ Whe chRLceV Rf Whe fLYe 
UeTXLUed AdYaQced POacePeQW cOaVVeV UeTXLUed fRU gUadXaWLRQ. AV SeU WASC Area of GroZth 
#2, E[aPLQe PaNLQg Whe VeQLRU SURMecW a UeTXLUed caSVWRQe fRU aOO VWXdeQWV gUadXaWLQg fURP PCS; 
VWXd\, aVVeVV, aQd eYaOXaWe hRZ Whe caSVWRQe cRXOd aXgPeQW Whe cXUUeQW YLVLRQ Rf PCS. 
FRXUWh TaVN: IQYeVWLgaWe RSSRUWXQLWLeV fRU VWXdeQWV WR e[SaQd QRQcOaVVURRP baVed edXcaWLRQaO 
RSSRUWXQLWLeV. AV SeU WASC Area of GroZth #2, E[aPLQe PaNLQg Whe VeQLRU SURMecW a UeTXLUed 
caSVWRQe fRU aOO VWXdeQWV gUadXaWLQg fURP PCS; VWXd\, aVVeVV, aQd eYaOXaWe hRZ Whe caSVWRQe 
cRXOd aXgPeQW Whe cXUUeQW YLVLRQ Rf PCS. 
See SageV 167 WR 168 

170 

203



 
                

 

                       
        

                                 
               

     
     

       
       

       
 

 
 
 
 
 

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
   
   
 

                       
      
                               
         
                           
                            

  
          

 

Pacific Collegiate School WASC SelfStudy Report April 2015 

Area of GroZWh #3: EYalXaWe more effecWiYe Za\V Wo aVVeVV VWXdenW and 
parenW opinionV of PCS. 
ThLV AUea Rf GURZWh haV beeQ added WR Whe PCS AcWLRQ POaQ aV QeZ AcWLRQ IWeP. 
Tasks Responsible Parties Progress Assessments Timeline Progress Reports 

DeYeORS aQd LPSOePeQW 
a VchRRO cRPPXQLcaWLRQ 
SOaQ fRU VWXdeQWV, facXOW\ 
aQd SaUeQWV, aV SeU 
defLQed b\ Whe SWUaWegLc 
POaQ. 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 

FacXOW\ 

SWUaWegLc 
POaQQLQg 
CRPPLWWee 

SWUaWegLc POaQ 
LQWeULP UeSRUWV 

DXe eQd 
Rf 2016 
VchRRO 
\eaU 

AdPLQLVWUaWLRQ 
UeSRUWV WR 
SaUeQWV aQd 
VWXdeQWV 

Area of GroZWh #4: InWegraWe Common Core SWandardV inWo Whe cXrricXlXm aV 
Whe\ become aYailable. 
ThLV AUea Rf GURZWh haV beeQ fXUWheU ePShaVL]ed LQ Whe PCS AcWLRQ POaQ XQdeU CLN TZR, 
AcWLRQ IWeP ThUee, ThLUd TaVN. 
ThLUd TaVN: AOLgQ cXUULcXOXP WR CRPPRQ CRUe aQd Ne[W GeQeUaWLRQ VWaQdaUdV. AV SeU WASC 
Area of GroZth #4, IQWegUaWe CRPPRQ CRUe SWaQdaUdV LQWR Whe cXUULcXOXP aV Whe\ becRPe 
aYaLOabOe. 
See SageV 167 WR 168 

171 

204



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

               
               

                 
                

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: DU. FaULV SabbaK, CRXQW\ SXSeULQWeQdeQW Rf ScKRROV 

SUBJECT: COVID-19 aQd ScKRRO E[SaQVLRQ Rf IQ-PeUVRQ SeUYLceV USdaWe 

BACKGROUND 

SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OffLce Rf EdXcaWLRQ KaV beeQ ZRUNLQg LQ cROOabRUaWLRQ ZLWK WKe SaQWa CUX] 
CRXQW\ HeaOWK SeUYLceV ageQc\ aQd VcKRRO dLVWULcWV WR SUeSaUe fRU aQd UeVSRQd WR WKe RXWbUeaN 
Rf COVID-19 LQ RXU cRPPXQLW\. TKe BRaUd ZLOO UeceLYe aQ XSdaWe RQ WKe Za\V LQ ZKLcK WKe 
SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OffLce Rf EdXcaWLRQ KaV beeQ ZRUNLQg WR UeVSRQd WR WKe COVID-19 cULVLV. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ReceLYe UeSRUW. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

DeWaLOed ZLWKLQ UeSRUW. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: Dec. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #11.2 
205



!�ßX(̇̏͡�ÇƛĚöƴġ 
²öŭƴö�!ƞƼǥ�!ŸƼŭƴǛ� ŸöƞĚ�ŸĻ�0ĚƼēöƴŊŸŭ� 

(ġēġūĒġƞ�̇̍ ͇�̈̆̈̆ 

!�ßX(̇̏͡�ÇƛĚöƴġ 

Ɣ ÀŊūġŢŊŭġ 
Ɣ !öŢ�²R��²ƴöŭĚöƞĚƦ�͒�� ̌̎̋ 
Ɣ ÀġƦƴŊŭļ�͒�ßöēēŊŭġ�ÇƛĚöƴġ 
Ɣ §ŢöŭƦ�ƴŸ�ŊŭēƞġöƦġ�Ŋŭ͡ƛġƞƦŸŭ�
ƦġƞǔŊēġƦ 

Ɣ !(!�mġǔġŢƦ�ŸĻ�ªŊƦŞ 
Ɣ §ƞġƛöƞöƴŊŸŭƦ�ĻŸƞ�ö�(ġĒƞŊ�IŢŸǕ� 
ŊŭēŊĚġŭƴ 

206



RŸǕ�Ǖġ�ļŸƴ�ńġƞġ 

Ɣ (ŊƦƴöŭēġ�mġöƞŭŊŭļ�ƦŊŭēġ�wöƞēń�̇̉ 
Ɣ �Ƽļ͌�̈̎�͡� ŢƼġƛƞŊŭƴ�ĻŸƞ�ö�²öĻġƞ�0ēŸŭŸūǛ 
Ɣ ²ġƛƴ͌�̈̈�§ƞŊǔöƴġ�ƦēńŸŸŢƦ�ŸƛġŭġĚ 
Ɣ yŸǔ͌�̈�͡��ŭŭŸƼŭēġĚ�ƛŢöŭƦ�ƴŸ�ŊŭēƞġöƦġ�ƦūöŢŢ�ļƞŸƼƛƦ�ĻŸƞ�§ƼĒŢŊē�

²ēńŸŸŢƦ�ƴŸ�ļŸ�RǛĒƞŊĚ�Ŋŭ�höŭ͌ 
Ɣ yŸǔ͌�̇̉�͡�ÀƞöǔġŢ��ĚǔŊƦŸƞǛ 
Ɣ yŸǔ͌�̇̌ �͡�JŸǔġƞŭŸƞ�ƛƼƴ�ƼƦ�Ŋŭ�ƛƼƞƛŢġ 
Ɣ yŸǔ͌�̉̆�͡�wöŭǛ�ƛƼĒŢŊē�ƦēńŸŸŢƦ�ĒġļŊŭ�ŸĻĻġƞŊŭļ�Ŋŭ�ƛġƞƦŸŭ�

ƦġƞǔŊēġƦ 
Ɣ yŸǔ͌�̉̆�͡�!öŢ�²R��ªġŢġöƦġƦ�0ūġƞļġŭēǛ�²ƴöŭĚöƞĚƦ 
Ɣ (ġē͌�̊ �͡�JŸǔġƞŭŸƞ�öŭŭŸƼŭēġƦ�²ƴöǛ�öƴ�RŸūġ��ƞĚġƞ 
Ɣ (ġē͌�̇̊ �͡�²ƴöǛ�öƴ�ńŸūġ�ŸƞĚġƞ�ġǚƛġēƴġĚ�ƴŸ�Ēġ�öƛƛŢŊġĚ�ƴŸ�²öŭƴö� 

!ƞƼǥ�!ŸƼŭƴǛ 
Ɣ höŭ͌�̇�͡�� ̌̎̋�ÀŸ�ļŸ�ŊŭƴŸ�ġĻĻġēƴ 

yġǕ�!öŢ�²R��0ūġƞļġŭēǛ�²ƴöŭĚöƞĚƦ͇� 
� ̌̎̋ 

Ɣ &DO26+$�6WDQGDUGV�LQ�HIIHFW�1RY������$%����LQ�(IIHFW�-DQ��� 
Ɣ (PSOR\HU�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�([SRVHG�:RUNSODFHV 
Ɣ 7HVWLQJ��&RPPXQLFDWLRQ 
Ɣ (DFK�6FKRRO�ZLOO�QHHG�WR�KDYH�D�&29,'�3UHYHQWLRQ�3ODQ 
Ɣ :H�DUH�VXSSRUWLQJ�VFKRROV�WR�GHYHORS�SURWRFROV� �EH�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH 
Ɣ 

	

207



ÀġƦƴŊŭļ�͒�ßöēēŊŭġ�ÇƛĚöƴġ 

Ɣ �ǔġƞ�̇̉̆̆�ƛġŸƛŢġ�ƴġƦƴġĚ�Ŋŭ�ŸƼƞ�
²ƼƞǔġŊŢŢöŭēġ 

Ɣ §ßÇ²(�ŢŸēöƴŊŸŭ�ŭŸǕ�Ÿƛġŭ 
Ɣ ßöēēŊŭġƦ�ŭŸǕ�öǔöŊŢöĒŢġ�ƴŸ�ĻƞŸŭƴ�ŢŊŭġ� 

ūġĚŊēöŢ�ƦƴöĻĻ 
Ɣ �ĚǔŸēöƴŊŭļ�ƴŸ�ƛƞŊŸƞŊƴŊǥġ�ƦēńŸŸŢ�ƦƴöĻĻ 

Xŭ�§ġƞƦŸŭ�²ġƞǔŊēġƦ 

Ɣ wöŭǛ�ƛƞŊǔöƴġ�ƦēńŸŸŢƦ�ƴƞöŭƦŊƴŊŸŭġĚ�ƴŸ�
ĚŊƦƴöŭēġ�ŢġöƞŭŊŭļ�ĒġƴǕġġŭ�
ÀńöŭŞƦļŊǔŊŭļ�öŭĚ�àŊŭƴġƞ�ĒƞġöŞƦ 

Ɣ wöŭǛ�ƛƼĒŢŊē�ƦēńŸŸŢƦ�öƞġ�ŊūƛŢġūġŭƴŊŭļ�
ƦūöŢŢ�ļƞŸƼƛƦ�ŸĻ�Ŋŭ�ƛġƞƦŸŭ�ƦġƞǔŊēġƦ 

Ɣ ²ēńŸŸŢ�ēƼƞƞġŭƴŢǛ�ńöǔġ�ƴńġ�ēńŸŊēġ�ƴŸ� 
Ÿƛġŭ�Ŋŭ�RǛĒƞŊĚ�öĻƴġƞ�̈�ǕġġŞƦ�Ŋŭ�ƴńġ�ƞġĚ 

Ɣ � ̇̆�!ŸƼŢĚ�ƞġƝƼŊƞġ�ƦēńŸŸŢƦ�ƴŸ�ŸĻĻġƞ�
RǛĒƞŊĚ�öĻƴġƞ�̈�ǕġġŞƦ�Ŋŭ�ƴńġ�ƞġĚ�ƴŊġƞ 

208



!(!�mġǔġŢƦ�ŸĻ�ªŊƦŞ 
/RZHVW�ULVN� 

6WXGHQWV� 	�WHDFKHUV�HQJDJH�LQ�YLUWXDO�RQO\�FODVVHV��DFWLYLWLHV�� 	�HYHQWV 
6RPH�ULVN� 

+\EULG�/HDUQLQJ�0RGHO��6RPH�VWXGHQWV�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�YLUWXDO�OHDUQLQJ� 	�RWKHU�VWXGHQWV�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�LQ�SHUVRQ�OHDUQLQJ 
6PDOO��LQ�SHUVRQ�FODVVHV��DFWLYLWLHV�� 	�HYHQWV 
&RKRUWLQJ��DOWHUQDWLQJ�VFKHGXOHV�� 	�VWDJJHUHG�VFKHGXOHV�DUH�DSSOLHG�ULJRURXVO\ 
1R�PL[LQJ�RI�JURXSV�RI�VWXGHQWV� 	�WHDFKHUV�WKURXJKRXW�DFURVV�VFKRRO�GD\V 
6WXGHQWV� 	�WHDFKHUV�GR�QRW�VKDUH�REMHFWV 
$OO�IROORZ�DOO�VWHSV�WR�SURWHFW�WKHPVHOYHV� 	�RWKHUV�LQFOXGLQJ�SURSHU�XVH�RI�IDFH�PDVNV��VRFLDO�GLVWDQFLQJ��KDQG�K\JLHQH 
5HJXODUO\�VFKHGXOHG�FOHDQLQJ� 	�GLVLQIHFWLRQ�RI�IUHTXHQWO\�WRXFKHG�DUHDV�LPSOHPHQWHG�ZLWK�ILGHOLW\ 

0HGLXP�ULVN� 
+\EULG�/HDUQLQJ�0RGHO��0RVW�VWXGHQWV�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�LQ�SHUVRQ�OHDUQLQJ��VRPH�VWXGHQWV�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�YLUWXDO�OHDUQLQJ 
/DUJHU�LQ�SHUVRQ�FODVVHV��DFWLYLWLHV�� 	�HYHQWV 
&RKRUWLQJ��DOWHUQDWLQJ�VFKHGXOHV�� 	�VWDJJHUHG�VFKHGXOHV�DUH�DSSOLHG�ZLWK�VRPH�H[FHSWLRQV 
6RPH�PL[LQJ�RI�JURXSV�RI�VWXGHQWV� 	�WHDFKHUV�WKURXJKRXW�DFURVV�VFKRRO�GD\V 
6WXGHQWV� 	�WHDFKHUV�PLQLPDOO\�VKDUH�REMHFWV 
$OO�IROORZ�DOO�VWHSV�WR�SURWHFW�WKHPVHOYHV� 	�RWKHUV�VXFK�DV�SURSHU�XVH�RI�IDFH�PDVNV��VRFLDO�GLVWDQFLQJ��KDQG�K\JLHQH 
5HJXODUO\�VFKHGXOHG�FOHDQLQJ� 	�GLVLQIHFWLRQ�RI�IUHTXHQWO\�WRXFKHG�DUHDV�ODUJHO\�LPSOHPHQWHG�ZLWK�ILGHOLW\ 

+LJKHU�ULVN� 
6WXGHQWV� 	�WHDFKHUV�HQJDJH�LQ�LQ�SHUVRQ�RQO\�OHDUQLQJ��DFWLYLWLHV�� 	�HYHQWV 
6WXGHQWV�PLQLPDOO\�PL[�EHWZHHQ�FODVVHV� 	�DFWLYLWLHV 
6WXGHQWV� 	�WHDFKHUV�VKDUH�VRPH�REMHFWV 
6WXGHQWV��WHDFKHUV�� 	�VWDII�IROORZ�VRPH�VWHSV�WR�SURWHFW�WKHPVHOYHV� 	�RWKHUV�DW�DOO�WLPHV�VXFK�DV�SURSHU�XVH�RI�IDFH�PDVNV��VRFLDO� 
GLVWDQFLQJ��KDQG�K\JLHQH 
,UUHJXODU�FOHDQLQJ� 	�GLVLQIHFWLRQ�RI�IUHTXHQWO\�WRXFKHG�DUHDV 

+LJKHVW�ULVN� 
6WXGHQWV� 	�WHDFKHUV�HQJDJH�LQ�LQ�SHUVRQ�RQO\�OHDUQLQJ��DFWLYLWLHV�� 	�HYHQWV 
6WXGHQWV�PL[�IUHHO\�EHWZHHQ�FODVVHV� 	�DFWLYLWLHV 
6WXGHQWV� 	�WHDFKHUV�IUHHO\�VKDUH�REMHFWV 
6WXGHQWV��WHDFKHUV�� 	�VWDII�GR�QRW�DUH�QRW�UHTXLUHG�WR�IROORZ�VWHSV�WR�SURWHFW�WKHPVHOYHV� 	�RWKHUV�VXFK�DV�SURSHU�XVH�RI�IDFH�PDVNV��VRFLDO� 
GLVWDQFLQJ��KDQG�K\JLHQH 
,UUHJXODU�FOHDQLQJ� 	�GLVLQIHFWLRQ�RI�IUHTXHQWO\�WRXFKHG�DUHDV 

(ġĒƞŊ�IŢŸǕ� 
Ɣ &2(�,V�ZRUNLQJ�WR�SUHSDUH�IRU�D�'HEUL�)ORZ�,QFLGHQW 
Ɣ 'HEUL�)ORZ�LQFLGHQW�FRXOG�EH�GHDGO\��HVSHFLDOO\�LI� 

SHRSOH�GRQ¶W�HYDFXDWH 
Ɣ ,I�DQ�LQFLGHQW�RFFXUV 

ż (PHUJHQF\�2SHUDWLRQV�&HQWHU�DFWLYDWLRQ 
ż ��VFKRROV�VHW�XS�DV�WHPS�HYDFXDWLRQ�VLWHV� 
ż RXU�UROH�ZLOO�IRFXV�RQ�WKH�VFKRRO�VKHOWHU�VLWHV 
ż 3RVVLEOH�DFWLYDWLRQ�RI�'LVDVWHU�6HUYLFH�:RUNHUV 

Ɣ

Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ

Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ

Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ

Ɣ

Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ
Ɣ

Ɣ

209

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/schools.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/prevention.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/clean-disinfect-hygiene.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/prevention.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/clean-disinfect-hygiene.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/prevention.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/clean-disinfect-hygiene.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/prevention.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/clean-disinfect-hygiene.html


SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
   

 
   

 
    

  
 

 
 

 
              

         
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SanWa CUX] CRXnW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRn 

FROM: DU. FaUiV Sabbah, CRXnW\ SXSeUinWendenW Rf SchRRlV 

SUBJECT: ASSURYal Rf 2021-2022 BXdgeW CalendaU. 

BACKGROUND 

The BRaUd Zill be aVked WR aSSURYe Whe 2021-2022 BXdgeW DeYelRSmenW PURceVV and Single 
BXdgeW AdRSWiRn TimelineV aV VXbmiWWed and UecRmmended b\ adminiVWUaWiRn. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ASSURYe 2021-2022 BXdgeW CalendaU. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

DeWailed heUein. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: Dec. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #12.1 
210



 
 

 
            

 
 

 
 

        
         

   
 

 
              

 
        

          
  
 

        
           

   
 

 
      

         
      

 
 

        
    

      
   

            
     

         
           

     
      
 

     
         
      
 

      
       

  
      

           
 

       
                     
 

       
             
        

          
     

          
      
      

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
BUDGET DEVELOPMENT PROCESS AND TIMELINE 

Single Budget Adoption 
2021-22 

GOAL: Develop an operating Budget that meets the goals and service priorities of 
the Santa Cruz County Office of Education and align with the Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

OBJECTIVIES ACTIVITIES/PROCEDURES DATE RESPONSIBILITY 

1.0 Prepare preliminary 1.1 Identify preliminary income 3rd week Deputy Supt. 
2021-22 income estimates In January Business 
projections 

2.0 Gather and evaluate 2.1 Cabinet/management 2nd week Superintendent/ 
Budget input discussion of major changes/ in February Cabinet 

programs anticipated to be 
proposed 

2.2 Distribute program Budget 3rd week Deputy Supt. 
instructions and forms to in February Business 
department directors/ 
managers 

2.3 Review and confirm preliminary 4th week Directors/HR 
Budget and personnel requests in February Program Mgrs 
with HR & Deputy Supt. 
Business 

2.4 Review Budget and personnel 4th week Deputy Supt. 
requests in Cabinet in February Business 

2.5 Cabinet review of personnel 4th week Superintendent/ 
status/changes in February Cabinet 

2.6 Review preliminary program 1st week Directors & 
Budgets with Deputy Supt. in March Program Mgrs 
Business 

2.7 Refine program Budget March - Directors & 
and review with Managers April Program Mgrs 

2.8 Prepare preliminary Budget 2nd week Deputy Supt. 
summary documents. of April Business 

3.0 Review and adopt 3.1 Schedule board Ad-Hoc study Early May Board of 
LCAP & final Budget session(s) as necessary Education 

3.2 Report on status of LCAP May Program Mgrs 
and preliminary Budget Board & Deputy Supt. 
to Board Meeting Business 

3.3 Update preliminary Budget Ongoing Deputy Supt. 
as necessary, to reflect Business 
personnel, programmatic, 
fiscal changes, if any. 

LR:ml 
12/14/2020 

211



 
 

 
        

         
      
  

        
            
        
        
 

      
         

 
       

             
  

        
        
        
       
 

3.4 Publish legal notice of 
public hearing on final Budget 
(min. 10 days before hearing). 

3rd week 
in May 

Deputy Supt. 
Business 

3.5 Hold public hearing on LCAP 
and Proposed Budget 
(additional June meeting 
needed for Public Hearing) 

1st meeting 
in June 

Board of 
Education 

3.6 Adopt LCAP and final Budget 2nd meeting 
in June 

Board of 
Education 

3.7 Submit final Budget to State no later than 
July 1 

Deputy Supt. 
Business 

4.0 Ongoing Review 
of Budget 

4.1 Update final Budget to 
reflect end-of-year status and 
final income estimates, 
if necessary. 

Within 45 
days after 
State Budget 

Deputy Supt. 
Business 

LR:ml 
12/14/2020 

212



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
   

 
   

 
             

 
  
 

 
 

 
              

              
                

             
       

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

          

  

         BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: DU. FaULV Sabbah, CRXQW\ SXSeULQWeQdeQW Rf SchRROV 

SUBJECT: BaOORW fRU CSBA EOecWLRQ fRU RegLRQ DeOegaWeV aQd CCBE BRaUd Rf 
DLUecWRUV LQ RegLRQ 9-A 

BACKGROUND 

NRPLQaWLRQV aUe beLQg acceSWed XQWLO ThXUVda\, JaQXaU\ 7 2021 fRU eOecWLRQ WR Whe CaOLfRUQLa 
SchRRO BRaUdV AVVRcLaWLRQ¶V DeOegaWe AVVePbO\. DeOegaWeV ZLWh WeUPV WhaW eQd LQ 2021 aUe XS 
fRU eOecWLRQ. DeOegaWeV eOecWed LQ 2021 ZLOO VeUYe a WZR \eaU WeUP begLQQLQg ASULO 1, 2021 
WhURXgh MaUch 31, 2023. The BRaUd ZLOO cRQVLdeU aSSURYLQg Whe SURSRVed baOORW QRPLQLaWLQg 
RRVe FLOLceWWL fRU CSBA RegLRQ 9-A DeOegaWe. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ASSURYe baOORW. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

NRQe. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: Dec. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #12.2 
213



 

       
     

          
        

            
    

     
               

          

         
         

         

    

  

        

      

    

    
    

  

  
   

October 2�, 2020  TIME SENSITIVE - REQUIRES BOARD ACTION 
DEADLINE: Thursday, January 7, 2021 

MEMORANDUM 

To: CSBA Member County Boards of Education in Odd-Numbered Regions 
From: Xilonin Cruz-Gonzalez, President 
Re: Elected CSBA Regional County Delegate & CCBE Board of Directors Call for Nominations in Regions 

1, 3, 5, 7, 9, and 11 

Nominations are being accepted until Thursday, January 7, 2021 for election to the California School Boards 
Association¶s Delegate Assembl\. Delegates with terms that end in 2021 are up for election. Ballots for the Delegate 
Assembly election will be sent to each member board within the region or subregion by February 1, 2021. Delegates 
elected in 2021 will serve a two-year term beginning April 1, 2021 through March 31, 2023. There are two required Delegate 
Assembly meetings each year; in 2021, the dates are May 15-16 and November 30 - December 1. 

In addition to serving on CSBA¶s Delegate Assembl\, the regional count\ Delegates comprise the California Count\ Boards 
of Education¶s (CCBE) Board of Directors. In accordance with CCBE¶s B\laws, CCBE Directors are elected through 
CSBA¶s Regional Count\ Delegate election process. A memo from CCBE President Janet Wohlgemuth is included. 

Nomination instructions are as follows: 

¾ Only CSBA member county boards of education may nominate a board member for the County Delegate seat in� 
their region. For region QXPEHU, see ³CSBA REGION INDEX FOR DISTRICTS & COES´ document. 

¾ A nominee¶s count\ board must be a member of CSBA. 

¾ Nominating county boards must obtain permission from the nominee prior to submitting a nomination. 

¾ Nominees must submit a one-page, single-sided, biographical sketch form. 

¾ Nominees may submit an optional one-page, one-sided résumé. 

Documents related to the nomination process are being provided online only. The forms, as well as information about 
the Delegate Assembly, may be downloaded from CSBA¶s website: www.csba.org/ElectiontoDA. 

The deadline for nomination materials is 11:59 p.m. on Thursday, January 7, 2021. Materials can be sent via email to 
nominations@csba.org. Nomination materials may also be sent via mail, to the CSBA Executive Office, 3251 Beacon 
Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95961, with a postmark of no later than January 7, 2021. 

214

http://www.csba.org/ElectiontoDA
mailto:nominations@csba.org


 

 

  

  

  

  

   

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

  

 

October 26, 2020 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: CCBE and CSBA Member County Boards of Education 

FROM: Janet Wohlgemuth, CCBE President 

SUBJECT: 2021 County CCBE Board of Directors/ CSBA Delegate Assembly Nominations 

Enclosed is the nomination material for election of CCBE Board of Directors from your region. 
Each CCBE-elected Director also acts as a representative to the CSBA Delegate Assembly. 

CCBE is a statewide organization that is a section of CSBA and partners with it in providing 
educational leadership serving the unique needs of all county boards of education in California. 
Through advocacy, training, mentoring, marketing and communications, CCBE’s mission is to 
serve and represent the county boards of education community by strengthening and promoting 
local governance, and enabling county boards to help every student succeed.  It is the dynamic 
network of members dedicated to maximizing education opportunities for all. 

CCBE Directors establish the vision, mission, and goals for CCBE, and ensure that activities and 
programs remain focused on those goals and the issues identified in CCBE’s policies.  The 
CCBE Directors serves an organization that is dedicated to advancing equity and knowledge in 
the education community, by being engaged and tenacious champions for education. Each board 
member, also referred to as Regional Director, represents all county board members in their 
CCBE region and sits on the CSBA Delegate Assembly.  As such, individuals who are 
committed and involved in providing educational leadership are needed to fill this important role. 

For CCBE, the Directors’ roles and responsibilities include: 
� Adopt CCBE’s budget, policy platform, bylaws and standing rules; 
� Act as the conduit for communication between CCBE and county board members; 
� Aid county board members in two-way communications with their local school districts; 
� Select and endorse a candidate for the CSBA Director-at-Large, County position; 
� Support and participate in CCBE’s and CSBA’s activities and events. 

Directors are required to attend at least three CCBE Board of Directors meetings each year.  In 
2021, the first meeting is scheduled on May 16th following CSBA’s Delegate Assembly 
meeting, the second meeting will precede CCBE’s Annual Conference on September 10th, and 
the third meeting is scheduled on December 2nd following CSBA’s Delegate meeting. Each 
Director is also required to attend all CSBA Delegates Assembly meetings, 

For further information about CCBE, please go to www.theccbe.org or contact CCBE staff, at 
ccbe@csba.org.  Thank you. 

California County Boards of Education| 3251 Beacon Boulevard | West Sacramento, CA 95691| (800) 266-3382 
215

http://www.theccbe.org/
mailto:ccbe@csba.org


   

    

   

  

 
           

 
 

   

     

  
   

      

______________________________________________ ____________________________ 

______________________________________________ 

ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ĞůĞŐĂƚĞ�Θ�
������ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ
Nomination Form for 2021 Election 
TO BE COMPLETED BY THE NOMINATING BOARD 

Deadline: Thursday, January 7, 2021 ൟ No late submissions accepted 
This form is required. Please submit this Nomination Form via e-mail to nominations@csba.org no later than 11:59 p.m. on January 7, 
2021.  Forms may also be submitted via mail�ƚo CSBA's Executive Office�at 3251 Beacon Blvd., West Sacramento, CA 95691, with a 
postmark of no later than January 7, 2021. Iƚ iƐ ƚhe caŶdidaƚe͛Ɛ ƌeƐƉŽŶƐibiliƚǇ ƚŽ cŽŶfiƌm ƚhaƚ CSBA haƐ ƌeceiǀed ŶŽmiŶaƚiŽŶ maƚeƌialƐ 
prior to the deadline.  

CSBA Region/subregion # 

See "CSBA REGION INDEX FOR DISTRICTS & COE^͟ 

The Board of Education of the _____________________________________________________________ 
(Nominating �K��Žƌ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�h^�) 

voted to nominate ____________________________________________͘ The nominee is a member of the 
(Nominee) 

__________________________________________________________________which is a member of the 
(NŽmiŶee͛Ɛ BŽaƌdͿ 

California School Boards Association�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽĂƌĚƐ�ŽĨ��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�;����Ϳ͘ 

❑ dŚĞ�ŶŽŵŝŶĞĞ�ŚĂƐ�ĐŽŶƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽŵŝŶĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ͕�ŝĨ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ͕�ĂƐ�Ă��^����ĞůĞŐĂƚĞ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů 
ĂƐ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�������ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ͘ 

Board Clerk or Board Secretary (signature) Date 

Board Clerk or Board Secretary (print name) 

ONLY ONE NOMINEE PER NOMINATION FORM 

216

mailto:nominations@csba.org


217



 
 

 
   

  

  

  

 

 

    
 

   
 

 

    
 

   
 

Delegate Assembly 
Important Dates 

2021 Delegate Assembly Election 

Thursday, January 7: Deadline for Nomination Forms and Biographical 
Sketch Forms 

Monday, February 1: Ballots sent to member boards 

Monday, March 15: Deadline for ballots to be sent back to CSBA 

By Wednesday, March 31: Ballots will be counted 

Thursday, April 1: First day of new 2-year term for Delegates 
elected in 2021 

2021 Delegate Assembly Meeting Dates 

Saturday – Sunday, May 15 - 16 
(scheduled to occur in Sacramento) 

Tuesday – Wednesday, November 30 - December 1 
(scheduled to occur in San Diego) 

2022 Delegate Assembly Meeting Dates 

Saturday – Sunday, May 21-22 
(scheduled to occur in Sacramento) 

Tuesday – Wednesday, November 29 - 30 
(scheduled to occur in San Diego) 

218



 

 
  

       
    

 
 

   
  

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

   
    

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

    
  

 
 

  
  

   
    

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
   

  
 

  
  

  
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
  

              DELEGATE ASSEMBLY ROSTER with terms (Updated 10/28/2020) 
� = District or COE appointment 

REGION 1 – 4 Delegates (4 elected) Region 4 County 
Director: Frank Magarino (Del Norte County USD) David Patterson (Placer COE), 2022 
Subregion 1-A (Del Norte, Humboldt) 
Donald McArthur (Del Norte County USD), 2021 
Lisa Ollivier (Eureka City Schools), 2022 
Subregion 1-B (Lake, Mendocino) 
Tyler Nelson (Ukiah USD), 2022 
Region 1 County 
David Browning (Lake COE), 2021 

REGION 2 – 4 Delegates (4 elected) 
Director: Sherry Crawford (Siskiyou COE) 
Subregion 2-A (Modoc, Siskiyou, Trinity) 
Gregg Gunkel (Siskiyou Union HSD), 2021 
Subregion 2-B (Shasta) 
Vacant, 2021 
Subregion 2-C (Lassen, Plumas) 
Vacant, 2022 
Region 2 County 
Brenda Duchi (Siskiyou COE), 2022 

REGION 3 – 8 Delegates (8 elected) 
Director: A.C. (Tony) Ubalde (Vallejo City USD) 
Subregion 3-A (Sonoma) 
Jeremy Brott (Bennett Valley Union SD), 2022 
Laurie Fong (Santa Rosa City Schools), 2021 
Subregion 3-B (Napa) 
Indira Lopez (Calistoga Joint USD), 2021 
Subregion 3-C (Solano) 
Diane Ferrucci (Benicia USD), 2021 
David Isom (Fairfield-Suisun USD), 2021 
Michael Silva (Vacaville USD), 2022 
Subregion 3-D (Marin) 
Greg Knell (San Rafael City Schools), 2022 
Region 3 County 
Gina Cuclis (Sonoma COE), 2021 
Delegate-at-Large 
Dana Dean (Solano COE) 

REGION 4 – 8 Delegates (8 elected) 
Director: Paige Stauss (Roseville Joint Union HSD) 
Subregion 4-A (Glenn, Tehama) 
Vacant, 2022 
Subregion 4-B (Butte) 
Sandra Barnes (Oroville City ESD), 2021 
Subregion 4-C (Colusa, Sutter, Yuba) 
Talwinder Chetra (Live Oaks USD), 2022 
Silvia Vaca (Williams USD), 2021 
Subregion 4-D (Nevada, Placer, Sierra) 
Julann Brown (Auburn Union ESD), 2021 
Alisa Fong (Roseville City SD), 2021 
Renee Nash (Eureka Union SD), 2022 

Delegate-at-Large 
Mike Walsh (Butte COE) 

REGION 5 – 10 Delegates (7 elected/3 appointed�) 
Director: Alisa MacAvoy (Redwood City ESD) 
Subregion 5-A (San Francisco) 
Jenny Lam (San Francisco County USD)�, 2021 
Rachel Norton (San Francisco County USD)�, 2021 
Vacant (San Francisco County USD)�, 2022 
Subregion 5-B (San Mateo) 
Davina Drabkin (Burlingame ESD), 2021 
Carrie Du Bois (Sequoia Union HSD), 2021 
Eddie Flores (South San Francisco USD), 2022 
Amy Koo (Belmont-Redwood Shores SD), 2022 
Clayton Koo (Jefferson ESD), 2022 
Gregory Land (San Mateo Union HSD), 2021 
Region 5 County 
Beverly Gerard (San Mateo COE), 2021 

REGION 6 – 18 Delegates (11 elected/7 appointed�) 
Director: Darrel Woo (Sacramento City USD) 
Subregion 6-A (Yolo) 
Jackie Wong (Washington USD), 2022 
Subregion 6-B (Sacramento) 
Beth Albiani (Elk Grove USD)�, 2021 
Michael Baker (Twin Rivers USD)�, 2021 
Pam Costa (San Juan USD)�, 2021 
Craig DeLuz (Robla ESD), 2022 
Basim Elkarra (Twin Rivers USD), 2021 
John Gordon (Galt Joint Union ESD), 2021 
Lisa Kaplan (Natomas USD), 2021 
Mike McKibbin (San Juan USD)�, 2022 
JoAnne Reinking (Folsom-Cordova USD), 2022 
Edward Short (Folsom-Cordova USD), 2021 
Bobbie Singh-Allen (Elk Grove USD)�, 2022 
Vacant, 2021 
Vacant (Sacramento City USD)�, 2022 
Vacant (Sacramento City USD)�, 2021 
Subregion 6-C (Alpine, El Dorado, Mono) 
Misty diVittorio (Placerville Union ESD), 2022 
Suzanna George (Rescue Union ESD), 2021 
Region 6 County 
Shelton Yip (Yolo COE), 2022 

REGION 7 – 19 Delegates (14 elected/5 appointed�) 
Director: Yolanda Peña Mendrek (Liberty Union HSD)_____ 
Subregion 7-A (Contra Costa) 
Elizabeth Bettis (Walnut Creek ESD), 2021 
Rachel Hurd (San Ramon Valley USD)�, 2022 
Linda Mayo (Mt. Diablo USD)�, 2021 
Meredith Meade (Lafayette SD), 2021 
Marina Ramos (John Swett USD), 2022 

219 P a g  e  | 1 



 

 
  

 
  

 
   

  
 

 
 

  
  

  
    

 
  

 
    

 
 
  

   
 

 
 

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
  

   
 

  
  

 
    

 
   

 
  

 
  

 

 
   

 
  

  
  

 
  

  
   

  
  

    
  

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
  

  
 

  
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

   
  

  
 

 
   

 
  

  
  

 
   

 
 

  
 

 

Mary Rocha (Antioch USD), 2022 
Pauline Rivera Allred (Liberty Union HSD), 2022 
Richard Severy (Moraga ESD), 2021 
Subregion 7-B (Alameda) 
James Aguilar (San Leandro USD), 2022 
Linda Canlas (New Haven USD), 2021 
Ann Crosbie (Fremont USD)�, 2021 
Jody London (Oakland USD)�, 2021 
Diana Prola (San Leandro USD), 2021 
Monique Tate (San Leandro USD), 2022 
Jeff Wang (New Haven USD), 2021 
Anne White (Livermore Valley Joint USD), 2022 
Jamie Yee (Pleasanton USD), 2021 
Gary Yee (Oakland USD)�, 2022 
Region 7 County 
Amber Childress (Alameda COE), 2021 

REGION 8 – 14 Delegates (12 elected/2 appointed�) 
Director: Matthew Balzarini (Lammersville Joint USD) 
Subregion 8-A (San Joaquin) 
Kathleen Garcia (Stockton USD)�, 2021 
Kathy Howe (Manteca USD), 2022 
Cecilia Mendez (Stockton USD)�, 2022 
George Neely (Lodi USD), 2021 
Christopher Oase (Ripon USD), 2021 
Stephen Schluer (Manteca USD), 2022 
Jenny Van De Pol (Lincoln USD), 2022 
Subregion 8-B (Amador, Calaveras, Tuolumne) 
Sherri Reusche (Calaveras USD), 2021 
Subregion 8-C (Stanislaus) 
Faye Lane (Ceres USD), 2022 
Cynthia Lindsey (Sylvan Union ESD), 2021 
Paul Wallace (Neman-Crows Landing USD), 2021 
Subregion 8-D (Merced) 
Adam Cox (Merced City ESD), 2021 
Vacant, 2022 
Region 8 County 
Juliana Feriani (Tuolumne COE), 2022 
Delegate-at-Large 
Cindy Marks (Modesto City Schools) 

REGION 9 – 8 Delegates (8 elected) 
Director: Tami Gunther (Atascadero USD) 
Subregion 9-A (San Benito, Santa Cruz) 
Phil Rodriquez (Soquel Union ESD), 2021 
Roger Snyder (Scotts Valley USD), 2022 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx (Santa Cruz City Schools), 2022 
Subregion 9-B (Monterey) 
Sonia Jaramillo (Gonzales USD), 2022 
David Kong (Greenfield Union SD), 2021 
Subregion 9-C (San Luis Obispo) 
Mark Buchman (San Luis Coastal USD), 2022 
Vicki Meagher (Lucia Mar USD), 2021 
Region 9 County 
Rose Filicetti (Santa Cruz COE), 2021 
Delegate-at-Large 
Chris Ungar (San Luis Coastal USD) 

REGION 10 – 14 Delegates (10 elected/4 appointed�) 
Director: Susan Markarian (Pacific Union ESD) 
Subregion10-A (Madera, Mariposa) 
Barbara Bigelow (Chawanakee USD), 2021 
Subregion10-B (Fresno) 
Daniel Babshoff (Kerman USD), 2021 
Darrell Carter (Washington USD), 2022 
Phillip Cervantes (Central USD), 2022 
Gilbert Coelho (Firebaugh-Las Deltas USD), 2022 
Valerie Davis (Fresno USD)�, 2021 
Susan Hatmaker (Clovis USD)�, 2021 
William Johnson (Clay Jt. ESD), 2021 
Elizabeth Sandoval (Clovis USD)�, 2022 
Kathy Spate (Caruthers USD), 2021 
Keshia Thomas (Fresno USD)�, 2022 
G. Brandon Vang (Sanger USD), 2021 
Subregion10-C (Kings) 
Mark Pescatore (Leemore Union ESD), 2022 
Region 10 County 
Marcy Masumoto (Fresno COE), 2022 

REGION 11 – 9 Delegates (9 elected) 
Director: Jackie Moran (Ventura USD) 
Subregion 11-A (Santa Barbara) 
Wendy Sims-Moten (Santa Barbara USD), 2022 
Luz Reyes-Martin (Goleta Union SD), 2021 
Subregion 11-B (Ventura) 
Darlene Bruno (Hueneme SD), 2022 
Efrain Cazares (Oceanview SD), 2022 
Debra Cordes (Oxnard SD), 2022 
Jenny Fitzgerald (Conejo Valley USD), 2022 
Sabrena Rodriguez (Ventura USD), 2021 
Christina Urias (Santa Paula USD), 2021 
Region 11 County 
Rachel Ulrich (Ventura COE), 2021 

REGION 12 – 13 Delegates (11 elected/2 appointed�) 
Director: Bill Farris (Sierra Sands USD) 
Subregion 12-A (Tulare) 
Peter Lara (Porterville USD), 2022 
Cathy Mederos (Tulare Joint Union HSD), 2021 
Dean Sutton (Exeter USD), 2021 
Lucia Vazquez (Visalia USD), 2022 
Subregion 12-B (Kern) 
Pamela Baugher (Bakersfield City SD), 2021 
Vacant (Kern HSD)�, 2022 
Jeff Flores (Kern HSD)�, 2021 
Pamela Jacobsen (Standard SD), 2022 
Tim Johnson (Sierra Sands USD), 2021 
Geri Rivera (Arvin Union SD), 2021 
Lillian Tafoya (Bakersfield City SD), 2022 
Keith Wolaridge (Panama-Buena Vista Union SD), 2021 
Region 12 County 
Donald Cowan (Kern COE), 2022 

220 P a g  e  | 2 



 

 
  

 
  

  
  

    
  

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

  
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
 

   
 

  
 

  
     

  
 

 
   
   
  

 
  

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

  
   

  
  

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
  

    
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

  
 

 
 

 

REGION 15 – 24 Delegates (17 elected/7 appointed�) 
Director: Meg Cutuli (Los Alamitos USD) 
County: Orange 
Alfonso Alvarez (Santa Ana USD)�, 2022 
David Boyer (Los Alamitos USD), 2021 
Lauren Brooks (Irvine USD), 2022 
Carrie Buck (Placentia-Yorba Linda USD), 2022 
Bonnie Castrey (Huntington Beach Union HSD), 2021 
Ian Collins (Fountain Valley ESD), 2021 
Lynn Davis (Tustin USD), 2022 
Jackie Filbeck (Anaheim ESD), 2021 
Carrie Flanders (Brea Olinda USD), 2021 
Karin Freeman (Placentia-Yorba Linda USD), 2021 
Ira Glasky (Irvine USD)�, 2022 
Judy Bullockus (Capistrano USD)�, 2021 
Al Jabbar (Anaheim Un. HSD), 2021 
Candice Kern (Cypress ESD), 2022 
Martha McNicholas (Capistrano USD)�, 2022 
Charlene Metoyer (Newport-Mesa USD), 2021 
Walter Muneton (Garden Grove USD)�, 2021 
Lan Nguyen (Garden Grove USD)�, 2022 
Annemarie Randle-Trejo (Anaheim Union HSD), 2022 
Rigo Rodriguez (Santa Ana USD)�, 2021 
Michael Simons (Huntington Beach Union HSD), 2022 
Suzie Swartz (Saddleback Valley USD), 2021 
Sharon Wallin (Irvine USD), 2022 
Region 15 County 
Beckie Gomez (Orange COE), 2021 
Delegate-at-Large 
Marilyn Buchi (Fullerton Joint Union HSD) 
Martha Fluor (Newport-Mesa USD) 
Susan Henry (Huntington Beach Union HSD) 

REGION 16 – 19 Delegates (14 elected/5 appointed�) 
Director: Karen Gray (Silver Valley USD) 
Subregion 16-A (Inyo) 
Susan Patton (Lone Pine USD), 2021 
Subregion 16-B (San Bernardino) 
Christina Cameron-Otero (Needles USD), 2022 
Tom Courtney (Lucerne Valley USD), 2021 
Andrew Cruz (Chino Valley USD)�, 2021 
Barbara Dew (Victor Valley Union HSD), 2022 
Gwen Dowdy-Rodgers (San Bernardino City USD)�, 2021 
Barbara Flores (San Bernardino City USD), 2022 
Peter Garcia (Fontana USD)�, 2022 
Cindy Gardner (Rim of the World USD), 2022 
Shari Megaw (Chaffey Joint Union HSD), 2021 
James O’Neill, (Redlands USD), 2022 
Adam Perez (Fontana USD)�, 2021 
Wilson So (Apple Valley USD), 2022 
Gabriel Stine (Victor ESD), 2021 
Eric Swanson (Hesperia USD), 2021 
Mondi Taylor (Etiwanda SD), 2021 
Kathy Thompson (Central ESD), 2021 
Scott Wyatt (San Bernardino City USD) �, 2022 
Region 16 County 
Laura Mancha (San Bernardino COE), 2022 

REGION 17 – 23 Delegates (17 elected/6 appointed�) 
Director: Debra Schade (Solana Beach ESD) 
County: San Diego 
Barbara Avalos (National SD), 2022 
Richard Barrera (San Diego USD)�, 2021 
Leslie Bunker (Chula Vista ESD), 2021 
Brian Clapper (National SD), 2022 
Eleanor Evans (Oceanside USD), 2022 
Humberto Gurmilan (San Ysidro SD), 2022 
Andrew Hayes (Lakeside Union SD), 2021 
Beth Hergesheimer (San Dieguito Union HSD), 2021 
Claudine Jones (Carlsbad USD), 2022 
Christi Knight (Escondido Union HSD), 2021 
Michael McQuary (San Diego USD)�, 2022 
Tamara Otero (Cajon Valley Union SD), 2022 
Darshana Patel (Poway USD)�, 2021 
Dawn Perfect (Ramona USD), 2021 
Barbara Ryan (Santee SD), 2021 
Elva Salinas (Grossmont Union HSD), 2022 
Nicholas Segura (Sweetwater Union HSD)�, 2022 
Arturo Solis (Sweetwater Union HSD)�, 2021 
Marla Strich (Encinitas Union ESD), 2022 
Cipriano Vargas, (Vista USD), 2022 
Sharon Whitehurst-Payne (San Diego USD)�, 2021 
Vacant, 2021 
Region 17 County 
Guadalupe Gonzalez (San Diego COE), 2021 

REGION 18 – 21 Delegates (16 elected/5 appointed�) 
Director: Wendy Jonathan (Desert Sands USD) 
Subregion 18-A (Riverside) 
Angelov Farooq (Riverside USD)�, 2022 
Robert Garcia (Jurupa USD), 2021 
Madonna Gerrell (Palm Springs USD), 2021 
Virniecia Green-Jordan (Perris ESD), 2022 
Tom Hunt (Riverside USD)�, 2021 
Cleveland Johnson (Moreno Valley USD)�, 2021 
Marla Kirkland (Val Verde USD), 2022 
Elizabeth Marroquin (Corona-Norco USD)�, 2022 
David Nelissen (Perris Union HSD), 2022 
Gerard Reller (Romoland ESD), 2021 
Kristi Rutz-Robbins (Temecula Valley USD), 2021 
Victor Scavarda (Hemet USD), 2022 
Susan Scott (Lake Elsinore USD), 2022 
Kris Thomasian (Murrieta Valley USD), 2021 
Lizeth Vega (Alvord USD), 2022 
Mary Ybarra (Corona-Norco USD)�, 2021 
Vacant, 2021 
Subregion 18-B (Imperial) 
Michael Castillo (Calexico USD), 2021 
Diahna Garcia-Ruiz (Central Union HSD), 2022 
Gil Rebollar (Brawley ESD), 2021 
Region 18 County 
Victor Jaime (Imperial COE), 2022 
Director-at-Large, County 
Bruce Dennis (Riverside COE) 
Delegate-at-Large 
Jesus Holguin (Moreno Valley USD) 

221 P a g  e  | 3 



 

 
  

 
   

  
  

 
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

   
  

 
  

 
    

   
   

 
  

  
 

  
   
 

 
 

 
   

    
  

 
     

  
 

 
 

 
   

   
 

  
  

 
 

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 
  

 

 
   

   
 

 
 

  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

 

REGION 20 – 12 Delegates (11 elected/1 appointed�) 
Director: Albert Gonzalez (Santa Clara USD) 
County: Santa Clara 
Melissa Baten Caswell (Palo Alto USD), 2022 
Teresa Castellanos (San Jose USD)�, 2021 
Lorena Chavez (East Side Union HSD), 2022 
Danielle Cohen (Campbell Union SD), 2021 
Bonnie Mace (Evergreen ESD), 2021 
Jodi Muirhead (Santa Clara USD), 2022 
Reid Myers (Sunnyvale SD), 2021 
Mary Patterson (Morgan Hill USD), 2022 
Andres Quintero (Alum Rock Union ESD), 2021 
George Sanchez (Franklin-McKinley ESD), 2021 
Fiona Walter (Mountain View Los Altos HSD), 2021 
Region 20 County 
Rosemary Kamei (Santa Clara COE), 2022 

REGION 21 – 7 Delegates (7 appointed�) 
Director: Scott Schmerelson (Los Angeles USD) 
County: Los Angeles 
Mónica Garcia (Los Angeles USD)�, 2021 
Jackie Goldberg (Los Angeles USD)�, 2022 
Kelly Gonez (Los Angeles USD)�, 2022 
George McKenna (Los Angeles USD)�, 2022 
Nick Melvoin (Los Angeles USD)�, 2022 
Richard Vladovic (Los Angeles USD)�, 2022 
Region 21 County 
Monte Perez (Los Angeles COE), �2022 

REGION 22 – 6 Delegates (6 elected) 
Director: Nancy Smith (Palmdale SD) 
Los Angeles County: North Los Angeles 
Steven DeMarzio (Westside Union ESD), 2022 
Keith Giles (Lancaster ESD), 2022 
Cherise Moore (William S. Hart Union HSD), 2021 
Steven Sturgeon (William S. Hart Union HSD), 2021 
Sharon Vega (Palmdale ESD), 2021 
Vacant, 2022 

REGION 23 – 12 Delegates (11 elected/1 Appointed�) 
Director: Helen Hall (Walnut Valley USD) 
Los Angeles County: San Gabriel Valley & East Los Angeles 
Subregion 23-A 
Suzie Abajian (South Pasadena USD), 2021 
Jennifer Freemon (Glendale USD), 2021 
Gregory Krikorian (Glendale USD), 2022 
Gary Scott (San Gabriel USD), 2022 
Subregion 23-B 
Adam Carranza (Mountain View ESD), 2021 
David Diaz (El Monte Union HSD), 2021 
Elizabeth Rivas (El Monte City SD), 2022 
Subregion 23-C 
Cory Ellenson (Glendora USD), 2022 
Steven Llanusa (Claremont USD), 2022 
Christina Lucero (Baldwin Park USD), 2021 
Eileen Miranda Jimenez (West Covina USD), 2021 
Roberta Perlman (Pomona USD)�, 2021 

REGION 24 – 14 Delegates (12 elected/2 Appointed�) 
Director: Donald E. LaPlante (Downey USD) 
Los Angeles County: Southwest Crescent 
Darryl Adams (Norwalk-La Mirada USD), 2021 
Micah Ali (Compton USD), 2021 
Leighton Anderson (Whittier Union HSD), 2022 
Jan Baird (South Whittier ESD), 2021 
Maggie Bove-LaMonica (Hermosa Beach City ESD), 2022 
Diana Craighead (Long Beach)�, 2022 
Jeremy Gerson (Torrance USD), 2022 
Megan Kerr (Long Beach USD)�, 2021 
Karen Morrison (Norwalk-La Mirada USD), 2022 
Harunobu Nishii (ABC USD), 2021 
Ann Phillips (Lawndale ESD), 2022 
Dora Sandoval (Little Lake City ESD), 2021 
Jesse Urquidi (Norwalk-LaMirada USD), 2022 
Satra Zurita (Compton USD), 2021 

222 P a g  e  | 4 



                         

                

               

              

                      

                     

                      

                      

          

                     

                     

                    

                      

                 

                    

                     

                     

             

               

          

         

                        

                

                      

                

                

                

                       

           

                       

                   

                      

                        

                  

                 

              

                     

                    

                       

                  

                        

                   

                

                  

                    

                        

                

                  

                      

                        

                      

            

                        

                     

                    

                     

                      

                    

                     

                  

                     

        

                      

                       

              

                      

                 

                   

                     

               

          

                      

              

                       

                 

                        

                      

           

               

                

                        

                

                

                        

            

                        

              

                       

                

                  

                      

                 

                   

                

                

                     

                        

                      

                        

                       

                 

                 

                   

                   

                      

                    

                    

                   

&SBA Region ,QGH[�IRU�'LVWULFWV�DQG�&2(V 

ABC USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Arvin Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Big Springs Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Acalanes Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A Atascadero USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 C Big Sur USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Ackerman Charter SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Atwater ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Big Valley Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Acton-Agua Dulce USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 Auburn Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Biggs USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Adelanto ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Azusa USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C Bishop USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alameda COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Baker Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Bitterwater-Tully Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . 09 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alameda USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Bakersfield City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Black Butte Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Albany USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Baldwin Park USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C Black Oak Mine USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alexander Valley Union ESD . . . . . . . . . 03 A Baldy View ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Blake ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alhambra USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A Ballard SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Blochman Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alisal Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Ballico-Cressey ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Blue Lake Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Allensworth ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Bangor Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B Bogus ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alpaugh USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Banning USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Bolinas-Stinson Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alpine County & USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Banta ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Bonita USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alpine Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Barstow USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Bonny Doon Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alta Loma ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Bass Lake Joint Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . 10 A Bonsall USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alta Vista ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Bassett USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C Borrego Springs USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alta-Dutch Flat Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Bayshore ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Bradley Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alum Rock Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Bear Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Brawley ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alview-Dairyland Union ESD . . . . . . . . . 10 A Beardsley ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Brawley Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alvina Elementary Charter SD . . . . . . . . 10 B Beaumont USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Brea-Olinda USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Alvord USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Bella Vista ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Brentwood Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Amador County & USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Belleview ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Bret Harte Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Anaheim ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Bellevue Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Bridgeville ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Anaheim Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Bellflower USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Briggs ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Anderson Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Belmont-Redwood Shores ESD . . . . . . . 05 B Brisbane ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Anderson Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B Belridge ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Brittan ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Antelope SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Benicia USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 C Browns ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Antelope Valley Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . 22 Bennett Valley Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Buckeye Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Antioch USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A Berkeley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Buellton Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Apple Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Berryessa Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Buena Park ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Arcadia USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A Beverly Hills USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Buena Vista ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Arcata ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Big Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Burbank USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Arcohe Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B Big Lagoon Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Burlingame ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Armona Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C Big Oak Flat-Groveland USD . . . . . . . . . 08 B Burnt Ranch ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Aromas-San Juan USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Big Pine USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 A Burrel Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

223

Page 1 of 10 



                        

                         

                   

                

              

                   

                       

               

                     

                     

                      

                 

                     

                  

                      

                 

                

                 

             

                       

               

                    

                         

                     

                       

                    

                     

                 

                   

              

                  

                      

                       

          

                       

                  

                  

                       

                      

                        

              

                   

                   

                  

                  

                        

                   

                    

               

                   

                    

                 

                      

                     

                      

                   

                    

                        

               

                

                         

                     

                  

                   

                        

                       

                    

        

                     

                 

                    

                       

                       

                     

                  

                  

                  

                 

                 

                     

                 

              

               

                  

                    

              

                    

                 

                   

                

                        

                   

                     

                     

                   

                        

                   

              

              

                  

                         

                       

                       

                   

                   

                     

                       

                         

224

Burton ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Central Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Colusa USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Butte COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B Central USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Compton USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Butte Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Centralia ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Conejo Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Butteville Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Ceres USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Contra Costa COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Buttonwillow Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Chaffey Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Corcoran Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Byron Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A Charter Oak USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C Corning Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cabrillo USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Chatom Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Corning Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cajon Valley Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Chawanakee USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 A Coronado USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Calaveras COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Chicago Park ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Corona-Norco USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Calaveras USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Chico USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B Cotati-Rohnert Park USD . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Calexico USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Chino Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Cottonwood Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Caliente Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Chowchilla ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 A Covina-Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Calipatria USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Chowchilla Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 A Cucamonga SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Calistoga Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 B Chualar Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Cuddeback Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cambrian SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Chula Vista ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Culver City USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Camino Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Cienega Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Cupertino Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Campbell Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Cinnabar ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Curtis Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Campbell Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Claremont USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C Cutler-Orosi Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Camptonville Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C Clay Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Cutten ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Canyon ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A Clear Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Cuyama Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Capay Joint Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Cloverdale USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Cypress ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Capistrano USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Clovis USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Davis Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cardiff ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Coachella Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Death Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Carlsbad USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Coalinga-Huron USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Dehesa SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Carmel USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Coast USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 C Del Mar Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Carpinteria USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Coastline ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Del Norte County & USD . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Caruthers USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Coffee Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Delano Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cascade Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Cold Spring ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Delano Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Castaic Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 Colfax ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Delhi USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Castle Rock Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B College ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Delphic ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Castro Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Colton Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Denair USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cayucos ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 C Colton-Redlands-Yucaipa ROP . . . . . . . 16 B Desert Center USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Center USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B Columbia ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Desert Sands USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Centinela Valley Union HSD . . . . . . . . . 24 Columbia Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Di Giorgio ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Central ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Columbine ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Dinuba USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Central Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C Colusa COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C Dixie ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Page 2 of 10 



 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

   

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

Alphabetical Index of School Districts and Corresponding CSBA Region Number 

Dixon USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 C Encinitas Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Franklin ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Dos Palos Oro Loma Joint USD . . . . . . . 08 D Enterprise ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Franklin-McKinley ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Douglas City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Escalon USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Fremont Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Downey USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Escondido Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Fremont USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Dry Creek Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Escondido Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 French Gulch-Whiskeytown ESD . . . . . . 02 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Duarte USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A Esparto USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 A Freshwater ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Dublin USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Etiwanda ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Fresno COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Ducor Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Eureka City Schools . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Fresno USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Dunham ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Eureka Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Fruitvale ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Dunsmuir ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Evergreen ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Fullerton Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Dunsmuir Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Evergreen Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Fullerton SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Durham USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B Exeter USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Galt Joint Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Earlimart ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Fairfax ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Galt Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
East Nicolaus Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . 04 C Fairfield-Suisun USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 C Garden Grove USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
East San Gabriel Valley ROP . . . . . . . . . 21 Fall River Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Garfield ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
East Side Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Fallbrook Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Garvey ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
East Whittier City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Fallbrook Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Gateway USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Eastern Sierra USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Farmersville USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Gazelle Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Eastside Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 Feather Falls Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B General Shafter ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Eden Area ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Ferndale USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Gerber Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Edison ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Fieldbrook ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Geyserville USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
El Centro ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Fillmore USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B Gilroy USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
El Dorado COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Firebaugh-Las Deltas USD . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Glendale USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
El Dorado Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Flournoy Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Glendora USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
El Monte City SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 B Folsom-Cordova USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B Glenn COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
El Monte Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 B Fontana USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Gold Oak Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
El Nido ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Foresthill Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Gold Trail Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
El Rancho USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Forestville Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Golden Feather Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
El Segundo USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Forks of Salmon ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Golden Plains USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
El Tejon USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Fort Bragg USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B Golden Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Elk Grove USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B Fort Ross ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Goleta Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Elk Hills ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Fort Sage USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C Gonzales USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Elkins ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Fortuna ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Gorman Joint SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Elverta Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B Fortuna Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Grant ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Emery USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Fountain Valley ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Grass Valley ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Empire Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Fowler USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Gratton ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

225

Page 3 of 10 



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Alphabetical Index of School Districts and Corresponding CSBA Region Number 

Gravenstein Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Hornbrook ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Kashia ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Graves ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Hot Springs ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Kelseyville USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Green Point ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Howell Mountain ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 B Kentfield ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Greenfield Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Hueneme ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B Kenwood SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Greenfield Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Hughes-Elizabeth Lakes Union SD . . . . 22 Keppel Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Grenada ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Hughson USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Kerman USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Gridley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B Humboldt COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Kern COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Grossmont Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Huntington Beach City ESD . . . . . . . . . . 15 Kern HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Guadalupe Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Huntington Beach Union HSD . . . . . . . . 15 Kernville Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Guerneville ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Hydesville ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Keyes Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Gustine USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Igo-Ono-Platina Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . 02 B King City Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hacienda La Puente USD . . . . . . . . . . . 23 B Imperial COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Kings Canyon Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hamilton USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Imperial USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Kings COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hanford ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C Imperial Valley ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Kings River Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hanford Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C Indian Diggings ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Kings River-Hardwick Union ESD . . . . . 10 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Happy Camp Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Indian Springs ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Kingsburg Elementary Charter SD . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Happy Valley ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Inglewood USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Kingsburg Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Happy Valley Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Inyo COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 A Kirkwood ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Harmony Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Irvine USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Kit Carson Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hart-Ransom Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Island Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C Klamath River Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hawthorne SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Jacoby Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Klamath-Trinity Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hayward USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Jamestown ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Kneeland ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Healdsburg USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Jamul-Dulzura Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Knights Ferry ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Heber ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Janesville Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C Knightsen ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Helendale SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Jefferson ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Konocti USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hemet USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Jefferson ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A La Canada USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hermosa Beach City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Jefferson ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A La Habra City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hesperia USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Jefferson Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B La Honda-Pescadero USD . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hickman Charter SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C John Swett USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A La Mesa-Spring Valley SD . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hillsborough City SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Johnstonville ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C La Puente Valley ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hilmar USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Julian Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Lafayette ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hollister ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Julian Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Laguna Beach USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Holtville USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Junction City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Laguna Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hope ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Junction ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Lagunita ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hope ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Junction ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Lagunitas ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Horicon ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Jurupa USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Lake COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

226

Page 4 of 10 



 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Alphabetical Index of School Districts and Corresponding CSBA Region Number 

Lake Elsinore USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Linns Valley-Poso Flat Union ESD . . . . . 12 B Manchester Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lake ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Little Lake City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Manhattan Beach USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lake Tahoe USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Little Shasta ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Manteca USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lakeport USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B Live Oak ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Manzanita ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lakeside Joint SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Live Oak USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C Maple Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lakeside Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C Livermore Valley Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Maple ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lakeside Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Livingston Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Marcum-Illinois Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . 04 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lakeside Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Lodi USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Maricopa USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lammersville Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Loleta Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Marin COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lamont ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Loma Prieta Joint Union ESD . . . . . . . . . 20 Mariposa County & USD . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lancaster ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 Lompoc USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Mark Twain Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Larkspur-Corte Madera SD . . . . . . . . . . 03 D Lone Pine USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 A Mark West Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Las Lomitas ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Long Beach USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Martinez USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Las Virgenes USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B Loomis Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Marysville Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lassen COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C Los Alamitos USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Mattole USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lassen Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C Los Altos ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Maxwell USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lassen View Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Los Angeles COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 McCabe Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Laton USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Los Angeles USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 McCloud Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Latrobe SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Los Banos USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D McFarland USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lawndale ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Los Gatos Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 McKinleyville Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Laytonville USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B Los Gatos-Saratoga Jt. Un. HSD . . . . . . 20 McKittrick ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Le Grand Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Los Molinos USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A McSwain Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Le Grand Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Los Nietos SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Meadows Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Leggett Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B Los Olivos ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Mendocino COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lemon Grove SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Lost Hills Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Mendocino USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lemoore Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C Lowell Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Mendota USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lemoore Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C Lucerne ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B Menifee Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lennox SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Lucerne Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Menlo Park City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lewiston ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Lucia Mar USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 C Merced City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Liberty ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Luther Burbank SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Merced COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Liberty ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Lynwood USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Merced River Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Liberty Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A Madera COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 A Merced Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lincoln ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D Madera USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 A Meridian ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lincoln USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Magnolia ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Mesa Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Linden USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Magnolia Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Metropolitan Education District . . . . . . . 20 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Lindsay USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Mammoth USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Middletown USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

227

Page 5 of 10 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

   

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Alphabetical Index of School Districts and Corresponding CSBA Region Number 

Midway ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Mountain View Whisman SD . . . . . . . . . 20 Nuview Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mill Valley ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D Mountain View-Los Altos Union HSD . . . 20 Oak Grove ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Millbrae ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Mt. Baldy Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Oak Grove Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Millville ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Mt. Diablo USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A Oak Park USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Milpitas USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Mt. Pleasant SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Oak Run ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mission Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Mt. Shasta Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Oak Valley Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mission Valley ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Mulberry ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Oak View Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Modesto City Schools . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Mupu ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B Oakdale Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Modoc COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Muroc Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Oakland USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Modoc Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Murrieta Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Oakley Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mojave USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Napa COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 B Ocean View SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mono COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Napa Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 B Ocean View SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Monroe ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B National SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Oceanside USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Monrovia USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A Natomas USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B Ojai USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Monson-Sultana Joint Union ESD . . . . . 12 A Needles USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Old Adobe Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Montague ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Nevada City SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Ontario-Montclair SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Monte Rio Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Nevada COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Orange Center SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Montebello USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 B Nevada Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Orange COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Montecito Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A New Haven USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Orange USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Monterey COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B New Hope ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Orchard ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Monterey Peninsula USD . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B New Jerusalem ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Orcutt Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Montgomery ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Newark USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Orick ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Moorpark USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B Newcastle ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Orinda Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Moraga ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A Newhall SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 Orland USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Moreland SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Newman-Crows Landing USD . . . . . . . . 08 C Oro Grande ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Moreno Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Newport-Mesa USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Oroville City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Morgan Hill USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Nicasio SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D Oroville Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Morongo USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Norris SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Outside Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mother Lode Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C North County Joint Union ESD . . . . . . . . 09 A Owens Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mountain Empire USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 North Cow Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Oxnard SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mountain ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A North Monterey County USD . . . . . . . . . 09 B Oxnard Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mountain House ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B North Orange County ROP . . . . . . . . . . 15 Pacheco Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mountain Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Northern Humboldt Union HSD . . . . . . . 01 A Pacific ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mountain Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Norwalk-La Mirada USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Pacific Grove USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mountain View ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Novato USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D Pacific Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Mountain View ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 B Nuestro ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C Pacific Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

228

Page 6 of 10 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

   

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

   

  

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Alphabetical Index of School Districts and Corresponding CSBA Region Number 

Pacifica SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Placerville Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Reef-Sunset USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pajaro Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Plainsburg Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Rescue Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Palermo Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B Planada ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D Rialto USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Palm Springs USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Plaza ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Richfield ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Palmdale ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 Pleasant Grove Joint Union ESD . . . . . . 04 C Richgrove ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Palo Alto USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Pleasant Ridge Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Richland SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Palo Verde Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Pleasant Valley Joint Union ESD . . . . . . 09 C Richmond ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Palo Verde USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Pleasant Valley SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B Rim of the World USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Palos Verdes Peninsula USD . . . . . . . . . 24 Pleasant View ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Rincon Valley Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Panama-Buena Vista Union SD . . . . . . . 12 B Pleasanton USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Rio Bravo-Greeley Union ESD . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Panoche ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Plumas County & USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C Rio Dell ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Paradise ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Plumas Lake ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C Rio ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Paradise USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B Point Arena Schools . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B Ripon USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Paramount USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Pollock Pines ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C River Delta USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Parlier USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Pomona USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C Riverbank USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pasadena USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A Pond Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Riverdale Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Paso Robles Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 C Pope Valley Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 B Riverside COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Patterson Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Porterville USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Riverside USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Peninsula Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Portola Valley ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Roberts Ferry Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Penn Valley Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Potter Valley Community USD . . . . . . . . 01 B Robla ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Perris ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Poway USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Rockford ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Perris Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Princeton Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Rocklin USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Petaluma City ESD & Joint Union HSD . 03 A Raisin City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Romoland ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Piedmont City USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Ramona USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Rosedale Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pierce Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C Rancho Santa Fe ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Roseland SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pine Ridge ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Ravendale-Termo ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C Rosemead ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Piner-Olivet Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Ravenswood City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Roseville City SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pioneer Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B Raymond-Knowles Union ESD . . . . . . . 10 A Roseville Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pioneer Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C Red Bluff Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Ross ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pioneer Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 C Red Bluff Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Ross Valley SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pittsburg USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A Redding ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Round Valley Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Pixley Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Redlands USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Round Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Placentia-Yorba Linda USD . . . . . . . . . . 15 Redondo Beach USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Rowland USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Placer COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Redwood City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Sacramento City USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Placer Hills Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Reed Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D Sacramento COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Placer Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Reeds Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Saddleback Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

229

Page 7 of 10 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

Alphabetical Index of School Districts and Corresponding CSBA Region Number 

Salida Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C San Ysidro ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Shasta Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Salinas City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Sanger USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B Shasta Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Salinas Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Santa Ana USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Shiloh ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Antonio Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Santa Barbara COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Shoreline USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Ardo Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Santa Barbara USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Jt. USD . . 04 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Benito COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Santa Clara COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Sierra Sands USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Benito HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Santa Clara ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B Sierra USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Bernardino City USD . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Santa Clara USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Silver Fork ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Bernardino COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Santa Cruz City Schools . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Silver Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Bruno Park ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Santa Cruz COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Simi Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Carlos ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Santa Maria Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . 11 A Siskiyou COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Diego COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Santa Maria-Bonita SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A Siskiyou Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Diego USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Santa Monica-Malibu USD . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Snelling-Merced Falls Union ESD . . . . . 08 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Dieguito Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Santa Paula USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B Snowline Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Francisco County & USD . . . . . . . . 05 A Santa Rita Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Solana Beach ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Gabriel USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A Santa Rosa City Schools . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Solano COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Jacinto USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Santa Ynez Valley Union HSD . . . . . . . . 11 A Soledad USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Joaquin COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Santee SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Solvang ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Jose USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Saratoga Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Somis Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Juan USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B Saucelito ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Sonoma COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Leandro USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Saugus Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 Sonoma Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Lorenzo USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Sausalito Marin City SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D Sonora SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Lorenzo Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Savanna ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Sonora Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Lucas Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Scotia Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Soquel Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Luis Coastal USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 C Scott Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Soulsbyville ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Luis Obispo COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 C Scotts Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A South Bay Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Marcos USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Sebastopol Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A South Bay Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Marino USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A Seeley Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B South Fork Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Mateo COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . 

05 B Seiad ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . 

02 A South Monterey County Joint Union 
HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

09 B 

San Mateo Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Selma USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B South Pasadena USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Mateo-Foster City SD . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Semitropic ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B South San Francisco USD . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Miguel Joint Union ESD . . . . . . . . . 09 C Sequoia Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A South Whittier ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Pasqual Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Sequoia Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 05 B Southeast ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Pasqual Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B Shaffer Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C Southern California ROC . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Rafael City Schools . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D Shandon Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 C Southern Humboldt Joint USD . . . . . . . . 01 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
San Ramon Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A Shasta COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 B Southern Kern USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

230

Page 8 of 10 



  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

Alphabetical Index of School Districts and Corresponding CSBA Region Number 

Southern Trinity Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Thermalito Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 B Vallecito Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Southside ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Three Rivers Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Vallecitos SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Spencer Valley ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Tipton ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Vallejo City USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Spreckels Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B Torrance USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 Valley Center-Pauma USD . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Springville Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Tracy Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Valley Home Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
St. Helena USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 B Traver Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Valley ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Standard ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Travis USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 C Ventura COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Stanislaus COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Tres Pinos Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 A Ventura USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Stanislaus Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Tri-Cities ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 Victor ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Stockton USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 A Trinidad Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 A Victor Valley Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Stone Corral ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Trinity Alps USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Vineland ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Stony Creek Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Trinity Center ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Visalia USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Strathmore Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Trinity COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Vista Del Mar Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sulphur Springs Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . 22 Tri-Valley ROP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Vista USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Summerville ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Trona Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B Walnut Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Summerville Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Tulare City SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Walnut Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sundale Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Tulare COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Warner USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sunnyside Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Tulare Joint Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Wasco Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sunnyvale SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 Tulelake Basin Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Wasco Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sunol Glen USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 B Tuolumne COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Washington Colony ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Surprise Valley Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A Turlock USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Washington Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Susanville SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 C Tustin USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 Washington USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sutter COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C Twain Harte SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 B Washington USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sutter Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 C Twin Hills Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Waterford USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sweetwater Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 Twin Ridges ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Waugh ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sylvan Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 C Twin Rivers USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 06 B Waukena Joint Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Taft City SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Two Rock Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A Weaver Union SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 08 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Taft Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Ukiah USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B Weed Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 02 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Tahoe-Truckee USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 West Contra Costa USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . 07 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Tamalpais Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D Union Hill ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D West Covina USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 C 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Tehachapi USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 B Union Joint ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 D West Park ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Tehama COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 A Upland USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 B West Side Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Temecula Valley USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Upper Lake USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 01 B West Sonoma County Union HSD . . . . . 03 A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Temple City USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 A Vacaville USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 03 C Western Placer USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 04 D 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Templeton USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 09 C Val Verde USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 A Westminster SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Terra Bella Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 A Valle Lindo ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 B Westmorland Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 B 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

231

Page 9 of 10 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Alphabetical Index of School Districts and Corresponding CSBA Region Number 

Westside ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . 
Westside Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Westwood USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . 
Wheatland ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . 
Wheatland Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Whitmore Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Whittier City ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . 
Whittier Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
William S. Hart Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Williams USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . 
Willits USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . 
Willow Creek ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Willow Grove Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Willows USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . 
Wilmar Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Wilsona SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . 
Windsor USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . 
Winship-Robbins ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Winters Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Winton SD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . 
Wiseburn USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . 
Woodlake USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . 
Woodland Joint USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Woodside ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . 
Woodville ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . 
Wright ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . 
Yolo COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . 
Yosemite USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . 
Yreka Union ESD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . 
Yreka Union HSD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . 
Yuba City USD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . 
Yuba COE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . 
Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint USD . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

10 B 

22 

02 C 

04 C 

04 C 

02 B 

24 

24 

22 

04 C 

01 B 

02 A 

09 A 

04 A 

03 A 

22 

03 A 

04 C 

06 A 

08 D 

24 

12 A 

06 A 

05 B 

12 A 

03 A 

06 A 

10 A 

02 A 

02 A 

04 C 

04 C 

16 B 

232

Page 10 of 10 



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
   

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

          

  

         BRaUd MeeWLQJ DaWe: Dec. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUG RI EGXFaWLRQ 

FROM: BRaUG PROLF\ CRPPLWWHH 

SUBJECT: FLUVW RHaGLQJ: BRaUG PROLFLHV 

BACKGROUND 

MRGLILHG aQG QHZ SROLFLHV Pa\ bH aGRSWHG b\ WKH CRXQW\ BRaUG RI EGXFaWLRQ IROORZLQJ 
a ILUVW aQG VHFRQG UHaGLQJ b\ WKH BRaUG. TKH BRaUG Pa\ aFFHSW WKH IROORZLQJ SURSRVHG 
SROLF\(LHV) aV VXbPLWWHG aQG ZaLYH a VHFRQG UHaGLQJ aQG PRYH WR WaNH aFWLRQ, RUGHU 
FKaQJHV, RU RUGHU FKaQJHV aQG bULQJ baFN IRU a ILQaO UHaGLQJ: 

BP 5131.2 BXOO\LQJ 
BP 5131.7 WHaSRQV & DaQJHURXV IQVWUXPHQWV 
BP 5144.1 SXVSHQVLRQ & E[SXOVLRQV 
BP 5145.2 FUHHGRP RI SSHHFK/E[SUHVVLRQ 
BP 5145.3 NRQGLVFULPLQaWLRQ/HaUaVVPHQW 
BP 5145.7 SH[XaO HaUaVVPHQW 

BRaUd MeeWLQJ DaWe: DHF. 17, 2020 AJeQda IWeP: #12.3 
233



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

              
              
             

             
              

              
 

 
    
     

 
 

 
               

               
             

 
 

          
             

              
 

 
               
 

 
              
          

 
 

            
 

 
           

                
 

 

RegXlaWion SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approYed: SanWa CrX], California 
SWXdeQWV BP 5131.2 

BULLYING 

The CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion recogni]eV Whe harmfXl effecWV of bXll\ing on VWXdenW Zell-being, 
VWXdenW learning, and Vchool aWWendance and deVireV Wo proYide a Vafe Vchool enYironmenW WhaW 
proWecWV VWXdenWV from ph\Vical and emoWional harm. No indiYidXal or groXp Vhall, WhroXgh 
ph\Vical, ZriWWen, Yerbal, YiVXal, or oWher meanV, haraVV, Ve[Xall\ haraVV, WhreaWen, inWimidaWe, 
c\berbXll\, caXVe bodil\ injXr\ Wo, or commiW haWe Yiolence againVW an\ VWXdenW or Vchool 
perVonnel, or reWaliaWe againVW Whem for filing a complainW or parWicipaWing in Whe complainW 
reVolXWion proceVV. 

(cf. 5145.3 - NondiVcUiminaWion/HaUaVVmenW) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Se[Xal HaUaVVmenW) 

E[aPSOeV Rf PURhLbLWed CRQdXcW 

BXll\ing iV an aggreVViYe behaYior WhaW inYolYeV a real or perceiYed imbalance of poZer beWZeen 
indiYidXalV ZiWh Whe inWenW Wo caXVe emoWional or ph\Vical harm. BXll\ing can be ph\Vical, Yerbal, 
or Vocial/relaWional, inYolYeV repeWiWion or poWenWial repeWiWion of a deliberaWe acW, and inclXdeV, 
bXW iV noW limiWed Wo, an\ acW deVcribed in EdXcaWion Code 48900(r). 

C\beUbXll\ing inclXdeV Whe elecWronic creaWion or WranVmiVVion of haraVVing commXnicaWionV, 
direcW WhreaWV, or oWher harmfXl We[WV, VoXndV, or imageV. C\berbXll\ing alVo inclXdeV breaking 
inWo anoWher perVon'V elecWronic accoXnW or aVVXming WhaW perVon'V online idenWiW\ in order Wo 
damage WhaW perVon'V repXWaWion. 

E[ampleV of Whe W\peV of prohibiWed condXcW WhaW ma\ conVWiWXWe bXll\ing inclXde, bXW are noW 
limiWed Wo: 

1. Ph\Vical bXll\ing WhaW inflicWV harm Xpon a perVon'V bod\ or poVVeVVionV, VXch aV hiWWing, 
kicking, pinching, VpiWWing, Wripping, pXVhing, Waking or breaking Vomeone'V poVVeVVionV, 
or making crXel or rXde hand geVWXreV 

2. Verbal bXll\ing WhaW inclXdeV Va\ing or ZriWing hXrWfXl WhingV, VXch aV WeaVing, 
name-calling, inappropriaWe Ve[Xal commenWV, WaXnWing, or WhreaWV Wo caXVe harm 

3. Social/relaWional bXll\ing WhaW harmV a perVon'V repXWaWion or relaWionVhipV, VXch aV 
leaYing a perVon oXW of an acWiYiW\ on pXrpoVe, inflXencing oWherV noW Wo be friendV ZiWh 
Vomeone, Vpreading rXmorV, or embarraVVing Vomeone in pXblic 

234



              
             

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

           
            

             
 

 
            

 
 

            
 

 
          

             
           

 
 

              
              

 
 

            
             

 
 

            
              

 
 

            
         

           
            

 
 

4. Sending demeaning or haWefXl We[W meVVageV or emailV, Vending rXmorV b\ email or b\ 
poVWing on Vocial neWZorking ViWeV, or poVWing embarraVVing phoWoV, YideoV, Zeb ViWe, or 
fake profileV, 

BP 5131.2 

BULLYING  (conWinXed) 

MeaVXUeV WR PUeYeQW BXOO\LQg 

The CoXnW\ Board encoXrageV Whe inYolYemenW of VWXdenWV, parenWV/gXardianV, VWaff, Vocial 
VerYiceV, menWal healWh VerYiceV, laZ enforcemenW, coXrWV, and oWher agencieV and commXniW\ 
organi]aWionV in Whe deYelopmenW and implemenWaWion of effecWiYe VWraWegieV Wo promoWe VafeW\ in 
VchoolV and Whe commXniW\. 

The CoXnW\ Board incorporaWeV an\ VWraWegieV deYeloped b\ Whe CoXnW\ SXperinWendenW of 
SchoolV implemenWing WhiV polic\, Zhich ma\ inclXde, bXW are noW limiWed Wo: 

1. EnVXring WhaW each Vchool eVWabliVheV clear rXleV for VWXdenW condXcW and implemenWV 
VWraWegieV Wo promoWe a poViWiYe, collaboraWiYe Vchool climaWe 

2. ProYiding Wo VWXdenWV, WhroXgh VWXdenW handbookV and oWher age-appropriaWe meanV, 
informaWion aboXW coXnW\ office of edXcaWion (COE) and Vchool rXleV relaWed Wo bXll\ing, 
mechaniVmV aYailable for reporWing incidenWV or WhreaWV, and Whe conVeqXenceV for 
engaging in bXll\ing 

3. EncoXraging VWXdenWV Wo noWif\ Vchool VWaff Zhen Whe\ are being bXllied or Zhen Whe\ 
VXVpecW WhaW anoWher VWXdenW iV being bXllied, and proYiding meanV b\ Zhich VWXdenWV ma\ 
reporW WhreaWV or incidenWV confidenWiall\ and anon\moXVl\ 

4. CondXcWing an aVVeVVmenW of bXll\ing incidenWV aW each Vchool and, if neceVVar\, 
increaVing VXperYiVion and VecXriW\ in areaV Zhere bXll\ing moVW ofWen occXrV, VXch aV 
pla\groXndV, hallZa\V, reVWroomV, and cafeWeriaV 

5. AnnXall\ noWif\ing COE emplo\eeV WhaW, pXrVXanW Wo EdXcaWion Code 234.1, an\ Vchool 
VWaff Zho ZiWneVVeV an acW of bXll\ing againVW a VWXdenW haV a reVponVibiliW\ Wo 
immediaWel\ inWerYene Wo VWop Whe incidenW Zhen iW iV Vafe Wo do Vo 

6. ProYiding profeVVional deYelopmenW Wo all Vchool VWaff Zho haYe regXlar inWeracWion ZiWh 
VWXdenWV, inclXding informaWion regarding VWaff'V obligaWion Wo preYenW diVcriminaWion, 
haraVVmenW, inWimidaWion, and bXll\ing of VWXdenWV and annXall\ making aYailable Whe 
California DeparWmenW of EdXcaWion'V online Wraining modXle on Whe d\namicV of bXll\ing 
and c\berbXll\ing pXrVXanW Wo EdXcaWion Code 32283.5 

235



         
          
           

           
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

             
              

 
 

        
 

 
 

             
             

              
             

             
 

 
      

 
 

 
                 

            
            
            

 
 

               
              
            

 
 
 
 

      
 
 

7. ProYiding VWXdenWV ZiWh inVWrXcWion, aV appropriaWe, WhaW promoWeV Vocial-emoWional 
learning, effecWiYe commXnicaWion VkillV, conflicW reVolXWion VkillV, and appropriaWe online 
behaYior and WeacheV VWXdenWV aboXW Whe negaWiYe impacW of bXll\ing, diVcriminaWion, 
inWimidaWion, and haraVVmenW baVed on acWXal or perceiYed immigraWion VWaWXV, religioXV 
beliefV and cXVWomV, or an\ oWher indiYidXal biaV or prejXdice 

BP 5131.2 

BULLYING  (conWinXed) 

PreYenWiYe VWraWegieV ma\ be incorporaWed inWo VchoolV' comprehenViYe VafeW\ planV and, Wo Whe 
e[WenW poVVible, inWo Whe local conWrol and accoXnWabiliW\ plan and oWher applicable COE and 
Vchool planV. 

(cf. 0460 - Local ConWUol and AccoXnWabiliW\ Plan) 

CRPSOaLQWV 

An\ complainW of bXll\ing Vhall be VXbmiWWed Wo and inYeVWigaWed b\ Whe indiYidXal(V), 
poViWion(V), or XniW(V) deVignaWed b\ Whe CoXnW\ SXperinWendenW and, if deWermined Wo be 
diVcriminaWor\, Vhall be reVolYed in accordance ZiWh laZ and BP 1312.3 - Uniform ComplainW 
ProcedXreV. If, dXring Whe inYeVWigaWion, iW iV deWermined WhaW a complainW iV aboXW 
nondiVcriminaWor\ bXll\ing, Whe principal or deVignee Vhall inform Whe complainanW and Vhall Wake 
all neceVVar\ acWionV Wo reVolYe Whe complainW. 

(cf. 1312.3 - UnifoUm ComplainW PUocedXUeV) 

DLVcLSOLQe/CRUUecWLYe AcWLRQV 

A YicWim of bXll\ing, ZiWneVV, perpeWraWor, or oWher VWXdenW affecWed b\ an acW of bXll\ing ma\ be 
referred Wo a Vchool coXnVelor, Vchool pV\chologiVW, Vocial Zorker, child Zelfare aWWendance 
perVonnel, Vchool nXrVe, or oWher Vchool VXpporW VerYice perVonnel for caVe managemenW, 
coXnVeling, and/or parWicipaWion in a reVWoraWiYe jXVWice program aV appropriaWe. (EdXcaWion Code 
48900.9) 

In addiWion, correcWiYe acWionV for a VWXdenW Zho commiWV an acW of bXll\ing ma\ inclXde 
behaYioral inWerYenWion and edXcaWion and, if Whe behaYior iV VeYere or perYaViYe, ma\ inclXde 
noWificaWion of Whe VWXdenW'V parenW/gXardian, VXVpenVion or e[pXlVion, and/or referral Wo laZ 
enforcemenW. 

Legal RefeUence: (Vee ne[W page) 

236



 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

  
  

     
     

     
     

     
       

  
      

             
             
        
     

     
     

      
      
        
      

         
         
          

  
           

            
          

 
 
 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BP 5131.2 

BULLYING  (conWinXed) 

Legal RefeUence: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4 PUohibiWion of diVcUiminaWion 
32282 CompUehenViYe VafeW\ plan 
32283.5 BXll\ing; online WUaining 
48900-48925 SXVpenVion oU e[pXlVion 
48985 TUanVlaWion of noWiceV 
52066-52069 Local conWUol and accoXnWabiliW\ plan 
PENAL CODE 
422.55 DefiniWion of haWe cUime 
647 UVe of cameUa oU oWheU inVWUXmenW Wo inYade peUVon'V pUiYac\; miVdemeanoU 
647.7 UVe of cameUa oU oWheU inVWUXmenW Wo inYade peUVon'V pUiYac\; pXniVhmenW 
653.2 ElecWUonic commXnicaWion deYiceV, WhUeaWV Wo VafeW\ 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4600-4670 UnifoUm complainW pUocedXUeV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47 
254 UniYeUVal VeUYice diVcoXnWV (e-UaWe) 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.107 NondiVcUiminaWion on baViV of diVabiliW\; complainWV 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
104.7 DeVignaWion of UeVponVible emplo\ee foU SecWion 504 
106.8 DeVignaWion of UeVponVible emplo\ee foU TiWle IX 
110.25 NoWificaWion of nondiVcUiminaWion on Whe baViV of age 
COURT DECISIONS 
W\naU Y. DoXglaV CoXnW\ School DiVWUicW, (2013) 728 F.3d 1062 
J.C. Y. BeYeUl\ HillV Unified School DiVWUicW, (2010) 711 F.SXpp.2d 1094 
LaYine Y. Blaine School DiVWUicW, (2002) 279 F.3d 719 

ManagemenW ReVoXUceV: (Vee ne[W page) 

237

https://F.SXpp.2d


 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

  
  
            

        
          

      
              

             
             

              
 

     
  

          
             
              

 
     

         
              

             
             

                 
          
  

   
         
        

        
         

     
      

       
      

 
 
  

BP 5131.2 

BULLYING  (conWinXed) 

ManagemenW ReVoXUceV: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Final GXidance: AB 1266, TUanVgendeU and GendeU NonconfoUming SWXdenWV, PUiYac\, PUogUamV, 
AcWiYiWieV & FaciliWieV, Legal GXidance, MaUch 2014 
PUoYiding a Safe, NondiVcUiminaWoU\ School EnYiUonmenW foU TUanVgendeU and GendeU-NonconfoUming 
SWXdenWV, Polic\ BUief, FebUXaU\ 2014 
AddUeVVing Whe CondiWionV of ChildUen: FocXV on BXll\ing, GoYeUnance BUief, DecembeU 2012 
Safe SchoolV: SWUaWegieV foU GoYeUning BoaUdV Wo EnVXUe SWXdenW SXcceVV, 2011 
C\beUbXll\ing: Polic\ ConVideUaWionV foU BoaUdV, Polic\ BUief, UeY. JXl\ 2010 
BXilding HealWh\ CommXniWieV: A School LeadeUV GXide Wo CollaboUaWion and CommXniW\ EngagemenW, 
2009 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
BXll\ing ModXle 
CalifoUnia'V Social and EmoWional LeaUning: GXiding PUincipleV, 2018 
Social and EmoWional LeaUning in CalifoUnia: A GXide Wo ReVoXUceV, 2018 
HealWh EdXcaWion ConWenW SWandaUdV foU CalifoUnia PXblic SchoolV: KindeUgaUWen ThUoXgh GUade TZelYe, 
2008 
BXll\ing aW School, 2003 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
DeaU ColleagXe LeWWeU: ReVponding Wo BXll\ing of SWXdenWV ZiWh DiVabiliWieV, OcWobeU 2014 
GXidance Wo AmeUica'V SchoolV: BXll\ing of SWXdenWV ZiWh DiVabiliWieV, OcWobeU 2014 
DeaU ColleagXe LeWWeU: GXidance on SchoolV' ObligaWionV Wo PUoWecW SWXdenWV fUom SWXdenW-on-SWXdenW 
HaUaVVmenW on Whe BaViV of Se[; Race, ColoU and NaWional OUigin; and DiVabiliW\, OcWobeU 26, 2010 
DeaU ColleagXe LeWWeU: HaUaVVmenW and BXll\ing, OcWobeU 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.oUg 
CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, Safe SchoolV Office: hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY/lV/VV 
CalifoUnia Office of Whe AWWoUne\ GeneUal: hWWp://oag.ca.goY 
CenWeU on GUeaW TeacheUV and LeadeUV: hWWpV://gWlcenWeU.oUg 
CollaboUaWiYe foU Academic Social and EmoWional LeaUning: hWWpV://caVel.oUg 
Common SenVe Media: hWWp://ZZZ.commonVenVemedia.oUg 
NaWional School SafeW\ CenWeU: hWWp://ZZZ.VchoolVafeW\.XV 
PaUWneUVhip foU ChildUen and YoXWh: hWWpV://ZZZ.paUWneUfoUchildUen.oUg 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion: hWWp://ZZZ.ed.goY 

238

https://hWWp://ZZZ.VchoolVafeW\.XV


 
 
 

 
 

 
                 
               

 
 

      
      
      
    
      

 
 

 
            

             
             

 
 

                 
               

            
 

 
     

 
              

             
            

 
 

    
       
          

 
              

            
                 

 
 

    
 

 
 

RegXlaWion SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approYed: SanWa CrX], California 
SWXdeQWV BP 5131.7 

WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS 

The SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion recogni]eV WhaW VWXdenWV and VWaff haYe Whe righW Wo a 
Vafe and VecXre campXV free from ph\Vical and pV\chological harm and deVireV Wo proWecW Whem 
from Whe dangerV preVenWed b\ firearmV and oWher ZeaponV. 

(cf. 0450 - CompUehenViYe SafeW\ Plan) 
(cf. 3515.3 - DiVWUicW Police/SecXUiW\ DepaUWmenW) 
(cf. 5116.1 - InWUadiVWUicW Open EnUollmenW) 
(cf. 5131 - CondXcW) 
(cf. 5138 - ConflicW ReVolXWion/PeeU MediaWion) 

PRVVeVVLRQ Rf WeaSRQV 

The Board prohibiWV an\ VWXdenW from poVVeVVing ZeaponV, imiWaWion firearmV, or oWher 
dangeroXV inVWrXmenWV, aV defined in laZ and adminiVWraWiYe regXlaWion, in Vchool bXildingV, on 
Vchool groXndV or bXVeV, aW Vchool-relaWed or Vchool-VponVored acWiYiWieV aZa\ from Vchool, or 
Zhile going Wo or coming from Vchool. 

Under Whe poZer granWed Wo Whe Board Wo proWecW Whe VafeW\ of VWXdenWV, VWaff, and oWherV on 
diVWricW properW\ and Wo mainWain order and diVcipline in Whe VchoolV, an\ Vchool emplo\ee iV 
aXWhori]ed Wo confiVcaWe an\ prohibiWed Zeapon, imiWaWion firearm, or dangeroXV inVWrXmenW from 
an\ VWXdenW on Vchool groXndV. 

(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Emplo\ee SecXUiW\) 

UnleVV he/Vhe haV obWained prior ZriWWen permiVVion aV Vpecified beloZ, a VWXdenW poVVeVVing or 
WhreaWening oWherV ZiWh an\ Zeapon, dangeroXV inVWrXmenW, or imiWaWion firearm Vhall be VXbjecW 
Wo VXVpenVion and/or e[pXlVion in accordance ZiWh laZ, Board polic\, and adminiVWraWiYe 
regXlaWionV. 

(cf. 5144 - DiVcipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - SXVpenVion and E[pXlVion/DXe PUoceVV) 
(cf. 5144.2 - SXVpenVion and E[pXlVion/DXe PUoceVV (IndiYidXalV ZiWh DiVabiliWieV)) 

The principal or deVignee Vhall noWif\ laZ enforcemenW aXWhoriWieV Zhen an\ VWXdenW poVVeVVeV a 
firearm, e[ploViYe, or oWher prohibiWed Zeapon or dangeroXV inVWrXmenW ZiWhoXW permiVVion, VellV 
or fXrniVheV a firearm, or commiWV an\ acW of aVVaXlW ZiWh a firearm or oWher Zeapon. (EdXcaWion 
Code 48902; Penal Code 245, 626.9, 626.10; 20 USC 7961) 

(cf. 3515.2 - DiVUXpWionV) 

AdYaQce PeUPLVVLRQ fRU PRVVeVVLRQ Rf a WeaSRQ fRU EdXcaWLRQaO PXUSRVeV 

239



               
               

 
 

 
 
 

  
 
 

                 
 

 
              

               
                 

               
                

              
 

 
              
                
                 

 
 

               
 

 
 

 
              

 
 

 
 

              
               

 
 

     
 

             
             

            
             

The parenW/gXardian of a VWXdenW Zho deVireV Wo poVVeVV a firearm, imiWaWion firearm, or oWher 
prohibiWed Zeapon on Vchool groXndV for an edXcaWional pXrpoVe Vhall, aW leaVW fiYe Vchool da\V 
in adYance of Whe planned poVVeVVion, VXbmiW a ZriWWen reqXeVW Wo Whe principal Zhich 

BP 5131.7 

WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS  (conWinXed) 

e[plainV Whe planned XVe of Whe Zeapon and Whe dXraWion. The VWXdenW Vhall alVo VXbmiW a ZriWWen 
e[planaWion from Whe VWaff perVon reVponVible for Whe Vchool-VponVored acWiYiW\ or claVV. 

The principal ma\ granW permiVVion for VXch poVVeVVion Zhen he/Vhe deWermineV WhaW iW iV 
neceVVar\ for a Vchool-VponVored acWiYiW\ or claVV or aV parW of Whe edXcaWional program. FacWorV 
WhaW Vhall be conVidered inclXde, bXW are noW limiWed Wo, Whe planned XVe of Whe Zeapon, Whe 
dXraWion and locaWion of Whe planned XVe, ZheWher an aXdience iV e[pecWed, and an\ perceiYed 
adYerVe effecWV Wo Whe VafeW\ and Zell-being of VWXdenWV or VWaff. If Whe principal granWV VXch 
permiVVion, he/Vhe Vhall proYide Whe VWXdenW and VWaff perVon ZiWh a ZriWWen e[planaWion regarding 
an\ limiWaWionV and Whe permiVVible dXraWion of Whe VWXdenW'V poVVeVVion. 

When Whe principal or deVignee granWV permiVVion, he/Vhe Vhall Wake all neceVVar\ precaXWionV Wo 
enVXre Whe VafeW\ of all perVonV on Vchool groXndV, inclXding, bXW noW limiWed Wo, inVpecWing a 
firearm Wo Yerif\ WhaW no liYe ammXniWion iV preVenW. An\ Zeapon alloZed Vhall be VWored in a 
locked Yehicle or in an appropriaWe, locked conWainer before and afWer iWV aXWhori]ed XVe. 

A VWXdenW granWed permiVVion Wo poVVeVV a Zeapon ma\ be VXVpended and/or e[pelled if he/Vhe 
poVVeVVeV or XVeV Whe Zeapon inappropriaWel\. 

PRVVeVVLRQ Rf PeSSeU SSUa\ 

To preYenW poWenWial miVXVe WhaW ma\ harm VWXdenWV or VWaff, VWXdenWV are prohibiWed from 
carr\ing Wear gaV or Wear gaV ZeaponV VXch aV pepper Vpra\ on campXV or aW Vchool acWiYiWieV. 

ReSRUWLQg Rf DaQgeURXV ObMecWV 

The Board encoXrageV VWXdenWV Wo prompWl\ reporW Whe preVence of ZeaponV, injXrioXV objecWV, or 
oWher VXVpicioXV acWiYiW\ Wo Vchool aXWhoriWieV. The idenWiW\ of a VWXdenW Zho reporWV VXch acWiYiW\ 
Vhall remain confidenWial Wo Whe e[WenW permiWWed b\ laZ. 

(cf. 5125 - SWXdenW RecoUdV) 

The SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall deYelop VWraWegieV deVigned Wo faciliWaWe VWXdenW reporWing of 
Whe preVence of injXrioXV objecWV on Vchool groXndV, VXch aV Wip hoWlineV, elecWronic 
WranVmiVVionV, or oWher meWhodV WhaW preVerYe Whe VWXdenW'V anon\miW\. IncidenW reporWV and 
recordV Vhall noW idenWif\ Whe VWXdenW Zho reporWed Whe poVVeVVion. The SXperinWendenW or 

240



             
 

 
      

 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
  

               
     
       
      
   

    
  

      
       
        
              

    
   
       
      

        
     

        
     

 
  

  
                

     
        

     
              

  
   

        
       
      

           
 

 
 
  

deVignee alVo Vhall inform VWaff, VWXdenWV, and parenWV/gXardianV WhaW VWXdenWV Zho reporW Whe 
preVence of injXrioXV objecWV on Vchool campXVeV are Wo be proWecWed and Wheir idenWiW\ Vhielded. 

Legal RefeUence: (Vee ne[W page) 
BP 5131.7 

WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS  (conWinXed) 

Legal RefeUence: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35291 SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWionWo pUeVcUibe UXleV foU diVcipline of Whe VchoolV 
48900 GUoXndV foU VXVpenVion/e[pXlVion 
48902 NoWificaWion of laZ enfoUcemenW aXWhoUiWieV 
48915 ReqXiUed UecommendaWion foU e[pXlVionV 
48916 ReadmiVVion 
49330-49335 InjXUioXV objecWV 
PENAL CODE 
245 AVVaXlW ZiWh deadl\ Zeapon 
417.4 ImiWaWion fiUeaUm; dUaZing oU e[hibiWing 
626.9 GXn-FUee School Zone AcW of 1995 
626.10 DiUkV, daggeUV, kniYeV, Ua]oU oU VWXn gXn; bUinging oU poVVeVVing in Vchool 
653k SZiWchblade knife 
16100-17350 DefiniWionV 
22810-23025 TeaU gaV Zeapon (peppeU VpUa\) 
25200-25225 FiUeaUmV, acceVV Wo childUen 
30310 PUohibiWion againVW ammXniWion on Vchool gUoXndV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6301-7941 No Child LefW Behind AcW, eVpeciall\: 
7961 GXn-FUee SchoolV AcW 

ManagemenW ReVoXUceV: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Safe SchoolV: SWUaWegieV foU GoYeUning BoaUdV Wo EnVXUe SWXdenW SXcceVV, ThiUd EdiWion, OcWobeU 2011 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION COMMUNICATIONS 
0401.01 PUoWecWing SWXdenW IdenWificaWion in RepoUWing InjXUioXV ObjecWV 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
GXidance ConceUning SWaWe and Local ReVponVibiliWieV UndeU Whe GXn-FUee SchoolV AcW, JanXaU\ 2004 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.oUg 
CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, Safe SchoolV: hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY/lV/VV 
NaWional Alliance foU Safe SchoolV: hWWp://ZZZ.VafeVchoolV.oUg 
NaWional School SafeW\ CenWeU: hWWp://ZZZ.VchoolVafeW\.XV 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, Office of Safe and DUXg FUee SchoolV: 
hWWp://ZZZ.ed.goY/aboXW/officeV/liVW/oVdf 

241

https://hWWp://ZZZ.VchoolVafeW\.XV


 
 
 

 
 

 
             

             
             

              
            

 
 

    
     
    

 
            

              
 

 
                

               
               

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     
 

 
 

             
 

 
         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RegXlaWion SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approYed: SanWa CrX], California 
SWXdeQWV BP 5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS 

The SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWiondeVireV Wo proYide diVWricW VWXdenWV acceVV Wo 
edXcaWional opporWXniWieV in an orderl\ Vchool enYironmenW WhaW proWecWV Wheir VafeW\ and VecXriW\, 
enVXreV Wheir Zelfare and Zell-being, and promoWeV Wheir learning and deYelopmenW. The Board 
Vhall deYelop rXleV and regXlaWionV VeWWing Whe VWandardV of behaYior e[pecWed of diVWricW VWXdenWV 
and Whe diVciplinar\ proceVVeV and procedXreV for addreVVing YiolaWionV of WhoVe VWandardV, 
inclXding VXVpenVion and/or e[pXlVion. 

(cf. 5131 - CondXcW) 
(cf. 5131.1 - BXV CondXcW) 
(cf. 5131.2 - BXll\ing) 

The groXndV for VXVpenVion and e[pXlVion and Whe procedXreV for conVidering, recommending, 
and/or implemenWing VXVpenVion and e[pXlVion Vhall be onl\ WhoVe Vpecified in laZ, in WhiV 
polic\, and in Whe accompan\ing adminiVWraWiYe regXlaWion. 

E[cepW Zhen oWherZiVe permiWWed b\ laZ, a VWXdenW ma\ be VXVpended or e[pelled onl\ Zhen Whe 
behaYior iV relaWed Wo a Vchool acWiYiW\ or Vchool aWWendance occXrring ZiWhin an\ diVWricW Vchool 
or anoWher Vchool diVWricW, regardleVV of Zhen iW occXrV, inclXding, bXW noW limiWed Wo, Whe 
folloZing:  (EdXcaWion Code 48900(V)) 

1. While on Vchool groXndV 

2. While going Wo or coming from Vchool 

3. DXring Whe lXnch period, ZheWher on or off Whe Vchool campXV 

(cf. 5112.5 - Open/CloVed CampXV) 

4. DXring, going Wo, or coming from a Vchool-VponVored acWiYiW\ 

DiVWricW VWaff Vhall enforce Whe rXleV concerning VXVpenVion and e[pXlVion of VWXdenWV fairl\, 
conViVWenWl\, eqXall\, and in accordance ZiWh Whe diVWricW'V nondiVcriminaWion policieV. 

(cf. 0410 - NondiVcUiminaWion in DiVWUicW PUogUamV and AcWiYiWieV) 

242



 
 
 

               
           

               
               

 
 

      
    
       
     
      

 
               

 
 

                
 

 
              

 
 

      
       

 
 

 
 

   
 

              
             

              
 

 
              
             

 
 

       
 

 
 

 
 

 

ASSURSULaWe UVe Rf SXVSeQVLRQ AXWhRULW\ 

E[cepW Zhen a VWXdenW'V acW YiolaWeV EdXcaWion Code 48900(a)-(e), aV liVWed in iWemV #1-5 Xnder 
"GroXndV for SXVpenVion and E[pXlVion: GradeV K-12" of Whe accompan\ing adminiVWraWiYe 
regXlaWion, or Zhen Whe VWXdenW'V preVence caXVeV a danger Wo oWherV, VXVpenVion Vhall be XVed 
onl\ Zhen oWher meanV of correcWion haYe failed Wo bring aboXW proper condXcW. (EdXcaWion Code 
48900.5, 48900.6) 

(cf. 5138 - ConflicW ReVolXWion/PeeU MediaWion) 
(cf. 5144 - DiVcipline) 
(cf. 6142.4 - SeUYice LeaUning/CommXniW\ SeUYice ClaVVeV) 
(cf. 6164.2 - GXidance/CoXnVeling SeUYiceV) 
(cf. 6164.5 - SWXdenW SXcceVV TeamV) 

A VWXdenW'V parenWV/gXardianV Vhall be noWified aV Voon aV poVVible Zhen Where iV an eVcalaWing 
paWWern of miVbehaYior WhaW coXld lead Wo on-campXV or off-campXV VXVpenVion. 

No VWXdenW ma\ be VXVpended for diVrXpWion or ZillfXl defiance, e[cepW b\ a Weacher pXrVXanW Wo 
EdXcaWion Code 48910.  (EdXcaWion Code 48900) 

SWXdenWV Vhall noW be VXVpended or e[pelled for WrXanc\, WardineVV, or abVenWeeiVm from aVVigned 
Vchool acWiYiWieV. 

(cf. 5113 - AbVenceV and E[cXVeV) 
(cf. 5113.1 - ChUonic AbVence and TUXanc\) 

AXWhRULW\ WR E[SeO 

A VWXdenW ma\ be e[pelled onl\ b\ Whe Board.  (EdXcaWion Code 48918(j)) 

AV reqXired b\ laZ, Whe SXperinWendenW or principal Vhall recommend e[pXlVion and Whe Board 
Vhall e[pel an\ VWXdenW foXnd Wo haYe commiWWed an\ of Whe folloZing "mandaWor\ 
recommendaWion and mandaWor\ e[pXlVion" acWV aW Vchool or aW a Vchool acWiYiW\ off Vchool 
groXndV:  (EdXcaWion Code 48915) 

1. PoVVeVVing a firearm Zhich iV noW an imiWaWion firearm, aV Yerified b\ a cerWificaWed 
emplo\ee, XnleVV Whe VWXdenW had obWained prior ZriWWen permiVVion Wo poVVeVV Whe iWem 
from a cerWificaWed Vchool emplo\ee, ZiWh Whe principal or deVignee'V concXrrence 

(cf. 5131.7 - WeaponV and DangeUoXV InVWUXmenWV) 

2. Selling or oWherZiVe fXrniVhing a firearm 

3. BrandiVhing a knife aW anoWher perVon 

4. UnlaZfXll\ Velling a conWrolled VXbVWance liVWed in HealWh and SafeW\ Code 11053-11058 

243



 
               

 
 

 
 

            
               

                 
 

 
               

 
 

                
 

 
 

 
 

               
 

 
 

 
 

 
               

              
               

 
 

        
          

 
 

 
             

             
             

                
               

                  
               

 
 
 

5. CommiWWing or aWWempWing Wo commiW a Ve[Xal aVVaXlW aV defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 
286, 288, 288a, or 289, or commiWWing a Ve[Xal baWWer\ aV defined in Penal Code 243.4 

6. PoVVeVVing an e[ploViYe aV defined in 18 USC 921 

For all oWher YiolaWionV liVWed in Whe accompan\ing adminiVWraWiYe regXlaWion, Whe SXperinWendenW 
or principal Vhall haYe Whe diVcreWion Wo recommend e[pXlVion of a VWXdenW. If e[pXlVion iV 
recommended, Whe Board Vhall order Whe VWXdenW e[pelled onl\ if iW makeV a finding of eiWher or 
boWh of Whe folloZing:  (EdXcaWion Code 48915(b) and (e)) 

1. ThaW oWher meanV of correcWion are noW feaVible or haYe repeaWedl\ failed Wo bring aboXW 
proper condXcW 

2. ThaW dXe Wo Whe naWXre of Whe YiolaWion, Whe preVence of Whe VWXdenW caXVeV a conWinXing 
danger Wo Whe ph\Vical VafeW\ of Whe VWXdenW or oWherV 

A YoWe Wo e[pel a VWXdenW Vhall be Waken in an open VeVVion of a Board meeWing. 

The Board ma\ YoWe Wo VXVpend Whe enforcemenW of Whe e[pXlVion order pXrVXanW Wo Whe 
reqXiremenWV of laZ and Whe accompan\ing adminiVWraWiYe regXlaWion.  (EdXcaWion Code 48917) 

No VWXdenW Vhall be e[pelled for diVrXpWion or ZillfXl defiance.  (EdXcaWion Code 48900) 

DXe PURceVV 

The Board Vhall proYide for Whe fair and eqXiWable WreaWmenW of VWXdenWV facing VXVpenVion and/or 
e[pXlVion b\ affording Whem Wheir dXe proceVV righWV Xnder Whe laZ. The SXperinWendenW or 
deVignee Vhall compl\ ZiWh procedXreV for noWiceV, hearingV, and appealV aV Vpecified in laZ and 
adminiVWraWiYe regXlaWion.  (EdXcaWion Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918) 

(cf. 5119 - SWXdenWV E[pelled fUom OWheU DiVWUicWV) 
(cf. 5144.2 - SXVpenVion and E[pXlVion/DXe PUoceVV (SWXdenWV ZiWh DiVabiliWieV)) 

MaLQWeQaQce aQd MRQLWRULQg Rf OXWcRPe DaWa 

The SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall mainWain oXWcome daWa relaWed Wo VWXdenW VXVpenVionV and 
e[pXlVionV in accordance ZiWh EdXcaWion Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, inclXding, bXW noW limiWed 
Wo, Whe nXmber of VWXdenWV recommended for e[pXlVion, Whe groXndV for each recommended 
e[pXlVion, Whe acWionV Waken b\ Whe Board, Whe W\peV of referral made afWer each e[pXlVion, and 
Whe diVpoViWion of Whe VWXdenWV afWer Whe e[pXlVion period. For an\ e[pXlVion WhaW inYolYeV Whe 
poVVeVVion of a firearm, VXch daWa Vhall inclXde Whe name of Whe Vchool and Whe W\pe of firearm 
inYolYed, aV reqXired pXrVXanW Wo 20 USC 7961. SXVpenVion and e[pXlVion daWa Vhall be reporWed 
Wo Whe Board annXall\ and Wo Whe California DeparWmenW of EdXcaWion Zhen Vo reqXired. 

244



 
 
 

  
 

               
           

          
             

               
                

 
 

        
 
 
 

  
  

    
    

        
        
      

         
     
      
         

        
        

     
    

     
      
    

      
      

       
    

 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BP 5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (conWinXed) 

In preVenWing Whe reporW Wo Whe Board, Whe SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall diVaggregaWe daWa on 
VXVpenVionV and e[pXlVionV b\ Vchool and b\ nXmericall\ VignificanW VWXdenW VXbgroXpV, 
inclXding, bXW noW limiWed Wo, eWhnic VXbgroXpV, Vocioeconomicall\ diVadYanWaged VWXdenWV, 
EngliVh learnerV, VWXdenWV ZiWh diVabiliWieV, foVWer \oXWh, and homeleVV VWXdenWV. BaVed on Whe 
daWa, Whe Board Vhall addreVV an\ idenWified diVpariWieV in Whe impoViWion of VWXdenW diVcipline and 
Vhall deWermine ZheWher and hoZ Whe diVWricW iV meeWing iWV goalV for improYing Vchool climaWe aV 
Vpecified in iWV local conWrol and accoXnWabiliW\ plan. 

(cf. 0460 - Local ConWUol and AccoXnWabiliW\ Plan) 

Legal RefeUence: 
EDUCATION CODE 
212.5 Se[Xal haUaVVmenW 
233 HaWe Yiolence 
1981-1981.5 EnUollmenW of VWXdenWV in commXniW\ Vchool 
8239.1 PUohibiWion againVW e[pXlVion of pUeVchool VWXdenW 
17292.5 PUogUam foU e[pelled VWXdenWV 
32261 InWeUagenc\ School SafeW\ DemonVWUaWion AcW of 1985 
35145 Open boaUd meeWingV 
35146 CloVed VeVVionV (UegaUding VXVpenVionV) 
35291 RXleV (foU goYeUnmenW and diVcipline of VchoolV) 
35291.5 RXleV and pUocedXUeV on Vchool diVcipline 
48645.5 ReadmiVVion; conWacW ZiWh jXYenile jXVWice V\VWem 
48660-48666 CommXniW\ da\ VchoolV 
48853.5 FoVWeU \oXWh 
48900-48927 SXVpenVion and e[pXlVion 
48950 Speech and oWheU commXnicaWion 
48980 PaUenWal noWificaWionV 
49073-49079 PUiYac\ of VWXdenW UecoUdV 
52052 NXmeUicall\ VignificanW VWXdenW VXbgUoXpV 
52060-52077 Local conWUol and accoXnWabiliW\ plan 
64000-64001 ConVolidaWed applicaWion 

Legal RefeUence conWinXed: (Vee ne[W page) 

245



 
 
 

  
 
 
 

    
  

    
    

    
      

  
   

      
    

    
     

  
              

  
       
    

    
    

      
    

      
   

    
     

    
           
    

        
    
     

        
      
       

              
        
         

         
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

BP 5144.1(g) 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (conWinXed) 

Legal RefeUence: (conWinXed) 
CIVIL CODE 
47 PUiYileged commXnicaWion 
48.8 DefamaWion liabiliW\ 
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 
1985-1997 SXbpoenaV; meanV of pUodXcWion 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11455.20 ConWempW 
54950-54963 Ralph M. BUoZn AcW 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
11014.5 DUXg paUapheUnalia 
11053-11058 SWandaUdV and VchedXleV 
LABOR CODE 
230.7 Emplo\ee Wime off Wo appeaU in Vchool on behalf of a child 
PENAL CODE 
31 PUincipal of a cUime, defined 
240 AVVaXlW defined 
241.2 AVVaXlW fineV 
242 BaWWeU\ defined 
243.2 BaWWeU\ on Vchool pUopeUW\ 
243.4 Se[Xal baWWeU\ 
245 AVVaXlW ZiWh deadl\ Zeapon 
245.6 Ha]ing 
261 Rape defined 
266c UnlaZfXl Ve[Xal inWeUcoXUVe 
286 Sodom\ defined 
288 LeZd oU laVciYioXV acWV ZiWh child XndeU age 14 
288a OUal copXlaWion 
289 PeneWUaWion of geniWal oU anal openingV 
417.27 LaVeU poinWeUV 
422.55 HaWe cUime defined 
422.6 InWeUfeUence ZiWh e[eUciVe of ciYil UighWV 
422.7 AggUaYaWing facWoUV foU pXniVhmenW 
422.75 Enhanced penalWieV foU haWe cUimeV 
626.2 EnWU\ Xpon campXV afWeU ZUiWWen noWice of VXVpenVion oU diVmiVVal ZiWhoXW peUmiVVion 
626.9 GXn-FUee School Zone AcW of 1995 
626.10 DiUkV, daggeUV, kniYeV, Ua]oUV, oU VWXn gXnV 
868.5 SXppoUWing peUVon; aWWendance dXUing WeVWimon\ of ZiWneVV 

Legal RefeUence conWinXed: (Vee ne[W page) 

246

https://11455.20


 
 
 

  
 
 
 

    
    

   
     

    
     

       
    

     
        

  
             

         
               

         
                

             
            

   
     
      
      
      

 
  
         
             
  

   
      
      

        
 

          
 

 
 
 
 
  

BP 5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (conWinXed) 

Legal RefeUence: (conWinXed) 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
729.6 CoXnVeling 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 
921 DefiniWionV, fiUeaUm 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1415(K) PlacemenW in alWeUnaWiYe edXcaWional VeWWing 
7961 GXn-fUee VchoolV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
11432-11435 EdXcaWion of homeleVV childUen and \oXWhV 
COURT DECISIONS 
T.H. Y. San Diego Unified School DiVWUicW (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4Wh 1267 
WoodbXU\ Y. DempVe\ (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4Wh 421 
BoaUd of EdXcaWion of SacUamenWo CiW\ Unified School DiVWUicW Y. SacUamenWo CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion 
and KenneWh H. (2001) 85 Cal.App.4Wh 1321 
FUemonW Union High School DiVWUicW Y. SanWa ClaUa CoXnW\ BoaUd (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 118 
GaUcia Y. LoV AngeleV BoaUd of EdXcaWion (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807 
John A. Y. San BeUnaUdino School DiVWUicW (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
84 OpV.Cal.AWW\.Gen. 146 (2001) 
80 OpV.Cal.AWW\.Gen. 348 (1997) 
80 OpV.Cal.AWW\.Gen. 91 (1997) 
80 OpV.Cal.AWW\.Gen. 85 (1997) 

ManagemenW ReVoXUceV: 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
DeaU ColleagXe LeWWeU on Whe NondiVcUiminaWoU\ AdminiVWUaWion of School DiVcipline, JanXaU\ 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.oUg 
CalifoUnia AWWoUne\ GeneUal'V Office: hWWp://ZZZ.oag.ca.goY 
CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion: hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, Office foU CiYil RighWV: 
hWWp://ZZZ.ed.goY/aboXW/officeV/liVW/ocU/docV/cUdc-2012-daWa-VXmmaU\.pdf 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, Office of Safe and HealWh\ SWXdenWV: 
hWWp://ZZZ2.ed.goY/aboXW/officeV/liVW/oeVe/oVhV 

247



 
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

E[hibiW SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
YerVion: SanWa CrX], California 
SWXdeQWV BP 5145.2 

FREEDOM OF SPEECH/EXPRESSION 

The SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion belieYeV WhaW free inqXir\ and e[change of ideaV are 
eVVenWial parWV of a democraWic edXcaWion. The Board reVpecWV VWXdenWV' righWV Wo e[preVV ideaV and 
opinionV, Wake VWandV on iVVXeV, and VXpporW caXVeV, eYen Zhen VXch Vpeech iV conWroYerVial or 
XnpopXlar. 

(cf. 6142.3 - CiYic EdXcaWion) 
(cf. 6144 - ConWroYerVial IVVXeV) 

On-CampXV E[preVVion 

SWXdenWV Vhall haYe Whe righW Wo e[erciVe freedom of Vpeech and of Whe preVV inclXding, bXW noW 
limiWed Wo, Whe XVe of bXlleWin boardV; Whe diVWribXWion of prinWed maWerialV or peWiWionV; Whe 
Zearing of bXWWonV, badgeV, and oWher inVignia; and Whe righW of e[preVVion in official 
pXblicaWionV.  (EdXcaWion Code 48907) 

SWXdenW e[preVVion on diVWricW or Vchool InWerneW Zeb ViWeV and online media Vhall generall\ be 
afforded Whe Vame proWecWionV aV in prinW media. 

(cf. 1113 - DiVWricW and School Web SiWeV) 
(cf. 6163.4 - SWXdenW UVe of Technolog\) 

SWXdenWV' freedom of e[preVVion Vhall be limiWed onl\ aV alloZed b\ EdXcaWion Code 48907, 
48950, and oWher applicable VWaWe and federal laZV. 

SWXdenWV are prohibiWed from making an\ e[preVVionV or diVWribXWing or poVWing an\ maWerialV WhaW 
are obVcene, libeloXV, or VlanderoXV. SWXdenWV alVo are prohibiWed from making an\ e[preVVionV 
WhaW Vo inciWeV VWXdenWV aV Wo creaWe a clear and preVenW danger of Whe commiVVion of XnlaZfXl acWV 
on Vchool premiVeV, Whe YiolaWion of Vchool rXleV, or VXbVWanWial diVrXpWion of Whe Vchool'V orderl\ 
operaWion.  (EdXcaWion Code 48907) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Se[Xal HaraVVmenW) 
(cf. 5145.9 - HaWe-MoWiYaWed BehaYior) 

248



 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

The XVe of "fighWing ZordV" or epiWheWV iV prohibiWed in WhoVe inVWanceV Zhere Whe Vpeech iV 
abXViYe and inVXlWing, raWher Whan a commXnicaWion of ideaV, and Whe Vpeech iV XVed in an abXViYe 
manner in a ViWXaWion WhaW preVenWV an acWXal danger WhaW iW Zill caXVe a breach of Whe peace. 

School officialV Vhall noW engage in prior reVWrainW of maWerial prepared for official Vchool 
pXblicaWionV e[cepW inVofar aV Whe conWenW of Whe maWerial YiolaWeV Whe laZ.  (EdXcaWion Code 
48907) 

The SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall noW diVcipline an\ high Vchool VWXdenW Volel\ on Whe baViV of 
Vpeech or oWher commXnicaWion WhaW ZoXld be conVWiWXWionall\ proWecWed Zhen engaged in oXWVide 
of Vchool, bXW ma\ impoVe diVcipline for haraVVmenW, WhreaWV, or inWimidaWion XnleVV 
conVWiWXWionall\ proWecWed.  (EdXcaWion Code 48950) 

(cf. 5137 - PoViWiYe School ClimaWe) 
(cf. 5144 - DiVcipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - SXVpenVion and E[pXlVion/DXe ProceVV) 
(cf. 5144.2 - SXVpenVion and E[pXlVion/DXe ProceVV: SWXdenWV ZiWh DiVabiliWieV) 

Off-CampXV E[preVVion 

A VWXdenW Vhall be VXbjecW Wo diVcipline for off-campXV e[preVVion, inclXding e[preVVion on 
off-campXV InWerneW Zeb ViWeV, Zhen VXch e[preVVion poVeV a WhreaW Wo Whe VafeW\ of oWher 
VWXdenWV, VWaff, or Vchool properW\, or VXbVWanWiall\ diVrXpWV Whe edXcaWional program.  The 
SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall docXmenW Whe impacW Whe e[preVVion had or coXld be e[pecWed Wo 
haYe on Whe Vchool program. 

(cf. 5131 - CondXcW) 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
48907  E[erciVe of free e[preVVion; rXleV and regXlaWionV 
48950  Speech and oWher commXnicaWion 
51520  ProhibiWed VoliciWaWionV on Vchool premiVeV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
4071-4074  EqXal AcceVV AcW 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
ArWicle 1, SecWion 2  Freedom of Vpeech and e[preVVion 
U.S. CONSTITUTION 

249



 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  

AmendmenW 1  Freedom of Vpeech and e[preVVion 
COURT DECISIONS 
SmiWh Y. NoYaWo Unified School DiVWricW, (2007) 150 Cal.App.4Wh 1439 
LaYine Y. Blaine School DiVWricW, (2001) 257 F.3d 981 
EmmeWW Y. Kirkland School DiVWricW No. 415, (2000) 92 F.SXpp. 2d 1088 
J.S. Y. BeWhlehem Area School DiVWricW, (2000) 757 A.2d 412 (Pa. CommZ. 2000) 
BeXVVink Y. Woodland R-IV School DiVWricW, (1998) 30 F.SXpp. 2d 1175 
MXller Y. JefferVon LighWhoXVe School, (1996) 98 F.3d 1530 
LoYell Y. PoZa\ Unified School DiVWricW, (1996) 90 F.3d 367 
Ha]elZood School DiVWricW Y. KXhlmeier, (1988) 108 S. CW. 562 
Leeb Y. DeLong, (1988) 198 Cal.App.3d 47 
BeWhel School DiVWricW No. 403 Y. FraVer, (1986) 478 U.S. 675 
BrighW Y. LoV AngeleV Unified School DiVWricW, (1976) 18 Cal. 3d 350 
Tinker Y. DeV MoineV IndependenW CommXniW\ School DiVWricW, (1969) 393 U.S. 503 

ManagemenW ReVoXrceV: 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.org 
California DeparWmenW of EdXcaWion: hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY 

(3/93  11/01)  11/07 

250

https://hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.org
https://Cal.App.3d


 
 
 
 

 
  

 
              

                
              

 
 

               
             

             
          

               
           

           
           

                
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

         
               
             

               
           

             
 

 
             
              

 
 

              
               

E[hibiW SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
YerVion: SanWa CrX], California 
SWXdeQWV BP 5145.3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT 

ThiV polic\ Vhall appl\ Wo all acWV conVWiWXWing XnlaZfXl diVcriminaWion or haraVVmenW relaWed Wo 
Vchool acWiYiW\ or Wo Vchool aWWendance occXrring ZiWhin a diVWricW Vchool, and Wo acWV Zhich occXr 
off campXV or oXWVide of Vchool-relaWed or Vchool-VponVored acWiYiWieV bXW Zhich ma\ haYe an 
impacW or creaWe a hoVWile enYironmenW aW Vchool. 

The SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board Of EdXcaWion deVireV Wo proYide a Vafe Vchool enYironmenW WhaW 
alloZV all VWXdenWV eqXal acceVV Wo and opporWXniWieV in Whe diVWricW'V academic, e[WracXrricXlar, 
and oWher edXcaWional VXpporW programV, VerYiceV, and acWiYiWieV. The Board prohibiWV, aW an\ 
diVWricW Vchool or Vchool acWiYiW\, XnlaZfXl diVcriminaWion, inclXding diVcriminaWor\ haraVVmenW, 
inWimidaWion, and bXll\ing, WargeWed aW an\ VWXdenW b\ an\one, baVed on Whe VWXdenW'V acWXal or 
perceiYed race, color, anceVWr\, naWionaliW\, naWional origin, immigraWion VWaWXV, eWhnic groXp 
idenWificaWion, eWhniciW\, age, religion, mariWal VWaWXV, pregnanc\, parenWal VWaWXV, ph\Vical or 
menWal diVabiliW\, medical condiWion, Ve[, Ve[Xal orienWaWion, gender, gender idenWiW\, gender 
e[preVVion, or geneWic informaWion, or aVVociaWion ZiWh a perVon or groXp ZiWh one or more of 
WheVe acWXal or perceiYed characWeriVWicV. 

(cf. 0410 - NondiVcriminaWion in DiVWricW ProgramV and AcWiYiWieV) 
(cf. 5131 - CondXcW) 
(cf. 5131.2 - BXll\ing) 
(cf. 5137 - PoViWiYe School ClimaWe) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Se[Xal HaraVVmenW) 
(cf. 5145.9 - HaWe-MoWiYaWed BehaYior) 
(cf. 5146 - Married/PregnanW/ParenWing SWXdenWV) 
(cf. 6164.6 - IdenWificaWion and EdXcaWion Under SecWion 504) 

UnlaZfXl diVcriminaWion, inclXding diVcriminaWor\ haraVVmenW, inWimidaWion, or bXll\ing, ma\ 
reVXlW from ph\Vical, Yerbal, nonYerbal, or ZriWWen condXcW baVed on an\ of Whe caWegorieV liVWed 
aboYe. UnlaZfXl diVcriminaWion alVo occXrV Zhen prohibiWed condXcW iV Vo VeYere, perViVWenW, or 
perYaViYe WhaW iW affecWV a VWXdenW'V abiliW\ Wo parWicipaWe in or benefiW from an edXcaWional 
program or acWiYiW\; creaWeV an inWimidaWing, WhreaWening, hoVWile, or offenViYe edXcaWional 
enYironmenW; haV Whe effecW of VXbVWanWiall\ or XnreaVonabl\ inWerfering ZiWh a VWXdenW'V academic 
performance; or oWherZiVe adYerVel\ affecWV a VWXdenW'V edXcaWional opporWXniWieV. 

UnlaZfXl diVcriminaWion alVo inclXdeV diVparaWe WreaWmenW of VWXdenWV baVed on one of Whe 
caWegorieV aboYe ZiWh reVpecW Wo Whe proYiVion of opporWXniWieV Wo parWicipaWe in Vchool programV 
or acWiYiWieV or Whe proYiVion or receipW of edXcaWional benefiWV or VerYiceV. 

The Board alVo prohibiWV an\ form of reWaliaWion againVW an\ indiYidXal Zho reporWV or 
parWicipaWeV in Whe reporWing of XnlaZfXl diVcriminaWion, fileV or parWicipaWeV in Whe filing of a 

251



              
            

 
 

             
           

            
          
               

           
 

 
               

              
           

           
             

              
             

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

             
         

              
 

 
         

            
            
               

           
           

 
 

 
 

 

complainW, or inYeVWigaWeV or parWicipaWeV in Whe inYeVWigaWion of a complainW or reporW alleging 
XnlaZfXl diVcriminaWion. ReWaliaWion complainWV Vhall be inYeVWigaWed and reVolYed in Whe Vame 
manner aV a diVcriminaWion complainW. 

The SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall faciliWaWe VWXdenWV' acceVV Wo Whe edXcaWional program b\ 
pXblici]ing Whe diVWricW'V nondiVcriminaWion polic\ and relaWed complainW procedXreV Wo VWXdenWV, 
parenWV/gXardianV, and emplo\eeV. In addiWion, Whe SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall poVW Whe 
diVWricW'V policieV prohibiWing diVcriminaWion, haraVVmenW, inWimidaWion, and bXll\ing and oWher 
reqXired informaWion on Whe diVWricW'V Zeb ViWe in a manner WhaW iV eaVil\ acceVVible Wo 
parenWV/gXardianV and VWXdenWV, in accordance ZiWh laZ and Whe accompan\ing adminiVWraWiYe 
regXlaWion. 

The SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall proYide Wraining and/or informaWion on Whe Vcope and XVe of 
Whe polic\ and complainW procedXreV and Wake oWher meaVXreV deVigned Wo increaVe Whe Vchool 
commXniW\'V XnderVWanding of Whe reqXiremenWV of laZ relaWed Wo diVcriminaWion. The 
SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall regXlarl\ reYieZ Whe implemenWaWion of Whe diVWricW'V 
nondiVcriminaWion policieV and pracWiceV and, aV neceVVar\, Vhall Wake acWion Wo remoYe an\ 
idenWified barrier Wo VWXdenW acceVV Wo or parWicipaWion in Whe diVWricW'V edXcaWional program. The 
SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall reporW Whe findingV and recommendaWionV Wo Whe Board afWer 
each reYieZ. 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform ComplainW ProcedXreV) 
(cf. 1330 - UVe of FaciliWieV) 
(cf. 4131 - SWaff DeYelopmenW) 
(cf. 4231 - SWaff DeYelopmenW) 
(cf. 4331 - SWaff DeYelopmenW) 
(cf. 6145 - E[WracXrricXlar and CocXrricXlar AcWiYiWieV) 
(cf. 6145.2 - AWhleWic CompeWiWion) 
(cf. 6164.2 - GXidance/CoXnVeling SerYiceV) 

RegardleVV of ZheWher a complainanW complieV ZiWh Whe ZriWing, Wimeline, and/or oWher formal 
filing reqXiremenWV, all complainWV alleging XnlaZfXl diVcriminaWion, inclXding diVcriminaWor\ 
haraVVmenW, inWimidaWion, or bXll\ing, Vhall be inYeVWigaWed and prompW acWion Waken Wo VWop Whe 
diVcriminaWion, preYenW recXrrence, and addreVV an\ conWinXing effecW on VWXdenWV. 

SWXdenWV Zho engage in XnlaZfXl diVcriminaWion, inclXding diVcriminaWor\ haraVVmenW, 
inWimidaWion, reWaliaWion, or bXll\ing, in YiolaWion of laZ, Board polic\, or adminiVWraWiYe 
regXlaWion Vhall be VXbjecW Wo appropriaWe conVeqXence or diVcipline, Zhich ma\ inclXde 
VXVpenVion or e[pXlVion Zhen Whe behaYior iV VeYere or perYaViYe aV defined in EdXcaWion Code 
48900.4. An\ emplo\ee Zho permiWV or engageV in prohibiWed diVcriminaWion, inclXding 
diVcriminaWor\ haraVVmenW, inWimidaWion, reWaliaWion, or bXll\ing, Vhall be VXbjecW Wo diVciplinar\ 
acWion, Xp Wo and inclXding diVmiVVal. 

(cf. 4118 - DiVmiVVal/SXVpenVion/DiVciplinar\ AcWion) 
(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - ProfeVVional SWandardV) 
(cf. 4218 - DiVmiVVal/SXVpenVion/DiVciplinar\ AcWion) 

252

https://4119.21/4219.21/4319.21


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
              

          
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

(cf. 5144 - DiVcipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - SXVpenVion and E[pXlVion/DXe ProceVV) 
(cf. 5144.2 - SXVpenVion and E[pXlVion/DXe ProceVV (SWXdenWV ZiWh DiVabiliWieV)) 
(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/E[preVVion) 

Record-Keeping 

The SXperinWendenW or deVignee Vhall mainWain a record of all reporWed caVeV of XnlaZfXl 
diVcriminaWion, inclXding diVcriminaWor\ haraVVmenW, inWimidaWion, or bXll\ing, Wo enable Whe 
diVWricW Wo moniWor, addreVV, and preYenW repeWiWiYe prohibiWed behaYior in diVWricW VchoolV. 

(cf. 3580 - DiVWricW RecordV) 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  ProhibiWion of diVcriminaWion 
48900.3  SXVpenVion or e[pXlVion for acW of haWe Yiolence 
48900.4  SXVpenVion or e[pXlVion for WhreaWV or haraVVmenW 
48904  LiabiliW\ of parenW/gXardian for ZillfXl VWXdenW miVcondXcW 
48907  SWXdenW e[erciVe of free e[preVVion 
48950  Freedom of Vpeech 
48985  TranVlaWion of noWiceV 
49020-49023  AWhleWic programV 
49060-49079  SWXdenW recordV 
51500  ProhibiWed inVWrXcWion or acWiYiW\ 
51501  ProhibiWed meanV of inVWrXcWion 
60044  ProhibiWed inVWrXcWional maWerialV 
CIVIL CODE 
1714.1  LiabiliW\ of parenWV/gXardianV for ZillfXl miVcondXcW of minor 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11135  NondiVcriminaWion in programV or acWiYiWieV fXnded b\ VWaWe 
PENAL CODE 
422.55  DefiniWion of haWe crime 
422.6  CrimeV, haraVVmenW 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
432  SWXdenW record 
4600-4670  Uniform complainW procedXreV 
4900-4965  NondiVcriminaWion in elemenWar\ and Vecondar\ edXcaWion programV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688  TiWle IX of Whe EdXcaWion AmendmenWV of 1972 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794  SecWion 504 of RehabiliWaWion AcW of 1973 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000e-17  TiWle VI and TiWle VII CiYil RighWV AcW of 1964, aV amended 

253



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

          
 

 
              

 
 

            
 

 
 

 
           
              

 
 

 
 

           
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

2000h-2-2000h-6  TiWle IX of Whe CiYil RighWV AcW of 1964 
6101-6107  Age DiVcriminaWion AcW of 1975 
12101-12213  TiWle II eqXal opporWXniW\ for indiYidXalV ZiWh diVabiliWieV 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.107  NondiVcriminaWion on baViV of diVabiliW\; complainWV 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.31  DiVcloVXre of perVonall\ idenWifiable informaWion 
100.3  ProhibiWion of diVcriminaWion on baViV of race, color or naWional origin 
104.7  DeVignaWion of reVponVible emplo\ee for SecWion 504 
104.8  NoWice 
106.8  DeVignaWion of reVponVible emplo\ee for TiWle IX 
106.9  NoWificaWion of nondiVcriminaWion on baViV of Ve[ 
110.25 ProhibiWion of diVcriminaWion baVed on age 
COURT DECISIONS 
DonoYan Y. PoZa\ Unified School DiVWricW, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4Wh 567 
FloreV Y. Morgan Hill Unified School DiVWricW, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130 

ManagemenW ReVoXrceV: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
UpdaWed Legal GXidance: ProWecWing TranVgender and Gender Nonconforming SWXdenWV AgainVW 
Se[ DiVcriminaWion, March 2017 
CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 
PromoWing a Safe and SecXre Learning EnYironmenW for All: GXidance and Model PolicieV Wo 
AVViVW California'V K-12 SchoolV in ReVponding Wo ImmigraWion IVVXeV, April 2018 
FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS 
PXblic SchoolV and Se[Xal OrienWaWion: A FirVW AmendmenW FrameZork for Finding Common 
GroXnd, 2006 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
E[ampleV of PolicieV and Emerging PracWiceV for SXpporWing TranVgender SWXdenWV, Ma\ 2016 
Dear ColleagXe LeWWer:  TiWle IX CoordinaWorV, April 2015 
ReVolXWion AgreemenW BeWZeen Whe Arcadia Unified School DiVWricW, U.S. DeparWmenW of 
EdXcaWion, Office for CiYil RighWV, and Whe U.S. DeparWmenW of JXVWice, CiYil RighWV DiYiVion, 
(2013) OCR 09-12-1020, DOJ 169-12C-70 
Dear ColleagXe LeWWer:  HaraVVmenW and BXll\ing, OcWober 2010 
NoWice of Non-DiVcriminaWion, FacW SheeW, AXgXVW 2010 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 
GXidance Wo Federal Financial AVViVWance RecipienWV Regarding TiWle VI ProhibiWion AgainVW 
NaWional Origin DiVcriminaWion AffecWing LimiWed EngliVh ProficienW PerVonV, AXgXVW 2003 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.org 
California DeparWmenW of EdXcaWion:  hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY 
California Office of Whe AWWorne\ General: hWWp://oag.ca.goY 
California Safe SchoolV CoaliWion:  hWWp://ZZZ.caVafeVchoolV.org 
FirVW AmendmenW CenWer:  hWWp://ZZZ.firVWamendmenWcenWer.org 
U.S. DeparWmenW of EdXcaWion, Office for CiYil RighWV:  hWWp://ZZZ.ed.goY/aboXW/officeV/liVW/ocr 

254

https://hWWp://ZZZ.firVWamendmenWcenWer.org
https://hWWp://ZZZ.caVafeVchoolV.org
https://hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.org


 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

               
              

           
              

          
 

 
                

             
              

               
             

              
              

                
 

 
          
    

 
 

 
             

             
               

 
 

      
 

              
                

            
 

 
 

 
 

 

E[hibiW SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
YerVion: SanWa CrX], California 
SWXdeQWV BP 5145.7 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

The CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion iV commiWWed Wo mainWaining a Vafe Vchool enYironmenW WhaW iV 
free from haraVVmenW and diVcriminaWion. Se[Xal haraVVmenW WargeWed aW an\ VWXdenW in a coXnW\ 
office of edXcaWion (COE) edXcaWional program, Vchool, or Vchool-VponVored or Vchool-relaWed 
acWiYiW\ iV prohibiWed. The CoXnW\ Board alVo prohibiWV reWaliaWor\ behaYior or acWion againVW an\ 
perVon Zho reporWV, fileV a complainW or WeVWifieV aboXW, or oWherZiVe VXpporWV a complainanW in 
alleging Ve[Xal haraVVmenW. 

The CoXnW\ Board VWrongl\ encoXrageV VWXdenWV Zho feel WhaW Whe\ are being or haYe been 
Ve[Xall\ haraVVed on Vchool groXndV or aW a Vchool-VponVored or Vchool-relaWed acWiYiW\ b\ 
anoWher VWXdenW or an adXlW, or Zho haYe e[perienced an off-campXV Ve[Xal haraVVmenW incidenW 
WhaW inYolYed an\one ZiWh Zhom Whe\ ma\ conWinXe Wo haYe conWacW on campXV, Wo immediaWel\ 
conWacW Wheir Weacher, Whe principal or program adminiVWraWor, or an\ oWher aYailable Vchool 
emplo\ee. An\ emplo\ee Zho receiYeV a reporW or obVerYeV an incidenW of Ve[Xal haraVVmenW 
Vhall noWif\ Whe CoXnW\ SXperinWendenW of SchoolV or Whe COE'V deVignaWed compliance officer Vo 
WhaW VWepV ma\ be Waken Wo inYeVWigaWe and addreVV Whe allegaWion in accordance ZiWh laZ and 
relaWed CoXnW\ SXperinWendenW regXlaWion. 

(cf. 0410 - NondiVcUiminaWion in CoXnW\ Office PUogUamV and AcWiYiWieV) 
(cf. 5145.3 - NondiVcUiminaWion/HaUaVVmenW) 

CRPSOaLQW PURceVV aQd DLVcLSOLQaU\ AcWLRQV 

Se[Xal haraVVmenW complainWV b\ and againVW VWXdenWV Vhall be inYeVWigaWed and reVolYed in 
accordance ZiWh laZ and COE Xniform complainW procedXreV. All complainWV and allegaWionV of 
Ve[Xal haraVVmenW Vhall be kepW confidenWial e[cepW aV neceVVar\ Wo carr\ oXW Whe inYeVWigaWion or 
Wake oWher VXbVeqXenW neceVVar\ acWion.  (5 CCR 4964) 

(cf. 1312.3 - UnifoUm ComplainW PUocedXUeV) 

Upon inYeVWigaWion of a Ve[Xal haraVVmenW complainW, an\ VWXdenW foXnd Wo haYe engaged in 
Ve[Xal haraVVmenW or Ve[Xal Yiolence in YiolaWion of WhiV CoXnW\ Board polic\ Vhall be VXbjecW Wo 
diVciplinar\ acWion. For VWXdenWV in gradeV 4-12, diVciplinar\ acWion ma\ inclXde VXVpenVion 
and/or e[pXlVion. 

NRWLfLcaWLRQV 

A cop\ of Whe COE'V Ve[Xal haraVVmenW polic\ and regXlaWion Vhall: 

255



               
 

 
              

             
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

             
 

 
              

 
 

            
 

 
            

 
 

  
  

          
         
     
      

        
       

          
         
     
       
  

           
          

  
     

     
     
         

     
    
        

     
 

1. Be inclXded in Whe noWificaWionV WhaW are VenW Wo parenWV/gXardianV aW Whe beginning of each 
Vchool \ear  (EdXcaWion Code 48980; 5 CCR 4917) 

2. Be diVpla\ed in a prominenW locaWion in Whe main adminiVWraWiYe bXilding or oWher area 
Zhere noWiceV of COE rXleV, regXlaWionV, procedXreV, and VWandardV of condXcW are poVWed 
(EdXcaWion Code 231.5) 

BP 5145.7 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (conWinXed) 

3. Be poVWed on COE and program/Vchool Zeb ViWeV and, Zhen aYailable, on COE-VXpporWed 
Vocial media 

4. Be proYided aV parW of an\ orienWaWion program condXcWed for neZ VWXdenWV aW Whe 
beginning of each qXarWer, VemeVWer, or VXmmer VeVVion  (EdXcaWion Code 231.5) 

5. Appear in an\ pXblicaWion WhaW VeWV forWh Whe program/Vchool'V or COE'V comprehenViYe 
rXleV, regXlaWionV, procedXreV, and VWandardV of condXcW  (EdXcaWion Code 231.5) 

7. Be proYided Wo Whe CoXnW\ SXperinWendenW for diVWribXWion Wo emplo\eeV and emplo\ee 
organi]aWionV 

Legal RefeUence: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4 PUohibiWion of diVcUiminaWion on Whe baViV of Ve[ 
1040 DXWieV and UeVponVibiliWieV; coXnW\ boaUdV of edXcaWion 
1042 CoXnW\ boaUdV; aXWhoUiW\ 
35160 AXWhoUiW\ of coXnW\ boaUdV 
35160.1 AXWhoUiW\ of coXnW\ boaUdV; legiVlaWiYe inWenW 
48900 GUoXndV foU VXVpenVion oU e[pXlVion 
48900.2 AddiWional gUoXndV foU VXVpenVion oU e[pXlVion; Ve[Xal haUaVVmenW 
48904 LiabiliW\ of paUenW/gXaUdian foU ZillfXl VWXdenW miVcondXcW 
48915 GUoXndV foU e[pXlVion 
48980 NoWice aW beginning of WeUm 
CIVIL CODE 
51.9 LiabiliW\ foU Ve[Xal haUaVVmenW; bXVineVV, VeUYice and pUofeVVional UelaWionVhipV 
1714.1 LiabiliW\ of paUenWV/gXaUdianV foU ZillfXl miVcondXcW of minoU 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12950.1 Se[Xal haUaVVmenW WUaining 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4600-4670 UnifoUm complainW pUocedXUeV 
4900-4965 NondiVcUiminaWion in elemenWaU\ and VecondaU\ edXcaWion pUogUamV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1221 ApplicaWion of laZV 
1232g Famil\ EdXcaWional RighWV and PUiYac\ AcW 
1681-1688 TiWle IX, diVcUiminaWion 

256



 
  

 
 
 

    
     

        
         
           

      
       

           
         

  
           

              
            
            

            
             

             
 

  
  

          
      

             
         
        

             
         

         
              

     
  

   
      

          
 
 
 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (conWinXed) 

Legal RefeUence: (conWinXed) 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1983 CiYil acWion foU depUiYaWion of UighWV 
2000d-2000d-7 TiWle VI, CiYil RighWV AcW of 1964 
2000e-2000e-17 TiWle VII, CiYil RighWV AcW of 1964 aV amended 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.1-99.67 Famil\ EdXcaWional RighWV and PUiYac\ 
106.1-106.71 NondiVcUiminaWion on Whe baViV of Ve[ in edXcaWion pUogUamV 
106.8 DeVignaWion of UeVponVible emplo\ee foU TiWle IX 
COURT DECISIONS 
DonoYan Y. PoZa\ Unified School DiVWUicW, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4Wh 567 
FloUeV Y. MoUgan Hill Unified School DiVWUicW, (2003, 9Wh CiU.) 324 F.3d 1130 
ReeVe Y. JeffeUVon School DiVWUicW, (2001, 9Wh CiU.) 208 F.3d 736 
DaYiV Y. MonUoe CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion, (1999) 526 U.S. 629 
GebVeU Y. Lago ViVWa IndependenW School DiVWUicW, (1998) 524 U.S. 274 
Oona b\ KaWe S. Y. McCaffUe\, (1998, 9Wh CiU.) 143 F.3d 473 
Doe Y. PeWalXma CiW\ School DiVWUicW, (1995, 9Wh CiU.) 54 F.3d 1447 

ManagemenW ReVoXUceV: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
PUoYiding a Safe, NondiVcUiminaWoU\ School EnYiUonmenW foU TUanVgendeU and GendeU-NonconfoUming 
SWXdenWV, Polic\ BUief, FebUXaU\ 2014 
Safe SchoolV: SWUaWegieV foU GoYeUning BoaUdV Wo EnVXUe SWXdenW SXcceVV, 2011 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Q&A on CampXV Se[Xal MiVcondXcW, SepWembeU 2017 
E[ampleV of PolicieV and EmeUging PUacWiceV foU SXppoUWing TUanVgendeU SWXdenWV, Ma\ 2016 
DeaU ColleagXe LeWWeU: TiWle IX CooUdinaWoUV, ApUil 2015 
Se[Xal HaUaVVmenW: IW'V NoW Academic, SepWembeU 2008 
ReYiVed Se[Xal HaUaVVmenW GXidance: HaUaVVmenW of SWXdenWV b\ School Emplo\eeV, OWheU SWXdenWV, oU 
ThiUd PaUWieV, JanXaU\ 2001 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.oUg 
CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion: hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, Office foU CiYil RighWV: hWWp://ZZZ.ed.goY/aboXW/officeV/liVW/ocU 

257

https://106.1-106.71
https://99.1-99.67


SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  

 
 

 
   

 
   

 
   

  
 

 
 

 
                
              

                    
                  

                
    

 

          

  

         BRaUd MeeWLQJ DaWe: Dec. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: DU. FaULV Sabbah, CRXQW\ SXSeULQWeQdeQW Rf SchRROV 

SUBJECT: TUaQVfeU BRaUd TUaYeO aQd CRQfeUeQce ReLPbXUVePeQW FXQdV 

BACKGROUND 

PXUVXaQW WR BRaUd PROLc\ 9250, Whe BRaUd VhaOO be UeLPbXUVed fRU aQ\ acWXaO aQd QeceVVaU\ SUe 
aSSURYed WUaYeO e[SeQVeV LQcXUUed LQ Whe cRXUVe Rf WheLU dXWLeV XSRQ VXbPLVVLRQ Rf LWePL]ed 
UeceLSWV fRU XS WR $2,000 each, RU $3,000 each fRU aQ\ WUXVWee WhaW LV eOecWed aV a deOegaWe WR a 
UegLRQaO RU VWaWe RUgaQL]aWLRQ. If a BRaUd PePbeU eOecWV QRW WR XVe hLV RU heU fXOO aOORcaWLRQ, Whe 
BRaUd, aV a bRd\, Pa\ deVLgQaWe Whe LQWeQded RU acWXaO XQXVed fXQdV WR RWheU BRaUd PePbeUV 
fRU WUaYeO aQd cRQfeUeQce. 

BRaUd MeeWLQJ DaWe: Dec. 17, 2020 AJeQda IWeP: #12.4 
258



           
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 
 
 
        

Bylaws of the Board BB 9250 
Compensation/Reimbursement For Expenses 

The Santa Cruz County Board of Education and the Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
recognize that participation in and attendance at conferences, seminars, workshops and education 
related meetings is a primary means of affording Board trustees the opportunity to update 
necessary skills and to network with other professionals.  

COMPENSATION 

Each member of the County Board of Education who actually attends the  regularly scheduled 
board meetings held in any calendar month shall receive as compensation for his or her services 
a sum not to exceed two hundred dollars ($200) per month (E.C. 1090(a)(4)).  

A member of the County Board of Education may be paid for any meeting for which he or she is 
absent if the Board by resolution duly adopted and included within its minutes finds that at the 
time of the meeting the absent board member was performing services outside the meeting on 
behalf of the Board, he or she was ill or on jury duty, or the absence was due to a hardship 
deemed acceptable by the Board.  (E.C.1090(d)). 

Each member of the Santa Cruz County Board of Education who uses his or her privately owned 
automobile in the discharge of necessary official duties as a member of the County Board of 
Education, shall be allowed the same mileage reimbursement rate as that allowed to employees 
of the County Office of Education who use privately owned vehicles in the performance of their 
duties for the County Office of Education. (E.C.1090(e)). 

Board members are encouraged to be involved in other community and education-related 
activities, committees and organizations; however, only mileage expenses are reimbursable. 

TRAVEL AND CONFERENCE EXPENSES 

The Board shall be reimbursed for any actual and necessary, preapproved travel expenses 
incurred in the course of their duties upon submission of original itemized receipts (E.C. 1081). 
Travel includes attendance at any of the following: workshop, seminar, convention, conference 
or other meeting of benefit to the County Office of Education.  The County Board of Education 
may select a member or members of the Board to attend meetings or conventions of any society, 
association or organization for which the Board has subscribed for membership. (E.C. 1096) 

An amount not to exceed $2,000.00 shall be available each fiscal year to each member of the 
Board for conference and travel.  In-county mileage reimbursement shall be included in the 
$2,000.00 travel allocation.  If a Board member elects not to use his or her full allocation, the 
Board, as a body, may designate the intended or actual unused funds to other Board members for 
travel and conference.  Unused travel funds will not be carried forward. 

259

https://2,000.00
https://2,000.00


    
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Compensation/Reimbursement For Expenses (cont.) BB 9250 

Members of the Board who have been designated or elected as an officer or delegate to a 
regional or state organization of which the Santa Cruz County Board of Education is a member, 
shall be allocated an additional $1,000.00 each fiscal year against which reimbursement shall be 
separately monitored.  The allocation shall coincide with the Board member’s term of office on 
the regional or state organization.  

If travel is expected to involve costs to the County Office of Education other than mileage, a 
Travel Request Form shall be prepared by the Board member and shall include a detailed cost 
estimate.  The County Superintendent of Schools shall approve the Travel Request form as 
appropriate. 

Board members are encouraged to submit all travel claims and mileage reimbursement claims no 
later than the month following approved travel.  

Legal References: E.C. §§ 1090(a)(4), 1090(b), 1090(d), 1090(e), 1081, 1096 

Adopted 4/17/2014 

260

https://1,000.00


)<�������%RDUG�7UDYHO�([SHQVHV�� 
6XH�5RWK�� 
&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 
&6%$�$(&� 'HF������������ 9LUWXDO� ������� 

&&%(�$QQXDO�&RQI� 6HSW������� 9LUWXDO ������� 

7RWDO�� ������� 

5RVH�)LOLFHWWL�� �������&DS 

'DQD�6DOHV� 

6DQGUD�1LFKROV�� 

%UXFH�9DQ�$OOHQ�� 

$EHO�6DQFKH]�� 

&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 
&6%$�$(&� 'HF������������ 9LUWXDO� ������� 

&&%(�$QQXDO�&RQI� 6HSW������� 9LUWXDO ������� 

&6%$�$(&�3UHVLGHQWV�:RUNVKRS 'HF������������ 9LUWXDO ������� 

7RWDO� ������� 

&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 
&&%(�$QQXDO�&RQI� 6HSW������� 9LUWXDO ������� 

7RWDO�� ������� 

&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 
&&%(�$QQXDO�&RQI� 6HSW������� 9LUWXDO ������� 

7RWDO�� ������� 

&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 
9LUWXDO� 

7RWDO�� ����� 

&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 
&6%$�$(&� 'HF������������ 9LUWXDO� ������� 

7RWDO�� ������� 

261



-DQH�%DUU�� 
&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 

7RWDO�� ����� 

$O\VVD�:DOO� 
&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 
&6%$�$(&�9LUWXDO�5HJLVWUDWLRQ 'HF������������ 9LUWXDO� ������� 

&6%$�$(&�1HZ�7UXVWHH�:RUNVKRS 'HF������������ 9LUWXDO� ������� 

&6%$�0,*��� 'HF��������� 9LUWXDO� ������� 

&6%$�0,*��� )HE���������� 9LUWXDO� ������� 

&6%$�0,*��� 0DU��������� 9LUWXDO� ������� 

&6%$�0,*��� $SU���������� 9LUWXDO� ������� 

7RWDO�� ��������� 

(G�$FRVWD�� 
&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 

7RWDO�� ����� 

)DULV� �%RDUG�5HODWHG�&RQIHUHQFH� 
&RQIHUHQFH�(YHQW�� (YHQW�'DWH�� (YHQW�7\SH� 7RWDO�([SHQVHV�� 
&6%$�$(& 'HF������������ 9LUWXDO� ������� 

7RWDO�� ������� 

262



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

  



  

 

 
 

  

  

 

   

 

     BRaUd MHHWLQJ DaWH: DHc. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO:� SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ 

FROM:� DU. FaUiV Sabbah, CRXQW\ SXSeUiQWeQdeQW Rf SchRRlV  

SUBJECT: 6FKHGXOH�6SHFLDO�-DQXDU\����%RDUG�0HHWLQJ 

BACKGROUND 

The BRaUd Zill cRQVideU VchedXliQg a VSecial PeeWiQg RQ JaQXaU\ fRU ThXUVda\, JaQXaU\ 
14, 2020 aW 3:00 S.P. WR SaUWiciSaWe iQ a WUaiQiQg UegaUdiQg BURZQ AcW UegXlaWiRQV aQd 
UeceQW chaQgeV iQ laZ hRVWed b\ legal cRXQVel. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

SchedXle a VSecial bRaUd PeeWiQg RQ JaQXaU\ 14, 2020 aW 3SP. 

BRaUd MHHWLQJ DaWH: Dec. 17, 2020 AJHQda IWHP: #12.5 
263




